
Exhibil 99.1 

DESCRIPTION OF GOVERNMENT REGULATIONS 

Tlte ownership and operaiion of casino gaming facilities are subjecl to extensive stale and local regulations. We are required to 
ohlaiti and maintain gaining licenses in each of the juri.sdictions in which we conduct ganiing. The limitation, conditioning or 
.su.'ipen.sion ofgaming licenses could (ond ihe revocation or non-renewal ofgaming licenses, or the failure lo reauthorize gaming in 
certain jurisdictions, would) materially och'ersely affecl our operaiion in thai jurisdiction. In addition, changes in law thai restrict or 
prohibit our gaming openilions in any jurisdiction could hove a maierial adverse effect on us. 

LouisUina 

In July 1991, Louisiana enacted legislation pennilUng certain types of gaming aclivii>' on certain rivers and waterways in Louisiana. 
Tlie legislation gnmted auUiority to supervise riveiboat gaining actiyities lo die Louisiana Riverboai Gaming Conuitission and ihe 
Riveriioai Gaming Enforcement Division oflhe Louisiana Stale Police. TIK Louisiana,Rivertioal Canting Conuitission .was aulhorized 
to hear and detemiinc all appeals relative to the granting, suspension, revocation, condition or renewal ofall licenses; perrails and 
applications. In addition, the Louisiana Riverixial Gaming Coiiunission established regulations conceniing authorized rotites, duration 
of excursions, minimum levels of insurance, construction of riverboats and periodic inspections. The Riverboat Gaming Enforcement 
Division oflhe Louisiana Slate Police was authorized to investigate apphcants and issue licenses, investigate violations ofthe statute 
and conduct continuing reviews ofgaming activities. 

In May 1996, regulatoiy oversight of riverboai ganting was transferred to the Louisiana Ganting Conlrol Board, witich is comprised of 
itinc voting members appouiied by the govemor. The Louisiana Gaming Conlrol Board now oversees all licensing matters for 
rT\'eiboal casinos, land-based casinos., racinos, video poker and certain inspects of Native American ganiing other than those 
responsibilities reser\'ed to tlie Louisiami Slate Police. 

The Louisiaiui Gaming Conlrol Board is empowered lo issue up to 15 licenses lo conduci gaming activities on a riverboat in 
accordance with applicable law. However, no more tiian six licenses may be granted lo rivcrtioats'opcraling from any one designaied 
walerwa>'. 

Tlie Louisiana State Police continues to be im'oKcd broadly in gimtingenforceineni and repons to the Louisiana Gaming Conlrol 
Board. Louisiana law permits Uie Louisiana Stale Police, among odier tltings, to continue lo (1) conduct suilabilily investigaUons, 
(2) audiL investigate and enforce compMance wilh standing regidations, (3) iititiate etiforcemenl and adminisirative actions and 
(4) perfonn "all oUicr duties and functions necessary for the efficient, efficacious, :uid thorough regulation and control ofgaming 
activities and operalions" under the Louisiana Gaming Control Board's jurisdiction. 

Louisiana ganiing law specifies certain restrictions relatingto the operation of riveiboat gaming, inchiding llie following; 

• agents ofthe Louisiana Slate Police are pemtitted on board at any time during gaming operations; 

• g;iming devices, equipnienl and supplies may onlybe purclijised or leased from pennittcd suppUers and, wiih respect to 
ganting equipmem, from pennitted manufacturers; 

• gaming may only lake place in die designaied ganting area wltile Ihe riveiboat is docked on a designated river or 
i\'aler\vay; 

• gaming equipineni may not be possessed, maintained or exhibited by any person on a riveiboat except in the 
specifically designated ganiing area or in a secure area used for inspection, repair or storage ofsuch equipment: 

• wagers may be received oiUy from a person present on a licensed rivertioat: 
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• persons under 21 are not perntiited in designated gaming areas; 

• e.xcept for slot machine plav. wagers may be made only wilh tokens, chips or electronic cards purchased from the 
licensee aboard a riverboai; 

• licensees nwy only use docking facilities and rouies for which they are licensed and may only board and discliarge 
passengers at ihe riveiboal's licensed berth; 

• licensees must have adequate protection and indcnutily insurance; 

• licensees must have all necessary federal and stale licenses, certificates and other regulatoiy approvals prior to 
operating a riveiboat; aixl 

• gaming may ordy be conducted inaccordance with tlic,tenns ofthe license and Louisiana law. 

To receive a gaming license in Louisiana, an applicant mustbe found to be a.person of good character, honest>' and integrity and a 
person whose prior activities, criminal record, if any, reputation,,hjibits and associations do not (I) pose a dircat to die public inierest 
of the Slate of Louisiana or to die effective regulation and control of ganting or (2) create or enliance Uie dangers of unsuitable, unfair 
or illegal practices, methods and activities in Uie conduct of gaming or die carr>'iiig on of business and financial arrangemenls of 
gaming activities. In addition, die Louisiana Ganiing Control Board will'not grant a license unless it finds that, among other things: 

• the applicant can demonstrate the capability, cither through training, education, business experience ora combination 
oflhe preceding, to operate a gaming operaiion; 

• the proposed finjincing oflhe rivcrboal and the gaiiting operations is adequate fordic nature ofthe proposed operaiion 
and is from a suitable and acceptable source; 

• Uie applicani demonslniles a proven abdity lo operate a vessel of comparable size, capacih' and complexity to a 
riverboat so as to ensure the Siti'el}' of its passengers; 

• the applicani submits wilh iis application fora license a detailed plan of design oflhe riverboat; 

• the applicani designates the docking facilities to be used by the riverboai; 

• ihe applicani shows adequate financial ability to consmict and mainiain a riverboat: and 

• the applicant has a good faith plan to rccmiL, train and upgrade minorities in all employnient classifications, 

Au iitilial hcense to conduct rived)oat ganting operations is valid for a tenn of five years and legislation passed in the 1999 legislative 
session provides for renewals eveiy five years tiiereafler. Louisiana ganiing laŵ  provides dial a renewal applicalion for the period 
succeeding the iititia! five-yeartennof an operaior's license must be made to the Louisiana Gaining Control Board and musl include a 
statement under oaih ofany and all changes in infonuation, including financial infonmtion, provided in the previous application. Tlic 
transferof a license oran inieresi in a hcense is prohibiied. Agaming license is deemed lobe a privilege under Louisiana law and, as 
such, may be deitied, revoked, suspended, conditioned or limiled at any time by the Louisiana (Janting Control Board. Tlie Isle-Lake 
Charles received its first five-year renewal of its licenses on luly 20, 1999 and received its second fiye-year renewal of its nvo licenses 
on Mareh 29, 2005. 

On March 24, 2009, the Isle-Lake Charles filed an application for a third five-year renewal of its two licenses. The two five-year 
renewal applications are presentiy pending approval. 

Certain persons affiliated wilh a riverboai gaining licensee, including directors and officers of Ihe licensee, direclors and officers of 
any holding company of the licensee involved in gaming operalions, persons holding 5% or greater interests in the licensee and 
persons exercising influence over a licensee, arc subject lo die applicalion and suitability requirements of Louisiana gaming law. 
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The sale, purchiisc, assigmnent, transfer, pledge or other hypothecation, lease, disposition or acquisilion by any person of securities 
Uiat represent 5% or more of Uie total outsianding shares issued by a licensee is subjecl to Uie'approval of the Louisiana Ganting 
Control Board. A security issued by a licensee musl generally disclose ihese resiriclions. Prioi"approval from the Louisiana Gaming 
Conlrol Board is required for llie sale, purchase, assignment, transfer; pledge or oihcr hypoUiecation, lease, disposilion or acquisition 
ofany ownership interesi of 5% or more ofany non-corporate licensee or for the transfer ofan)' "economic interest" of 5% or more of 
any licensee or affiliated gaming person. An "econontic interest" is defined as any interest whereby a person receives or is entitled to 
recei\'e, by agreement or olhenvise, aprofit, gain, thing of value, loan, crcdit, security intcrestiownersltip interest or oUier benefil. 

Fees payable to the slale for conducling gaming activities ona rivertioat include (1) $50,000 per riyerboat for llie first year of 
operation and $ 100.000 per year per riverboat thereafter, plus (2) 18.5% of net gantiiig proceeds. Legislation was passed during the 
2001 legislative session that allowed those riverboats tltit had been required to conduci cruises, including Uie riverboats at ihe 
Isle-Lake Cliaries, lo remain pcnnanenlly dockside begituting April 1,2001. The legislalion also increased the gaming tax for 
operators from 18.5% to 21.5%, A statute also authorizes local goveming audiorities lo levy boarding fees. We curreiUly liave 
developmeni agreemems in Lake Cliarlcs w'iili certain local goventing aulhorilies in the jurisdiciions in which wc operate pursuanl lo 
witich we make payments in lieu of boaniing fees. 

A licensee must notify and/or seek approval from the Louisiana Ganting Control Board in connection with any willidniwals of capital, 
loans, advjmccs or disiributions in e.xcess of 5% of retained earnings for a corporate Ucensee,,or of capilal accounts for a partnership or 
Iintitcd liabiiily company Ucensee, upon completion ofany such transaction. Tlie Louisiana Gaming Control Board niay issue an 
emergency order for not more tlian ten days prolubiting payment of profils.iiicome or accruals by, or invesunents in, a licensee. 
Uidess excepted or waived by die Louisiana Gaming Contixil Board, riverboat gaming licensees'and their jiffilialed gaming persons . 
musl notify' the Loiusiana Ganiing Control Board 60 days pnorlo.tlie receipt by anysuch petrous of anyloans or e.xiensions ofcredit 
or modifications Ihereof. The Louisiana Gaming Control Board is required to investigate the reported loan, extension ofcredit or 
modifiaition ilieieof and to detennine wlietlieran exemption exists on thereqiiiremenl of prior wrilten approval and. if such 
exemption is nol applicable, to eidier approve or disapprove ihc Iransaction. If the Louisiana Gaming Control Board disapproves ofa 
iransaction, the tiaiisaction caimot be eniered inio by the licensee or affiliaied ganting person. We are an affiliated gamingperson of 
our subsidiaries that hold the licenses to conduct riveiboat gaming at the Isle-L;ikc Charles. 

The failure ofa licensee to comply wilhlhe rcqitirements set foitli above may result in Uie suspension or revocation of dial licensee's 
gaming license. Additionally, if die Louisianji Gaming Control Board finds that the individual owneror holderof a security ofa 
corporate licen.se or intennediar>- cotnpany or any person with an economic inierest in a licensee is not qualUled mider Louisiana law, 
the Louisiana Gaming Conirol Board may require, under penalty of suspension or revocation oflhe license, ihat the person not: 

• receive dividends or interest on securities of tlic corporation; 

• exercise directly or indireclly a righl conferred by securilicsof the corporalion; 

• rccetyc remtmcration or econontic benefil from the licensee; 

• exercise sigruficant infiuence over aclivities of die licensee; or 

• continue its ownersltip or economic interesi in the licensee. 

A licensee must periodically reporl tlte following infonnation to the Louisiami Gaming Contrbl Board, witich is nol confidential and is 
available for public inspection: (1) Uic licensee's net gaming proceeds from al! auUiorized games. (2) the.amount of nel ganting 
proceeds tax paid and (3) all quarterly and annual finaiKial statements presenting historical data, including annual financial statements 
tliiit liave been audited by an independent certified public auditor. 

Duringihe 1996 special session of the Louisiana legislature, legislation was enacted placing on Uie ballot for a statewide election a 
constitmioniil amendmeiu limiting the expansion of ganiing, which was 
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subsequently passed by the volers. As a result, local option elections arc rcquircd before new or additional fonns of ganting can be 
brought inio a parish. 

Proposals lo amend or supplement Louisiamrs riverboat gaming statute are frequently introduced in the Louisiana State Legislature. 
There is no assurance tliat clianges in Louisiana gaining law will not occur or that .such clianges will not liave a material adverse effect 
on ourbusiness in Louisiana. 

In July 2006, the subsidiao' 'hat held the Company's license to operate a riverboat in Bossier City transferred its license to an 
unrelated third party. 

MLs.'iLssippi 

In June 1990, Mississippi enacl«I legislation legahzing dockside casino ganiing for counlics along ilic Mississippi River, witich is die 
western border for most of the state, and the Gulf Coasi, which is the soutlieni bonjer for most of Uie state. The legislation gave each 
of those counties the opportunity lo hold a referendum on whetHer to allow dockside casino ganiing wiiltin its boundaries. 

In its 2005 regular session, the legislature amended Mississippi law to allow gaming to be conducted on vessels or cmise vessels 
placed upon pemianenlsiniciures located on,' in or above'thc Mississippi River on, in or above navigable waters in eligible counties 
along the Mississippi River or on, ui or above the waters lying south of the counties along the Mississippi Gulf Coast. Later, after 
Hurricane Katrina, the Mississippi legislatiire again amended the law to allow land-based gamirig along the GulfCoast in verS' Untiled 
circumstances. Mississippi law permits unlimited slakes gaming, on a 24-lioiirbasis'aiiddoes not resirici the percentage of space tliat 
may be utihzĵ d for gamuig. Tliere are no hntitatioiis on the nmnber of ganiing licenses \hai may be issued in Mississippi. 

The ownersltip and operation ofgaming facilities in Mississippi are subject lo extensive state and local rcgulation intended to; 

• prevent unsavoty oninsuitable persons from having any direct or uidircct iiivolycment with ganting at any lime or in 
any capaciiy; 

• establish and maintain responsible accounting practices and procedures for ganting operations; 

• maintain effective control over the financial practices of licensees, including esliiblishing minimum procedures for 
intcrmil fiscal affairs and safeguarding of assels and revenues, providing reliable record keeping and making periodic 
reports; 

• provide a source of slale and local revenues tlirough taxation and licensing fees; 

• prcvent clieating and fraudulent practices; and 

• ensure Uial gaming licensees, to tlie extent practicable, employ Mississippi residents. 

Slate ganting regulations are subject to amendment and interpretation by the Mississippi Gaming Commission. Clianges in Mississippi 
laws or regulations may limit or odienvise materially affecl the types ofgaming llial may be conducled in Mississippi and such 
changes, if enacted, could have an adverse effect on us and our Mississippi ganting operalions. 

We are regisiered as a publicly traded corporalion under Uie Mississippi Gaming Contiol Aci. Our ganting operations in Mississippi 
arc subject to regulatoty control by the Mississippi Gaming Commission; the Stale Tax Coimnission and various other local, city and 
couniy rcgulaioty agencies (collectively referred lo as die "'Mississippi Ganting Authorities"). Our subsidiaries liave oblained gaming 
licenses from the Mississippi Gaining Autliorities. Wc must obtain a waiver from the Mississippi Ganting Commission before 
beginning cenain proposed ganting operations outside of Mississippi, and we must notify the Mississippi GamingCommission in 
writing within 30 days after commencing certain ganting operatioris outside the stale. Tlie hcenses held by our Mississippi gaining 
operations liave leniis of ihree years and are not transferable, Tlie Isle-Biloxi, the Isle-Natchez and the Isle-Lula hold licenses effccttye 
from Mav 23. 
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2009. tluough May 22, 2012. In addition, our wholly-owned subsidiaty', IOC Manufacluring, Inc. holds a manufacturer and 
disiributor's license, so that wc may perform certain upgrades to our Mississippi player tracking s>'stem. This license has a term of 
three years, iscffeclive from June 16, 2008 through June 15, 2011, and is not transferable. There is no assurance that new licenses can 
be oblained at the end of each iliree-year period ofa license. Moreover, tlie Mississippi Ganting Commission may, at any time, and for 
any cause it deems reasonable, revoke, suspend, condition, limil or restrict a license or approval lo own shares of stock inour 
subsidiaries dial operate in Mississippi. 

Subsianiial fines for each violation of Mississippi's ganting laws or regulations may be levied againsl us, our subsidiaries and die 
persons involved. Disciplinary' action against us or one ofour subsidiary' gaining licensees in am-jurisdiction may lead to disciplinan' 
action against us or any of our subsidiaiy hcensees in Mississippi, including, but not limiled lo, tlie rcvocalion or suspension ofany 
such subsidiaty gaming license. 

We, along wiUi each of our Mississippi gaining subsidiaries, must periodically subiitii delailed financial, operating and other reports to 
the Mississippi Ganung Commission and/or die State Tax; Commission. Numerous iransactions, including but not limited to 
substantially all loans, leases, sales of securities and similar financing transactions eniered into by aii>" ofour Mississippi gaming 
subsidiaries musl be reported to or approved by the Mississippi Gaming Commission. In additiori; llie'Mississippi Ganting 
Coinntission may, at its discretion, require additional infonnation about our operalions. 

Certain of our officers and employees and llie officers, dircciors and certain key employees of our Mississippi gaming subsidiaries 
musl be found suitable or be licensed by Ihe Mississippi Ganting Commission, We believe that all required findings of suitabdity and 
key employee licenses relaled tb all of our Mississippi properties liave been applied for or obtained, aldiough the Mississippi Ganung 
Comntission al its discrctioii may require additional persons to file applications for findings of suilabilit>' or key employee licenses. In 
addition, any person having a material relationship or irn'oivemenl with,us maybe required to be fountl suitable or liceiiscd, in witich 
case Ihose persons must pay the costs and fees associated wiUi such investigatibiL Tlie'Mississippi Gaming Coimnission may den>' an 
application fora finding of suitribility for any cause lh;il it deems reasonable. Changes in certain licensed positions musl be reported lo 
the Mississippi Gantiiig Commission. In addiiion to iis auiliority to deriy.an application for̂ a finding of suitability, Uie Mississippi 
Gaming Comniission lias jurisdiction to disapprove a change in a licensed position. The Mississippi Ganting Commission has die 
power lo require us and any of our Mississippi gaming subsidiaries to suspei^ or dismiss officers, direclors and olher key. employees 
orio sever relalionsltips wiUi other persons who refuse lo file appropriate applications or who the authorities find unsuitable to acl in 
such capacities. 

Employees associaied wiih gaming musl obiain work pennils tluit are subjecl to inunediate suspension mider certain circumstances. 
The Mississippi Ganting Commission will refuse to issue a work pennit to a person who lias been convicted ofa felony, commined 
certain misdemeanors or knowingly violated the Mississippi Gaming Conirol Act, and it may refuse to issue a work pennit to a 
gaming employee for any other reasonable cause. 

At any time, tlie Mississippi Ganiing Commission has UK power lo investigate and require the finding of suilabilily of any rccord or 
beneficial stockholder of ours, Tlie Mississippi Gaining Control Acl requires an;' person who individually or in association with others 
acqitircs, direcUy or indirecdy. beneficial ownersltip of more llum 5%of oiirconuiKJu stock to report the "acquisition to die Mississippi 
Gaming Commission, and such person may be required to be fomid suitable. In addition, the Mississippi Ganting Control Acl requires 
any person who. individuaUy or in association witli odiers, becomes, directly or indireclly, a beneficial owner of more llian 10% ofour 
common stock, as reported to die U.S. Securities and E.xcliniige Conuitission, to apply for a finding of suilabilily by the Mississippi 
Gaming Conunission and pay the costs and fees that die Mississippi Gaming Conunission incurs in conducling Uic investigation. 

Tlic Mississippi Ganung Commission lias generally exercised its discretion lo require a finding of suitability of any beneficial owner 
of more tlian 5% ofa regisiered publicly traded corporation's slock. However, the Mississippi Gaming Commission has adopied a 
reguijition dial tnay penitil cert;tin 
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"'institutional" invesiors lo obiain waivers Uial allow tliem to beneficially own, direclly or indirectly, up to 15% (19% in certain 
spectilc instances) of die voting seairilies ofa registered pubhcly traded corporation without a finding of suitability. Ifa stockholder 
who must be found suitable is a corporation, partnership or trust, il must submit detailed business and financial infonnation, including 
a list of beneficial owners. 

Any person who fails or refuses to apply for a finding of suitability or a license wiihin 30 days after being ordered lo do so by the 
Mississippi Ganting Commission may be found unsuitable. We believe Uuit compliance by us widi the licensing procedures and 
regulator;' requiremenis of UK Mississippi Gaining Conuitission will not affect the niari<etability of oursecurities. Any peison found 
uusmtable who holds, direclly or indirecdy, any beneficial ownersltip of our securities beyond such tune as the Mississippi Ganting 
Commission prescribes niay be gitilty ofa misdemeanor. We are subject to disciplinaty action U", after receiving nolice lli;ti a person is 
unsuitable to be a stockholder or to luive any oUicr relationsltip wiUi us or our subsidiaries operating casinos in Mississippi, we: 

• pay the unsuitable person any dividend or other distribution upon its voting securities: 

• recogitize the exercise, directly or iniiirccUv, ofam' voting rights conferred by its securities: 

• pay die unsuitable person any remuneration in any fonn for sen'ices rendered or othenvise. e.xcept in certain luniied 
and specific circumstances; or 

• fail to piusue all lawful efforts to require the unsuitable person to divesl itself of Uie securities, uicluding, if necessan, 
our inunediate purchase of the securities for cash at a fair markel value. 

We maybe required to disclose to the Mississippi GantingCommissionupon requesi the identitiesof the holders ofany of our debl 
securities. In addiiion, tinder die Mississippi Ganting ControrAcl,4lie Mississippi Ganting Comiiussion niay, in its discreiion, 
(1) require holders ofour securities, including our nolcs, to file applications, (2) investigate such Iiolders and (3) rcqiiire such holders 
to be found suitable to own such sectirities. Aldiough'the Mississippi GajningConintissipn generally does not require ihe individual 
holders of obtigalions such as Uic noies to be investigated and found suitable, the Mississippi Gaming Coimnission retains die 
discretion to do so for any reason, including but not limited lo a defaull. or where.the holder of Uie debt instmment exercises a inaterial 
infiuence over the gaming operations of the entity in question. Any-holder of debt securities rcquircd to apply for a fiiiding of 
suitabihty must pay all investigative fees and costs oflhe Mississippi Ganiing Commission in connection with such an investigation, 

Tlic Mississippi regulations provide that a cliange in contrbl of us may nol occur wiUioul the prior approval of the Mississippi Gaming 
Commission. Mississippi law prolubiis us from making a public offering of oursecurities witliout Uie approval oflhe Mississippi 
Gaining Cqinniission ifany part ofthe proceeds of ihebfFering is lobe used to finance the conslmction, acquisition or operation of 
ganiing facilities in Mississippi, of to retire or extend obligations incurred for one or more such pui3X>ses. Tlie Mississippi Ganting 
Commission has the authority lo grant a continuous approval of securities ofTcririgs and has granted such approval lo us, snbjeci to 
renewal every three years. 

Regulations of the Mississippi Gaming Conunission proltibit certain repurchases of securities of publicly traded coiporalions 
registered with die j'^ississippi Gaming Commissioa including holding couipaitics such as ours, witliout prior approval of the 
Mississippi Gaming Commission. Transactions covered by these regulations are generally aimed at discouraging repurcliases of 
securities at a premium over market price frorn certaui holders of greater Uian 3% of the outstanding securities of die registered 
publicly Lradcdcorporalion. The regulations of the Mississippi Ganiing Commission also require prior approval fora''plan of 
recapitalization" as defined in such regulations. 

We must maintain in tlic State ofMississippi curreni stock ledgers, which may be examined by the Mississippi Gamuig AuUioriiies at 
any time. If any securities :ue held in trust by an agent or by a nontinee, the record holder may be required to disclose die identity of 
Uie beneficial owner to the Mississippi Ganting Authorities. A failurc to iiijikc such disclosure may be grounds for finding the record 
holder unsuitable. We must render maxunmn assistance in determining the identity of the beneficijd owner 
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Mississippi law requires that certificates representing shares of our common stock bear a legend lo the general effect that ihe securities 
are subject to the Mississippi Ganiing Conlrol Aci and regulations oflhe Mississippi Ganting Commission. Tlie Mississippi Gaming 
Coinntission has the authority to grant a waiver from the legend requirenienl, which we have obtained. Tlie Mississippi Gaming 
Commissioa through the power to regulate licenses, h;is die power to impose additional restrictions on'the holders of our securities at 
anytime. 

Tlie Mississippi Ganung Comntission enacted a regulation in 1994 requiring UiaL as a condition lo hcensure, an appliciml musl 
provide a plan to develop infrastructure facilities amounting to 25% of tlie cost of Uie casino and a parking facility capable of 
accommodating 500 cars. In 1999, the Mississippi Gaming Commission approved amendments to this regulation tluit increased the 
infrastiucture developmeni requirement from 25% to 100% for new casinos (or upon acquishion of a closed casino), but grandfaUiered 
existing licensees and development plans approved priorto the effective dateof the new regulation. "Infraslmcture facitiUes" include 
any of the following: 

• a 250-room or larger hotel of al least a two-star rating as defined by the currcni edition of the MobU Travel Guide: 

• theme paries; 

• golf courses; 

• marinas; 

• emenainmem facilities; 

• tennis complexes; or 

• any other facilities approved by the Mississippi Gantiiig Conunission. 

Paricing facilities, roads, sewage and water systems or civic factiitiesare'not considercd "infraslmcture facilities." Tlie Mississippi 
Ganting Conmtission maj'-reduce the numberof rooms rcquircd in a hotel if it is satisfied dial sufficient rooms are available to 
accommodate the aniicipaied nuniber of visitors. In 2003 and in 2006, the Mississippi Gaming Commission again amended its 
regulation regarding development plan approval but left the 100% infrastruciurc requircriieni intact. In 2007, die Mississippi Ganting 
Commission further amended Utis regulation. Among other ihings. the 2007 amendmeni retained the 100% infrastiucture requirement 
atid added a requirement iluii the qu;ilified infmstmciure be owned or leased by certain specified persons. 

License fees and taxes are payable to die State ofMississippi and to the counties and cities in which a Mississippi gaming subsidituT,''s 
rcspeciive operations will be conducled. The license fee payable to the state ofMississippi is based upon gross revenue ofthe licensee 
(generally defined as gaming receipts less payoui to customers as wiiuungs) and equals 4% of gross revenue of $50,000 or less per 
month, 6% of gross revenue in excess of $50,000 but less Uuin $134,000 percalendar montli,'and 8% of gross revenue inexcessof 
$134,000 per calendar mouth. Tlie foregoing licerise fees arc allowed as a credit against the licensee's Mississippi income tax Uability 
for the year paid. Additionally, a licensee musl pay a $5,000 aruiual license fee imd an amiual fee based upon the nmnber of games il 
operates. Tlie gross rcvenue lax unposed by llie Mississippi coimnunities and counties in witich our casuio operations are located 
equals 0.4% ofgross revenue of $50,000 or less per calendar iiionth, 0,6%» of gross revenue over $50,000 and less llian $134,000 per 
calendar month and 0.8% of gross revenue greater tlian$ 134.000 per calendar monUi These fees have been imposed in. among other 
cities and counties, Biloxi and Coalioma Couniy, Certain local and private laws ofthe staleof Mississippi may impose fees or taxes on 
the Mississippi ganting subsidiaries in addiiion lo the fees described above. 

Tlic Mississippi Gaining Comntission requires, as a condition of licensure or license renewal, Ihal cjisino vessels on die Mississippi 
Gulf Coast dial are not self-propelled must be moored lo wiihstand a Categoty 4 hurricane with 155 ntile-per-hour winds and 15-fooi 
tidal surge. However, after Hurricane Kairina, Isle - Bilo.xi reopened its casino on shore rather tlian on a vessel. A' 1996 MissLssippi 
Ganting Conmiission regulation prescribes the hurricane emergency procedure lo be used by the Mississippi Gulf Coasl casinos. 
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The sale of food or alcoholic bcxeragesai our Mississippi ganting locations is subject to licensing, conirol and regulitionby the 
applicable state and local authorities. The agencies involved have ftill power to limit, condition, suspend or revoke any such license, 
and any such disciplinaty action could (and revocation would) have a material adverse effect upon the operations ofthe affected 
casirio or casinos, Ccrtainof our officers and managers and our Mississippi gaming subsidiariesinusl be investigated by tlie Alcoholic 
Beverage Control Division ofthe State Tax Commission in conneciion with liquor pcnnits that have been issued. Tlie Alcoholic 
Beverage Control Division of tlic Stale Tax Conunission musl approve all cluuiges in Ucensed positions. 

On three separate occasions siiKe 1998, certain anti-gaming groups littvc proposed referenda tliat, if adopied, would have harmed 
gaming in Mississippi and required that ganting entities ce;isc operations within nvo years after Uie ban. All tluee referenda were 
declared invalid by Mississippi courts because each lacked a required govemmcnt revenue impact stalcmeiU. 

Mis.souri 

Conducting gambling aclivities and operatiiig an excursion gambling boat in Missouri arc subject to extensive regulation under 
Missouri's Riverboat Gambling Acl and the mles and regulations promulgated Uiereunder. Tlie Missouri Gaming Comntission was 
created by the Missouri Riverboat Gambling Acl and is charged with reguiaton' authority over rivertioat gaming operations in 
Missouri, including the issuance of riveiboat gaming licenses to owners, operalors, suppliers and certain affiliates of rivertioat gaining 
facilities. In June 2000, IOC-Kansas City, Inc., a subsidiaty' of burs, was issued a riverboat gaming license in comiection with our 
Kansas City operaiion. In December 2001, lOC-Boom'ille. Inc., a subsidiaty ofours„was issued a riverixiat gaming license forour 
Boonville operation. Additionally, in June of 2007, lOC-Camtliersville, LLC f/k/a Aztar Missouri Riverboat Ganting Company, LLC 
was acquired by us and operaies as a subsidiaty of ours under a Missouri riverboai gaming license. 

In order to obtain a license to operate a riveiboat ganiing facility, Uie proposed operating business entity must complete a Riverboai 
Gaming Apptication, Fonn requesting a Class B License. In'ordef to'obtain a liceiiselo own and/or control a riverboat gaming facility 
as its ultimate holding company, the proposed parent company must complete a Rivcrboal Gaining Application Fomi requesting a 
Class A License. Tlie Riverboai Gaming Application Fonu is comprised orcomprehciisivc application forms, including corroborating 
aliachnienis. Applicants who submit the Riverboat Gaining Applicalion Fonn requesting ciihera Class A or Class B license undergo 
;m extensive background investigation by the Missouri Gantiiig Commission. Inaddition, each key person associated widi the 
applicant (includuig directors, officers, managers and ovyncrs ofa sigitificani direct orindiiecl iriteresi in Uie Class A or Class B 
applicani) must compleie a Key Person and Le\'el I Application Fonn I and undergo a substattiial background irivestigation. Certain 
key business entities closely related toihcapplicant or''key person business entities" must undergo a sintilar application process and 
background check. An applicant for a Class A or Class B license will not receive a license if the applicani and iis key persons, 
including key person business entities, liave nol established good repute and moral character and no licensee shall either employ or 
conlracl with any person who lias pled guilty lo, or been convicted of; a fcloiiy, to perfonn am' duties direclly connected with the 
licensee's privileges undera license granted by the Missouri Gaming Coinmission. 

Each Class B license granted entiUes a licensee to conduci gambluig activilies on an excursion gambling boat or lo operate an 
excursion gambling boat and the equipmetU tliereon from a specific location. Each Class A license granted entitles the licensee to 
develop and operate a Class B licensee or, d"authorized, multiple Class B licensees. Tlieduration of boUi die Class A and Class B 
license utitially mns for nvo one-year tenns; thereafter, two-year tcmis. In conjunction with the renewal of each license, the Missouri 
Gatiting Conunission requires an updated Riverboat Ganting Application Fonn and renewal fees. In conjuiicUon with each renewal, 
the Coimnission may conduci an additional imesligalion ofdie licensee with specific empliasis on new infonnation provided in the 
updated Rivertioat Ganiing Applicjition Fonn. Each sixth year from tlic dateof Uie original license a compreliensive investigation for 
die period since the lasl compreliensive investigation is conducted on the Class A, Class B, supplier and key pKison hcensees in the 
same manner as the ittitial iin'cstigation; Tlic Coimnission also hccnscs the scn'ing ofalcoholic beverages on rivciboais and related 
faciliiies. 
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In deiermining wlicilier to grant a license the Conunission considers llic following faciors. among others: (i) the integrity of tlie 
applicants; (ii) the types and variety of games the applicani may offer, (iii) ihc quality of Uie physical facility, together with 
improvemenls and equipment, and how soon the projeci will be completed; (iv) the financiai ability ofthe applicant lo develop and 
operate die facihty successfully; (v) die siaius of governmental actions required by the facility'; (vi) management ability ofthe 
applicant; (vii) compliance with applicable statutes, mles, charters and ordinances; (viii) the economic, ecological and social impact of 
the facility as well as die cosl of public inipro\ einents; (ix) the e.xtent of public support or opposition; (x) the plan adopied by the 
home dock city or couniy; and (.xi) effects on competition. 

A licensee is subjeci to die imposition of penalties, suspension or revocation of its license for any acl Uial is injurious lo die public 
health, safely, morals, good oider, and general welfarebf the people of the State of Missouri, or that would discrcdit or tend to 
discredit the Missouri ganting industiy or the Slate of Missouri, including williout limitation: (i) failing lo comply with or m;ike 
provision for compliance with the legislalion, Uie mles promulgated theremider or am,- federal, slate or local law or regulation; 
(ii) fading to comply with any rules, order or ruling of the Missouri Ganting Comntission or its agents penainuig to gaming; 
(iri) receiving goods or serx'ices from a person or business enlily who docs not hold a supptiers license bul who is rcquircd to hold 
such license by the legislation or the mles; (iv) being suspended or mled ineligible or having a license revoked or suspended in any 
stale or gaming jurisdiction; (v) associating with, eilher socially or in business affairs, or employing persons of notorious or unsavoty 
reputation or who have extensive police n2Cords, or-wlio Iiave failed,to cooperate widi any officially constituted investigaloty or 
adntirtistrative body and would ad\'ersely affect public confidence and tmst in ganting; (vi) eiiiploying in any Missouri ganung 
operaiion any person known to have been found gitilty of cheating or; using any improper device iii coimection with any gambling 
game; (vu) use of fraud, deception, misrepresentation or bribety in securing any license or pemtit issued pursuant to Uie legislation; 
(vui) obtaining any fee, cliarge, or other compensation by fraud, deception or misrepresentation; and (ix) incompeience,misconducl-
gross negligence, fraud, misrepresentation or dishonesty in the performance of the functions br duties regulated by UK Missouri 
Riveiboat Gambling Act. 

Any transferor issuance of ownership interest in a publicly held gjiming licensee or its holding company lliat results in an cntily 
owning, direcUy or indirecdy, an aggregale ownership interest of 5% or niore in die gaming licensee must be reported lo Ihe Missouri 
Ganting Coimnission within seven days. Further, any pledge or hypoUiecation of .5% or more of the'ownersltip interest in a publicly 
held ganting licensee or its holding company must be reported to the Missouri Ganting Coinntission wititin seven days. The Missouri 
Giunirig Conuitission will impose certain licensing requireinents upon a holderof an aggregate ownership interesi of 5% or more in a 
Missouri Class A or Class B licensee, unless such holder applies for and obtains an instiiutioiial investor exeinption in accordance 
with the Missouri gaining regulations. 

Evety einployee participating in a riyerboat ganting operation must hold im occupational license. In iiddition, Uie Missouri Gaming 
Commission issues supplier's licenses, which authorize the supplier licensee tosell or lease gaming equipment and supplies to any 
licensee involved in the operaiion ofgaming acliviiies. Class A and Class B licensees may nol be licensed as suppliers. 

Riverboat ganting activities may only be conducted OIL or wiiltin 1.000 feel of Uic uiaui cliannel of, llie Missouri River or Mississippi 
River Although, all of ihe excursion gambling facilities in Missouri are pemiancnily moored boats or impounded barges, a nvo hour 
simulated cruise is iniposed in order tp ensure the enforcemenl of loss lintit restrictions. Missouri law unposes a maximum loss per 
person per cmise of S500. Miitimum and maximum wagers on games are set by die licensee and wagering may be conducled ordy 
with a cashless wagering system, whereby money is converted to tokens, cleclroitic cards or chips'Uiat can only be used for wagering. 
No person tmder die age of 21 is pennitted lo wager, and wagers may ordy be laken from a person present on a licensed e.xcursion 
gambling boat. 

Tlic Missouri Riverboat Gambling Act imposes a 20% wagering lax.on adjusied gross rcccipls (generally defined as gross receipts less 
winnings paid to wagerers) from gambling games, Tlie tax imposed is to be paid by die licensee to the Commission on ihe day afier 
die day when the wagers were made. Of the 
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proceeds of thai lax, 10% goes lothe local government where the home dock is located, andthe remainder goes tothe Staleof 
Missouri. 

The Missouri Rivert)oat Gambling Acl also requires dial licensees pay a $2.00 admission lax to Uie Missouri Ganting Conmtission for 
each person admitted to a gaming cmise One dollar of the admission fee goes to tlic state and one dollar goes to the home dock cily in 
which Uc licensee operates. Tiie Ucensee is required to mainiaih public books and records clearly showing amounts received from 
admission fees, tlie total amount ofgross receipts and Ihe tolal amount of adjusted gross iieceipts, In addition, all local income, 
earnings, use, propert;' and sales ta.xes are applicable to licensees. There liave b^n from time to time pending beforc tlie Missouri 
General Assembly several proposedbills witich individually or in combination would, if adopied, (1) remove the loss lintii restriction, 
(2) adjusl the amount of wagering tax iniposed on adjusted gross receipls of licensees and/or (3) adjust the amount of admission lax 
paid by the licensee for each [Krson admitted for a gaming cmise, 

loiva 

In 1989, tlie Slate of lowa legalized riverboat gaining on the Mississippi River and other waienvays located in lowa. The legislation 
authorized the granting of licenses to non-profit corporations that, inturil- ''^. pennitted to enter into operating agreeinenis with 
qualified persons who also actually conduct rivertioat ganung operalions. Such operalors niust likewise be approved and licensed by 
tiie Iowa Racuig and Gaming Conuitission (the "Iowa Gaming Commission"). 

Tlie Isle-Bcitendorf has the right lo renew its operator's conlracl wilh die Scqll Comity Region;U Authority, a non-profit corporation 
organized for the puipose of facilitating rivcrixiat gaming in Betiendorf, Iowa, for succeeding tliree-year periods as long as Scott 
Couniy volers approve igaming in die jurisdiction. Underihedperatbr,'scontract,;dielsle-Bellendorfpjiys llie Scott County Regional 
AuUiority a fee equal to 4.1% of the adjusied gross receipls. Furtlier, die Isle-Bettendorf pays a fee to theCity of Beltendorf equal to 
1.65% of adjusted gross receipts. 

In June 1994, Upper Mississippi Ganting Coiporation, a non-profit corporation oigaruzed forllie purpose of facilitating riverboai 
gaming in Marquette, lowa, cnlercd into an operator "s agreement for ilicTsle-Marquettc for a period of twenty-five years. Under the 
management agreement the non-profil organization is lo be paid afce of $6.50 per passenger. FurUier, pursuant to a dock site 
agreerneni (witich also has a tenn of twenty-five years), die lsle-M;uquelte is required lb paŷ a fee to IIK City of Marquette inthe 
amomU of $1.00 per passenger, plus a fi.xed amountpf $15,000 per nionlli arid 2̂ 5% ofgaming revenues (less state wagering ta.\es) in 
excess of $20.0 million but less than $40.0 ntillion; 5% ofgaming revenues (less slale wagering laxes) inexcess of $40.0 ntillionbut 
less dian $60.0 million; and 7.5% of gaming revenues (less slate wagering ta.xes) inexcessof $60.0 milhon. 

In Ociobcr 2000, the Riverboat Development Authority, a non-profit corporation entered into an operator's agrccmeul with the 
Isle-Davenport to conduci riverboat gaming in Davei^ort, Iowa. The operating agreement was amended in June 2009 pending 
approval of the lowa Racing and Giuning Commission. The operating agreement requires Ihe Isle-Davenport to make weekly 
payments to die qualified sponsoring organiz.aiion equal to 4.1% of each week's adjusted gross receipts (as defined in tlie emibling 
legislation). Further, the Isle-Davenport has agreed thiit die Riverboat Developmeni Audiority will be paid at least the ntinimum 
amount of $2,000,000, witich nunimum is subjecl lo ceriain lenitination evenls (i.e. increase in the nuniber of area casinos or 
suspensionof Isle-Davenport's right under its leases with the City of Davenport or any,city penitils for more Uian 30 days) and an 
appropriate negotiated reductiori should the casino's ganting fioor lose its current snioking ban exernplion. Subjecl to Iowa Ganting 
Coinntission approval, litis agreement will remitin in effect through March 31, 2019, provided Ihil as long as isle-Davenport luis 
substanUally complied wilh the agrecmem, gamuig laws and regulations and Ihe parties' gaming license is renewed and in effect the 
agreement will autoimilically renew on an annual basis for successive one-year lerins. In addition, the Isle-Davenport pays a docking 
fee, admission fee, ganting tax and a payment inlieuofta.xcs toUieCity of Davenport, Pursuam to a dcyelopmeni agrccmcnl widi the 
Cily, die Isle-Davenport lias exclusive docking privileges in Uie City ofDavenport until March 31, 2017 in consideralion for ihis 
docking fee. The docking fee lias bodi a fi.xed base and a perpassenger increment Tlie'fi.xed fee commenced April I, 1994 al 
$111.759 and increases annually by 4%>. Tlie incremenlal component is a $0.10 charge for each passenger in excess of 1.117,579 
passengers (which cli;u-ge also increases by 4% per year). Tlie Cily is also guaranteed an aimual ganiing lax of 5558,789.50 peryeir 
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(based on a minimmn passenger floor coun! of 1,117,579 passengers at $0.50 perpassenger). In lieu ofdie foregoing tlie 
Isle-Davenport is current!;- paying the Cily of Davenport a fee of 1.65% of adjusted gross receipts. Finally, the Isle-Davenport is 
obligaled to pay a pjiyment in lieu of taxes to support tlie downtown development district. This annual lump sum paymem is in the 
amount of $123,516 plus $0.20 perpassenger in excess of 1,117,579 passengers. This payment in lieu of ta.xes is further subjecl to a 
ntiiunium $226,179 pcryear payment. 

In Noveniber 2004. the Black Hawk County Gaining Association, a non-profit corporation organized for die purpose of facilitating 
riveiboat gaming in Waterloo, lowa erncrcd into an operaior's agreement with the Isle-Walerioo lo conduct tn'eiboat gaming in 
Waterloo, lowa. The operating agreement requires that upon coimnencement of operations the Isle-Waterloo is to make weekly 
payments to die qualified sponsoring organization equal to 4.1% of each week's adjusied gross receipls and an additional fee of 1.65% 
ofeach week's adjusted gross rcccipls in lieu of an;' admission or docking fee which iitiglii othenvise be cliarged by Uie county or any 
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city (as defined in Section 99F.1(1) oflhe Iowa Code). This agreeinent will remain in effcci through March 31, 2015 and may be 
extended by the Isle-Walerioo so long as il holds a hcense to conduct gaming. In addition, the Isle-Waierloo has agreed to pay a 
developmeni fee to Uie Cily. Pursuant lo an admission fee administration and development agrecmem with die Cily and Black Hawk 
County Gaming Association the Isle-Waterloo skill pay a development fee equal to 1% of each week's adjusted gross receipts. 

lowa law pemiits gaming licensees to offer unlimited stakes gaming on ganies approved by the lowa Gaming Commission on a 
24-hour basis. Land-based aisino gaining was authorized on July I,'2007 and the Iowa Gaming Commission now pennils licensees 
die option looperale on pennanenlly moored vessels or approved gambling slniclures. The legal age for ganiing is 21. 

All Iowa licenses were approved for rcnew;d at the March 5,2009 lowa Gaming Conunission meeting. Tliese licenses are nol 
inmsferable and will need to be renewed in March 2010 and priorto the commencement ofeach subsequent annual rcnewal period. 

The ownership and operation ofgaming facihties in Iowa are subject to e.xlensive state laws, regulations of the Iowa Gaming 
Coinntission and various county and municipal ordinances (collectively, the 'Mowa Gaining Laws"), conceming the responsibility, 
financial stability and cliaracier of ganting operators and persons financially inleresied or in\'olved in ganting operations. Iowa 
Gaming Laws seek to: (1) prcvent unsavoty or unsuitable persons from having dircci or indireci im'olyemcni wiUi ganting al any time 
or in any capacity; (2) establish and mainiain responsible accounting practices and procedures; (3) maintain effective conlrol over the 
finaiKial practices of licensees (including die esiablishmem of minimumprocedures for intemal fiscal affairs, thesafegiuirdingof 
assets and revenues, the provision of reliable record keeping and the filing of periodic reports with Uie Iowa Gamuig Coimnission); 
(4) preveni cheating and frauduleni practices; and (5) proWde a souree of slate and local revenues dirough ta.xation and licensing fees. 
Changes in Iowa Gaming Laws could have a inaterial adverse effect on Uic lowa gaming operations. 

Gaming licenses granied to individuals must be renewed ever;- year, and hcensing audiorities have broad discretion with rcgard to 
such renewals. Licenses are not iransferable. Tlie Iowa gaming operalions must subntit delailed fireincial and operating rcporis to the 
Iowa Gaming Commission. Ceriain contracts of licensees inexcess of $100,000 must be submitted to and approved by the lowa 
Ganung Conunission. 

Certain officers, directors, managers and key employees ofthe lowa gaming operations are required to be licensed by tlie Iowa 
Garning Conunission. Employees associated with ganting must obtain work pennils Uiat are subject to immediate suspension under 
specific circumstances. In addition, am'onc having a material relationsltip or im olvcrnent with llie Iowa ganting operations may be 
required lobe found suitable ortobe hcensed, in wliich case those persons would be required, to pity the costs and fees of the lowa 
Gaming Commission in connection wilh the im-cstigat ion. Tlic Iowa Gaining Coimnission rnay deny an application for a license for 
any cause deemed reasonable. Inaddition to its auUiority to deny an iipplicatioh for license, the lowa Ganiing Commission lias 
jurisdiction to disapprove a cliange in position by officers or key employees and llie power to require die lowa ganting operations to 
suspend or dismiss officers, direclors or other key employees or sever relationships with other persons who refuse lo file appropriiile 
applications pr whom the Iowa Gaming Commission finds unsuitable lo act in such capacities, 

Tlie Iowa Gaming Commission may revoke a gaining license if tlie licensee: 

• has been suspended from operating a gaming operation in another jurisdiction by a board or commission of that 
jurisdiclion; 
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• has failed to demonstrate financial responsibility sufficieni to meet adeqtiiuely Uie requirements of llie gaming 
enterprise: 

• is not tlie tme owner of the cnleiprise; 

• lias failed to disclose ownersltip of other persons in the enterprise; 

• isa coiporation 10% ofthe slock of witich is subject lo a conlracl or option to purcliase at any lime during the period 
for which the license was issued, unless the contract or option was disclosed to llie Iowa Ganting Commission and llic 
Iowa Gaming Conmiission approved Uie sale or transfer during the period of Uie license; 

• knowingly niiikcs a false slatement ofa imiierial fact to die lowa Gaming Commission; 

• fails to meel a inonctaty obligation in connection with an excursion ganiing boat; 

• pleads guilty to. or is convicted ofa felony; 

• loans to any person, money or olher thing of value for tlie purpose of pcnititting lliat person to wager on ;my game of 
chance; 

• is delinquent in the paymeni ofproperty taxes or otherta.xcs orfees or a payment ofany other contraciuai obligalion or 
debt due or owed lo a city or county; or 

• assigns, grants or turns over to anoUier person the operation ofa licensed excursion boat (tliis provision does not 
prohibit assignmem ofa management contracl iipproycd by the Iowa Gaming Comntission) or penitils another person 
to luivc a sliare oflhe money rcceivcd for admission to the e.xcursion boat. 

If it were detennined dial Uie lowa Ganung Laws were violated by a hcensec, the gaming hcenses held by a licensee could be limited, 
made conditional, suspended or revoked. In addition, die licensee and,the personsinvolved could be subject to substantial fines for 
each separate violation of die lowa Gaming Laws in Uie discreiion ofthe lowa.Gaining Commission. Limiuitions, conditioning or 
suspension ofam- gaining license could (and revocation of any gamirig license would) have a inaterial adverse effect on operations. 

The Iowa Ganiing Conunission may also require an>' individual who has a rriatcrial relationsltip with the Iowa ganiing operations to be 
investigated and licensed or found suitable. Tlie Iowa Ganiing Commission, prior lo Uie acquisition, must approve any person who 
acquires 5% or more ofa licensee's equity securities, Tlie applicant slockholderis required lopay.all cosis of litis investigation. 

Gaming taxes approxiniiUing 22% of the adjusied gross receipts will be payable by each Ucensee on its operations lo die Stale of lowa. 
Inaddition, reimbursable assessments have been in an amount equal to 2.152% of each licensee's adjusted gross receipts for fiscal 
year 2004. Tliese assessments will be offset by fuiurc slale gaming taxes paid by each licensee with a credit for 20%. of the 
assessments paid allowed each year beginrung July 1. 2010 for five consecutive years. The state of lowa is also reimbursed by ihe 
licensees for ;di cosis associated with monitoring and eitibrcement by the Iowa Ginning Conuitission and the Iowa Departmeni of 
Crintinal Im-estigaiion. 

Colorado 

-The State of Colorado created the Division of Gaming C'CoIorado Diyisipn") within the Department of Revenue to license, 
impiement, regulate and supen'ise the conduct of limited gaming under the (Tolorado Limited Gaming Act The Director of the 
Colorado Division ("Colorado Director"), pursuant to regulations promulgated by, and subjeci to the review of, a five-member 
Colorado Limited Gaining Control Commission ("Colorado Comniission"), has been granted broad power to ensure compliance with 
the Colorado ganting laws and regulations (collectively, the "Colorado Regulations"). The Colorado Dirccior imiy inspect witliout 
notice, impound or remove any ganting de\'icc. Tlic Colorado Director may examine and copy any licensee's records, may investigate 
the background and conduct of licensees and their employees, and inay bring disciplinaty actions against licensees and their 
employees. The Colorado Dirccior may also conduct delaUed background investigations of persons who loan money to, or otiienvise 
provide financing to, a licensee. 

The Colorado Commission is empowered to issue five lypes ofgamingand gaming-related licenses, aixl lias delegated audiority to the 
Colorado Director to issue cenain types of licenses and approve cemtin 
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changes in ownership. The licenses are revocable and non-iransferable. The failure or inability ofthe Isle ofCapri Black Hawk. LLC 
("Islc-Black Hawk") or CCSC/Blackhawk. Ine ("Colorado Cenlral Si;ition-Black Hawk") (eiich. a "Colorado Casino" or colleclively. 
the''Colorado Casinos''), orthe failure or inability of others associated wilhany of die Colorado Casinos, including us, to maintain 
necessan' gaining licenses or approvals would have a inaterial ad\-crse effect on our operatioris. All persons employed by any of the 
Colorado Casinos, and imolved, directly or indireclly, in gaining operations in Colorado also are required to obiain a Colorado 
giuning license. AII licenses must be renewed eycr>' iwo years. As li general mle, under the Colorado Regulations, no person may have 
an "ownership interesi" in more than three relail gaming licenses in Colorado. The Colorado Comntission has mled dial a person docs 
not Iiave an ownership interest in a relail gaming licensee for purposes ofthe multiple license proltibilion if: 

• that person has less Uian a 5% ownersltip uiteresi in an institutional investor Ihiit lias an ownership inieresi in a publicly 
iraded licensee or publicly iraded company affiliated wilh a licensee; 

• a person has a 5% or iiiorc ownersltip inieresi in an instilutionid investor, but die instilutioiuil investor lias less dian a 
5% ownership interesi in a publicly tiaded licensee or publicly traded company affiliated widi a licensee; 

• an institiitional investor has less tlian a 5% ownership interesi in a publicly iraded licensee or publicly iraded company 
affiliated wiUi a ticensee: 

« an insiimtional invesior possesses voting sectirities in a fiduciaty capacity for aiioUier person, tmd docs not exercise 
voting conlrol over 5% or more of die oulstanding voting securities of a publicly traded licensee or ofa publicly 
iraded compam' affiliated with a licensee; 

• a registered broker or dealer retains possession of voting securities of a publicly traded licensee orof a publicly traded 
company affdialed wilh a Ucensee for its custoincrs and not for its own account and exercises voting rights for less 
than 5% of Ihe outstanding voling securities of a publicly traded licensee or publicly traded company affdialed with a 
licensee; 

• a regisiered broker or dealer acts as a market maker for the stock of a publicly iraded licensee or of a publicly ti-aded 
company affiliated with a licensee and exercises voting rights in less than 5% of the outstanding voting securities of 
the publicly traded licensee or publicly traded comp;iny affiliated with a licensee; 

• an undenvriter is holding securiUes of a publicly traded licensee or publicly traded company affiliated wilh a licensee 
iis part of an undenvriiing for no more Uian 90 days iti'ier the begimting of such under̂ vritiIlg if it e.xercises voting 
rights of less than 5%of the oulstanding voting securities of a publicly iraded licensee or publicly traded company 
affdialed with a licensee: 

• a book entty Iransfer facility holds voting securities for lltird parties, if it exercises voting righls wilh respeci lo less 
tlian5%of the outstanding voting securities ofa publicly ti^dcd licerisee or publicly iraded company affiliated wilh a 
licensee; or 

• a person's sole ownersltip inierest is less Uuui 5% of Uie oulstanding voting secmiUes of die publicly traded licensee or 
publicly traded company affiliated w'ith a licensee. 

Because wc own Uie Colorado Casinos, our business opportututics, and Uiose of persons wiih an "ownersltip interest" in us, or any of 
die Colorado Casinos, arc limited to inleresls Uiiit comply with Ihe Colorado Regulations and the Colorado Comntissioirs nilc. 

In addition,,pursuant to the Colorado Regulations, no inanufacnircr or distributor of slot niiichincs or associaied equipment may, 
without noiificaiion being provided to Ihe Colorado Division wiiltin ten days, knowingly liave an interesi in iun- casirio operator, allow-
any of its officers orany olherperson wiUi a substantial intere.'̂  in such business to have such an intercsi, employ am,' person if ihal 
person is employed by a casino operaior, or allow any casino operator or person with a substantial interesi therein to liave an inierest 
in a manufacturer's or distributor's business. A "substantial imcrcst" means Uie lesser of (i) as large an interest in an entity as arn-
other person or (ii) any financial or eqitity interest equal lo or greater tli;in 5%, Tlie Colorado Commission lias mled that a person does 
not Iiave a "substantial intercsi" if such person's sole ownership inieresi ui such licensee is tlirough the ownership of less than 5% of 
the 
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outstanding voting securities ofa publicly traded licensee or publicly traded affiliated compaityof a licensee. 

Wc are a "publicly traded corporation" under the Colorado Regulations, 

Under the Colorado Regulations, any person or entity having any direct or indireci interest in a gaming licensee or an applicani for a 
gaming license, including, bul nol limited lo. us. Casino Ameriai of Colorado, lnc, IC Holdirigs Colorado, Inc., IOC Black Hawk 
Distribution Company, LLC or eilher of tlie iwo Colorado Casinos ahd their security holders, may be required to supply die Colorado 
Coinmission with substantial information, including, but not timitctJilo, background infonnation, source pf funding infoimalioit a 
swom statement that such person or entity is not holding his or her interest for any other part;', and fingerprints. Such uifomialioa 
uivesUgation and licensing (or finding of suitability) as an "associated person" auiomaiicaliy will be required of aU persons (olher than 
certain insiitutional im-estors discussed billow) which ditecll;'or indirectly beneficially own 10%or rnoreof adirecl or uidirecl 
beneficial ownersltip or interest in.either of the two Colorado Casinos, Uirougli their beneficial ownersltip of any class of voting 
securilicsof us. Casino America of Colorado, Inc., IC Holdings Colorado. Iiic, IOC Black Hawk Distribuiion Company, LLC or 
citlierofthe two Colorado Casinos, Those persons must reporl.lheir interesi within 10 days (including institutional uivestors) and file 
appropriate applications wititin 45 days after acqitiring Uial interest (other tliiin certain institutional investors discussed below). 
Persons (including institutioaal investors) who directly or indirectly beneficially own 5% or more (bul less than 10%) of a direct or 
indireci beneficial ownersltip or interest in eilher of iJie two Colorado Casinos, liirough their beneficial ownership ofany eliiss of 
voting securities of us. Casino America of Colorado, Inc., IC Holdings Colorado, Inc.̂  IOC Black Hawk Dislribulion Cpinpan;', LLC 
or eitlier of the nvo Colorado Casinos, must report their interesi to the Colorado Commission* wiihin 10 days after acquiring that 
interest and may be required lo provide jiddilional infonnation andto befouiid suimble.(It is Ihecurrent practice oflhe ganting 
regulalprs lo require findings of suitability for persons beneficially owning 5% or more ofa iJireci or indireci beneficial ownership or 
inierest otlicr llian certitin instituUoniti investors discussed below.) If certain instiiutioiial im'estdrs provide specified iid'oniiiition to 
the Colorado Comntission witliin 45 days after acquiring their inierest (which, underthe current practice of the gaming regidalors isan 
interest of 5% or more, direcdy or indirecdy) and are liolding for inycslinent purposes only, Uiose investors, in the Colorado 
Commission's discretion, may be permitted to own up to 14.99% of Ihc.Colorado" Casinos dirough their beneficial ownership in any 
classof voting of securities of us, Ciisiuo America of Colorado, Iric., IC Holdings Colorado, Inc., IOC Black Hawk Distribution 
Company, LLC or cither of the two Colorado Casinos, beforc being required lo be found suitable. All licensing and investigation fees 
will have to be pjiid by die person in question. 

Tlic Colorado Regulations define a "voting securiiy" to be a security die holder ofwhich is entiUed to vote generally for die election 
ofa member or members of Uie board of direclors or boanl of litistecs'of a corporation or a comparable person or persons of another 
fonn of business organization. 

The Colorado Commission also has the righl to request infonnatioii from" any person directly or indirectly interested in, or employed 
by, a licensee, and to investigate die moral character, honesty, integrity, prior activities, criminal record, reputation, habits and 
associations of (I) all persons licensed pursuant lo the Colorado Liniited Gaining Acl; (2) all officers, directors and stockholders ofa 
licensed privately held corporation; (3) all officers, directors.and stockholders holding either a 5%» or ^ a l e r inierest or a controlling 
intercsi in a licensed publicly iraded corporalion; (4) all general partners and all liinited panners ofa licensed pamiersltip; (5) all 
persons ihat Itave a relationsltip similar to tliat ofan officer, director or stockholder of a corporation (such as members and managers 
ofa limited liability company); (6) all persons supplying financing or loaning money to any licensee connecied wilh the establislunenl 
oroperation of lintiied gamuig; (7) all persons liaving a contract, lease orongoing financiai or business arrangement wiUi any licensee, 
where such contract, lejise or arrangement relates to limited ganiing operatioris, equipmenl devices or premises; and (8) all persons 
contracting with or supplying any goods and sen'ices to ihe gaming regulators. 

Certain public officials and employees are proltibitcd from liaving any direct or indirect interest in a license or lintiied gaming, 
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In addition, under the Colorado Regulations, evcty person who is a party to a "ganting contract" (as defined below) or lease wilh an 
applicani fora license, or wilh a licensee, upon the request of the Colorado Coniinissionorlhc Colorado Director, inust promptly 
provide the Colorado Coinmission or Colorado Director iill infonnation that may be requested coiKcming financiai hisloty,,financial 
holdings, real and persoreil property ownership, interests in other companies, criminal itisloty, personal hisioty and associations, 
character, repulation in the community and all olher infomiation that might be relc\ant toa delennination of wlKtliera person would 
be suitable to be licensed by the Colorado Comntission. Failure to provide all infonnation requested constitutes sufficieni grounds for 
die Colorado Dirccior or die Colorado Commission lo require a licensee or applicant lo'lemtinaie its "gaming contract"- or lease with 
any person who failed to provide the infonnation requested. Inaddilioit the Colorado Direcior or the Colorado Commission niay 
rcquirc changes in "gaming conlracls" before an application is approved or pjulicipation in the coniraci is idlowed. A "ganting 
contract" is defined as an agreement in which a person does business with or on the prentiscsof a licensed entity. 

The Colorado Conunission and the Colorado,Division liave'interpreted the Colorado Regulations to pemtit tlie Colorado Commission 
lo investigate and find suiuible persons or entities providing financing to or act̂ uiring securities from us, Casino America of 
Colorado, Inc., IC Holdings (Colorado, Inc., IOC Black Hawk Distribution Company. LLC or eidier of the two Colorado Casinos. As 
noted above, am- person or entity required to file information, be licensed or found suitable wotild be required to pay the costs thereof 
and ofany im'estigalion. Allhough the Colorado Regidations do not require the prior approval for tlie execution of credit facilities or 
issuance of debt securities, the Colorado rcgulators resen'e the right lo approve, require changes lo or require die temtinalion ofany 
financing, including ifa person or entity is required to be fomid suitable and is not found suitable. In ariy event lenders, notelioldcrs, 
and others providing financing will not be able to exercise certain rights and remedies whhoijt the prior approval of Uie Colorado 
gaming authorities. Information reganling lenders and holders of securities will be periodicaUy reported to the Colorado gaining 
authorities. 

E.xcepl under certain limited circimislances rclating lo slot machine manufacturers and disiribulois, evety person supplying goods, 
equipment, devices or sen-ices lo.any ticensee in return for payment of a percenlage, orcalcidaled upon a percentage, of Iintitcd 
gaming aclKity or incomc musl obtain an operator license orbe listed on the rclailer's license where such ganting wil! take place. 

An application for licensure or suitability may be denied for any ciiusc deemed reasonable by the Colorado Commission or die 
Colorado Director, as appropriate. Specifically, the Colorado Conunission and the Colorado Director must deny a license to any 
applicant who, among other things; (I) fitils loprove by clear and convincing evidence dial the iipphcant is qualified; (2) fails to 
provide infonnation and documentation requested; (3) fails lo reveal any fact material to qualificalion, or supplies infonnation witich 
is untrue or misleading as to a material fact pcrtaining.lo qualification;,(4) has been convicted of̂  or lias a direcior, officer, genera! 
partner, stockliolder, liniited partner or other person wlio lias a financialor equity interest in the applicant who lias been convicted of, 
specified crimes, including tlie ser\'ice ofa sentence upon convictioii of a fclony'inacoirectional facility, city orcounty jail, or 
community correctional facility or under the siale board of parole pr any probation deparmient wiihin ten years prior to the dateof the 
applicalion, gambling-related offenses, tliefi by deceplion or crimes involving fraud or misrepresentation, is under current proseculion 
for such crimes (during the pendency of which license delenniaition may be deferred), isa career offender or a member or associate 
ofa career offender cartel, or isa professional gambler; or (5) has refused to cooperate wiUi any state or federal body investigaluig 
organized crime, official conuption or gaming offenses. If the Colorado Commissipndelennineslh;it a person or entity is unsuitable 
to directly or indirectly own interests inns, Casino America of Colorado, Inc.. IC Holdings Colorado. Inc., or either of die two 
ColoradoCasinos, one or more of Uie Colorado Casinos imiy be Siinclioncd, which may include the loss ofour approvals and licenses. 

The Colorado Coimnission does not need to approve in advance a ptiblic offering of securities bul raiher requires Uie filing of notice 
and additional documents prior to a public offering of (i) voling sccuriiies, and (ii) non-voting securities ifany of ihc proceeds will be 
used lopay for the conslmction of gaming facilities in (Colorado, to dircctly or indirectly acquire an interest in a gaming facility in 
Colorado, to finance the 
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operaiion of a gaming facility in Colorado or to retire or extend obligations for any of the forcgoing. The Colorado Comntission may, 
in us discrction, require additional infomiation and prior approval of such pubhc offering. 

Inaddition, the Colorado Regulations prohibil a licenseeoraffiliatedcompany thereof, such as us, Casino America of Colorado, Inc., 
IC Holdings Colorado, Inc., IOC Black Hawk Distribution Compan;-, LIX or eiiher.of the two Colorado Casinos, from paying any 
unsuitable persoii anv dividends or inlercsi upon any voting securities or any paymenis or distributions ofany kind (except as set forth 
below), or paying am- unsuitable person any remuneration for sen'ices or recognizing the exercise of any voling rights by any 
unsuitable person. Further, under the Colorado Regulations, each oflhe GoloradpCasinos and IOC Black Hawk Distribution 
Company, LLC may repurchase its voiuig seciuities from anyone found misuitable at the lesser ofthe cash equivalent to the original 
investment in the applicable Colorado Casino or IOC Black Hawk Distribuiion Compaity, LLC or the current niaricet price as of the 
diile ofthe finding of unsuilabiliiy urtiess such voting securities are transferred lo'a suiiabli; person (iis deteriiiined by the Colorado 
Commission) within si.xty (60) days afler Uie finding of unsuitability. A licensee or affiliated company.musl pursue all lawful efforts 
lo require an unsuiiable person to reliiiqitisli all voting sccuriiies, including purcliasing such voliiig securities. The siaff of Colorado 
Division has laken the position that a licensee or affiliated compiiny m<iy not pay any unsuitable person am- interest dividends or olher 
paymenis wilh respeci lo non-voting securities, other than wilh respect to pursuing aU lawful efforts to require an unsuitable person to 
relinquish non-voting securities, including by purchasing or redeeming such securities, .Further, the regulations require anyone with a 
material involvemenl with a licensee, iricluding a director or officerof a holding company, suchas us, Casino America of 
Colorado, Inc., IC Holdings Colorado, Inc.. IOC Black Hawk Distribution Compiany, LLC or eilher of Uie two Colorado Casinos, lo 
file for a finding of suitidiility if required by ihe Colorado Comntissipn. 

Because of llieir authority to deny an application fora license or suiliibility,,the Colorado Coinmission and the Colorado Director 
effectively can disapprove a cliange in corporate position ofa licensee and with respect lo any entity which is required to be found 
suitable, or indireclly can cause us, Casino America of Colorado, Inc., IG Holdings Colorado, Inc., IOC Black Hawk Distribution 
Company, LLC or llie applicable Colorado Casino to suspend or dismiss rnariagcrs, officers, directors and other key employees or 
sever relationships wilh other persons who refuse to file appropriate applications or who ihc authorities find unsuitable to act in such 
capiicities. 

Gcneraily, a sale, lease, purchase, conveyance or acquisilion of any inieresi in a Ucensee is prohibited wiUiout the Colorado 
Comntission's prior approviti. However, because we arc a publicly traded corporation, persoris may acquire an interesi in us (even, 
under current staff interpreuitions, a controlling interest) wiihout Uie Colorado Commission's prior approval, but such persons may be 
required to file notices with the Colorado Commission and,applications forsuitabnity,(as discussed above) and the Colorado 
Comntission may, after such acquisition, find such person unsuitable and require them to dispose of their interest. Under some 
circumstances, we may not sell any inieresi in our Colorado ganiing businesses withoul ihe prior approval of the Colorado 
Commission. 

Each Colorado Casino must meel specified architectural rcquircnieiits, fire safely standards and slandards for iiccess for disabled 
persons. Each Colorado Casino also must nol e.xceed specified gaining square footage lintils asa total of encli floor and tlie full 
building. Each Colorado Casino may pemtit only individuals 21 or older to gamble in the casino. No Colorado Casino may provide 
crcdit lo its ganung p;itrons. Each Colorado Qisino must conipty with Colorado's Gambling Payment Intercept Act, witich governs 
the collection of unpaid citild support costs on certain cash wimtings from lintiied ganiing. 

As originally enacted by amendment to die Colorado Constilulion, limited slakes gaming in Colorado was linuted lo slol niachines, 
blackjack and poker, wilh a maximum single bet of $5.00, and casinos could operate oitiy benveen 8 a.m. and 2 a.m.. On November 4, 
2008, however. Colorado voters approved a subsequent amendtnenl lo IIK Colorado Coristiiulioh Uial allowed the low-ns of Cripple 
Creek. Black Hawk, and Cenlral City to add lable games of craps and rotileiic, increase the maximum single bet to $100.00, and 
increase die penuilled hours of operation to 24 hours per day effective July 2, 2009. 
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A licensee is required to provide infonnation and file periodic reports with die Colorado Division, including identifying Ihose w-ho 
lia\'e a 5% or grealer ownership, financial or equity interest in llie licensee, or who Iiavc the iibility to control tlie licensee, or who have 
llie ability to exercise significant influence over the licensee, or who loan money or oilier things of value lo a licensee, or who have Ihe 
right to siiarc in re\'enucs of limited gaming, or to whom any intercsi or sliare in profits of limited gaming has been pledged as security 
fora debt or. perfonnance ofan act A licensee, and an;- parcnt company or subsidiaty of a licensee, who luis applied lo a foreign 
jurisdiction for licensure or pennission to conduct gaming, or who possesses a license to conduct foreign gaming, is required to notify 
die Colorado Division. Am- person licensed by the Colorado Coimnission and any associated person of a licensee must report criminal 
convictions and criminal cliaiges lo the Colorado Division. 

Tlie Colorado Coimnission lias broad auUiority to sanction, fine, suspend and revoke a license for violations of the Colorado 
Regulations. \'iolalions of many provisions of tlie Colpradp Regulations also can result in criiitinal penalties. 

Tlie Colorado Conslilution currently pennils ganung only in a limited number of cities and certain coimnercial dislricls in such cities. 

The Colorado Conslilution pennils a gaming tax of up to 40% on adjusied gross gaming proceeds, and auihorizes die Colorado 
Commission tp change tlie rale annually. The current gaining tax rate is 0,25% pn adjusted gross gaming proceeds of up to and 
mcluding $2.0 million, 2% over $2.0 million up lo and including $5.0 million, 9% over $5.0,mUtion uplo and including $8.0 milUon, 
11% over $8,0 ntiUion up lo and including SIO.O miUion, 16% over $10.0 million up to and including $13.0 ntillion and 20% on 
adjusied gross ganting proceeds in excess of $13.0 inilUon: The City of Black Hawk has iniposed an annual device fee of S750 per 
gaming device and may revise it from time io time Tlie Cily of Bhick Hawk also lias imposed other fees, including a business 
improvement dislricl fee and transportation fee, caladaled based on die number of devices and may revise the same or impose 
additional such fees. 

Colorado participates in mulii-state lotteries. 

Tlie sale of alcoliolic beverages is subject to licensing, control and regulation by the Colorado liquor agencies. All persons who 
directly or indirecdy hold a 10% or more inierest ia or 10% or more of the issued and oulstanding capital stock of any of the 
Colorado Casinos. Uiroughiheirownershipofus, Casuio America pf Colorado, Inc., IC Holdings Colorado, inc.,orciUierof thelwo 
Colorado Casinos, must file applications imd possibly be iiiyestigaled by die Colorado liquor agencies. Tlie Colorado liquor agencies 
also may investigate those persons who, direcdy or indireclly, loan money to or liiive any financial interest in liquor licensees. In 
addition, there are restrictions on stockliolders, directors and officers of liquor licensees prcvenliug such persons from being a 
stockholder, dirccior, officer or othenvise interested in some persons lending money to liquor licensees and from making loans to 
other liquor licensees. All licenses are revocable and iransferable oitiy in accordance with all applicable laws. Tlie Colorado liquor 
agencies liave the full power lo limil, condition, suspend or revoke any liquor license ;uid any disciplinaty action could (and 
revocation would) have a inaterial adverse effecl upon Uie operations of us. Casino America of Colorado, Inc., iC Holdings 
Colorado, Inc., or the applicable Colorado Casino. Each Colorado Casino holds a retail gaming lavem liquor license for its casino, 
hotel iuid restiiurant operations. 

Persons directly or indirectly interested in eilher of die two Colorado Casinos may be iintited in certain otlier types of liquor licenses 
in w-hich they may liave an interest, and specifically camiot lia\-e an interesi in a retail Uquor Ucense (bul may lla '̂e an inierest in a 
hotel and restiiurant liquor license and several olher lypes of liquor licenses). No person can hold more ih;in iliree retail gaming lavem 
liquor licenses. Tlie remedies ofccrtain lenders may be limited by applicable Uquor laws and regulations. 

Jiahamas 

In 1969. the Govemmeni of The Balianiiis enacted the Lotteries and Ganting Act. Tltis legislation, togellier wiih its regitiaiions, 
governs and regulates gaming. The Ganiing Board is ihe body that regiilates Uic operation of Ciisinos. The ganting license is renewable 
aimually. All casino woriters must be approved by 
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the Board and are issued certificates, wluch arc also renewable on an annual basis. There is a basic annual ganting tax of $200,000 
payable in six equal sliares. In addition a wimtings tax is also imposed and is based on the following scale: 

,wSl^^lZSS,:sTd.o^^ 
$ 10.OOO.OOl - $ 16.000.000 20% 

SI6.000.00I -$20,000,000 10% 

Amounts exceeding $20,000,001 5% 
The Mihisicr of Tourism has responsibihi;' for gaming and acls in consuitition wiUi Uie Gaming Board. A license can be canceUed if a 
frauduleni or misleading representaiiou lias been supplied lo Utc Board or if Iherc is a brcaclvof resiriclions or conditions imposed by 
the Minister. There is however a right to be heard before cimccllatibn is made final. Ciiizehs, pcmianenl residenls and holdcrsof work 
penitils are prohrliiled from gambling, Tliose found doing so are guilty of an offense punishable by law. The operaior may also be 
liable if it knowingty allows any such persons to gamble in its cslablishtnent, 

Currendy the Casino lias an agreement lo leisc the premises housing its operations and a management agreement Tlie Casino holds a 
nuniber of oiher hcenses including one widi the Pon Authority of Grand Baliama. a business license and liquor and dining and 
dancing licenses. 

On the 24* April, 2007 die Isle entered into a Supplemental Heiids of Agreeinent wilh the Goyemmeni of the Bahamiis and Hutchison 
Lucaya Ltd., wherein certain concessions weregranied to Ihe Isle wiih respect to marketingsubsidy jmd a reduclion in ganting taxes. 
Such ta.xes were reduced to 7.5% of gross win per annum, 'flie basic tax of $200,000 remains payable per aiuiuin. 

In May 2009, we also entered into ;ui agreement lo continue operating die Isle of Capri Casuio in Frceport, Grand Baliama during a 
transition period, following which we intend lo exit the operation. Under the agreement, we will also continue to assist ihc 
Govemmeni oflhe Bahamas and the ow-ner of the Our Luciiya Resort, Hutchison Lucjiya Ltd, in tlieu-efforts lo identify and select a 
new operator for the casino. The tenn bf the transition period ends on Augusi 31, 2009, although under certain circumsUuices, it may 
be extended for up to two additioani months in order to allow sufficient time for a new operator to receive necessaty' approvals. 

United Kingtlom 

Gaining in the UK is subjeci to reguiaiion under Ihe Gambling Act (the "Acl") which received the Royal iissenl on April 7, 2005 and 
which came imo force in its entirety on September I, 2007. replacing die Ganting Acl 1968. UnderthcAcl, a new Gambhng 
Commission (the "Coimnission") has been created lo oversee license applications and establish new regulations for gaming (including 
on-line ganting). Ii has taken over responsibilities from the Gaming Board and is Working on ihc transition to meet Utis objective. Tlic 
legislation will provide a sigitificani cliange in regulation of Uie casino industn'including: 

• removing the reqitircment tliat gaming facilities operate as private niernbeis' clubs, including the sttiutorily prescribed 
24-hour interval benveen membersltip and play; tltis lias now occurred; 

• extending die gaming products available; 

• abolishing the demand test :md penniiicd area rules: 

• allowing casinos specific numbers of gaining machines with a broader range of stakes and prizes; 

• allowing casinos to offer live entertaimiient and lo ad\'ertise; and 

• allowing new categories of regional, laige and small casinos. 
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Tlie Act is accompanied by a significani body of detiiiled regulation, codes of praclice, andguidance, which together with the Act will 
fomi the regulatoty- and compliance backdrop to giiming in the UK. TIicAct limited the numberof regional casinos to 1 and large and 
small to 8 each. Tlie Government iippoinied a Ciisino Advisoty Panel to make rccommendalions lo die Govemmeni as to location of 
Uie 17 proposed new casinos; liowever the iititial secondiity' legislation designed to implement IIK panel's rccomniendation did not 
pass. This has now been approxed by Pariiameni in rclation to 8 large and 8 small casinos. CurrenUy Uiere are no plans to proceed 
wiUi a Regioail Casino. 

Tlie Conunission is priniarily responsible for regulating casinps in the UK and is authorized to enforce strict codes of responsibility 
and is responsible for granting operating and personal licenses lo commerciiU gambhng operators and personnel working in the 
industn-. Tlie Commission will sliiue, with locid liccnsuig aulhorilies, responsibility for granting gaming and betting penitissions. 

Audiority to provide facilities for gambling will be subject lo vaty'ihg degrees of regulation, depending on; 

• Type of gambling 

• Means by which it is conducted 

• People by whom and to whom it is offered 

Tlie Acl removes from licensing justices all responsibility for granting gaming and belting permissions (except for certain 1968 Acl 
transitional applications). Instead, the Commission and licensing authorities will betivecn ihem assume responsibility for all Uiose 
mailers previously regulaied by licensing justices.. 

Tlie Acl esiablishes a ntinimum size limit for new casinos and a casino's garrting.rnacltine eutillemenl wUI depeiKi on its calegoty, and 
power is provided for licensing audiorities lo pass resolutions not to license any new easino prcinises in their area. 

The Acl iniroduccs a new regime for gmiting machines. A new defiiution of ganting miicltinc is provided, togedier wilh power to 
prescribe cjiiegories. The Acl provides certain enUllemenls for commercial operators lo use specified numbers and categories of 
machines inconsequenceof Uieir licenses. Ii also establishes pennit procedures foraulliorizinguse of lower-stake gaming machines in 
specific locations. 

Tlie Act makes provision for Uie advertising of gambling, creating new offences relating to die advertising of unlawful gambling and 
providing resen'e powers for the Secrelan' of Stale to make regulations controlling the content of gambling ad\'ertisenients. A 
voluniaty code is currenlly in force covering gambling adveriisements. 

The acquisilion ofa 10% equity stake, orthe ability to exercise significatti influence overlhe inanagement of the operator where there 
is a lower stake, will trigger fhe Controller provisions under ilie Firiancial Ser\'ices arid Markets Acl 2000. Tliis will require 
notification and consenl by Uie Coinntission or Regulator who will apply anumberof icsls to ensure that the relevant person is fil and 
proper, Uuit the interests of the entity are nol ihrcaleiied and that compliance conditions are satisfied. 

During the fiscal year ended .A,pril 2009. we operated ciisiiios in Covcntty. Dudley and Wolverliampicn under the new Gambling Acl. 

Non-Gaming Regulation 

Wc are subjecl to certain federal, siatc and local safety and health, employment and enviromnenlai laws, regulations and ordinances 
Uiat apply to non-gaming businesses generally, such as tlic Clean Air Act Clean.WalerAct, Occupatioai! Safety and Healdi Act 
Resource Consen'ation Recoven- Act, the Compreliensive Em'iromnental Response, Coiiipensalion and Liability Act and die Oil 
Pollution Act of 1990. We liave not made, and do not anticipiite making, material expenditures wiUi respeci lo such environmental 
laws and regidations. However, Uie coverage and attendant comphance costs associated whh such laws, regulations and ordinances 
may result in fumre addilional costs to our operations. For example, the Departinent of Transportation has promulgated regulations 
under Uie Oil PoliulionAclof 1990 rcquiring owners and 
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operators of certain vessels to establish through the Coast Guard evidence of finaricial responsibihty for clean up of oil pollution. This 
reqtiirement has been satisfied by proof of adequate insurance 

Our rivcrtioais operated in Louisiana and Iowa must comply wiUi U.S, Coiist Guard requirements as lo boat design, on-board facilities, 
equipmenl, personnel and safety and hold U.S. Coasi Guard Certificates of Documeniation aiid Inspection. The U.S. Coast Guard 
requirements also set limits on the operation of the riverboalsand require licensing ofccrtain persomiel involved widi die operaiion of 
the riveriioais. Loss ofa riverboat's Ceriificate of Documeniation and, Inspection could preclude'its use as a riverboai casino. Each of 
our rivertioats is inspected annaally and. evety five years, is subject to dty-docking for inspection of its hull, witich could result in a 
teinpbran' loss of service. 

The barges are inspected by titird parties and certified wilh respeci to stability and single compartment flooding integrity. Our casino 
biirges must also meet local fire safety slandards. We would incur additional costs if any ofour gaming facilities were not in 
comphance w-ith one or more of these rcguiaiions. 

Regulations adopted by the Financial Crimes Enforcemenl Network of ihe U.S. Treasuty Depannicnl require us to report currenc;' 
transactions in excess of $10,000 occurring wiihin a ganting day, including identification ofthe patron by mime and social security 
number U.S. Treasun- Department regulations also require us to report certain suspicious activit;',.including any transaction ihat 
exceeds $5,000 if we know-, suspect or liave reason lo believe Uial Uie transaction involves funds from illegal aclivity br is designed to 
evade federal regulations or reporting requu-emenis. SubsiaiUial penalties ciUi be imposed agitinst us if we fail to comply .with these 
regulations. 

All of our shipboard employees, even those who Iiave notlting to do with our operation as a vessel, such as dealers, waiters and 
securiiy personnel, may be subjecl to the Jones Acl which, among other things, exempts lliose employees from slate limits on workers' 
compensation awaais. 

20 

Created by Morningstar® Document Research™ 
hUp://documentresearch.rTiorninQ5tarcom 

Source: ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS !NC, 10-K, June 25, 20C9 FoWFa.'&.1 i}¥;vtarnings;sr^Dor.[irr-!ni Rrrsearch* 



Morningstar® Document Research" 

FORM 10-K 
ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS INC - isle 

Filed: July 11, 2008 (period: April 27, 2008) 

Annual report which provides a comprehensive overview of the company for the past year 



UNITED STATES 
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 

Washington, D.C. 20549 

FORM 10-K 

(Mark One) 

m ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 19J4 

For Ihe fiscal vcar ended April 27, 2008 
OR 

a TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANTTO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 
1934 

Forthe transition period from to 
Commission File Number 0-20538 

ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 
(Exact luime of registrant as specified in its charier) 

Delaware 4M659606 
(State or other jurisdiction (I.R.S. Employer 

of incorporation or orgjuuzation) Identification Nuinber) 

600 Emerson Road, Suilc 300, SL Louis, Missouri 63141 
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code) 

Regisiranl's telephone number including area code: (314) 813-9200 

Securities Regisiered Puisuant to Section l2(b)of die Acl: None 

Securities Registered Pursuant lo Section 12(g) of tlie Act: 
Common Stock, S.Ol Par Vidue Per Share 

(Thie of Class) 

Indicaie by checkmark if Uie registrant isa well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the SecuritiesAct. 
YesD No (3 

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required lo file reports puisuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act. 
Yes n No [3 

Indicate by clieck mark whether the regislrani (I) has filed all reports required lo be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) oflhe 
Securities E.schange Act of 1934 during die preceding 12 months (or for such sliorter period that the regislrani was required lofile 
such reports), and (2) lias been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes El No D 

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of deluiquetn filers pursuant lo Ilem 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and 
will not be contained, to the best of registrant's knowledge, iu definitive pro.\y or information slatemenls incorporated by reference in 
Pan III of tltis Fonn 10-K orany amendment to Utis Form IO-K, [3 

Indicate by cheek mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a 
srmUler reporting compam. See the definitions of 'Maige acceleraied filer," "accelerated filer" and "smaller reporting company" in 
Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. 

Source: ISLEOF CAPRICASINOS INC, 10-K, July 11,2008 f-ov.^r&dbyMoinirijiiiar-'Cor.umeniFtesearch^" 



Laige accelerated filer D Accelerated filer (El 

Non-accelerated filer D (Do nol check ifa smaller reporting company) Smaller reporting compam' D 

Indicate bv check mark wheiher the regislrani is a slcll company (as defined ih Rule I2b-2 of the Excliange Act). 
Yes D No E ' 

Tlie aggregate market value of the voling and non-voting stock,held by non-airiliates(l) ofthe Company is 5333,184,516. based 
on the last reported sale price of S20.61 per sliare on October 26. 2007 on the NASDAQ Stock Markel; multiplied by 16,166,158. 
shares of Cominon Stock outstanding and held by nou-affiliales of the Company on such diite. 

As of Juty 8, 2008, the Company had a lotal of 30,857,558 sluircs of Common Stock outstanding (which excludes 4,372,073 
sliares held by us in ireasuty). 

(1) Affiliates forthe purpose of this item refer to the directors, named executive officers and/or persons owning IO%qr inoreof the 
Compmiy's coinmon slock, bolh ofrecord and beneficially; however, Uiis detenninaiio\i does not constitute an adntission of 
afilliate status for am' ofthe individual stockholders. 

Source: ISLEOF CAPRI CASINOS INC. 10-K, July 11,2008 Psv.T;rE„j5yf>-k,ir,ir,gSTar=Cot;unifini Rssearch^ 



Part III incorporates infonnation by reference lo llic Regisirant's definitive proxy statement to be filed widi the Securities and 
Excliange Conunission wiUtin 120 days afterihe end ofthe fiscalyear. 

Source: ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS INC. 10-K. July 11, 2008 Fc-'̂ .-sfedby ^Airningsier̂ DociimfiniStsenfch "̂̂  



ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 
FORM lO-K 

INDEX 

PAGt: 

PARTI 2 

ITEM 1. BUSINESS 2 

ITEM I A- RISK FACTORS 9 

ITEM IB. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS 15 

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES 15 

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 19 

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY. HOLDERS 19 

PARTfl . 20 

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S C0M\'1QN EQUITY. RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND 
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EOUI'IY SECURITIES 20 

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 22 

ITEM 7, MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONT)ITION AN'D RESULTS OF 

OPERATIONS 24 

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE ANT) QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET-RISK 37 

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA 39 

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL 

DISCLOSURE 75 

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 75 

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION 76 

PARTllI 76 

ITEM 10, DIRECTORS. EXECUTIX^ OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 76 

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 76 

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED 

STOCKHOLDER MATTERS 76 

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS. AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE 76 

FfEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES 76 

PART II' 76 

ITEM 15, EXHIBITS. FLNANCIAL STATEMEf^ SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K 76 

SIGNATURES 77 

Source; ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS INC. 50-K, July I f , 2008 Fcv.eredby MorningMer'-'Dcciimgnl H&seaicii-"''' 



DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

This report coniains statements that we believe are, or may be considered fo be. "forward-looking statements " within the meaning of 
the Private Securities Utigation Reform .Act of 1995. .All slalements olher than statements of historical f ad included in this reporl 
regarding ihe prospects ofour indu.stry or our prospects, plans, financial posilion or busine.ss .strategy, may constitute 
fonvard-Iooking statements. In addition, forward-looking stalenienls generally can be identified by the use of forward-looking words 
such as "may, " "will,'' "expeci, " "intend, " "estimale, " 'foresee, "-"project," ":anlicipale, " "belie\'e, " "p!an.s, " 'forecasts. " 
"continue " or "cotdd" or ihe negatives oflhese lerms or variaiions of Ihem or similar lerms. Fitrlhermore, such forward-looking 
slatemenls may be included in various filings that we make wiih the SEC or press releases or oral staiemenis made by or with the 
approval ofone ofour aulhorized executive officers. A lihough we believe that the expectations reflected in these forward-looking 
Slalernenls are reasonable, we cannot assure vou that the.se expeciaiions will prove to be correct. These fonvard-Iooking statements 
are. subject to ceriain known and unknown risks and uncertainties, ns- well a.s assumpiions that coulci cause actual results lo differ 
materially from those reflected in ihe.se forward-looking slalements. Factors thai might cause aclual resulis lo differ include, but are 
not limited to, those discussed in the seciion entitled "Risk Faciors'' beginning on page 2'of this Report, Readers are cautioned not to 
place undue reliance on anyfonvnrd-lookirig statements contained herein, which reflect maiiagement s opitiions only as oflhe dale 
hereof. Excepi as required by imv. we undertake no obligalion in revise or fmblicly relea.se the resulis ofany re\'i.sioh to any 
forward-looking statements. You are advised, however, to consult any additional disclosures we make in our-reporis lo the.SEC. All 
.subsequent wrilten and oral forward-looking staiemenis attributable lo us or persons acting on our behalf are expressly qualified in 
their entirety by the caulionary siaiemenls contained in this Report. 

Source: ISLEOF CAPRICASINOS INC. 10-K, July 11,2008 Fi;-A<;fedbYM&mir^s;ar"Docijrr>sni iHtsearch*™ 
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PARTI 

ITEM 1. BUSINESS 
Oven'iew 

We are a leading developer, owner and operaior of branded ganiing facilities and related lodging and eniertaiimient facilities in 
regional markets in the Uniled Stales and internationally. We currenlly operate 14 casinos in the Uniled Slales, located in Mississippi, 
Louisiana, Missotiri, lowa, Colorado and Florida. Internationally we operate 4 casuios iii Covenlry, Dudley and Wolverliampton, 
England and Freepon. Grand Baliamas. Wc also opcraie a harness racing irack at our casmo in Florida. 

Our fiscal year ends each year on the last Sunday of AprU. During fiscal 2008, wcbpened'casiaos developed by us in Walerioo, Iowa 
andCoventPr', England; completed the acquisilion of our casino in CaniUiers\'iile, Klissouri; pureliased llie 43% ininority interest not 
owned by us in our Black Hawk, Colorado properties; and completed the opening ofour new casino in Pompano, Florida, Also in 
fiscal 2008, we had significant changes to our executive inanagement team, as James Perr;'joined us as Chief E.'<ecutiye Officer and 
as a dirccior; Virginia McDowell became our President and CItief Operating Ofiicer, and Dale Black became our Chief Financi;d 
Officer. 

During fiscal 2008 we developed and announced a strategic plan designed to improve our free cash fiow. This plan includes 
developing two distinct brands wiUtin ourbusiness, lsle and Lady Luck, and reinvesting in our core assets. 

The lsle brand and will be introduced al our properties which Iwve a rcgioniil draw and tend to be in larger markels where we liave 
expansion potential demonstrated by eitlier the size oflhe niarkei or e.xcess land ijiat we control. The Isle brand will offer expanded 
amenities, usually offering hotel rooms, expanded food ;md beverage offerings and conference and comention capabtiities. 

Tlie Lady Luck casinos wiU be focused on a local customer base, typically in smaller maikets wiUi less growUi potenlial. The goal of 
the Lady Luck brand will be to offer die best cnicriaiiuncnt option for the rcspeciive inarket featuring casual diitiiig. and popular local 
entertainment in a comfortable setting. i 

The operating focus of both brands wiU be to deliver superior guest experience by providing custoniers withthe mosl popular gaming 
product in a clean, safe, friendly and fun enviromncnt. We have begun implementing several operating initiatives to improve on these 
atlribules as customer research consistently confirms Uiat ilicse areihc priniai '̂.drivers in our cusiomers decision making process in 
choosing a casino to aiieiid. To Utis end we have implemented a cuslomcf courtesy program whereby, we will mcjisure our progress 
against tiiree primar;' courtesy behaviors and incentivise our.cmployecs on improvements, in addiiion our mainlenance, capital, and 
ofierating plans have been designed to improve on areas where customers liave lold us we arc lacking in these key areas of clean, safe, 
friendly and fun. Finally we liave designed our incentive plans lo align employee incentives with the key initiatives and sh-'ircholders" 
needs. 

Tlirough die strategic planning process we identified several capital projects which we will seek to implement over the iiexT 18 to 24 
inonUis and beyond, aimed at enliancing the experience of our custoniers and consistent wiih a brand siralegy that is designed to 
clearly define tlie experience lliat will be delivered by each brand. This will enable us to manage the expectations of our customers, 
employees and Uic investment communiiy, and will align our operating slraleg;' withthe needsof our customers in each market. We 
believe dial these internal projecis offer us ihe highest potential uses oflhe frce cash fiow dial we expect to generale in Uie 
intennediale lenn, as we look lo inipro\'e our properties and also begin to de-Ievcr our Comp;uiy. 

We expect dial approxinuitcly $160 mUlion will go loSvards Uie rebuilding and refurbisluiienl ofdie Biloxi propert;', wluch wc plan to 
begin as soon as we determine the timing of the scUleinent ofour Hurricaiie Katiina insurance claims, and our goal is to Iiave Uie 
projeci completed rouglUy in line wilh the MaigaritaviUe projeci wlticli is being developed adjaceni lo our property. We expect the 
insurance proceeds will provide a significant portionoftheconslmciioncoslof die BUoxi project. The Bilo.vi project is expected to 
include a new single level casino, restoration of our com'cntion space, new food venues, and renovation oflhe hotel rooms in Uie 
south Iwtel tower. 

Additionally, we liavc eamiaiked approxiinately $16 million to $18 inillion lo com'ert several of our local facilities to the Lady Luck 
brand. Tlie Company plans to re-brand its properties in Davenport, Iowa. Lula, Mississippi, and Marquette. Iowa, and complete the 
re-branding in CaniUiers\ille. 

Lastly, wc have identified approximately 1,200 hotel rootns (approximately forty percent of our room inventot;') and mmy ofthe 
public areas in our hotels which are in need of renovalion. We expect to begin the renovations once we have moreclaril;' on the macro 
economic picture, our operaiing success and credit fiexibihty ;uid better understand die estimated costs of completing the renovations. 

Source: ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS INC, lO-K. July 11, 2008 FcwwMby Momir-gsia! • Donimsni fesearch^ 



Casino Properties 

Tlic following is an overview of our existing casino properties as of die end of fiscal year 2008: 

I>-j|tAf<|uired or .. SM TabU- HoU'l Piirkinc 
Properlj' Opened Slachines Oames Kooins Spaces 

'Louisiana:" '̂ ^^^^^T^^^T^W^^WTk:̂ ^^ '̂̂ ^^ '-r^^^^^^.^^E^^^^'^^^'^^^/t-^^^^^^^^ 
LakeCharles Julv 1995 1.961 76 493 2.335 

Lida March 2000 i;305 15 487 1.583 

•Natchez March 2000 ' . 630 11 141 908 
Missoun.^n-^-'J .^.,^^.^. •̂ -̂ '.'••̂ ....te,̂ -..,r -̂. -̂.̂ ^̂ •̂X-...;..:.;;&'-.t.r„-;̂ -̂'̂  .•i..a.r,-4^ . - ' . ^ : .#s . . • -.>g' .^\ _.- ^21..^-'•, -, ^ - v^: - ,-̂ fc v:;1 

Kansas:Citv . June 2000 1,335__ 25 — 1.807 
f ̂ . ^Booin'illc^ ^ S- J^V .̂-W^^^^ îiM^Wlrr^^^ l̂Dcccî ^ % '̂2l7:£i T-140" î IwHTlpn 

CaruUieiM'dle " " " " June 2007 651 23 — LOOP 

Bettendorf _ _ _ „ ^ March 2000 1026 36 ^14 2.063 
l;.':Rhyihm-cit^^i^Hport":s.:^..rx-r-\s>g^^^^ 

• Marquene • Marcli2000 6 1 4 ^ 13 ^25 475 
Uv..:\\̂ tgr!5or7-̂ nr-i:: ^:rr?^-i^^;r-^-^^g^iii;r^^ ^--:-^35;T?"^I95 - :'̂ :̂ qn273 
Colorado . . . . 
F-^^^VBlack-Hawk/.\-,^-^ .^;:/;-^'-^'T^"'^^...'^::'^r..-'¥<:'.€jD"^^6eKT^ 18. , : " 'w : ' 238 ;^ J ^^'TlOO] 

Colorado Central Slation - Black Hawk April 2003^ ' 644 16^ 164 i.200 
Florida' )̂  '^ •! '}^ - " ^ ; -J- .I;..^ ^lft:^.:'''ij'^^^y''^^ '•• '̂ • •'"••• : l ^ ^ - ••"•• '•-', ."^••f^"v^".„^?~ 

Pompano Park July 1995/April 2007 1,500 38 — 3.962 
i^!S?Tmiohoipr&periieFP\'.. ^ ^ . U - J : ^•^r^ir^^m^TW^i^^wTr^TT^'-^e ' . :^"r> \-i\'.Ty''':^T^T^~^~r^^Ti 

Our Lucava _ ,_ Dcceriibcr20p3 - 303 ^ 5 — — 
ir^-BluelChii^-Du'dlev (66''273%'owned)'-'^ V ' ' T r ^ Y ^ ! v N o \ x m b c n 2 0 6 r ^ .9 ^^IZHSUZHZM 

Blue Chip-Wolverhampion (66 2/3% owned) Aprir2004 20 11 — 25 
rrxcoVFrnnv -• -. -̂ -'. - -vrr---'^^:^x:~^''rTZ'^^3:^ 

Louisiana 

Lake Charles 

Lake Cliades, which commenced operations in July 1995, is located on a 19-acre site along Interstate 10, the main thoroughfare 
comiccting Houston, Texjis to Uikc Cliaries, Louisiana. The property consists of tivo dockside casinos offering 1,96! slot maclunes 
and 76 table games, a 252-room deluxe hold, a scpJiraic 241-room hotel, a 105,000 squarc foot land-based pavilion and enteriainment 
center, ;md 2,335 parking spaces, including approxinialely 1,400 spaces in an attached parking garage. The pavilion and entertaimiient 
center offer cusiomers a wide varieiy of non-ganting anieniiies, including a 97-scal Farraddays' resiaurani. a 360-scat Calypso's 
buffet, a 165-seal Tradewinds Marketplace, a 64-scat Lucky Wins oriental restaurant and Caribbean Cove, witich features free tive 
entertainment and can accominodate 180 customers. The pavilion also has a 14,750 square foot entertainmenl center comprised ofan 
1,100-seat special events center designed for concerts, live boxing, televised pay-per-view e\'enis, banquets and other cvenis. meeting 
facilities and adnunisirati\'e offices. 

The Lake Charles marlvet currently consists of two dockside ganiing facilities (which include our propeny and Pinnacle 
Entertaiiunent's one-level facility), a Native American casino and a p;iri-tnuiuel facilit;7raciiio,(operated by Boyd Gaming). Pinn:icle 
Entertainmenl is in the process of developing Iheir second casino (utilizing a license acquired from Harrah's Entertainment after 
Hurricane Rila) witich would be adjaceni to their current facility. It is expected to be in operation by early 2010. The current number 
of slot macltines in tlie market e.xceeds 8.2(X) macltines and table ganies exceed 200 tables. In calendar yejir 2007, the two gaming 
facilities (Isle and Pinnacle) and one racino (Boyd), in the aggregate, generated ganiing revenues of approximately $640.6 million. 
Revenues for the Native American property are not pubhshed, Liikc Cliaries is the closest ganting market to die Houslon inetropolilan 
area, which has a population of appro.ximately 5.5 million and is located approximately 140 miles west of Lake Cliaries. Wc believe 
Uuit the Isle-Lake Cliaries attracls customers primarily from soutlieast Te,\as, including Houston, Beaunionl, Galveston, Orange and 
Fori Arthur ;tiid from local area residents. Appro.ximately 520,000 and 1.6 million people reside within 50 and 100 miles, respectively, 
of tlie Isle-Lake Cliaries. 

Source: ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS INC. 1D-K. Juiy 11, 2008 Pcv.̂ ff̂ i) DV Mf;rniras!3r^Dwiimeni Research*''' 



MissLssippi 

Lula 

Lula, wluch we acquired in March 2000, isstralcgically located off of Highway 49, the,only road crossing Uie Mississippi River 
between Mississippi and Arkansas for more tlian 50 miles in chhcrdirectioa Theproperty consists of two dockside casinos containing 
1,305 slot machines and 15 tablegames, two on-site hotels with a tolal of 487 rooms, a land-based pavilion and entertainment cenler, 
1,583 parking spaces, and a new 28-spacc RVPark, which opened in July of 2007; The pavilion and entertaimiient center offer a wide 
varieiy of non-gaming amenities, inchiding a 145-seat Fanaddays' rcsiaurant, a 300-scat Calypso's buffet and a 44-seat Tradewinds 
Markelplace. 

Our casino property is the only ganting faciliiy in die Coahoma Couniy, Mississippi markel and generated ganiing revenues of 
appro.ximalely $78.7 ntiUion in calendar year 2007. Lula draws a significant ainount ofbusiriess fromthe Litdc Rock, Arkansas 
metiiDpohian area, witich has a population of approximately 666,000 and is localed approximately 120 miles west of tlie property. 
Coahonia Count;' is also locaied approximately 60 utiles southwest of Memphis; Tennessee,.which is priniarily scr\'ed by 9 c:isinos in 
Tunica, Mississippi. In addiiion, November 2007 saw die opeiting of a new conipeiitor, Harlow's Casino. 90 miles down-river from 
Lula in Greenville, MS. The opening ofthis new casino resulted in a 3% average reduclion in'lhe overall maiket sliare of Mississippi's 
Northern Region, which includes Lula. The greater p;m of that impact was in our'pnnian' l ^ e t market. Appra.yimately 964,000 
people reside wiihin Uie property's primar;' target market, Lula also competes with Native American cjisinos in Oklahoma and a 
racino in Memphis, Temiessee. 

Biloxi 

Biiosi, wluch conunenced operations in August 1992, is locaied on a 17-acre site at the eastern end of a cluster of facilities fonneriy 
known as "Casino Row" in Biloxi, Mississippi, and is Uie fû sl property reached by visitors coming from Alabama, Florida and 
Georgia via Highway 90. 

On August 29, 2005 die property was significandy dainaged by Hunicane Katrina. Tlie property was closed on August 28, 2005 and 
rcinained closed to the pubhc until December 26, 2005. Tlie Highway 90 bridge spjuutiiig Biloxi Bay, located unmediately to tlie eiist 
oflhe property, was also destroyed. The bridge was replaced .witii a new, larger bridge which piirtially opened in November 2007 and 
fully opened in .April 2008. 

In October 2005, die Mississippi legislature amended its gaming laws to allow casinos to operate land-based facilities within 800 feet 
ofthe mean Itigli water line. Our Biloxi property isa land-based casino offering approximately 1,336,ganiing positions, a 710-room 
hotel including 200 whiripool suites, a 120-seal resiaurani called "A Taste of Farraddays'," a 200-seal Calypso's buffci, a Tradewinds 
E.\pressand 1,600 parking spaces. In May 2006, wc completed the renovaiionbfourexisUngatrimn that added a new multi-stor;-
feature bar, connecied the paiking garage with the atrium by a covered walkway, and increased tlie numberof parking spaces to 
appro-ximately 1,600. In November 2006. we opened a l38-se;it fine-dining restaurant and osleria called Bragozzo. in Februar;' 2007, 
wc opened a full scr\'ice Starbucks. In September 2007, we converted the Bragozzo restaurant to a full sen'ice Farraddays' restaurant 
and converted "A Taste of Farraddays" to a b;uiquct room called ''Paradise Room" used to hold special events such as player parties. 

Prior to Hurricane Katiina. die Mississippi Gulf Coast niarket (witich includes Biloxi, Gulfport and Bay St. Louis) was one of die 
largest gaming niaritets in the Uniled Slales and consisted of 12 dockside giuning facihties wlticli, in the aggregale, generalcd gaming 
revenuesof $1.2 bi!lionduringcalendarycar2004, wluch was die Uist fuU calendar year, beforc die stomi.,Including die lsle, eleven 
casinos have re-entered the inarket since Hurricane Katrina. In calcndiu year 2007, the Gulf Coast niiiikel reached revenues of $ 1.3 
billion: 

Natchez 

Natchez, which we acquired in March 2000. is localed off of Highways 84 and 61 in wesiem Mississippi. The property consists of a 
dockside casino offering 630 slol macltines and 11 table games, a 14 l-room off-siic hotel located approxunalely one mile from the 
aisino, a 150-seal Calypso's buffet and 908 parking spaces. 

Our property is currenll;' the only ganting facility in Uie Natchez markel and generated total revenues of approximately $42.2 miliion 
in calendar year 2007. We belie •̂e Uiat Uie Isle-Nalchez aiinicts cusiomers primarily froin among the 117,000 people residing within 
50 miles of the Isle-Natchez. Tlie Grand Soleil Casino Company began sile constmction for its river 

Source: ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS INC. 10-K. July 11. 2008 Fo'AorfiobvMf,fnir^r,!er*Oociirr2niRf:search''^ 



boat casino and land-based hotel during Kirly 2008. Constmction lias,been lialled and restarted several times due lo legal and financial 
issues, but we expect dial die facility coitid potentially open and impact the Natchez market by eariy 2009. 

Missouri 

Kansas City 

Our Kans;is Cit;' propert;'. which we acquired in June 2000, is the closes! gjuiting facility to downtown Kansas City and consists ofa 
dockside casino offering 1,335 slot machines and 25 table games, a 96-seat Fiuraddays'Bistro restaurant, a 260-seal Calypso's buffeL 
a 45-seal Tradewinds Mariictplace and 1,807 paricing spaces. Plans foran $85 ntillion expansion project at our Kansas City property 
werc cariccUcd in fiscal year 2008 and as a result. $1.1 nullion of the,project costs were written off. 

Tlie Kansiis Cin,' miirkel consisis of four dockside ganting facilities and a tribal casino tliat, in the aggrcgatc, generated gaming 
revenues of approximateiy $720.7 million in calendar year 2007. The otlier operators oftlie dockside ganting facilities in Uiis mariiet 
are Ameristar Casinos, Penn NaUoruU Ganting (formerly Argos;' Gaming) and Harrah's Entertainmenl. The tribal casino, owned by 
the WS'andotte Tribe, opened in Januar;- 2008 with 430 class II slots and generated about $4.4 million gaming revenue during the first 
tiiree nionUis of operalions. We believe Uiat our Kansas Cit;' casino attracts cusiomers primarily from Uie Kansas Cily metropolitan 
area, witich has appro.ximalely 1.9 inillion residents. 

Inthe spring of 2007, die Kansas legislature autliorized casinos in several locations tliroughout die State of Kansas, including t̂ vo iu 
die Kans:is Cit;', Kansasarea. Tltis process is on-going wilh one ofthe Kansas City, Kansasarea casinos proposed to be located at the 
Woodlands Track and Uie oUier proposed to be a rcsort-iype destination casino. 

In the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2008, the Staleof Missouri, began reconstruction oftlie Paseo Bridge and interclianges adjaceni to 
our property.. The construction is e.xpected lo continue into fiscal 2011. Wltile we e.xpect Irafific access loour property lobe 
maintained during the constmction period, our customers will be subjcci lo changes in their egress routes. 

Boonville 

Our Boonville property, witich opened on December 6, 2001, is located offof Interstale 70, approximately lialfway between Kansas 
Cily and St. Louis. The property consistsof a single level dockside casino offering 947 slot machines. 21 table games and 6 poker 
tables, a 140-room hotel tlial opened in May 2006, a 32,400 sqiwre foot pavilion and entertainment center and 1,101 parking spaces. 
The pavilion and entertainment center offers customers a wide variety of non-ganting mneiuties, inchiding an 83-seat Farraddays' 
restaurant, a 218-seai Calypso's buffet, a 24-seal Tradewinds Marketplace, an 800 seat event center, and a Itisioric display area. We 
are the only gaming facitit;bet\ycen Kansas Cily, Missouri, and St, Louis, Missouri and generated gaming revenues of approximately 
S83.5 million in calendaryear 2007. We bclie\'e Uiat our Boonville casino attracts custoniers primarily from the ntid-Missouri region 
including die Columbia and Jefferson Cit;' arcas, 

Caruthersville 

Our Canitliers\'ille property was acquired on June 11, 2007 and is a riveiboat casino localed along the Mississippi river in Southeast 
Missoiui. In June 2008, tlie casino was re43randed as a Lady Luck casino: Tlie property consistsof 651 slol machines, 15 tablegames 
and 8 poker games, Camthers\'ille is the only casino located in Sbudiciist Missouri. 

Iowa 

Beltendorf 

Tlic Bettendorf property, witich wc acquired in March 2000, is located offof Inlerslate 74, an inteistaic Itighway scn'ing die Quad 
Cities melropolitan area. Tlie property consists ofa dockside casino offering 1,026 slot machines and 36 table gaines, a 514-rooni 
hotel, including a new $45 ntillion, 258-rooin lowcr, whicli opened in May 2007, approxiinately 20,500 square feet of 
convention/banquet space, a 102-scat Fanaddays' restaunuii, a 272-scat Calypso's buffet, a 26-seat Tradewinds Marketplace and 
2,063 parking spaces. Wc liave entered into agreemems with the Cily of Bettendorf, lowa under witich Uie City is constmcling an 
evenls center adjaceni to our new hotel. We will lease, manage, and provide financial and operating suppon for the evenls cenier. 
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The Quad Cities metropolitan area, consisting of Bettendorf and Davenport, Iowa and Moline and Rock Island. lUinois, currendy has 
three ganting operations—our two gaming facilities in Betiendorf and in Davenfwrt, and one sinaller operaior, which has recently 
received approval lo relocate wiihin the maricei and conslmct a substantially larger facility. Tlie three operations in the Quad Cities 
generated, in the aggrcgaie, ganting revenues of appro.vlmately $189,9 million in calendar year 2007. C)ur operations in die Quad 
Cilics also compete with olher gaming operalions in Illinois and Iowa. 

Da\'enpori 

Our Davenport property, witich we acquircd in October 2000, is located al Uie intersection of River Drive and Highway 61. a stale 
highway serving the Quad Cities metropolitan area. The property consistsof a dockside gaming facility offering 972 slot macltines 
and 14 table gaines, a 228-scat Hit Parade buffet, a Grab-n-Go food outlet and 968 parking spaces. 

hiarquelie 

Our Manjuelte property, which we acquircd in March 2000, is located in Maiquede, lowa, appro.ximately 60 utiles north of Dubuque, 
lowa. The property consistsof a dockside casino offering 614 slol macltines andT3 table gaines, a land-based facility which includes a 
165-seat Calypso's buffet restaurant, a Tradewinds Marketplace, an entertainment showroom, a 25-room hotel, a marirui and 475 
p;uking spaces. 

We arc the oiUy ganting facUil;' in the Mattjuette, lowa inarket and generated ganting revenues of approximately $36.6 ntillion in 
calendar year 2007. We beUeve most of our Maiiquetie customers "are from northeast Iowa and Wisconsin and we compete for diose 
customers with other gaming faciliiies in Iowa and Wisconsin. 

Walerioo 

Our Waterloo property, witich opened on June 30,2007, is located adjaceni to Highway 218 and US 20 in Waterloo, lowa. The 
property consists of a single level casino offering 1,101 slot niacltiiies. 29 table gaines and 6 poker tables. The property also offers a 
wide variety of non-gaming ameititics, including a 105-s'cat Farraddays' restaurant a 208-seat Isle buffet, a 36-scal Tradewinds 
marketplace, a 12-seal Starbucks, Club Capri Lounge, Fling feature bar, 5,000 sq: ft. oif meeling space, over 1,100 parking spaces and 
a 195-rooni hotel, witich includes 27 suites, as well as an indoor pool and hot tub area. 

We are the only gaming facUity in the Walerioo, Iowa maiket. We compete with other casinos in eastern lowa. We generated g;uiting 
revenuesof approximately $39,0 million in calendaryear 2007, wlticli included tlie first six monllis of tlie property's operalions. 

Colorado 

Black Hawk 

Our Black Hawk property, which operates as a lsle branded casino, commenced operations in December 1998, is located on an 
approximately IO-acre site and is one oi"die first gaming facilities readied by customers arriving from Demer via Higliway 119, the 
main diorouglifare comiecUng Demer to Black Hawk. The property inciiides a land-based casino with 1,371 slot macltines and 18 
table games, a 238-room hotel and 1,100 parking spaces in an aUached parkiiig garage. The Isle-Black Hawk also offers cusiomers a 
wide varieiy'of non-gaming amenities, including a 96-seat Farraddays' rcsiaurant, a 228-seai Calypso's buffet and a 32-seat 
Tradewinds Marketplace. In Januan' 2008, Isle of Capri acquired the remaining utinorily interest in of diis property from Nevada 
Gold & Casinos Inc., and wc now own 100% of the Islc-Black Hawk. 

The Colorado Central Station-Black Hawk 

Tlic Colorado Central Station-Black Hawk, which we acquircd in April 2003, is located across the intersection of Main Street and Mill 
Street from die Isle-Black Hawk. 'The property consists ofa land-based casino with 644 slot macltines. 16 table games, a l64-rooin 
hotel Uial opened in December 2005 and 1.200 parking spaces,in our parking stniclure connecting Isle-Black Hawk and Colorado 
Central Station-Black Hawk. Tlie propeny also offers guests dining in its Slation Cafe that was opened in eariy 2007 as weU asa 
Quizno's sandwich franchise that is locaied in the basement of the facility. All three sites arc connected via sky bridges. In 
Januan.̂  2008, we acquired the ntinorit;' interest in litis proper!;'from Nevada Gold & Casinos Inc. and wc now own 100% of the 
Black Hawk operations. 
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When casinos having multiple gjuiung licenses in tlie same building are combined; the Black Hawk/Cenira! City miiricef consists of 23 
gaming facilities (eight of witich liave more Uian 600 slot machines), which in aggregate, generated gaming revenuesof appro.ximately 
$661.2 million in calendar year 2007. Black Hawk is the closest ganiing maiket to the Denver, Colorado metropolitan area, which has 
a population of approximately 2.7 millionandislocaledapproximately 40 miles east of Black Hawk. We believe llial tlie Black Hawk 
and Colorado Central Station-Black Hawk attiact customers priniarily from Den\cr, Boulder, Fort Collins and Golden, Colorado and 
Clieyemie, Wyoming. 

Florida 

Pompano 

In 1995, we acquired Pompimo Park, a liamcss racing track located in Pompano Beach, Florida.Pompano Park is loaded offof 
Interstate 95 and the Florida Turnpike on a 223-acrc owned site, near Fort Lauderdale, ntidway between Miami and West Palm Beach. 
Pompano Park is the only racetixick licensed lo conduct hiuiiess racing in Florida. 

On April 14, 2007, following clianges to Florida law, we opened a ganting facility including 1,500 slot niachines, two restaurants and 
a fcatiire baral Ponipano Park adjacem to ihe exisling grandstand at a cost of approximaiely $190 million. Two additional restaurants 
and a new poker room with 38 tables on the second fioor of the facility opened in May 2007. Tlie Isle-Pompano draws mostof its 
customers from the appro.ximately 2.6 million people residing wititin a 25-mile radius oflhe facility and competes wilh two oUier 
racinos and two tribal gaming facilities in tlie niaricet. 

Grand Bahama Island 

Our Lucava 

Our Lucaya is a 19,000 square-foot casino located at the Our Lucaya Resort in Frceport, Grand Baliama and offers 303 slot machines, 
25 lable ganies and a 110-seat reslauiant. 

United Kingdom 

Blue Chip-Dudley 

Our pub-style casino in Dudley, England is one of 17 gaming facilities in the West Midlands inarket. Dudley is close to die 
Biriningham metropolitan area, which has a population of approximaiely 5.3 million. Theicasino consists of 20 slot machines, 9 table 
ganies, and 28 electitmic touch bet tabic tenitinals. We own two-tlurds ofthe Blue Cltip-Dudlcy. 

Blue Chip-Wolverhampton 

Our pub-style casino in Wolverhampton, England is also in the West Midlands maricet. Wolveriiamplon is close to the Bimtingliam 
metropolitan area. The casuio consists of 20 slot macltines, 11 lable games, and 34 eleclnaitic much bel table tenitinals. We own 
two-thirds of the Blue Chip-Wolveriiamplon. 

Coventry 

On July 6, 2007, we opened a casino in Co\eiiir;', England under llie 1968 Ganibljng Acl. Tltis facility liiis 20 slot maclunes, 31 table 
games, including poker, and 50 cleclroitic touch bet lable tenninals. The developnient is a full entertaimiient facility with \\\Q 
restaurants and ihice bars. 

Marketing 

Our maritciing programs arc designed to promote our overall business strateg;' of providing customers wiih a safe, clean, friendly and 
fun ganting e.\*perience at each of our properties. We Iiave developed an exlensive proprietan' dalabase of customers,llvil allows us to 
create effeciive targeted maikeling and promotional programs tlwt are designed to rcward customer loyalty, atiracl new cusiomers to 
our properties and inaintaui high recognition of our brands. 
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In March 2008 we announced our new strategic plan, the main components of witich arc to focus on orgamc growth opportunities and 
to consolidate our porffolio into two brands - lsle and Lady Luck. Our re-branding decisions,will lie based on a varieu' of factors, 
including the size oftlie facilil;', amenities, and the size of the primaiy markel S;Ser\'ed. Tlie Isle .brand will fealure regional faciiit ies 
with hotel rooms and convention facilities designed for both business and leisure travelers, with upgraded amenities, all of witich wil! 
coniplcmenl our casino product. Based on a significani inaikel research projeci conducled with ourdatabase ciistomers, we will 
reintroduce Lady Luck as tJie brand for our smiiiler facilities tliat serve more local imtikets, 

Specdicaily; as we iniplement our strategic plan, we expeci our inarkcting programs aiid initiatives lo focus on die following antas: 

• Customer, Research: Overall, our operating and marketing strategics have been developed and are being implemented lo 
meel the needs and desires ofour customers in each ofour locaiions. In order lb assess these needs aiid desires, we engage 
in significant customer reseiux;h in each of burmarkets. Upon receipt of Uiese surv'cys, we assess.the altitudes of our 
customers and the customers of our compctiUve properties towards the most importanl attributes of their e.xperience in a 
regional and/or local ganting facility. We useliie extensive infomiation gatiiercd from Uiese research iititiatives to make 
marketing, operating and deyelopmeni decisions that, we beticve, will optimize the posilion of otir properties relative to our 
competition. 

• Branding Initiatives: As previously discussed, we have designed a'Slrategicplan lliat wUl consolidate our propem* portfolio 
from four brands into two brands. Webelieve tlvti Uus'approachwUI allow us to inpsi effectively align and promoie our 
properlies based upon ctisiomer needs and desiics,wiirfurtlier allow us io niore cfficicnUy market our properties ona 
consolidaled basis, and will streamline die costs associated wilh marketing our portfolio. 

• Oataba.se Markeiing: We are Streamlining our dalabase marketing initiaiives JKross tlie Compan;' in oixler to focus our 
• marketing efforts on profitable customers wlio liave a proven wilhiigncss to regularly visU our properties. Specifically, our 

focus is oh chntinating from our.databasc customers whoMiayc Itistorically been included in significant marketing efforts 
but liave proven cosUy'cither as a rcsuil of excessive iiiarkcfiug expendî tuies on the part oflhe Company, orbecaCise Uiese 
cusiomers liave become rclalively dqnnant in tenns of customer activiiy yel liavc rcriiained active in om database. 

• Segmentation: Wc hayc compiled an exteiisivc database of cuslbin'er infonnation over tiiiie. Among our most important 
markeiinginiiiativcs, wc are currenlly tiiiroduciiig daiabascsegtneniaUon to our phspenies in order to adjust investment 
rates to a level at>which we expect to meet a reasonable level of cuslomer profitabilit;'. 

• Relail Developmeni: We believe tlial we mustmore effectively attract new, non-database aisiomers to our properties 
movingforward in order to increase profitabilit;'and free cash flow. Tliese cusiomers are generady less expensive to allracl 
and retain and, therefore, currendy represenl a significant opportunii;' for our operations. 

Employees 

As ofApril 27. 2008, wc employed appro.ximately 8:559 people. None of our employees are subject lo a collective bargaining 
agreement. We belie\'e.lhai ourrelatidnship with our employees is salisfactory. 

Governmental Regulations 

Tlie gaming and racing industries arc Itigldy regulated, and we must maintain our licenses and pay giiiiung taxes to continue our 
operations. Each of our facilities issubjectlo extensive regulation underthe,laws, mles and regulations of diejurisdiclion where it is 
localed. Tliese laws, mles and regulations generally reiale lo the, responsibility.-financla I slabililyiand character ofdie owners, 
managers and persons with fimincial iiiterests in thegamiiig operations, Violationsof laws in one jurisdiction could result in 
discipiinai;' action in odier jurisdictions. A more detaUed description of the regulations to witich wc are subject is coniained in 
Exhibii;99.1 to the Annimi Rcport on Fonn iO-K, which exhibit is incorporated hcrcin by reference. 

Our businesses are subject to various federal, stale and local laws and regiilalions in addition to gaming rcguiaiions. Tliese laws and 
regulations include..but are not liniited to, restrictions and conditions concerning alcoholic beverages, enviromnenlai mailers, 
employees, currcncy traiisactioas, taxation, zoning and building codes, and markeiing and advertising. Such laws and regulations 
could cliange or could be inieipreted differently in the fuIure,-or new laws and 
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regulations could be enacted. Material cliiinges, new. jaws or regulaiions,,or material differences.interpretations by courts or, 
gdvermncntafaulhdriUes could adversely affect our operating results. _ 

ITEM I A. RISK FACTORS 

We face sigiiificant competition from other gaming'operations ihat could htrve a material adverse effed on our.fnture opertdions. 

Tlie gaining industiy is intensely competitive, and we face a liigh degree pf cpuipetition in llic markets in witich we operate. We li;ive 
numerous competitors, including land-based casinos, docksideeasinos,,riverboat casinos, casinos located on Native American-owned 
lands and al racing and pari-mutuel operalioiis and video lottei;' and video poker inaehines not located in'casiitos. Several ofour 
competitors liave substantially better name recogitilion, marketing and financial resources than.we do; competitors with more financiai 
resources may therefore be able'to unprove die quality'Of,'Or expand, dicir ganung facilities ih a way thai we inay be unable to match. 
Legalized gaifning is currenUy permitted in varipus foims diroughout the Umted States..Certain statesiiave recently lega!ized,'and 
odierstates are currently considering legatiziiig gamuig, OUierjurisdictibns, including states in closeproximit;' io jurisdictions where 
we currently have operations, ha^e considered andinay consider legaitzing casino gaming and other fonns of coiiipetiUoiL In addition, 
there is no lintit on the number of gaining licenses that may be granted in several ofthe markets in which we operate. As a'resull, new 
licenses could be awarded lo gaming facilities in diesc markets, witich could allow new-ganiing operators io enter otir inarkels and 
have an adverse effecl on our operating rcstilts. E.xpansion of ex-isting ganiing facilities and tiie deveiopment of new gaming facilities 
in our current markets w'iU increase competition for bur existing and^ Inaddition,.many Native American tribes 
conduct casino gaming on'NaUyeAmerican-bwnediands t^hroughout the Uniled Stales. These facilities have the ad\'antagcs of being 
land-based and e.xempt from certain state and federal taxes and operaiionai restrictions. Some Native'Aiiierican tribes arc eitlier in die 
process of establishing or expanding, orare considering the establishment or expansion of, gaming in Oklahoma, Texas, Louisiana, 
Florida, AUibama, Kaiisas, Gqlbrado, Mississippi. Wisconsin and Iow;a. TheestJiblishment or expansion of new, ganung facilities and 
casinos on Native American-own^ lands wUI increase competition for our exisling and future gaming facilities in proximity to Naiive 
American-owned iands. 

We also compete with oiher fonms of legalized ganting and entertaimnent such as online computer gambling, bingo, pull tab games, 
card parlors, sports books, "cruise-lo-now.here'"operations, pari-mutuel'or telephonic betting on horse racing and dog racing, 
state-sponsored lotteries, jai-alai, and, in the future.^may compete wiili gaming at other venues, j n addition, we compete more 
generally with oUicrfonns of entertaimnent for tlie discretionar;'. spending of our customers. 

Our existing gaming facilities compele direclly with oUier gaming properties in Louisiana, Mississippi, Missouri, Iowa, Florida and 
Colorado. We also compele, with gaming operalors in other ganting jurisdictions sucli as Atianlic City, New Jersey and Las Vegas, 
Nevada. Our e.xisting casinos attract a significant number of their cusiomers from Houston, Te.xas; Mobile, Alabaina; Kansas City, 
Missouri; Southern Florida; Little Rock, Arkansas and Denver, Colorado. Qur continued siiccess depends upon drawing customers 
from eacli of these geographic martccts. Legali7.alion ofgaming in jurisdictions cioserio these geograpliic markets llian the 
jurisdictions in which our facilities arc located would kive a maierial adverse effect on ouroperaling rcstilts. In that reganJ, the Kansas 
Legislature recently aiitlionzcdcasinqs in several locations throughout the stiile of Kansas, including two in the Kansas Cit;-, Kansas 
area. We e.xpecl competition to increase as licw gaming operalois enter our markets, existing compelilors e.xpand their operations, 
gaming activities expand in existing jurisdictions and gaming is legalized in new jurisdictions. We caimot predict with any certainty 
the.effccts of existing arid fuiurc competiiion on biir operating results, 

IVe aresubjeci to extensive regiilation from gaming authorities that could adversefy affect u.s. 

As owners and operaiois ofgaming and pari-muiuel wagering facilities, we arc subject to extensive state and locafregiilation, Slale 
and local aulhoriUes require us and our subsidiaries to.'demonslrate suitabUily to obtain and relain variqus^liccnses and require diat.we 
liave rcgistrations, pemiits and approvals lo conduct gaming operations. The regulator' auUioriiies in the jurisdictions ui wluch wc 
operate liave ver;' broad discretion with regard to iheir regulation of ganiing operators, and may fora broad variety of reasons and in 
accordance with applicable laws, mles and regulations, limit, condition, suspend, fail to renew or revoke a lieeiise to conduci ganting 
operations or prevent us from owning Uie securities of ai^' ofour ganting subsidiaries, or'pre\'ent other persons from owiting an 
interest in us or doing business witli us. We may also be deemed responsible for the acis and conduci ofour employees! Sub'siantial 
fines or forfeiture of 
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assets forvioUitions of gamuig law ŝ or regulations inay be levied against us, oun subsidiaries and the peisons.im'olved, and some 
reguiaton' audiorities hiivelhe abiiity to require us to suspend ouroperalions: Tlie suspension or revocation ofany ofour licenses or 
oui" operations or the le\T on us or oiir subsidiaries ofa subsianiial fine would liiive annaierial ad\'erse effect oriour business. 

To date, we lia\'e demonstrated suilabilily to obtain and liave oblained'all govenimenlal licenses, registrations, pcnnits and approvals 
necessar;' forus lo operate ourexisting gaming facilities. We.caniiol'assure you Ihalwe w'jll be able to relain these licenses, 
registrations, pennits and approvals or Uiat wewUl be able,to obtain any new ones in order to e.xpand ourbusiness, or Uuit our attempts 
to do so will be timely: Like all gaming operalorsinlhe jurisdiciions in.which wc operale, we musl periodically.-apply to.rencw our 
gaming licenses and liave iliesuiiabilit;' ofccrtain ofour direclors, officers and employees approved. We c'lnnot assure you that we 

will be aBle lo obtain such renewals or approvals. 

In addition, regulatoiy aulhoriUes incenain jurisdiciions musl approve, in advance, aiw restrictions on transfers of, agreements not lo 
encumber or pledges of equit;' securities issued by a corporalion tluil is registered as an inlennedian' compain' witli such slate; or tlial 
holds a gaming license: If these restrictions, are not approved in advance, tlicy will be invalid. 

From time to time, legislators andiSpecial inteicsl groups have proposed legislation that would expand, resirici or preventgaming 
opcratioi^ in the juriSUcUons in witich we operate. In addition,,from time to,linie, certain aiiti-gaming groups haye cliallenged 

.constitutional amendmenis or legislation dial would limti our ability lo continue tb operate in iliose jurisdiciions in which Uiesc 
consUtuUonal amendments or legislation have been adopted. For example, die Florida Districl Court of AppealsFirst District revetted 
die lower court's decision granting sumnian'judgment in favor of Floritlians fora LevefPlaying Field (FLPF), of witich we area 
member,The Court mlebthat atrial is necessan' to determine whether fT,PF failed to obtain tlie required numberof signatures lo 
place the constimtionafamcndment authorizing slot inaehines on the biUloi approved by the voters. We believe lliat at trial FLPF 
would prevail on ihe merits.'-However, if FLPE-isuliimately unsuccessful in the liiigation, the statewide v6te'aWj.iding llie Florida 
constitution to pemtit slot macltines at pari-mutuels could be invalidated and.ourrighl to operate slot machines at Pompano Park 
would be eliminated,nylticii would liave an ad\'ersc effect on us. We cannot assure you as to" the outcome of Utis litigation. 

IVe are subject to the possibility ofan increase in ganting taxes and fees; which ivoitld increase oitrco.sts. 

Stale and lociti authorities raise asignificant amount of revenue tlirough la.\esand fees on gaming activities. Webelieve dial Uie 
prospecl of significant rcvenue is oneof the primar;' reasons that jurisdictions permit legalized ganung. As a resuli, gannng 
companies are t;'picall;', subjeci,to significani ia.\es and fees in addition to normal federal,.slate, local and provincial income ta.xes, and 
such la.xes and fees are subjeci to increase at am' liiiie Wc pay subslaniiartaxcs and fees with respectlo.,oiiroperations. From time lo 
time, federal, state, local and provincial legislators and officialshave proposed changes'in tax laws, or in tlie administration ofsuch 
laws, affetiling the ganiing induslr.'. In addition, we believe that worsening cconomiC'Conditions lliat result in state and local 
gqvemmenlshavirigbudget shortfalls (as is currenUy tlie case in mimyofitlie jurisdiciions in which weoperalc) could intenstfy'die 
eltons of slate and local govemmenlslo raise revenues through increases in ganting ta.xes. Some ofthe states in which we ownor 

• opcraie casinos coniinue to experience budget shortfalls and, as a rcsidi, may iiicre'ase ganting ta.\es to raise more revenue We cannot 
detennine with.certaint;' the likelihood of clianges in lax laws or in the administration of sucH'laws, Such clianges, if adopted, could 
liave a material adverse effect on our business, financial.condition and,results of operations. 

We are subject to non-gaming regulation that could adversely affect us. 

Scvcnd of our rivcrtioais must comply with U.S. Coast Guardrcquircments as to boat design, on-board facilities, equipment, 
personnel aitd safety and must hold U;S. Coast GiiardCertifiailes of Documentation and Inspection. Tlie U.S: Goast Guard 
requirements also sel lintits on the operation ofthe riyerboats and mandate licensing of certain pcrspimel involved wiUi Uie operation 
of llie riverbbals. Lossof a rivert>oat's Certificate of DocunieniaUohahd Inspection could preclude its use as a riveiboat casino. Each 
ofour rivciboais is inspecied :timually,and, even' five years, is subjecl lo dn'-docking forjnspectionof iis hull, wiiich coitid result in a 
lemporaiy loss of service. 
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Wc are required to have third parties periodical!;" inspect and certify all of our casino barges for stability aiKl single companment 
fiooding integrity. Our casino barges and odier facditics innstalso meet Jpcal fire safet;',standards. We would incur additional costs if 
am' ofour gaming facilities were not in compliance with oiie or more oflhese regulations. 

We are also subject tb certain federal, state and local eiiyironmental htiys, regulations and ordiiiancestliai apply to non-gaming 
businesses generally, suchas Uic CleiuiAirAci, tlie Clemi Water Act, the Resource Conservation Recover;'. AcL tlie Comprehensive 
Enviromnenlai Response, Compensation and Liability Aciand the Oil Pollution Act of 1990. Under various federal, stale and local 
laws and, regulations, ah owner or operator of real property may'be held liable for tlie costs of removal or remediation ofccrtain 
hazardous or toxic substances oriwastes located on its propert;',; regardless of 'whether ornoi die presenl owner or operaior knows of, 
or is responsible for. die presence ofsuch substances or wastes. ,We have'not identified ;uiy issues associated with our properties dial 
could reasonably be expected to have an adverse effect on us or the results of ouroperaUohs, However, sev'eral ofour properties are 
located in industrial areas or were used for industrial purposes for many years..As a consequence, it is,possible that Itisiorical or 
neigliioring activities Iiave affected one or more ofour properties and'UuiU as a resuli, enviromnenlai issues could arisein llie future, 
the precise nature ofwhich we caimot now prcdici; llie coverage and ailcnd;mi compliance costs associated-wiih tlicse laws, 
rcguiaiions,and ordinances may resiilt in future additional .costs. 

Regulations adopted by the Financial Crimes Enforcement Netvvorii of the U.S:-Tre;isur\- Department require us to rcporfcurrenc;' 
transactions in excess of $10,000, occurring withina gaming.day, including identifiaition oflhe patrori by name and social securit;' 
number. U.S. Treasun' Departniem regulations also require us to rcport certain suspiciousactjvit;', jnciuding any transaction lliat 
e.xceeds $5,000 if we know, suspect or Iiave reason to believe that the;transaction involves funds from illegal aclivity or is designed to 
evade federal regulations or reporting requirements. Substantial penalties can be imposed against us if wc fail to comply with these 
regulations. 

We are also subject to a variet;' of other local mles and regulations, iricluding zoning, enviromiienlal, construction and landruse laws 
and regulations goveniing liie scr\'ing of alcoholic beverages. 

Our business may be adversely affected by legislation prohibiting tobacco smokbtg. 

Legislalion in various foniis to ban indoor.tobacco smoking has rc'cently.been enacted or introduced in many states and local 
jurisdictions, including several of the jurisdictions in whichiwc operale. .On January' I, 2008. a statewide smoking ban that includes 
casino floors went into effecl in Colorado. This smoking ban in Colorado lias had some negative impaci on business volume at our. 
Black Hawk properties, dieibng-tenn impact of wluch we cannoi yel predict. If additional restrictions on smoking arc enacted in 
jurisdictions in which we operate, particularly if such restriclions'areiioi applicable to all competitive factiiiies in Uiat ganting.madcct, 
oui" business could bematerially and ad\'ersely affecled. 

Our substantial indehtalness could ailversely affect ourfinahcidl lietitth and restrict oiiroperatums. 

Wehaveasignificantamoimiof indebtedness. Asof April 27, 2008. we had approxiinately $1.5 billion of lotal debl ouistimduig. 

Qur significant indebtedness could liave iiiiportjuil consequences to our financial health, such as: 

• limiting om ability lb obtain addilional fiiumcirig to fund our working capital requirements, capit;U e-\penditures, debt sen'ice. 
gencrali corporale or oilier obligations; 

• hmiting our.abiht;' to^use operating cash ffoiv lo fund woi-kingoipital, capital expenditures, expansion and oilier important arcas of 
our busiiiess because we musl dedicate a sigrtificant portion of biir cash flow to make principal and interest paymenis on our 
indebledness; 

• increasing our inieresi expense if ihcre is a rise in interest rates, because a ponion of our borro>vings under our senior secured credit 
faciiit;- are subject to interesi rate periods wiihshort-lcnn durations Uial require ongoing refunding al die then current rates of intercsi; 

• causing an event of default if we fall to satisfj' the financial and restrictive covenants contained in the indenture and agreements 
goveming our 7%'senior subordinated notes due 2014, our seriior secured credit faciliiy and ourbdier indebtetiness. witich could result 
ill all of our debt becoming immedialely due and payable, could pennit our secured lenders to foreclose on the assets securing onr 
secured dcbl and liave 

I I 

Source: ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS INC. 10-K. July 11. 2008 Fcv.«Efl by MGm;nfia;ar"Dcci!meni Research ̂ ^ 



odier adverse consequences, an; of wlticli, if nol cured pr waived, could liave a inaterial adverse effect on us; 

• placing us al acompetitive disadvantage to our competitors who are not as,highly leveraged; and 

• increasing our vulnerability toand liiniting our abilil;' to rcactlo changing markel condiUohs,,changes inour industr; and economic 
downtumsPr downturns in our business. 

Any ofthe faciors lisied above could liiiVea maierial ad\'erse effect on ourbusiness. financial condition and results of operations. In 
addition, allhougli bjised on ourcuircnt level of operations; we betieve tliat ouroperaling cash flow, available cash and ayailable 
bonowings under our senior secured credit facility will be sufficient to meet our anliciFptcd fumre liquidit;' needs, wc cannot assure 
you Uiat our busiiiess will coniinue lo generale sufficieni cash now,'or iluit fumre availiible draws under otir senior secured credit 
facilil;'will be sufficient, to enable us to meet our Uquidity needs, including to senice our indebtedness. 

Despite pur significant indebtedness, we may still be able'to incur significantly more debt This could intensify the risks described 
above. 

Tlie temis of tlie indenture and agreements goveming,the senior subprdinated 7% notes, our senior secured credii facilil;' and our odier 
indebtedness liiitit, but do nol prohibit, us or our subsidiaries from incurring significani additional indditedriess in the future. 

As ofApril 27.-2008, wc had the capacity to incur additionarindebtcdiiess, inchiding the abUiU' toincnr additional indebtedness under 
all of our lines ofcredit" of appro.ximately $170.0 ntillion. Refer to Footnole 7, Long-Tenn Debt, foraddilionardiscussiononour 
Senior Secured Crcdit Faciiit;'. Apjjroxiuiaiely $18:6 million oflhese liiies of credit were used to support letter ofcredit. Quraipaciiy-
10 issue addiiionjil indebtedness is'subject to tlie limilations imposed by ihe covenants in qui" senior secured credit facilil;' and lire 
tiidenlurc govcntingpur seitior subordinated 7% notes. The uidenturc goventing our senior-subordinated 7% noles and our seriior 
secured'crcdil faciliiy contain financial and other restrictive covenaiits; bul will IKJI fully proltibit us from incurring addilional debt. If 
new debt is added to ourcunciit level of indebtedness, Uie related risks tluit we'now.facecotild intensify. 

Restrictive covenants in the agreements governing our ihtiebtedhess may prevent Its from pursuing busine.ss strategics that could 
othenvise improve our results of operations. 

We have made and .will need to inake significant capital e.xpenditures at ourexisting facUiliesJo remaui competitive wilhcurrent and 
fumre.competitors inourmaritets, Our-sehior secured credilTacili't;'and,Uie indenture goventingptir senior subo^ 7% notes 
contain operating and financial restrictions Uiat may limil otfr'ability to oblajn die financing to make Uiese capital cxpienditures. 

Our agreeinenis goveming our indebledness, among oiher Utings, require us.lo mainiain certain specified financial ratios and lo meet 
certain financial tests. Our debt agreements also limit ourability to; 

• boiTow money; 

• make capital expendilures; 

• use assets as security inbUier transactions; 

• make restricted payments or reslricied irivestinenis; 

• incurcontiiigent obligations; and 

• sell assels and eiiler into leases and transactions with affiliates. ' 

We may experience confdruction delays during our expansion or development projecis which could adversely affeci our operations. 

We currentiy expect to begin a constmction prdject-al our Bjloxi property and plan to commence addilional conslmction projects at 
several of our properties. AVe also evaluate other .e.xpansion opportunities as.they become available and.we may in Uie fuiure engage in 
additio'nal conslmction projects. The anticipated cosisand consmict ion. periods arc based upon budgets, conceptual design documents 
jmd construction schedule esiimates prepared by us in consultation with our arcltitects ancl'conlraclors. 

Constmction projecis entail significani risks, wluch can substantially increase costs ordelay completionof a project. Such risks 
include shortages of nuilerials or skdied labor, unforeseen engineering, environmental 
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or geological problcnis. work stoppages, weather interference and unanticipaied cosl increases. Most oflhese factors are beyond our 
control. In addition, difficulties or delays in obtaining anyof the requisite licenses, pennils or audiorizations from regulator.' 
authorities can increase tlic cost or delay the completion of an expansion or development. Significant budget overmnsbr delays with 
respect to expansion and developmeni projecis could adversely affect oui" results .ofoperalions. 

We mav not be able to .successfully exptmd to netv locations or recover our investment in netvprtiperties which wtnild ailversely 
tiffed onr operations and available resources. 

VVe regularly evaluaie ;md pursue new gaining acquisition arid developmeni opportunities in existing and new ganting markets. To the 
extent that we elect to pursue any new ganung acquisilion ordcvclophicnl opportuml;', ourabitity to benefit from our investmeiil will 
depend on inany factors, including: 

• our abdity i o successfully identify attiTictivc acquisilion and development opportunities; 

• our abUity to successfully operale am' developed or acquired properties; 

• ourability to attract and retaincompelent management and employees forthe new locaiions; 

• our abUily.to secure required federal, siale and local hcenses, pcrmiis and approvals, which in some jurisdictions are lintiied in, 
number.and subject to intense competiUon and; 

• the availabilit;' of adequate financing on acceptable tenns. 

Many of tliese faciors are beyond ourcontrol. There have recently been sigitificani disrtiplions in.die global capilal markels lliat have 
adversely impacted the ability of borrowers to access capital Many analysts arc predicling.that these disruptions may continue for die 
foreseejible fuiure. Accordingly, it is likely that we are dependenl on free cash fiow.from operations and reiuaining borrowing 
capacity under our senior secured credit faciliiy to,implement our ncar-icrm expansion plans and fund our planned capital 
expenditures. As a result of these and other co aside nil ions,, we cannot be sure.that we wdl be able to recover^our inveslmenls in any 
new gaming development oppomiitilies of acquired facilities, or.successfiiUy expand to additional ItrcaUons. 

If our key personnel leave us, our business could be adversely affected. 

Wc Iiave recently had mam' changes in our senior e.xecutivc management icjun, and liave embailced on the execution ofa siratcgic 
plan developed by, and lo be led by, thai team. Our continued success wilLdepend, amongoiher Uiiiigs,pn Uie efforts and skills ofa 
few key exccuii\'e officers and the experience of our propert;',inanagers, vvhich have also recently e.xperienced significani,turnover. 
Qur success also depends on our abilit;' to attract and retain additional highly qualified personnel with gaming industr;' e.xperience and 
qualifications, to obiain the requisite licenses. \ye do nol mainiain "key man" life insurance foraiiy of bur.eniployees, Tlierc is no 
assurance.thai we would be able to atiracl and Iti re suitable replacements for any of our key employees. We need qualified e.xecuiives, 
managers arid skilled employees with ganiing industr;' experience to continue to successfully operate our busuiess. We belie\e a 
shortage of skilled labor in the gaming industr;' may iiiake it increasingly difficultand expensive to atiracl and retain qualified 
employees. We expeci lliat increased conipetilioh in the ganting industiy w'ill intensify this problem. 

Members of the Goldstein family control a large percentage ofour common .stock and their decisions may differ from those that 
may he mude hy other shareholders. 

Bemard Goldstein, bur current Cliaimi;m and fonner Chief E.\ecuti\'e Officer, Itis sons, including Robert'Goldslein, our Vice 
Cliairman and Jeffrey Goldstein, oneof our direclors; and various fiuitilylnists associaied wiUi ineriibcis of the Goldstein Familv, 
collectively own and control approximately 51%of our common slock, as of July 8, 2008. Allhougli the members of ilie Goldstein 
family arc free lo^vote their sliares differently Uian oneanoUier, llie Goldslein faniily wiU be able to exert a significant amount of 
conlrol over die election of our board of directors and tlie vdteon suBstanlially all otlier niatiers, including significani corporate 
transactions, such as the approval ofa meiger or other iransactions involving a sale of us. The inierests oftlie Goldstein fantily may 
differ from those of our other shareliolders. 

Wc have a history offiuctuations in our operating Oicttme (losses), and we may incur additional operating lo.s.ses in Ihe future. 
Our operating results couldflitctuiUe significantly on a periodic basis. 
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We sustained a net loss of $96.9 ntillion and operating loss of $36.1 million in fiscal year 20(̂ 8 and a net.loss of $4;6 inillion in fiscal 
year 2007. Companies wiih fluctuations in income (loss) from operations often find it more chillenging to raise capilal to finance 
improvemems in their businesses and to undertake other aclivitiesUiat relurn value to,their sliareholders. In addition, companies wilh 
operating results diat fluctuate significandy on a'quanerly or juinual basis experience incrcased volatility in their slock prices in 
addiiioii'tb difficulties in raising capital. We cannoi assure you tliat .>yc will not liaveflucluaiionsin our income (losses) from 
operalions in die fuiure, arid should lliat occur, tliat we would not suffer adverse consequences loour business as a resuli, witich could 
(decrease the value of our common stock: 

Inclement weather and other conditions could seriously disrupt our business, financial condition and results of operations. 

Dockside :uid riveiboat facdities are subjecl to risksiri additiori to lliose associated with Iand43ased casinos, including loss of senice 
due to casualt;', me'chaiucal failure, extended br extraordinaiy maintenance, flood, hurricane or other severe weather. Our riverboats 
and barges face additional risks froin die movement ofvesselspn waterivays. 

Reduced patronage arid the loss ofa dockside or, riverboai casino from service for any pieriod of lime could adversely affecl our rcsiUis 
of operalions. For example, as a result qf Hurricanes Katrina and Rita, we closed our Biloxi faciiit;' from August 28, 2005 to 
December 26, 2005 and our Lake Charies facility from September 22, 2005 to October 8,2005: Flooding on die waterways where our 
dockside and riveiboat casinos operate also niay require us to close our facilities from Ume to time, witha resulting adveise affecl on 
ourbusiness. During tlie Spring of" 2008, we were forced to close ourNatcliez and Davenport properties, for several days eacli due to 
flooding. While our business intenupUon insurance provided sufficientcoverage for those losses, we cannoi be sure thai Uie proceeds 
from any future claim will be sufficient to compensate us if one.or more of our'ciisinos experience a closure. 

In fiscal 2007 and 2008, in part as a result ofhurriGine claiius in the GulfCoast region over ihepasi several yciirs, we liave 
experienced a significani'increasein propcrtyand business inlerrnption premiums. 

Access lo a riuriiberqrpur facilities may also be'affected by road coridilioris, stich as constmction and traffic, in addiiion, severe 
weadier such as high winds iind btiziards occasionally Untils access lo our facilities in Colorado. 

Energy'aniifuel price increases, such as the recent dramtdic increases in gasoline prices, may adversely affect our costs of 
operations and our revemies. 

Our casino properties use significanrarnounts of electricity, natufargas and oilier fonns of cneig;'. While no shortages of cneig;' have 
been experienced, substantial incrcasesinthecostofeleciriciiyinUieUitiied Slates would negatively affect bur results of operations. 
Inaddition, ericrgj' and fuel price increases iri cities tlial conslitute a significant source of customers for our propenies could result in 

a decUne in disposable incoiiie of potential customers, and lead our customers ;uid potential customers to decide not to ti^vel, both of 
wluch couid result in a corresponding decrease in visitation to our properties; which would negatively iriipaclourrcvenues. The 
exteni ofthe impact is subjcci ip Uie'magniiude and duration of Uic energ;' and fuel price iiicreascs, witich recently have been ver;' 
significant, but ihis nripact could be material. 

A downturn in general economic conditions may'adversely affeci our results of operations. 

Our business operations arc subject to clianges in inieniational, mitionaLand local econontic conditions, including clianges in the 
economy as well as the econontic impact relatedib fuiure security alerts in connection with Uireatcned or actual terrorist attacks and 
related to the war in Iraq, witich may affeci our cusiomers'willingness to travel and visil our propenies. Reixnt unprecedented 
increases in the price of gaspluic may also affect our ciistonicrs'willingness to travel. A recession ordownium in Uie gerieral 
economy, dr in a region constitiiting a sigiiificimt source of customers forpur properties, could result in fewer customers visiting our 
properties, wliich would adversely affect our results of operatioris. 

The market price ofour common stock may fliictuate significantly.-

Tlie market priceof bur coimnon stock has historically been volatile and liiay continue lo fluctuate substantially due lo anumberof 
factors", including actual or anticipated changes in our-results of bpeiations, the announccinenl bf significant transactions or other 
agreements by our oimpeUiors, conditions or irends 
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in the our industr;' or oUier enlertainmeni industries w ith witich we compele, general economic conditions including those affecting 
our customers'discretionan' spjending, changcsin the cost of itir travel orthe cpsi oif gasoline, changes in thegaming niarkets in which 
we operate and clianges in the irading value of our comriion stock. The slock niarkei in geiicial, as well as stocks in tlie gaming sector 
have been subjecl lo significaiU volatility ahd extreme price fiuctuations dial have'soineiinies_^been unrelated or disproportionate to 
iridiviiJual coriipanies' operating pcrfomianccs. Broad mariict or industi;' faciors may liarin tlie market price of our comnion stock, 
regardless of our operating perfonnance. 

We have international operations that ara subject to different risks than our domesfic operatitms. 

In the UK and the Bahamas, wc are subject to ceriain additional risks, including difficultyin staffing and managing foreign subsidiar;' 
operations, foreign currency fluctiialions, dependence on foYcigu econoniies, political issues, adverse lax consequences and 
uncertaint;' in regidaior;'reform intlieiUK, In addition, iri Uie,iBahanias cunerit ganiing regtdation preclude residenls from 
participating in ganting activities. Tliereforc, disniptions in tourism tiiiffic due lo issues such as increased costs and/or reduced 
availabilit;' of airiinc and oihcrjneans of transportation and hotel accommodations can have an ad\'erse impact in our gamuig 
operatioris. 

Failure to maintain effective internal controls in accordance with'Section dOd ofthe Sarbanes-Oxl^ Act could result in a loss of 
invesior confidence regarding our financial reports or may have a material attverse effect on our business. 

We are required to comply wiih the reporting requiremenispf Section 404 ofthe Sarbanes-O.xle;' Act., In doing so, we;may identify 
sigitificant deficiencies or errors that are not currcni ly. known lo us. Asa public,company,nve are required to report among other 
things: conirol deficiencies that conslilule a" maierial weakness" or clianges in internal corUiblsthaL orthat are'reasonably likely to, 
materially affect intemal controls over financial,reporting. 

In fiscal 2007. we identified several material weaknesses inour iniernal control overfinancial reporting and liiivc restatedbur financial 
results for the years ended through AprifjO, 2006 and llie related quarterly i"esiills Uierein, and the firsl-threc fiscal quarters ended 
Januar;"28, 2007. Wc believc'iliatwciiave rcmediaied ourmatcrial weaknesses. Wc camiot be assured thai additional material 
weaknesses, significant deficiencies and controldeficiencies in our intemal control over financial rcportingwill not be identified in 
the future. 

The effectiveness ofour internal conlrol over financial reponing in the fuiure could be. impacted by a variety of factors,,including 
fault;' human judgment, siniple.errors, omissions or ntisuikes, and the possibility tiiat any enhanceirients to disclosurc controls and 
procedures may still not be adequate to assure timely-and accurate fin:uicial infonnaiion. 

If we fail to achievc'and mainiain effeciKe controls and procedures for financial reporting, we could be uruible'to provide timely and 
accurate financial information: This may cause us to fail to satisfy the reporting requireinents widi our lenders and give rise to an 
event of default or cause investors lo lose confidence in our rcported financial iitibrmalibiL Tlus may also have an adverse effect on 
the,irading price ofour comriion stock. 

.* * * ^ * * * • 

In addition lo the foregoing, you should consider each of llie factors set forth in dtis Amiual Report in evaluating our business and our 
prospecis. The faciors described in our Pari I Item lAarc not tlic.only ones we face. Additiorial risks and uncertainties not prxjsenUy 
known to us or dial we currently consider iminalerial may also impair our business operations. Tliis report is qualifieiJ in its entirely 
by diesc risk factors. Ifany of tlic forcgoing risks aciuallypccur, our business, financial condition and results of operation could be 
materially hanncd. In Uiat case, the irading" priceof our securities, including.our common siock,'could decline significantly. 

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS 

None 

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES 

Lake Charles 

We own approximately 2.7 acres and lease approximately 16.2 acres of land in Calcasieu Parish, Louisiana for use in coiinecUon wilh 
the Islc-Lake"Cliaries: Tltis lease automatically renewed in March 2005 for five years and we'have tlie option to renew it for fifieeri 
(15) addiiional terms of five years eacli. subjecl to increases based on Uie Consumer Price hidex 
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("GPI") with a miitimum of 10% and construction of holel facilities on Ihc propert;'. We own two hotels in Lake Cliarlcs widi a lotal 
of 493 rooms. Arinual rent paymenis imderUic Lake Cliaries lease are approximately $2.1 million. 

Lula 

We lease appro.ximately 1,000 acrcs of land in Coalioma County, Mississippi and utilize appro.ximately 50 acres in connection wilh 
the operations oftlie Isle-Lula. Unless tenninated by usaianeariierdale, the lease expires in 2033. Rent underthe lease is currenlly 
,5.5% oi"gross,gaiiting revenue as reported to Uie Mississippi Ganiirig Coriimission, plus $100,000 annually. We also own 
appro.xiriuitcly 100 acres ui Coahoma County,.which may be utilized for fuiurc developtneiU. 

Biloxi 

Wc lease our Biloxi berth from Uie Bilo.xi Port Commission at an imnual rent oflhe greater of $510,000 or l%ofthc gross gaming 
revenue nel of state and local gaming ia.xes. The lease lenninates on July 1,2009 and we have the opiion to renew it for seven 
additioreil tennsof five yeiiis each subjecl to increases based on the CPl,.liiniied to 6% foreach renewal period. 

Welease the real estate upon which some ofour land-based facilities, including ihc casino, are located fipm the Cily of Biloxi and die 
Mississippi Secretai;' ol" State ai curreni arinual rem of $561,800 per year, plus'3% of our Biloxi propero '̂s gross ganting re\'eniies, net 
of slate and local gaming laxes and fees, inexcess of $25^0 million, Tlie lease lerminales on July I, 2009, bul it is rene\yablc at our 
option for five additional lerins of five yeirs each and a sixth option renewal tenn, concludiiig ori Januan' 31, 2034, subjecl to rent, 
increases based on the CPl, lintiied to 6% forcachrene;val period. 

In April 1994, inconriection w'iUi the conslmctionof a hotel, we eiitered into aleaseforadditional land adjoining our Biloxi property. 
This lease wiUi llie City.of Biloxi and the Mississippi Secrelan,' oHStale is foran iniUafterm of 25 years,,with options to renew for six 
additioreil tenns often years each and a filial optioii period concluding Deceniber 31, 2085. Curreni muiual rent is $605,000 plus 4% 
ofrgross non-g;mting revenues, as defined in die lease, and renewals arc subjcci to rent increases based on tht; CPI. Tlie amiual rent is 
adjusted afler eichfive-yenr period.based on incrcascsin the CPl, limited lo a 10% increasein any fiye-year period. 

In Augusi 2002, we entered into a lease for two additioreil parcels of land adjoining qur property and die hotel. On die parcel adjoining 
tiie Bilo.xi property, we constmcted a multi-level parking garagetliiit has approximately 1,000 parking spaces. Tiierc is additional 
ground level.parking on a parcel of land in front of Uie garage, also subjrct to this lease, with approximately 600 parking spaces. We 
have constnictcd a 400-rqom addition to ihe existing hotel.on.the parcel lejised next to ilie existing hotel! In addiiion, we may 
conslmct a hotel above tiie parking garage,.TIiis lease with the Cit;' of Biloxi and the Mississippi Secrelar;' of State is for an initial 
term of fori;'years, withonepptioii.tb renew for an additional twenty-five years and additional options Uiereafter, with the consent of 
the Mississippi Secrelan," of State, consistent with the.tenn of the lease describcdin the preceding paragraph. When combined widi the 
base and percentage rents described for the leases in die preceduig two jiaragraphs, annual rent under those two leases and tltis lease 
was S4.0 million for leise year ending July 31, 2007, and estimated to be $3̂ 5 million for the lease year ending July 31, 2008. Such 
ntiitiimim rem is to increase ihereafter over tinie in accordance with a fonnula based on anticipated liming for completion of the hotel 
oniopbf the parking garage (or August 31,2008, whiclievcr occurs first), up _to\T mininnim rent ot̂  $3.7 million. Tlie miriimum rent 
for theieaseyeirbeguuiiiig Augusi 1, 2008 will be $3.7 million inaccordance with ihe lennsofthe lease agreement. Such amounls 
are subject to decreases due to iriaikei adjustincnts arid increases based on the CPl. Also, \vc are responsible for aimual rerii equal lo 
4% of gross retail revenue and gross cash revenue (as defined in die lease), but wiihout double counting. If die rent iitiitiinum 
described in die preceding sentences is not otherwise saiisfied from oUier rents, dien this percenlage rent is not inaddition to die 
miitimmn rera, bul ratheris to be applied to that miitimum. 

In connection with and pursuanl to a setUement beiween the Cit;' of Biloxi and die Slale ofMississippi conceming the control and 
management of ilie area where we are located, \ye also have agreed lo pay die City of Biloxi's lease obligations lo the State.of 
Mississippiforanagreeduponpcriodofti'mc. This amount is:$500,000,pcryear,'payablconJime30, subjrct to increases based on Uie 
CPlanddecreasestfthere are other tenants ofdie subjecl proper!;', Tltis obligation ends afterJune 2018 but may be renewed for thirt;' 
years. 

VVe have also entered into ajoinl venture airangemeni to subieise a'surface parking lot next loourBilo.'̂ i property. Our ponion of the 
annual rent under dtis lease is approxiinately $222,000. Tlie current ienn is for five years expiring December 31, 2010, wiUi a renewal 
option for an addilional five-year tenn (mider which our aiinuiU reiit would riicrease based on the CPI), extending llie lease Uirough 
December 31, 2015. if exercised. 
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Nalchez 

Through numerous lease.agreements, w-e lease approximately 24 acres of land in Natchez, Mississippi thal.areused in connection with 
the operalions ofour Natchez property'- Unless teriitinated.by us at an eariier dale, the leases have van'ing e.xpiration dates Uirough 
2037. Aimual rent under the leases total approximately $1.1 million. We also lease approxinuilely 7:5 acres ofiaiid Uial is utilized for 
.parking at tlic faciiit;', Weown approximately 6 additional acres ofpropert;' in Natchez, Mississippi, as well as the propert;-upon 
which our hotel is located. 

Kansas City 

We lease approximaiely 28 acrcs from Uic Kansas CityPort'Authority.in comiection with die operation ofpur Kansas Cit;' propert;'. 
Tlie lenn of the "original lease; was ten yairs and e.'spired in October 2006 and.was renewed for an additional five years. The lease 
includes seven addilional five-year renewal options. Tlie mininmni lc;ise paymenis are indexed tocorrcspond to any rise or fall in die 
CPI, initially afler die ten-year temi ofthe lease or Augusi 21, 2007 and Ihereafter, at each five year renewal date. Rent under die lease 
ctirreritly isdie greaierof$2;6 milliori (imitiriiuiri rent) per year, or3,25% ofgross revenues,-less complitnerilaries. 

Boonville 

We lease pur 27 acre casino site in Boonvdie pursuanl to a lease agreement wilh the Cit;; of Boonville. Under the tenns of agreement, 
we lease the site fora period of ninety-nineyears, Inlieuof rent, we are assessed additiorial arnounls by the Cityof Bobriville based 
ona 3.5% lax ori gamirig revenue, up to $1.0 million, witich wc recognize as addiUonal'gaming taxes. We lease appro.ximalely 27 

.acres from the City of Boom'iile. 

Caruthers\'ille 

Wc own appro.ximalely 37 acres, including our rivertioat casino and 1,000 parking spaces in Gamthers\'ille, Missouri. 

Bettendorf 

We own appro.ximately 24.6 acres of land in Betiendorf, Iowa used in connection widi the operations of our Bettendorf propert;'. We 
also lease approximately eiglil acres of laiid oh a inouili-to-monUi basis from an eniity owned by fairiily jnenibers qf our cliainnan, 
Bcmiu-d Goldstein, including Robert S. GoMstcin, our vice chainnan and director aiid Jeffrey D, Goldstein, a director ofpur company, 
witich we utilize for parkiiig'and w;irehouse space The initial terrii of tlic lease e.xpires sixty days after wriden notice is given to eiUier 
part;' and rent under the lease is currenlly-$2j,360 pcrlnpnlh, 

Da\'en}Xirt 

Pursuant lo various lease agreements, we lease approximaiely iwelve acres of land in Davenport,.lowa used incpnneclion wilh Ihe 
operations of'Rhytlun City-Davenport. Tlie aggregale;annual rent oti tliese leases is apjjro.xiinately $300,000 and ihey Iiave vaiying 
expiration dates through 2022. 

Marqueile 

We lease the dock site in Marquette, Iowa dial is used in connection with bur Marquette operations. Tlie lease expires iri 2019, and 
aiuiual rent under Uic lease is appro.ximately $180,000, phis $ LOO perpassenger, plus2;5%of.gaimngrcvenues (less slale wagering 
ta.xes) m excess bf$2tJ.6 nullion but less Uian $40.0 million; 5%of gaming revenues (less state wagering ta.xes) ui e.xcess of $40.0 
million but less than S60:0 niilljon; and 7.5% ofgaming revenues (less slate wagering ta.xes) in e.xcess of $60.0 million. We also rent 
approximately Iwo acres of land used forthe employee parking lol lluu isa month-to-monlh reiUalofS417.;and an easement relaled to 
;m overiiead pedestrian bridge and driveway that is an aimual payment of appro.ximately S6,300. Wcalso own approximately 25 acres 
of land for tlie pavilion, hotel, satellite offices,''Warehouse, lots by the marina and other profcrty. 

Waterloo 

Tlie casino occupies appro.ximately 30 acres of land, witich we own. We also entered into a one-year lease agreement for 17,517 sq. fi. 
of w'areliousc spare, Rent under this lease is currently $4,306 per month. 
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Black Hawk 

Wc own approxinuilely 10.1 acres of landin Black Hawk, Colorado for use in connection wiih our Black Hawk operations. The 
propertv- leases an additional parcel oflaiid adjoining ihc Isle of Capri Black Hawk where tlie Colorado Central Station Hotel and 
parking are located. ,Tltis lease is for an utitial^tcnn of nine years with options to renew for eighteen addriional tenns of five years each 
with the final option period concluding Jiuie 1, 2094. Annual rent is cuirently $1,8 million inde.xed to correspond lo any rise or fall in 
the CPI al one-year intervals, not lo exceed a 3% increase or decrease from the previous year's rate 

The Colorado. Central Station-Black Hawk 

Wc own or lease approximate!;' 7.1.acres of iandjin Black Hawk,Colorado for use in connection with the Colorado Cenlral 
Station-Black Hawk. Tlic property leases an additional.parcel.of land near the Colorado Cenlral Slation-Black Hawk for pariring 
described above. This lease is for an iniiial tennof ten years with opiions to reriew" for nine additional tenns of ten years each \yith Uie 
final opiion period concluding Augusi 2094̂  CurrcnUy the aimual rcnl is $576,000 and renewals are subject to 20%o rent increases over 
the rale oftlie previous terni. 

Pompano 

Wc own appro.ximately 223 acres at Pompano. 

Our Lucaya 

We lease thecasino at Our-Lucaya under die terms ofa two-year lease which commenced Jime I, 2007. However,, beginning in 
October 2007 the lease mav be leririinated by either party wilh si.\ riionllis notice. Amiual renial paymenlsiirider the lease are currentl;' 
SI.9iiiillioa 

Blue Chip-Dudley 

througli our two-thirds ownership interest in Blue Cltip, pic, wepwn the appro.xiinately I2,(X)0 squarerfoot building used for the Blue 
Clup-Dudley casino operation. We also own an 8,000 square-foot parking area for the disino-

Blue Chip-Wolverhampton 

Tlirough our tvvo-Utirds ownership iniercst in Blue Cltip. pic, wc own the approximately 12,000 square-fool building used for the Blue 
Cltip-Wo h'crliampton casino operatic ri We also own a 2,000 square foot.pjirking area for Uic^casino. 

CdveiUry 

We entered into a 15 year lease, agree ment with renewal options for an additioiial.lO years during fiscal 2004 to lease appro.ximalely 
1 i6,000i square feel fora new casiiro in Coventr;', England inUiesitb-leycl of the Arena Coventn,' Convention Center Tlie convention 
ccnterwns developed,pvvried and operated by a iion-affilialed eniity and began operations in August 2005. Due to certain stmclural 
elements installed during die constmction of Uie space being leased and certairi prepaid lease payments made by us, we are required to 
be treated, for accounting purposes oitiy, as the "owner' of the Arena Covcnln' Convention Cemenin accordance wiUi Eniciging 
Issues Task Fonx Issue No. 97-10 ("EITF 97-10"), "Tlie Effcci of Lessee Invdlvcnient in Asset Consiniciion," even Uiough we do nol 
ow'ri these assets and do not participate in or control the operalions ofthe conveniion center. 

Other 

Wcpwriall of UK riyerboats and barges utilized al pur facilriies.. We also own or lease all of ourgaming and non-gaming equipnienl. 

We lease our coiporate offices in Crcye Coeur, Missouri, Biloxi, Mississippi, and Boca Raion, Florida. 

We own additional propert;- and have various property leases and oplions to either lease or plirchjise property tliat are not direcUy 
related lo ourexisting operationsand dial riiay be utilized inthe future in comiection with e.xpansion projects al ourexisting facilities 
or development of new projecis. 
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

Lady Luck Gaming Coiporation (now our wholly owned subsidiat̂ O and several joinl venture partners liavc.been defendants ui die 
Greek Civil Court and die Greek Admutistraiive Court in sintilar lawsuits brought by the counliy of Greece through Us Miitisler of 
Tourism (now Development) and Fuiance. The actions allege tliat the defendants failedio make specified piiymeriis iriconncction 
wiih the ganting hcense bid process for Pairas, Greece. Although il is difficult to deicnitine die damages being sought from die 
lawsuits, the action may scekdariiagesup to that aggregate ainount plus intercsi from thedaleof the action. Tlirough April 27, 2008, 
we liave accmed an estimated liability including iriterest of $8.9 million. The Athens Civil Court of First Inslarice granted J udgmeiil in 
ourfavor and dismissed the civU lawsuil. Appeals to both die Athens Civil Appcjds Court and the Greek Civil Supreme Court have 
been dismissed. The Greek'CivU'Supreme Court denied die appeal on Uie basis dial the Adminislraiive Court is Uie competent court to 
hear die,matter. During Octobcr2005, after Uie admutistiative lawsuil liad been dismissed by both die Athens Administrative Court of 
Fiisl Inslance and llie Alliens Adniiitistrative Court of Appeals oh the basis thai the Adininislrative Court did not have a jurisdiction, 
UieAdiitiitistralive Supreme Couri remanded Ihe ntillerback lo the Athens Administi:ative Appeals Court for a hearing on the merits, 
which couri inMay 2008 rendered judgment inour favor.on procedural grounds and nol on the merits, Wecxpecl the Greek 
government to appeal litis decision 16 die Adminisirative Supreme Court, Thcrefore,tlie outcome of this malienis slill in doubland 
camiot be predicted with any degree of certaint;'.,We intend to continue a vigorous arid appropriate defenseio Ihe.claims asserted in 
this matter. 

We are subject to,ceriain federal, slale and local enviroiunental protection, health and safet;' laws, regulations arid ordinances that 
apply to businesses generally, and are subject to cleanup rcquirenieiitsai ccrtainof ourTacilit ies asa resuli thereof. We have not inade, 
and do not anticipate making; maierial expenditures,,nor do wc aniicipate incurring delays with respect to environmental 'remediation 
or protection. However, iri part because our preseiii and future deveiopment sites have, in some cases, been used as manufacluring 
facilities or otlier facilities.that generate niatcrials thai are required lpbe;reniediated undereiivirpnmeiilaljaws and regulations, there 
can be no guarantee that additional pre-e.xisting conditions will notbe discovered and that wewill not ex-pcrience maierial liabilities or 
delays. 

We are subjcci to various contingencies and litigation madcrs and liavc a numberof unresolved chtinis. Aldiough the tiltimaic liabiiily 
of tliese contingencies, dtis litigation and Uiese claims caimol be delenitincd al litis time, we believe Uiiil Uiey will not liave a maierial 
adverse effcci ori our corisolidaled financiiil position,;resiilts ofoperalions oreash flows. 

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS 

Tlierewere no matters submitted to a vote of pur securit;' holders during the fourth quarter ofthe fiscal year 2008. 
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PART II 

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTR/VNT'SjCOMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER 
PURCHASES OF EQUITV SECURITIES 

(a) 
A'Inrket Information. OUT coinmon stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under die s;'tnbol ''ISLE". Tlie 
following table presents Uie high and low closing sales prices for our coimnon stock as reported by die NASDAQ Global 
Seleci Mariccl forthe fiscal periods indiciiled. 

First Qiiane"r,(lhro.uflh July 8/ 2008),...;.; ^«i£,$: '̂ ^ti 

High, IMW 

E>-:7><:t4:2C 

-:r~.—?•—^— T 

11:57 ;$ .6.62 
FiscaljYcar Ending April 27.̂ 2008 >.. - • • 
Fourtli Quarter ^ .,.,,..,•• — _— . 
ffluixlOtiarterJ-^A^'^- > - v^ -^.^j- '^-.' v - > '-.-^ '̂ )/̂ '̂ S-^f:2Mi2^^J,r^^-rL .̂'iOlOOJ 
Second Quarter ^2r.44 18.17 

^ Fiist'OiiarterV-.'^--"',^v-'^\^ ^.•'>'^ "-.-̂ tf'̂ •:g^ >^r--^^-''=25;56;.>4 ^̂ - :̂ ' v̂ "r2l-:51 

•"'Xi^fa^.t.f-•^>}-4^'^-' . j ' ^ ^ ' ^ •','?;'^i Fisc;iLYear;Eriaiii.gApril-29.-2Q07.'..,-;-4.v;, ': ^'.;v .; «_, 
FourtliQuiirtcr , . . ; . . - • .$^ ^_.̂ 29.07_ S. _., /24J() 

Second Quarter ' 25.25' . 19:30^ 
-piist Quarter-;''-'^ ---^.-•^v • < ; "̂ - ^̂  •̂̂ ;g ....^•:^^. ''.fi\n-.>4'?'^3!OL-i{.V^/: -•,.23.32-f 

ii. Holders of Common Stocks As of July'8, 2008,nlierewere approximalcly 1,421 holders ofrecord ofour coriurion stock. 

iii. Dividends. We have never declared or paid any dividends with respect to our common stock and tlie currcni pxilic;' of our 
board of directors is to.retain earnings to provide, for llie growthof ourcompair^. In addiiion, our seniorsecured credii 
faciiit;' and ihe indentures goventing our 7% senior subordiiiaied notes lintit qur abilil- to pay dividciids. See "item 
8-Finmicial Statements aiid Supplemcniar;' Data-Isle ofCapri Casiiios. Inc.-Notes to Corisolidaled Financial 
Slateriienls—Note 7." Consequently; no cash dividends are expected tobc paid^on our conmion siock in Uie foreseeable 
fiiture. Further, there can benoassuranceihal ourcurrenl and proposed operations will generate die funds needed lo 
declare a cash dividend or tiial vve wililiavelcg;Uly available funds to pay dividends. Inatldiliorc.we may fmid part ofour 
operatioris inthe future from indebtedness, die tenns of vvhich may prohibri or restrict die payinerit of cashdiyidends. Ifa 
holderof conunon stock isyisqualilied by the regulatoiy authorities from owning such sliares, such holder will noi be 
permittixl to receive any dividends vviUi respeci lo such stock. See "Item 1-Business-Govenuiiental Regulations." 

iv. Equity Compensalion Plans. The fqdpvying table provides inlbmiation aboui securities aulhorized for issuance under our 
1993 and 2000 Employee Stock Option Plans, and.our Deferred Bonus Plan, for the fiscal year 2008. 

Pl.in i'lilogoiy 

(a) 
Nuniber of sccuriiies lo be 

issuttl upon eieitriscof 
oui.stnniling options, wnrrant.s 

nnd rights 

(b) 
Weigh ted-a\ cm ge evcrrisr 

pHcc of oiii.sianiltng oplions, 
iviirranis aiiil riglits 

Numberof securities iTmnining available for 
riiturTissuani^uniler(t]uit>'compensalion plans 

(eicluding securities rencctrd in column (a)) 

Equity compensation 
plans riot approved 
by securilv holders 

iM&.cE!I5!SZ:.:u£S^2i^® i50;043j 
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(b) Issuance of Unregistered Securities 
None. 

(c) Purchases ofour Common Slock 
Tlie. following table provides infomiation related to our purcliases of Isle of Capri Casinos. Inc. conunori stock: 

Peritxl 

'Januarv^28. •2008,toFebmaiY'-24.-2008r"r-
Febmai\' 25,2008.toiMareh 30, 2008 . 
March 31:2008;io April27;-2008 ..•: f,-v.:;?-
Toial 

Tolal Numberof 
Shares 

Tolal Purchased as 
Numberof Avenige Part of Publicly 

Shares Price Piiid. .Announced 
Purchased per Share Programs. (1) 

:;.vc. ••^j>^.';>^^A'-,^:y7\•$.J^,^;%;>.,^V.•^^^-'"''>^^ "• —-•'•'•- -
—; — — 

•v'^. % * - ' . i ; , , ^ ' ' ' f - . s ^ S ? v ; - % ^ - ^.,.. .• ..'i' . r ^ > ^ > ^ •: . / •". \ - r ^ , •'..-

Maximum 
Numberof 

.Shares that May 
^el He 

Purchased 
UnderIhe 

Pn>gram.s (1) 

' ^ .'" L 104.208,1 
1.104.208 

- -.'I- 1,104:208 j 
1,104,208 

(1) Wc liave pureliased our conunon slock midcrstockrepurcliase programs. These programs, allow forihc repurcliase of uplo 
6.000,060 sharcs: To dale, we hiivc piucliascd 4,895,792 sliarcs of bur coimnon slock underihcse programs. These prograins liavc no 
approved doUar amounls, nor e.xpiration dales. 

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE^TOTAL RETURN* 
Ainong Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc;, The NASDAQ Composite Index 

And Tiie Dow Jones US Gariibling Index 

';;^^-. O 

,̂ '.--̂  ' ' • - .o 

" - • - £ i . 

- • - - - • - d - -

4/27/03? 4/25/04 4.'24/»5' 4/33/OC 4/29/07- 4/27;t>8 

•e—•• ' I s le 'o f .Capr i Casinos., Inc. — - l i : — N A S D A Q C o m p o s f t e ..'.:(£>•.:. Dovv J o n e s U S G a n i b l i n g 

* $ 100 invested on 4/27/03 In slock or 4/30/03,In Index-lncludiiig reinvesunent of dividends. Indexes calculated on monUi-end basis. 
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA. 

Tlie following table presenls onr selecled consolidated finjincial data for the, five most recent fiscal years, vvhich is derived from our 
audited consolidated financial siatemenis and the notes to diosc statements. Becau.se die data in litis table does not provide all of Uic 
data coniained in our consohdated financial statcnients, including llie-relaled notes, you siioutd read"Managemenl's Discussion arid 
Analysis of Fiiuincial Condilion and Rcsultspf Operations.'" our cpnsqtidated financial siaieifieiiis. including the related notes 
contained elsewhere,in this document and other dala,wehave_filed with ihc U.S.Securilies and E.xchange Commission. 

Sisitemcnt of Operalions 
April 27, 

2008 

Fbral ^'ear Ended (1) 
.April 29, AprU30, April 2-1, 

2007' 2006 - 20()5 
- (dollars in millions, excepi per share data) 

Casino $ 1 , 1 2 1 . 9 $ i.015.6 $ 1.004.1 $ 957. 
Rbbms';; : •^'-^l^-;"i;---rv^^^T'"^r,^4:;?a.^^i^4ir^^ -^49.6^7^"^^'o7.0^r- ...•̂  ..33; 
Pari-mutuel commissions and fees 19; I 20.0 20.5 20. 

April 25. 
2004 

Revenues; 
948,9 

C!?^'Fg6d;'ba%rage%»jp^^^^ ^'-..w^^ '.•-..^•a'Ws^^xWl^^Z^ 
Grossrevenues 1,327.0 1.215:9 . 

r3n''^"Tes^rbniotionai;allow;mce^ 
Net revenues 1,125.4 1,001.4 

20,3 
J. 125,9-̂  y-:^ .1-24:9 

.6 1.187.5 1.135. 
:(200:2): 
" 987.3 947. 

1.122 9 
,^Ci l IS 

939.5 
.Operating expenses:; •.- ..̂ : -.: •̂ ^ '.s i V ^ ^ , ••. •̂ y.t̂ .-î ,:.:̂ ^ • - .^Z. ^^^h-'SL . .'.J. _\.:'"- ,•--_••- / 

Casino 163.3 159:5 151:9 157.3 
r r T G S i i g i a x e s • ;:^>-'^ ^>^^'-'-;.-^. y ' ^ :\-^K'^^^^C^^mB^ î"̂- ••219:'4> 

Rooms 12.0 

- 150.8 
37^"'207!8ll ,215.i-

9.8 S.3 7:5 
f J;Pan-iiiuluel i- ' •'••• ..:;-

Food, beveragg and other 
I; .•'̂ AlarinefandXaâ ^ '" 

45:-5 ' ~ 32:3 
16.4 r i5:5-

7:5 

, Maiketing and adntiiiislralivc 
2Cprpdraie:aaj deyelopnieni,; 

r y j ^ - '. -.n^^^'': ̂ "̂ '•'"'MoTWĴ . ̂ 60:2;-̂ j 
269.3 

•757:2^-

31.5 29.9 -26:5 
'57:0-' ,56:3 i ^ i j O 

'.-V^-'.̂ .. ' j > \ ' ; ' . ' _ . 

_290.6 246.3 236.9. 
57:8 •; 41 ;0 

232.6 

Valiiationandotlier.charges 
ijf I Preopening" &"'•;'•, ' " ' -' 

85.2 8,5- .13:4 4.1 

Depreciation and amortization 
- 1 - ^ 3 : ^ '6:5/s; •<-''• 

1'36,1 
r - ::-..̂ To"tardpcraUngcxpciiscs:.-'-:. ^̂  ^ . /•-.>- ^••"^^^^I•i6LW?^]Je ^••935:6'̂  ' . 

99.5 88.8 
i89I:0^.-. 

•96;3 

80 
.844, 
103 

SS13 

Operating income (Ioss)_^ . (36.0) J*^-^ 
U TintcresIexDc'iise ~ T -• --. - ^^TT. > ^'^^Tr'^^Tp^fl09l3fN-v. • ^•-^'\(89r2)'''-'^.':'TiPIl6-:3t'^r^'.^ ': C65:0); 

Interesi income 3.8 7:5 2.7 _ 1.6 

76.9 
- '-806-21 

133.3 
TZMM 

20.7 34.3. 
-~c—'—• f •-•; 

Ffg^lSoimu-lv extinguisltineni'offl;bl^"'- '•t'f"^>:Ji^^H'i5^^'X.^^'^T^-4•-^^^^^ 'Cc.'_[(2A^ ^ '•>- >^'f5;3); 
Iiicome (loss) from coiUiniiing operalions before 

ihc<)iiie taxes aiidjninority inierest (JJ^^)' ,(15.9) 
fT/• IncoiiicHr^lx-nefi 1 (provisioii)• "~^: -.•: '-^"".̂ •§W^^PW '̂'̂ 6A'̂ $''7^^~f • ^-I'Cl^iT^ 

Minoriiy tiiteresi . ' (4.9) (3.6) 
lnc6nie'(lossMrmiicontiniiihgo't^raUons .>̂  :" •': ^C^^^?^'gF^"(96!9)'^0 -T^(21v3)'::" 
Income from discontinued operations, net of income 

0 5 

49.8 

^\1 
(5, 

mm 
CIO.O) .8:67-' 1̂7:6 ESMl 

22 

Source: ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS INC, 10-K. July 11. 2008 Pov.-srf:J by Momingsiar* Documenl Rftsearch^^ 

http://Becau.se


• ;Fiseal Vear Ended (1) 
April 27, April 29, April 30, .April 24. April 25. 

.Si;)te~nient orOpemllons Data (cuntiiuied): 200!̂  :2007 2006^ 2005 20U4 
(dollars iu niillions, e:(c'epl persharc data) 

I n c o i n g i ^ g S o m m a S i ^ : ^ ^ 1 
Basic __^ . _ ^ _ _ ^ 

[^J11nconi^(lo"ss)^frcu^^ 6)il$ilE(().7Q)"i$^ ; •\ 0:-29'., ;$.^ "^^',0 j 9 ; ,$^,?;_0,93;^j 
Incouie from discontinued operations — 0.55 0.34 0.07 0.01 

F'Diltitgâ r̂̂ •̂ .•̂ •̂• --.̂ -̂ - '^ . ' ' ; .^}f ' . . '^r '7~r^ww^'^^^ '^^-^^^ •'''^'^ - ' ^ ^ ' - ^ - ' ^"'•-'''^ 
^ J ncome (loss) from co.ntmuing operations .$ (3:_1_6) $ _ (0,70) $ 0.28 $ 0.57 $ . t̂ -90 

F VilncQinefromdiscontiiiued^operatioiis, 'j;^^ , 55;;-^;.';, '̂, ;̂ '̂,Q'.-'J2-_; -̂ .-,-•,7'-:. -^-^I.,..:• : ,x ' ' ̂ :,^-^^ Ji 
Net Income (loss) $ (3.16) $ (0.15) $ * 0.60 $ 0.64 % 0,91 

£:2£̂ ^̂ --̂ •V'̂ -̂ '̂ '̂;•--'•> ^:-^l^^:-i '--^.^.-^^^^l^irT^^T"^^^ ^ •- • :•-"••-, '• 1:J3 
Other Data: • . • 
Ncticash providedbr(used^^^^ y "̂ ^ >% ^ ' ^ ' > ^ ' ' ^ ^ ^ ! ' ^ I ^ W ^ • ' ^ 3 : ^ V f y ' : ^ . r-r)^r '̂ ' '̂ /"V"-."-" '"•'• - -^^. , ;^ 

Operaiing aclivities- • $ 133,4 $ 70.9 $ ,. ,86:7 $ J.69,6 $. 174.0 
niivestingactivities.- ' ' ^ : ; . ; ^ ^ > - ' ' ^ :ZFZ7~: i^r^ .02A) $:.kj\Al9ia%^^^^ J-(I59:9J1 
- Financing aclivities- . . ^ '^^.^, ^ ''^^:^.,^ - .̂̂ "̂  ,^.. ^ -̂̂  ^. . .-^'^-
JEapitaliexpenditui^s^?^^"^- '_.\^^'^'--;%'f!'^^$'^r^^g90l5J^ -.̂ '487.9: S T T n T H e g 

.g; ; i^t ini^Data:f 'v , . - ^ - ' - ^ - r ' : : • . • ••' ^--"'V'̂ ^ :>• ^ ~ ~ ^ ^ ^ ^ " T T ^ - - - ^ ' - - # H^ - -' \^- . .• '̂  " ^ ^ T ^ 
Number of sliJt niacltiiies (2) '^P^^ ' 14.484- " '12!875 . 12.672 I2J02 
NuinbeVoftable-ganies,(2y >- -^ - " -'.,-^^^^^:.:--^/,-. ' '463:'^^T;^F^370i^^ • •: • . -483^:-^ ••• - 485 \ : < - ^ - 2 9 S n 
Number ofhotel roonis (2) 3,107 2,672 , , , „ , 2,652 _ 2.129 2,082 
'Avcrageidaily 6a:iipancy~rale.^2):r " ;-': -̂ ^ ' ' •"^•.W JJ^2%l}:::^'2l9il%^'' "^^^81.7% ; ; :84,8% . .\^ " : 8 3 ^ 

•Buiaiicc^ShccVOataT^ "-:••.-; • ^< '•' ̂ '^'~'''^~^~^J^'^^^~^^ - -x^^TC^-''-^'' - .^ i^ ' '^ - •*• - '•'• • '•-"', • -T" '̂̂ "'̂ "" -••••=': -.-x^" 1 
Cash and casli equivalents . $ JLLS • L$-_.,. _, 1884 $, ,. 121.0 $ 146 5 $ 134.6_ 
Total assets ,̂.,: y • ^ -: "V " ^ > . -""•""' ; ,-^1s?vri^974.f ;f'-71lQ75t7i:f$.;::-l;877.7 __'$_. "'L735:j'; $>;__-fBjT^d' 
Long-tcmrdebt, including current portion $ f . 5 0 7 3 ^ h418.0- $; i:219.l $ 1.153.8 $ 1.086.5 
"Siockholders'̂ equity .' ' ^ K ^ ^ : - \ y 7 % . ' --• •£ .̂y-$ht> tt.^-'-i88P!^$iT:b81i8.^ S;^^^ ••^80:-2;-:-$j7Tr":260.1;".$'•.: .̂  ••••238;--3?̂  

* Excludes: destroyed BUo.xi casino barge of $7.4 ntillion in fiscal 2005 and $36,8 million in fiscal 2006, and Biloxi lemporarv' 
casino of $37,9 nuUion in fiscal 2006 and discontinued operations of Vicksburg and Bossier City 

(1) Our fiscal yearended April 30, 2006 includes 53 weeks while allother fiscal yearsinclude 52 weeks. Tlie operaiing results 
and data from continuing operations presented for fiscal years prior to fiscal year 26o5'are not comparable to oiher fiscal 
years presentedbecauseihey do not include the operating rcsiilisof the Isle-Our Lucaya, which vve opened on 
Dcccinber 15, 2003, the Blue Cltip-Dudlev.wltich we acquired on November 28,- 2003, tlie Blue Gflup-Wolverliampton, 
witich wc opened on April 22.2004. and the Blue Cltip-Walsall, vvliich vve opened on September 23,20CW. The results of 
fiscal years 2004-2007. rcflect Bossier City, Vicksburg and Colorado Grande-Cripple,Creekas disconUnued operations. Wc 
opened new casino operations in Pompano, Waterloo, and CTpyentry in April 2t)p7, June 2007, and July 2(ii07, respectively. 
We acquired our casino operations in Camthers\ille in June 2007. 

(2) Tlie results of fiscal years 2004-2007 refiect Bossier Cilv', Vicksburg and Colorado Grande-Cripple Creek as discontinued 
operations. 
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION /VND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF 
OPERATIONS 

You'should read the following discussion together with ihe financial .statements, including the related notes and the olher financial 
information in ibis Form 10-K. 

Executive Overview 

Wc arc a leading developer, owner and operatorof branded gaming facilities and rclalcd lodging and entertainment facditics in 
regional markets in die United States aiid inteniatiorially. We have inientioiially sougiii geograpluc diversity lo lintii Uie risks caused 
by wcalher, regional economic difiicultics and local gaming aulhorilies and regulations. We currcnlly operate casinos in Mississippi, 
Louisiana, Missouri, Iowa, Colorado and Florida. Inlemationally we operate casinos in Coventry, Dudley and WoIverliamptoiL 
Eriglantl and Freeport; Grand Bidiamas. We also operale a hamcss racing thickat our ciisino in Florida. 

Our operaiing results liave been alTected by write-offs and oUierA'aluatipn charges, the acquisition or opening of new praperiies, 
dispositions of properties, losses fromthe early exiinguislimerit of debt, pre-opening cxijcnses and increases in competition. This 
Management's Discussion and AJiaiysis of Financial Condition and Results ofOperations should be read in conjunction vvith and 
giving consideration to.lhe following; 

Write-offs andiOther'Valuation Charges - As a result of continuing Iosses,-a review of expected future operating trcnds and the 
current fair values brourlpng:lived assets in England, .vve recorded ah impairment charge of S78.7 million rclatedip long-lived asseis 
of our uk, operations as ofpur 2008 fiscal year end. The results from operations for the fiscal year 2008 also include $6.5. ntillion of 
charges related to the tennination ofour plans lo develop a new casino in west Harrison County, N'lississippi aiid the'cance 11 ation of 
conslmction projects in Davenpon, lowa and Kansas City, Missouri. 

Opening of New-Properties - During fiscal year 2008, ouroperaling results were inipacicd by the opening ofthe slol ganting facility at 
our Pojnpano Park facility in April 2007, ihe acquisition of our CaruUiersvjlIe, Missouri casinoin June 2007 and die opening ofour 
Walerioo, Iowa and Coventry, England casinos in June 2007 and July 2007, respectively. 

Acqiiisilion of Minority Interest - On Janiuuy 27, 2008, we acquired the 43% minoriiy interest inourBlack Hawk, Colorado casino 
properties for $64.8 million. 

Losses from Early Extinguishment of Debt - W'e recorded a tot;d or$I5:3 mtition in losses associated wilh the early extinguislimenl pf 
debt during fiscal year 2008, including a $9.0 ntilUon call prentium paid to retire our 9% Seitior Subordinated Noltis, and $6.3 million 
of deferred fuiance costs associated vvith the retired debl instruments. 

Pre-bpeiiihg Expenses - In fiscal year 2008. wc opened bur-newWalerioo and Coventiy properties. In late fiscal year 2007 vve opened 
Uie'sloi gaming facilil)' at our Pompano Park properiy. For fiscal years 2008 and'2007, vve,recorded pre-opening expenses related to 
these properties in the amounts of $6,5:million and $13:6 million, respecliveiy. 

Increa.sed Competiiion -Following liie impaci of Hurricane Kalrin;i in the faU of 2005, our Mississippi properties in Bilo.xi and 
Natchez e-xperieiiced strong revenue grow th as a resultof limiied coinpetition on lie Gulf Coast. Since Uiai time, the Gulf Coasl lias 
seen rccovcA' in casino developmeni wluch, combined wiih die closure of tic Biloxi/Ocean Springs bridge tlirough Noveniber 1, 
2007, lias significantly rcduced otir markel sliare in Bilo.xi from their artificially high post-Katrina levels. Patron counts have 
decreased at our Natchez propertv' as gaming patrons who'were displaced by hurricanes liayc returned to the Gulf (Toast. In Louisiana, 
our Lake Cliaries propertv',,experienccd Itiglier gaming rcvenues in fiscal year 2007 due to Uie closurc ofcompetitors" facilities as a 
result of Hurricane Rita. Competition has rcopenetJ wluch has rcsulled in decreased ganting rcvenues al our Lake Cliaries propertv' in 
fiscal year 2008. Our Qaad Cities (Beltendoif and Davenport) and Marquette properties liaye e.xperienced incrcased competition in 
many of their feeder markels, vvhich lias continued to have a negative iinpacion'gaming revenues al these properties. 

Nalchez Flooding -Onr \ia\c\\ez property was closed due to fiooding for the last fourteen days of fiscal year 2008. 

Impaci of Smoking Restrictions - Our properties in Black Hawk have been negatively impacted by a smoking bah witich wenl into 
effect on Januaiy I, 2tX)8. Our Quad Cities properties liave benefited from a similar smoking ban affecting competing casinos in 
Illinois. 
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Impact ofthe Economy- Our properties are subject to llie impaci of general economic conditions. Increases in gasoline prices and 
oUier macro econontic factors may impaci the frequencv' of our customers* visits and a decline in econontic conditions iri niany ofour 
markets niay also affect our potenlial customers'disposable incoine. 

Results of Operations 

Our results of operations for the fiscal years ended April 27, 2008, April 29, 2007*aiid April:3p, 2006 reflecl the consolidated 
operations ofall of oursubsidiariesand include the following properties: Lake Ckirics, Bilo.xi, Lula, Nalchez, Kansas Gliiy, Boonville, 
Cartitjic rsv ilie, Bettendorf Marquette, Waterloo, Davenport, Black Hawk, Colorado Centra! SlaUon-Black Hawk, Our Luraya, Blue 
CliipDudley, Blue Chip-Wo Iverliaiiipton,, Coventn', and Pompano Park, Fiscal years 2007 and 2006 results liave been reclassified to 
rcficct Vicksburg and the Bossier Citv' wluch werc sold on July 3,1, 2006, as discontinued operations. 

Our fiscal year ends on the last Sunday in April. Tltis fiscal year convention crcates more comparabilitv' of our quarterly operations, by 
generally having an equal numberof weeks (13) and weekend days (26) in each quarter Periodically, Uus comxntion necessitates a 
53^weck year. The fiscal years ended April 27,2008 and April 29, 2007 were 52-vveek years. The fiscjU yearended April 30,-2006 
vvas a 53-week year.. 

Webelieve that our Itisiorical results ofoperalions may not be indicative ofpur future rcsultsof operations because of the. substantial 
present and e.xpecied future increase in competition forgaining custoniers in each of pur imuiiets, as new gaming faciliiies open and 
existing gaining facihties expand or enhance iheir facilities. We believe llml our operating results may be niaterially affecled by the 
economy and weather 

ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 
(In thousands) 

(in thousands), 

Mississippi'^ 
Biloxi 

April 27, 
2008 

Nel Rcvenues 
I'weal ^'ear Ended 

April 29, 
2007 

Apri i 30, 
2006 

April 27, 
2008 

Operating' Lncoiuc"(Loss) 
Fiscal Vear Knded 

April 29, 
2007 

April 30, 
2006' 

- T T 
:-, 5 • •!'•:-

4- • ^_-„, 

LNglchczJ -^l\:-^,[ 
Lula 

90,586_ $ 147.825 $ ^00-790 .$ 
j : i t o ! 8 6 4 ^ 2 I I E S - 1 S S J 

83,068 
^35:707/ '-S 

(3,538) $: 
7 ' ; 4 1 2 ^ 

75,399 85;731 1.034 

J6.948 $_ 
. 9;391 - -
• 4.231 

28:143 
1- ,12;230' 
" =12̂ 089 

i.'Mississippi^TbtalL.J.^f - : . . . \ . \ ^ - 2 0 L 6 9 2 ; A , "-̂ ^ 27i;757:^-^71^7232:656:., ' -̂; .. 14 :908^^ ' •40,570 ; " 1 7 5 2 4 ^ 
' Louisiana - . ' 
j r i a k e s ^ l m l e s ^ y . T ^•r.2^::.-^^159.470:-s>^<^170:75l^^^ -.^ y22f)l^. . . ": T9i952^ 
Missouri •__ _ 

EZEiSMyEES2II5ZIIJ[ISPgr5I^^ 
Boonville ' Z2£L*2 dU '̂̂ C" 74.519 19,485 17.884 17,060 

,-26!857i^r : ^ - s ' ^ ^ ^ ^ ' - : ' ^ . ' ^ ' ^ J^^T? "̂̂ ^7^^2^574:̂ :7^ C'^ "^^'•''•- - - ' ~ ' ^ ^ 
182.303 163,425 162.528 29,044 • 25,142 

27,342 

l-!earulhersvillcfl)>^^ = ̂  , 
Missouri Total 

lowa-^.^ -•It'^V-:^%:.-'." . r - \ ^ ' ^ f z y t ^ ^ ^ ^ ? ^ ^ ' ^ F ^ 7 7 T ' ^ 

Benendorf 92.429 87.699 ' 97.154 18.967 ,17.120 23,320 

Marquene „ _ 32.968 "^37,593 - 42,536 : 4.380 4:802 7.424 

lowaTotal 242.728 185.775. 208,697 34.311 29,091 40.850 
Black Hawk/Colorado 
-!cntnif Slation-^ ". "'̂ f̂̂  

Florida 
^^r . - . c - 1 4 4 ^ 2 7 ^ " ^ ,153-7/18|"^^j^^^63]^"T2^":\ v.^30.81 W\' ' ^ . 27.894' - . -j >: .>:,36:i32J 

"^Pon7naii6r(2)^:^::-^^^'t '^ ^^Z1 fJOMS'P!^-^30l659j^'^^^2¥7"Kv >^^^^^,749)'^__,- ^(20l308) •: ... "- (2:550^ 
liiteniational ___,^_ .„_—__ ' 
[ 3 i u e C h i p . ^ ^ : ^ I ^ 3 S S I S ! I ! 2 S 9 ^ ^ 3 5 ^ ^ J ^ ^ 

Covemn-(2) 8.227 — —^ (98.4^) (4.135)., ( 1 , ^ ) 
[^tir:iJuc^aCb^^'^'%IV^/->^J^ "^:r^(835)^:, .̂% ^7n92\-- _-:\r!T2;20l̂  

Intemational Total 33210 25,675 33.570 (100,883) .775 _ 0^.499) 
-C6rporale:aiid-OUiefIF:^^7]?~r7 '̂̂ '̂ ?7^-59^^^^^^^ 7):. f- ' I^^p^f J7)1 

$ 1,125,352 $ 1.001,394 $ 987,359 $ (36,080) $ 65,826 $ 96:472 

(1) Reflects results since the June 2007 acquisition effective date. 
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(2) Waterioo, Pompano, and Coventi>' opened for operations in June 2007, April 2007 and Jul>' 2007, respecliveiy. 

Note: Tlie table excludes our Vicksbuig and Bossier City properties wlticli have been classified as discontinued operations. 

Fiscal Year 2008 Compared lo Fiscal Year 2007 

Revenues 
Revenues for the fiscal vears ended 2008 and 2007 are as follows; 

(in thousiinds) 

Rcvciuies::^:''" ;^^ • <-f ' ^ ^ - - - ^ i 
Casino 

f,. Roonis ' •'-• " ,' ••''-• ' '• •• Z'^ 
Pari-mutuel conunissions and fees 

/ Food, bevcnijie andodier-:- r̂ .r- ""-' 
Gross revenues. 

V :'V.-LesslErroinotionalallow^nces'•} 
Net revenues 

$ 

—-"rr 

__i l i ; 
$ 

FbcalYear Kiidcd 

April'27. April 29. 
200K 201)7 

• :^ •'••-.•"^T' U r • - ' . - , ' ., > - - ^ 4 * . > ' j V 

i:i21.86() $ 1.015.629 $ 
• ^^;-.49;498;v-V''•V '̂ ^̂ ^ 49:584; 

19.096 - 20.004 ' 
::^.\..\ -•a36.48I'-' \C'-U"-^'>-130;635'" ,V 

1,326.935 1,211852 
' - ' a-20i:583V ,• ,."- ^ y (214:458)' . 

1,125,352 % 1,001394 

Viirinnce 

106,231 
•̂ V. - 786) • 

(908) 
%:: • :^:5.846T 

111,083 
•K f •:12;875- , 

123,958. 

'Percentage. 
Variance 

10.5% 
• ^ --0.2%'| 

-4.5% 

9.1% 
- ^ .. :6.o%! 

12.4% 

Casino Revenues - Casino revenues increased $106.2 million, or. 10:5%; compared to fiscal year 2007. "Our increased casino rcvenues 
vvere;priniarily a result of the opeitingjaracquisitionof new casino properties in Cariidiersville, Walerioo, Pompano aiid CovenU>', and 
iiicreasoj casino revenues at Bettendorf driven by the opeiting ofour new hotel in May 2007. Casino revenues from ourncvv casino 
opeiationsvverc $224.9 millioii for the fiscal:^'ear,2008..Sariicpropcrty'casinoTevenues decreased,$118.7 htillibriToî  Uie fiscalyear 
2d08.;Tliis iricludcd decreased casino revenues at BiIo.\i'of $62:7:iuillion for the fiscal year2008, due to increased competition and 
posiriiurricane.nonnalizationandat Lake Charles of $11.1 million for'liie fiscal.year 2008, dueto post-luirricane normalization and 
SI 1.5 million at our Black Havyk operations priinarily due to pUuincd rc'diiclioris in otircompIimenlarv'"allovvances arid the impact of a 
state smoking ban at casinos effective Januarv' 2008. 

Rooms Revenue - Rooms revenue decreased SO. I ntillion, or 0.2%, for the fiscal yeari2008,,compared to die fiscal ycaf'2007. Tliese 
revenues decreased in total at our Bilo.\i and Lula properties by' $5.1 million for the fiscal year 2008, primarih' related to increased 
coinpeiition and post-hurricane nonnalization and Uie closure since October of over 170 rooms in Lula for repair. Rooms revenue 
increased $5.4 million in lowa driven by the new hotel tower in Bettendorf arid the openingof our Waterloo facility. 

Pari-mutuel Conunissions and Fees - Pari-muluel comnussions eariied alPompano Park forllie fiscal year 2008 decreased $0.9 
ntiIlion,,6r 4.5% compared to the fiscal year 2007 due prinuirily lo decreiised wagering on simulcast races. 

Fodd, Beverage and Other Revenues - Food, beverage and other revenues increased $5.8 million, or 4.5%, forthe fiscal year 2008, 
compared to the fiscal year 2007. Our increased food! beverage and oUier revenues werc prinuirily a result oftlie opening or 
acquisitionof new casino properties in CanithersviUe, Walerioo, Pompano and Coventiy. Considering the acquisilion or operting of 
new properlies for witich our food, beverage and oilier revenues increased $24.6 million for die fiscid ycar.2008,- saine'propert>' food 
beverage and other rcvenues decreased SI8,2 inillion for the fiscal year 2008: Tltis included decreased food, beverage and oUicr 
revenues at Biloxi of S9,2 million for the fiscal year 2008,,due tojncrcascd competition aiid post-hurricancnonnalizaiion, andat Lake 
Cliaries of $4:1 ntillion for Uic fiscal year 2008, priinarily due to the collection of $2.2 inillion in business inlerruption proceeds 
refiecled in'the prior year and post-hurricane nomiaii7.atiori: 

Promotional .Allowances - Promotion;ti allowances, which arc made up of compllmenlaries/cash points and coupons, are rewards lliat 
vve give our loyal customers to encourage them to continue,lo pairoitize our properties. Promotional allovvjmces decreased $I2;9 
inillion, or6:0%, for die fiscal year 2008, comparcd to tlie fisc-U year 2007, Considering ihe acquisition or openiiig of new properties 
for vvhich our promotional allowances increased $20.1 niiUion forthe fiscal year 2008, same property promotional allowances 
decreased $33;0 million for fiscal year-2008. Decreases in such proniotioiial allowmices refiect decreases in gross rcvenues at cenain 
of our properties withBi_lo.\i accountingforS18.2 ntillion of the decrease for the fiscal year: 2008, due to incnsased competiUon and 
post-hurricane normalization. Our decision to reduce certain inariteting incentives to our less profitable cuslomer segments has also 
reduced our overall proinotional allowances. 
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Ofjeraling Expenses 

Operating expenses for the fiscal years 2008 and 2007 are as follows: 

Fiscal Year Ended 
April 27, April 29. I'erccniagc 

(ill flimivanU.<ii) • ' 200S 2007 • Variance Variance 

0Deratina'e.N-Denl^777^7T^.^ "-'>S..-.- -.:--V -~^J7rr.^Jti:.^^m '̂'.S^^^ '̂Ms^^ -^-vUX ':'' '• r •,- - ^ ^ m ^ F 7 > ^ 
Casino $ 163.250 $ 159,534 $ 3,716 2J% 

f?Gaming:SsT'w.^ ,<7" •'•&-: r ' ' \ r - : - } . •\^^2^^im7}K.:i^i^4MMlOAOA^. -..<^7;998?\..'',^_:^j37?l%j 
Rooms 12031" • 9,811 -2,220 22.6% 

ntirnnituelxjorninissiofis aiid fees?:'"" ^~-- ^ 16:834; J 4 V : . : C 1 ^ 42 \ : t ::}2TA9P~~~^^7^'^^'M, 
Food."beyerageandoUier "^^^^38; .,3^-262 _. '3,276 41.2% 

rMariiieandfacUitiesi^ V^ •̂ ^ .̂: . ' • - ' " - :̂::'̂ 68.044? .v^^.j^'>:60,174:.T. .... ;.J:870-. .̂ -:_; -:13:l%] 
Maritetiitg'and adniiiustiatiye^ 290.591 '. :269,-279 ." ?i;312 7,9% 

5Corporaiemiddevelopmem^ ' - . ^ ,.• f ' ~ - - ^ r ^ { ^ ' ^ t ' ' ^ ^ ^ ' ' : ^ ^ \ l .-.i. •-:(8:243) ' ^ '-14.4"/^ 
Write-offs and oUier valuaUon cliarges 85.184. . 8,466 , . ,76.718 906.2% 

r.pre^DcS'^f^':'^''^^''^^ "'^Wsf^^^k^^n^mmT T'^- '-^' imw'"' ' '^ '^^^^ 
Depreciation and amortizalion ' 136:127 99,506 ^^:^^\. .- -̂ •̂̂ °̂ 

Fr^otal-operatui.g:e.\-pe,iises.<'̂ \' P'- . ^"$)\^lTr6lT432T^I$^>'^ir3^ .:"'̂ 225r864" .̂'"-•,'" '̂."^Tî  

Casino - Casino operalinge.\penscsincrcased'$3.7 irtiUion, or2.3%, forfiscal'year.2008 coinpared tofiscal year 2007. Considering 
the acquisition or opeiting of new properties for vvhich our casino e.vpenses iricreased.$27.0 ntillion for fiscal year 2008, same propert>' 
casino expenses decreased $23,3 ntillion for fifscal year 2008: Overall casino expenses for fiscal year 2008 compared to fiscalyear 
2007, decreased in proportion to casino revenue from 15.7% toJ4.6%. 

Gaming Taxes - Slate and local gaining ta.\es increased $78:0 ntillion,:or 37.1%, for fiscal year 2008, as compared lo die prior fiscal 
year. Considering the acquisition or opening of new properties for vvltich our gaining ta.\es increased $92.4 ntillion for fiscal year 
2008, same propert>' ganting ia.\es decreased SI4.4 milhon forfiscal,year;2O08. Tltis decrease in same propeitv' gaining taxes for Uie 
comparative fiscal years 2008 and 2007 corresponds to the reductions in gamiiig revenues. Tlie effeciive rate for gmning ia.\esasa 
percentage of ganting revenue incrcased from 20,7% to 25.7% for the'fiscal ycar.2068, due to an incrcase in the nti.v ofgaming 
revenues derived from jurisdictions widi higher gairiing tax rales including Florida and England, partially offset by decreased gaming 
revenues in Mississippi. 

Rooms - Rooms e.'»;peiise uicreased $2:2,ntillion, or 22;6% for die fiscal year 2008 as compaied to die fiscal year 2007. Roonis 
expense reflects increased room capaciiv' due to Iheopening oflhe Waterioo. property hotel and the,Bettendorf property' hotel 
expansion. Tliese expenses direcdy reiale to ilie cost of providing hotel roonis. A reduction iii conipIiineiitar>' hotel rooms provided 
to our customers also increases our rooms expense as the cost bf rooms expense allocated to casino expense is reduced. 

Pari-mutuel Commissions tmd Fees - Pari-mutuel operating costs ofthe Pompano Part: property, increased $1.5 ntiUion forllie fiscal 
year 2008 comparcd to fisail year 2007. Such costs consist primarily of compensation, benefits,,purses, siniiUcast fees and olher direct 
costs of imck operalions: 

Food. Beverage and Other - Food, beverage and other e.xpenses increased $13.3 million, or,41.2% in fiscal year 2008 as compared to 
fiscal year 2007. Same property food, beverage and olher expenses decreased S2.8 inillion for fiscal year 2008. Tltis decrease in same 
property food, beverage and other e.xpenses for fiscal year 2008,̂ rcnccts rcductions in our food, beverage and oUicr revenues. 

Marine and Facilities - These e.xpenses include salaries, wages andbenefils ofthe marine and facilities departmenis, operating 
expenses of Uieiriarine crews,,insurance, mainlenance of public areas, housekeeping and general inainteiiance of die nvertxiais and 
pavilions. Marine and faciliiies e.xpenses increased $7.9iitiUion,or 13.1%, in fiscal year 2008. Same propertymarine and facilities 
expenses decreased $3.5 inillion for, fiscal year 2008. .Tltis decrease in same propertv' marine and facilities expenses for fiscal year 
2008 as compared to fiscal year 2007 is priinarily llie result of staff reductions ;md labor cost nianagement. 

Marketing and .Administralive - These expenses include salaries, wages and benefits oflhe marketing and sales departments, as vvell as 
proni6tioiis,'direcl mail, advertising, special events* and entertainmenl. Adnuitistrative expenses include 
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administration and human resource department expenses, rent, professional fees andpropertv' taxes. Mariceting and adntinistralivc 
expenses increased $21.3 mdlion, or 7.9%, in fiscal year 2008 comparcd to fiscal year 2007: Same property marketing and 
administrative expenses decreased $32.4 inillion forfiscnl year 2008.-This decrcasc _in saine;properT>'' marketing and administralive 
expenses for fiscal year 2008 refiects'oiu- decision to,.reduce marketing costs to less profitable cusiomcr marketing segments and to 
reduce our,administrative cosis, 

Corporate and Development - During fiscal year 2008. our corporale and development expenses were S49.0 inillipn coinpared to 
$57.2 million fof fiscal year 2007. This ovendl decrease in corponite and^dcyelppnieni e.xpenses is due primarily lo fiscal year 2007 
'including $16.2 ntillion in developmeni expenses primarily associated witli development opportunities in Pittsburgh and Singapore. 

WrileToffs and Other Valuaiion Charges - As a result ofconiinuing losses, a review of expected funirc operating trends and the 
current fair values or our long-lived assets in CovenU>'. England.we liave:'recorded;animpairmenlchargeof$78.0 nullion related to 
long-tived assets of our Covcntrv' operations as ofour 2008 fiscal year end. Additionally, we rccognized S6.5 million in impainneni 
cliarges for fiscal year 2008 primarily related to the vvrite-off of costs related.lo tlic tennination ofour plans to develop a new casino,in 
west Harrison C?ourily, K'lississippi, the write-off bf coiistruclion projectsvvc deciided lo lemtinale in Davenport and Kansas CiK', and 
$0.7milli6iiforimpai_rnieni of long-lived assels at our Blue Chip operations. Duringfiscalyear2007, we recognized an $8.5 million 
impairment charge relaUng lo goodwill ai Lula, Mississippi and real property at Blue Cliip. 

Pre-opening - Pre-opening e.xpenses for fiscal year 2008 included $3.4 miUion,-$2.8 ntillion and $0.3 ntiUion for Walerioo, Coventry' 
and Poinpaho, respectively; PrcKipening expenses during nscaliyear.2007included $10.6million, $2.1 ntillion. aiid $0.9 million for 
our Pompano Park, Coventi}',,and Waterioo properties, respectively.' 

Depreciation ontiAmonizalion - Depreciation and ariiortization expense:for fiscal.year 2008 increased $36.6 ntillion. or 36.8% due 
'priin<uily tp our hotel expaiision at our Beltendoif property: die.acquisition of Canithersviile, iKe opening ofour Waterloo and 
Coventry- properties, and the opeitingpf the slot giuning facility al pur.Ponipano property. Depreciation and amortization expense at 
bur new casiiib properties increased by $33.0 ntillion,conipared to:fiscal.ycar.2007. 

Other Income (Expense). Income- Taxes, Minority Interest. amlDisconlinued Operations 

Inierest expense, inierest income, loss on eariy extinguishment of dcbt,income ta.x (provision) benefit, ntinoritv' interest and incoine 
from,(iisconiinued operations, neiof incoine ta.xes forlhcfiscalyears 2008 and 2007 are as follows: 

Fiscal ^Var ILndcd 
.April 27, April 29, Percentage 

(in Ihousands) 20(^ 20U7' VaiHancc . Variance 

Inici^sl expensel:: 'T •• " y - v : ~ ^ ;-^ l \ % ^ ~ d ^ 9 a m W K ^ ^ £ m . \ 5 ( ^ 
Interest income 3.814 J469 ^_(3-655) •48.9% 
Loss on early extuShnTemoT'dcbilT ''^^~^I^-7f^5\21.A).' ir^ '•':^^-^'JLjr^^' . -(l5l27.4)'^'^T;_100.0%| 
hicoine tax (provision) benefit • ~ 64:820 (1,906) ^ - j^-?^*^ -35'ob.8%-
Mi'nonH^meresLT^':^''''''^ . '?J\t:i6^r^Tl^>^WA%\ 
Income from disconthiued operalions. 

nel of incoine ta.xes — 16,692 (16,692) -100.0% 

liiterest Expense - Inierest expense increased $20.1 ntillion for fiscal year 2008 compared tb fiscal year 2007. .Tltis increase is 
primarily anribulabic lo lugher debl balances under our SeitiorSecured Credit Faciliticsto fund acquisitions, and propert>' and 
equipnient additions. 

Interest Income - During fiscal year 2008, our iriterest'income was $3.8 mdlion comparedto $7,5 million for fiscal year 2007. Tlie 
cliange in iiitcitst income refiects changes in ourinvested cash balances and interest hues. 

Losson Early Exlinguishment of Debt - Our loss included the $9,0 million call prcntiuni from the early redemplion ofour $200.0 
million 9% Seitior Subordinated Notes at 104.5% and a write-off of the relaled defened financing costs of $2.4 million. Additionalh', 
'during the first quarter bf fiscal yciir;2008, we replaced our Febniaiy 2005 Credit Facitity with our July 2007 Credit Facility resulting 
in a loss on early extingiushment of debt of S2.3 million from the write-off of deferred financing costs. Inthe fourtii quarterof fiscal 
year 2008, wc retired the Isle of Capri Black Hawk's Senior Secured Credit Facility resuhing in a loss on early extinguislmient of debl 
of $1.6 ntillion from the write-offofdcfened financing costs. These tran.saclions resulted in a total lossonearlv exlinguislunent of 
debt of $ 15.3 milhon for fiscal year 2008. 
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Income Tax (Provision) Benefit-Our \ncomc tax (provision) benefil is and thus our effeciive incoine lax rale lias been impacied by 
interim changes in our esiiiniile of aimual taxable income for financial staleiiiciii purposes as vvelfas our percentage of peniianen^ 
items in'rclation to such estimated income or loss. Effeciive income la.x rates were as follows: 

I'iscal Vcar Kndi-d 
April 27, April 29. 

2008 - 2007 

Continumgoperalions. ^ '̂•^rz%JvH2-:i:yA'].33%-.' .-. --12;02% 
Total ' 41.33%. 108.20% 

Minoriiy Inleresls - During fiscal year 2008, our minority interest expensevvas $4.9,million, compared to $3.6 inillion for fiscal year 
2007. Minoritv- inierests are rccorded forour minority partner's inieresi in our Colorado. Following our acquisition oflhe remaiiting 
interest in our Colorado operatioiis,.vve no longer record a ntinorily interest for such operations. 

Income From Discontinued OfKrolions- OnJuly 31, 2006, vve completed tlie sale ofour Bossier Citv' and Vicksbuig properties. 
Income from discontinued operalions for fiscal yenr 2007 includes prcla.x operating income of $5:6 ntillion, and we also recorded a 
gain on sale of discontinued operations of $23.3'ntillion during fiscal 2007. Income lax provision for fiscal yeir 2007 was $12.2 
miUion, resulting in income from discontinued operations of $16,7 milliqii. 

Fiscal Year 2007 Compared to Fiscal Year 2006 

Note: Our2006 fiscal year included 53 weeks ofoperalions while our 2007 fiscal year included 52 weeks of operations. 

Revenues 

Revenues for the fiscal vears 2007 and 2006 arc as follows: 

(in Ihousands) 

Rcvehues:L_ii:.;jĵ î J_̂  . ' -• ^ " ' ^ ^ 
Casino 

1 Rooms .it=''-..-. i.„.: ^^^•'^•• 
Pari-muhiercbmmissibhs and fees 

L^Food.ibeverage and other ---̂  ' -; 
Gross revenues 

V ~v .̂ ;L'ess prohiotional aIlovvaiices"-'>i' 
Net revenues 

.> 
$ 

.- .̂ 

• $ • 

Fiscal Vear lindcd 
AprU 29. April 30, 

2007 20fl<i 

'', ' ••' 't ••'-""'•'.)" %% r̂>'̂ s ..'': 
1.015:629' $. I.004.I43 

v,:̂ - }l9:584f .,r.>^;:^36:999^-^ 
20.004 20;534 

• • • I30.635> :.•• f̂ - ';425.857, • 
T.2I5;852 i:i87.533 

/,:,f214M58)y'.%v'..'(200.174)-
1.001.394 $ 987.359 

Percentage 
Variance Variance 

> t , - : . 'w. j ;^ ,_ : : - . . • V . , : -i 

S 11.486 1.1% 
•-- • : . 12,585. •-: , -, ;34.0%( 

(530) -2.6% 
• K - • ^4;77"8-.. -^-;^-^. 3.8%} 

28.319 2.4%. 
- , ::(14.284)_i - -7:1%) 

14,035 1.4% 

Casino Re\'enues - Casino revenues incrcased $11.5 million or4.l% in fiscal year 2007 compared to fisail year 2006. We experienced 
an increase in casino revenues at Bilo.xi due to limited competition in the Bilo.xi inarket in die early part of the 2007 fiscal year and our 
2006 fiscal yearfour month closure due to Hurricane'Katrina. Sintilarly, Lake (Charles experienced an increase ui casino revenues 
from the prior year due lo closure during fiscal year 2006 for 16 days resulting froin Hurricane Rita and the closure of a competitor in 
the niarket. Boonville's casino revenues increased as conipjired to the 2006 fiscal year due to incrcjisecl ganting patrons who wc 
believe were attracted by the opening of die new hotel. Also, casino revenues at Ponipano: increased due to the openingof the nevv 
casino and increased niarketiiig efforts: Tliese increaseswerc offset by decreases ui casino revenues aioUier propenies including 
decreases at our Colorado. Iowa and Kansas Citj' properties in each case prinuirily due to increased competition and in some cases 
severe weaUief in the 2007 fiscal year as comparcd lo 2006. Gasino;revcnucs also decreased at Lucaya priniarily due to a decline in 
tourists on llic island and reduced marketing spending as vve hjid been preparing to close this operaiion. Natchez saw a decrease in 
revenues in 2007 as comp;ircd to 2006; inosUy due to Uic rc-opcning of casinos on the Mississippi Gulf Coast foUowing the 
hurricanes. 

Rooms Revenue - Rooms revenue increased $12.6 ntiUion in fiscal year 2007 compared lo fiscal year 2006 primarily resulting from 
the increased capaclt>' at Biloxi, Black Hawk, and Uic,ncvv hotel at Boonville 

Pari-mutuel - Pari-muiuel conunissions and fees eamed at Pompano Park in Florida for the 2007 fiscal ye;ir decrsised $0.5 nullion or 
2:6% compared 10 the prior year due priniarily to decreases invvagering. 
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Food, beverage and other revenues - Food, beverage and other revenues increased by $4.8 ntiUion primarily due lo an increase al 
Bilo.xi resulting from its 2006 fiscal year four mondi closure and liinited competition in the markel during tlie early part of llie'2007 
fiscal year. 

Promotional .Allowances - Promotional allowances, vvhich arc made up of complimeniarv' revenues, cash points and coupons are 
rewards tliat we giveourloyal customers to'cncouragc'Uiein to continue to patronize our properties. Tliese allowances increased by 
$14.3 nullion in fiscal year 2007 compared to fiscal year 2006 primarily due to increased marketing efforts lo address heightened 
competiUon in several of our inarkels. 

Operating Expenses 

Operating expenses for the fiscal years 2007 and 2006 are as follows: 

Fiscal Vear Knded 
April 29, April 30, 

(In Ihousands) 2007 2006 

Openitinii expenses:^-'T-ir -•~^, . '^ ' , -.- . : , "i^:" -', • S l . ^ Sla^f®^' 1; • 
Casino $ 159,534. $ , 151.860. 

MCaiiung laKes^ix..,-" - • ; > . ,. .K ;̂ •,^;.2l0.404':^"'--^5-',•219.365 : 
Roonis • 9.811 . 8,463 

ji>P;iri-niuluel'comniissi6ns and fees •'-""̂  '"• •'-#-I5;342 :4^^V'*^.":^iVl6:051-
Food, beverage andolhcr 32.262 •31j530 

kiMariheaiil factiiiies-' '̂  •. " v ^ v " - ^-. \ . 60; 174"'^' -^5t.-^:'«56;993' 
Mariceting andadministintive 269,279 246,334 

IVCoipora'tVaricidevelopmeril'- « ? ' \ ' ''-57-217 -. -.*"•• -57.803 
Write-offs and other valuation charges 8.466 13,388 

! Pr^bbeiiiiie- ' ' v - . - ^ - v" ," -'" ;-. -M3 :573 . , • . : .",:^,'28L: 
Depreciation and amortization 99,506 88;819 

N Total b'peniungexpenses ---; '%.. :'935;568~, ;.="$"^'^??^890,887 , 

V; 

• • • ^ 

$ 

- ~ - ^ 

'. . '• 

,̂  '̂ '. 

nriancr 

' 
7;674 

'•- (81961) 
1.348 ' 

^ (709)_ 
• ,732-

3;181 
22:945 

- ' (586). 
,(4.922) 
•J 3:292-
•10,687 

^ 44,681" 

Percenlage 
Variance 

• . • , "£ ' =• .:•' \ 

, 5 : 1 % 

• 15.9% 
• -^ • • -4,4%l 

,2:3% 
"̂̂  ' • • : 5.6%\ 

9.3%. 
:'• •-' •-1.0%f 

-36.8% 
•• V i4730:2%| 

12.0% 
. " - . , .5:0% 

Casino - Casino operaiing expenses increased $7.7 ntillion in fiscal year 2007 over fiscal vear 2006. These expenses are priniarily 
comprised of salaries, wages and benefits and other operaiing expenses ofdie casinos, Tltis increase was primarily due to increases in 
Biloxi's operaiing costs related to increased ganting volumes over the prior yearandilic opening of, additional gaming space in tlic" 
currcni year. 

Gaming Taxes - State and local gaining taxes decreased by $9.0 iitillioiVin fiscal yeai";2007'coniparcd lo fiscal year 2006 primarily due 
10 a reversal of $6.9 million in previously accrued ganting taxes at our Lucaya propertv-. following a fiscjilycar 2007 amendment 
reducing tlie statutor)' ganting tax rale retroactively,back to Deccnibcr2063: 

Rooms.- Room expenses increased SI.3 million in fiscal year,2007 compared to fiscafyear 2006. Tliese expenses direcUy relate to die 
cost ofproviding hotel roonis. Other costs of the hotels are sliarcd.wiih the casinos and arc presented in their respective expense 
categories. Tlie increjise in expeiisesvvas priinarily due to Bilo.xi and Lake Cliaries having been closed fora portion ofthe prior-year 
due to,hurricanes, the nevv liotel al Boom'ille and the hotel expansion at Black Hawk: 

Pari-mutuel Commissions and Fees - Pari-mutuel operating costs of Ponipano Park in Florida decreased 4.4% in fiscal year 2007 
compared.to fiscal,yeir 2006. Such costs consist primarily of compensation, benefits, purses, simulcast fees and other direct costs of 
track operations. 

Food, Beverage and Other - Food, beverage ;uid other expenses increased $0.7 ntillion in fiscal year 2007 as compared to fiscalyear 
2006., Food and beverage expenses as a percentage of gross food and beverage revenues dccreiscd from 25.1% for fiscal year 2006, to 
24.7% for die fiscal year 2007. These e.xpenses consist prinuirily of die cosi of goods sold, salaries, wages and benefits and other 
operating expenses of these depjirtrnents. Tlie improved ifuirgiri percentage relates to^contiiiuing cost control efforts.'Tliese gross 
expenses increased primarily due to increased food and beverage revenues in fiscal 2007 caused by Biloxi being closed for four 
nionUis in fiscal year 2006 due to Hurrieane Katrina,'vvltich was offset by.decreased expenses at the Colorado and lovva properties as a 
result of decreased food and beverage sales due to iiicreased competition in those marltets." 

Marine and Facilities.- Marine and facilities expenses incrcased $3.2 million in fiscal year 2007 compared to fiscal year 2006. These 
expenses include salaries, wages and benefits of die marine and facilities departmenis, operating e.x-penses oflhe 
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marine crews, insurance, mainienance.of public arejis. housekeeping and general maintenance of die riverboats and pavilions. The 
increase was primarily due lo closure of Biloxi in the prior yeardue to Hurricane Katrina, life closure ofLake Cli;irles in fiscal year 
201)6 due to Hurricane Rita and expanded facllitiesat Pompano Park in Florida. 

Marketing and Administralive - Marketing expenses increased 2:2% in fiscal year 2()07 compared to fiscal year 2006. The increase in 
majiieting expenses is priinarily related to increased revenues and increased inaiiteling efforts lo address increased competiiion in 
several of ourmarkets. Marketing expenses include salaries, wages and benefits of the'marketing and sales departments, as well as 
prpinotioiis, direcl inail, advertising, special events and entertainments 

Adntiitislrative expenses increased 7.1% in fiscal year2007 over fiscal year 2006. Tliese expenses include adntiitistralion and human 
resource dcparuncni expenses, rent, new developmeni activities; professional fecs,'insuraitcb;and.propert\' ia.xcs; The incrcase is due. 
primarily to the closure of Bdoxiin the fiscal year 2006 ilue to Hurricane Katrina, the closure of Lake Cliaries in fiscal year 2006 due 
to Hurricane Rita, increased property insurance expense at all of bur properties:,stock compensation expense, and corporale relocation 
expense 

Corf?oraie and'De\'elopnient - During fiscal year 2007, our corporate and development e,xpenses were $57.2 miUion compared lo 
$57.8 miUion for fiscal year 2006. During fiscal-2007 vve adopied FAS 123(R)residting iri an increase in corporale expenses of $5.6 
inillion for stock compeiisation expense which vvas offset priiiiariiy by a,$4:1 decrease'in development costs. 

Write-offs ond.Olher Valuation Charges - We rccorded yaluaUpn charges in fiscal yeir 2007 of $8:5 million reLnting to goodwill 
impairment al Lula of $7.8 inilljon aiid due to an asset impairinent ciiarge,6n real propertv' at Blue Chip of $0.7 million. In fiscalyear 
2006,vv'e recorded valuaiionchargesal Lucaya of $3:6 million due lo;ilie change in expected cash fiows resulting from'our previous 
decision to close the casino. SubsequenUy. in April 2007, our BoanJ of Dircciors approved agreements wiUi its landlord and Uie 
Govenuheni of the Baliamas, which aUovved the casino to rciiiain open; hpwever:thc impairincnl charge vvas not reversed in 2007. 
Additionally in fiscal year 2006 vve recorded valuation charges lolahng $9:8 million, iric!iiding$9:2iitiIUon relaled to goodwill and 
intangible asset impainuent and $0.6 million in fLxed asset inipaiiTuehlreliitedio ourBlue Cltip operations. 

Pre-opening - Prc-of>eniiig expenses during fiscal ye:u'2007 included $10,5 ntilhon. $2.1 ntillion, ;md $0.9 million for our Ponipano 
Park, Coventrx', and Waterioo properties. 

Deprecialion and.Amortizalion - Depreciation exfjensc:increased by $ 10:7;niiltibn in fiscal year 2007 compared to fiscal year 2006. 
Depreciation has increased priinarily due to iiew propert}'-additions ai our Colorado and tlie Biloxi properties, the new hotel at 
Boonville. and additional depreciation for the ciipilaIi/.ation of die Covenlry Arena Convention Center. 

Other Income (Expen.se), Income Taxes, Minority Inlere.st arid Di.scontinued (Jperations 

Interesi ex-pcnsc, iniercst incoine, loss on eariy exlinguishment of dcbl, income tax (proyisipn) benefit, rninorit>' interesi and income 
from discontinued operations, nei of income taxes for die fiscal years 2007 and 2006 are as follows: 

' Fiscal VearKniled 
April 29, April 30. Cen-eiitaEe 

(in thousands) 2007 2006 Variance Variance 

imereir^^^^^^:^'T/-^.f:-T-7^ 
In'tercst income ^ _ 7,469 2,694 " 4,775 177.2% 

income tax (provision)benefft- [̂ ^ :(l,906) " (51628) ~ 3,72Y -66.1% 
MmoHt^^erc5r~^:'"-?^F^T7^^?^ 
Income from disconlinued operations, 

net of income taxes 16,692 10,244 6.448. 62.9%, 

Inieresi Experise - Nel interest e.xpense increased $12;8'million in fiscal year 2007 compared to fiscal year 2006. Tliis is atiribuiable to 
lugher intcrcsl-ratcs and higher debt balances on our senior secured crcdii facilitj-. 

Intere.si Income - During fiscal year 2007, our interest income was $7:5 million comparcd to $2.7 ntillion for fiscal year 2006. The 
change in interest income reflects changes in ourinvested cash balances and interest rates, 
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Loss on Early ExtiiiguishmeniofDebt - Pursuanl lo the amendment of a debt agreement during fiscal year 2006, Isle of (2apri Black 
Hawk, L.L.Ĉ L recognized a loss on the early e.xUngiiishincni of debl of $2.1 million due to the write-off of previously deferred 
financing costs: 

IncoiTieTax (Provi.sion) Benefit - Ourinconie tax (provision) benefit is and thus our effecliv;e incoine,tax-rate lias been impiicted by 
interim changes in our esliinate of annual taxable iiKoine for financial,statement purposes as well as our percenlage of iKnnaneiil 
ilems in relation to such estimated income or loss. Effective income tax rales were 'is follows: 

I 

I'iscal Year Ended 
April 29. April 30. 

2007 . ^ 2006 

Comlmungopa7ltions \̂:̂ ^ ;̂'̂ ^^^^^^^^^ 
Total " .108,20% . 39.37% 

Minority Interests -Duiing fiscal year 2007, our minoritv' intercsi expense was $3.6 milhon, compared to $6.5 ntillion for fiscai year 
2006.. Minoriiy interests are recoitied for our minority partner's inierest in onrColorado. 

Income From Discontinued.Ofyeralions - Iiicome from disconlinued operations for fiscal year 2007 includes prelax operating incoine 
from our Bossier Citv' and Vicksburg properties of $5.6 million,-and we also recorded a gain on sale of discontinued operations of 
$23.3 iniUibn during fiscal 2007. Incometax provision forfiscal year 2007 was $12.2 iniUioji, resulting in income from discontinued 
operalions of $16:7 ntillion. IiiconieYrom disconlinued operatibiis forTiscaLyear2006'iricludes prctax operating income from these 
same properties of $16.8 million. Income tax provtision for fiscal year 2006 was $6.6 million, resulting in income from discontinued 
operations of $lb.2iniliion. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 

Cash Flows from Operaiing Aclivities - During tlie fiscal year ended April 27, 2008, vve provided $133;4 million ih cash flow's from 
opcraUng activities coinpared to providing $70.9imlliori during the fiscal.yeiirended April 29, 2007. The increise in cjish flows from 
operating activilies is primarily dueto.the collection of $48.4 million ih insurance receivables. 

Cash Flows used in Invesiing .Activities - During Uie fiscal year ended April 27, 2008 ,vvc used $302.4 ntilUon for investing aclivities 
comparedto using $197.3 ntilliondu'rihgihe fiscalyear ended April 29, 2007. Signifirani investing activities for die fiscal yearended 
April 27, 2008 included the acquisitionof die remaiiting 43% minoritv' interest inourBlack Havvk, Colorado Ciisino properties for 
$64.8 million, the acquisition of our Carulhersville aisino for $43,3 iitillionandpiux;liasesof property and equipment of $190:5 
million. 

For the fiscal year ended April 29, 2007, signifieant investing activities included the purchase of property and equipnienl for $451.4 
ntillion offset by the proceeds from die sale ofour Bossier Cit>̂  and A^cksbuiB properties lotaUng $238.7 iniUion. 

Cash Flowsfrom Financing Aclivities - During llic fiscal ycjir ended April 27, 2008our-nct cashflows from financing activities werc 
$72.5'million priinarily including: 

• Borrowings under our new July 2007 Credit Facility used to; 

i. extinguish and rcpay Uic February 2005 Credit Facilitv'including revolving loans and term loans totaling 
$503.5 million; 

ii. extinguish and repay our.$200.0 ntillion, 9% Seitior Subordinated notes.plus a callprentium of $9.0 ntillion; 
and 

iii. fmid our $64.8 million acquisitionof the 43%ntinority interest inourBlack Havvk, Colorado casino 
properties and refimuicc approxiinately $195 million of indebledness mider Uie Black Hawk Credii Facilitv'. 

• Payments of defened financing costs of $8;9 inillion priniiirily associated vviUi our new credit facility. 
• Proceeds from the cxereisc of slock options of $5.7 ntillion. 

During the fiscal year ended April 29,2007, our net cashnowsfromfinancingactivities were $193.5 million primarily including; 

• Net borrowing's undcrour February 2005 Crcdii Facility of$2(J7.0 ntiUion. 
• Repurchased 447,308 shares ofour common siock at an average price of $23.28 persluire for an aggregale of $10.4 mUIion. 
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• Proceeds from die exercise of slock oplions of $5.'6 inillion. . 
• Payments under the Isle-Black Hawk's senior secured credii facility' of $6.1 ntillion. 

Availability of Cash ond Addilional Capilal - At April 27, 2008, vve had cash and cash equivalents and maiicelable securities of $ 110.3 
million. 

As ofApril 27, 2008, vve Iiad $130.5 mijlionin revolving credii and $869.3 ntillion in tenn loans outstanding under the $1.35 billion 
credii facility. Our net line of credit availabihty at April 27. 2008 was approxiinately $l70,()miltion.-OurJuiy 2007 Credit Facility can, 
be incrcased by $300,0 inUUon, subjcci to syndication and covenant fiexibility, through additional borrowings "greenshoe" 
provisions. E.xercise of tlie greenshoe provisions coidd result in resetling.the Credit Facility inieresi rales to cunrent market conditions. 

The revolving loan comiitiUneni on ihc July 2007 Credit Facility is a variable rate instnnncnl based on, at our option, LIBOR or our 
lender's prime rate plus the applicable interesi rale spread, and is effective throughJuly 2012. The average rate on our oulstanding 
bOrtowings under the July 2007 Credii Facility was approximately 6.55% at April 27,.2008. From time to time vve enter into various 
swap agreements to ledge againsl futiire interest nite increases: Asof April 27,:20()8, we liave oulstanding swap agreements which 
Iiave fixed LIBOR (before die applicable spread) at a weighted average:rale of 4.65% for $450 miUion of our debt vviUi maturity dates 
ranging frorn 2010 to 2012. 

We are higltiy leveraged and our debt agreements contain covenants vvltich may rcstricl our abilit)- to borrow funds. Our July 2007 
Crcdii Facility includes a^mimberpf afTinnatiye and negative covenants.jncluding certain financial covenanls including maintenance 
ofa leverage ratio and ntinimum interesi coverage ratio.'The Jiily:2007 Credit FaciIily!also restricls.ourabiiit>' to m;ike certain 
investments or distributions. The indenture goveming our 7% Senior Subordinated Notes limits, among otherthlrigs, ourabilit>',and 
our restricted siibsidiaries abUily to bofiow money, niakcrcstricted.payinents, use assets'asisecurily in other ininsactions, enleninto 
iransactions vvith affiliates or pay dividends onbr rcpurcliase slock. .Tlie indeniure also lintits our ability lo issue and sell capilal siock 
of subsidiaries, sell assets in e.xcess ofspecified amounts orinei^evviUi or into oUier companies. 

While vve believe thjit existing cash, cash flow from.opcrations and available borrowings under our exisling crcdit facilities wUl be 
siifficiciit to support our working capitaineeds,plaiuied capitid expendilures and debt service requircmenls for llie foreseeable futurc, 
thcrcis no assurance tlial these sources vvill In fact provide adequate fiuiding for our planned capital expendiiurcs. As a result, ' 
limitations on our capita! resources could delay or cause us to abandon certain plans for capital,improvcmerils at ourexisting 
properties and/or development of new properties, which could place us at a conipciitiye disadvaniagelf so wc may need lo access 
additional debt or equii>- financing vvhich may not be available on acceplable temis. We vviU coniinue lo evaluate our planned capital 
expendihires al each of our exisling locations in light of die operating perfonnance of ilic facUilies at such locations. 

Capital Expendilures - Hislorically, we have made significani invesiinetits in property and equipmem and expect that our operations 
will coniinue to demand ongoing investinents to keep our properties compeutive. Our currcnt planned capital cxpcnditiires over the 
nexl 18 to 24 months arc estimated as follovys: 

• $40 ntillion in maintenance capital expenditures for fiscai year 2009: 
• $16 nullion to $18 million to re-brand our properties ui Davenport, Lula, Marquette and Caruthersville as Lady Luck 

properties during fiscal year 2009. 
• $160 ntillion forthe rcbuUdingaixl rcfurbiisliinent ofpur Biloxi property whichwe plan to begin as soon as vve detennine 

Uie timing of Uic selUemeni ofour Hurricane'Katrina insurance claiins anil continued review ofour credit availability. 
This projeci is expected to extend into fiscal year 2011. Tlie BUo.xi projeci is expected to Include a nevv single-level 
casino, resloralion'of our convention space, new food vcnues'and renovation of die hotel rooms in die soulh tower. 

Additional capital expenditiircs for renovalion of up to 1,200 addilional holchrooins are underdesign and cosi rcvievv. Tlie liming and 
amount of our capilal expenditures is subject to the availability ofcash imdcr our Credit Facility, die tinting of additional insurance 
proceeds and cash flovvs from our continuing operations. 

Future Developmeni and Oiher Projecis: Our primary" focus for fisciil year 2009 and beyond is on organic growth opporiurtities at our 
exisling properties; however, as pari of ourbusiness developmeiu aclivities, from time to time we may cnierinto agreements witich 
could resuli iri die'acquisition or development of busiiicsscs or assets, Ourbusiness developmeni efforts and related agreements may 
require the ex-pendiiure of cash. The amount and liming of our cash expenditures may vaT>- based upon our evaluation of developmem 
opportunities. 
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Our developmeni plans are subjecl to a variet>' of factors including but nol limited to: obtaining penitils, licenses and approvals from, 
appropriate regulatory and other agencies, legislative changes and, in certain ciicumsiaiices, negotiating acceptable leases. 

Critical Accounting Ejitimates 

Our consolidated fmancial stalenienls are prepjircd in accordance vvith U,S. generally accepted accountuig principles that require,our 
management to make estimates mid assumptions that affect reported amounts and relaled disclosures, Manageineni identifies critical 
accounting cstimales as: 

• diose tliat require the use of assumptions about mailers tluii arc inhcrenUy and luglily uncertain at tlie time tlic cstimales 
are made; 

• Uiose esUinates where, had we chosen different cstimales or assiiinptions, Ihcrcsulting differehcesvvould liave had a 
inaterial impact on our financial condition, changes In fmancial condilion or results of operalions; and 

• diose esUniates lliat. if they .were to chaiige from period to period, likely vvotild rcstilt in a material! impact on our financial 
condition, changes in financial condition or results of opemUons. 

Based upon management's discussion oflhe devciopmcni and selection of these critical accounting estimates vviUi the Audit 
Comntinee of our Board of Directors, vve beheve Uie foUowing accounting'cstimates'involye a liiglier degree of judgment and 
complexltv". 

Goochvill and Other Intangible .Assets - Al Apti\ 27, 2008, we had goodwill and other intangible assets of $396.9 million, representing 
20.1% of total asseis. Slatement of Financial Accounling'Slandards (SFAS) No, 142 "(joodwill and (Dther Intangible Assets" C'SFAS 
142"), requires goodwill and odier intangible assets with indefinite useful lives be tested for impainuent aimmtily.ormore frequenUy if 
;in event occurs or circumsiances change lliat may rcduce;ilie fair value of ourgoodwilland other Intangible asse^below their 
earning value For properties with goodwUl and/or oilier inlangibie assels with indefuute lives, this test requires die comparison of 
the implied fair value ofeach property to cjinying value. The. implied fair value. Includes estimates of fuiure cash flovvs dial are based 
on reasomible and supportable assuinptionstind represent our best estimates of the cash flows expected to result from llie useof the 
assets and their ev'entua! disposition. Changes in estimates or applicalion of allenuiiivcassmiiptions and definitions could produce 
significantly differeni results. 

During the fourdi quarter of each fiscalyear, vve engage an indepcndenl ihird party valuation firni lo conduct annual impaimient 
teslingunderSFAS 142. As a result of litis annual impainuent testing vve recorded a $7:8 million write-down of goodwill al Lula 
during fiscal year 2007. 

Properly and Equipnient- Al April 27, 2008, we had property and equipmenl, nel of accumulated depreciation of $1,329.0 ntillion, 
representing 67.3% of total assets. We capitalize the cost.of propertv'and equipment. Mainlenance and repairs that neilher materiall>' 
add to the value of the propertv- nor appreciably prolong iis life arc charged to expense as incurred. We deprcciale property and 
equipmenl on a straight-line basis over dieir estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives arc based on the nature of the assets as 
well as ourcurrcnt operating strategv'. Future evenis such as property expansions, iiew competition, changes in teclinology and new 
regulations could result in a cliange in the manner in which we are using certain assets requiring a change ih the estimated useful lives 
ofsuch asseis. 

linpairment of Long-lived Assets - We evaiujite long-lived assets for iinpainnent using Statement of Financiai Accounling Staiidaids 
No. 144, "Accounting for llie Impainuent or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets" (ISFAS 144''), wliich addresses financial accounting and 
reporting for die impainnent or disposed of long4ived assets. In assessing Uie recoverabilitv' of the.earning value bf property, 
equipnient and other long-lived assels, vve make assumptions regarding ftiture cash fiows and residual values. If these estimates orthe 
related assuniptions are not achieved or cliange in the future, we may be required to record an impainnent loss for Ihese asseis. In 
evaluating impainnent of long-lived assets fornewly opened operations, estimates of future cash flows and residual values may 
require'some period of actuid results to provide die basis for an opinion of fumre cash flows and residual values used in llie 
detenninaiion ofan impaimient loss fonhese assets. Such an impainnent loss.would be recognized as a non-cash component of 
operating income. 

During the fourtli quaner of fiscal year 2008, we engaged an indcpendeni lltird party valuation funito conduci an appraisal ofour 
long-lived assets associated with our Coventiy, England due to the cominiiaiion of losses from operations, a review of expecied future 
operatuig Uends.and thecurrenl fairvalues ofour long-lived assets in Coventiy.- Based upon this appraisiil, we recorded an 
impainnent charge of $78.0 milhon relating to,the wrile-down of long-lived assets at our Covcnii)'. England operations as of the end 
of fiscal 2008. • 
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Self-Insurance Liabiliiies - We are self-ftmded up lo a nia.ximum amount per claim for our employee-related heallh care benefits 
program, workers'cbnipensation insurance and general liability Insurance Claims in excess ofthis ma.xininm are fully.insured 
through a stop-loss insurance policv'.- We accnie a discounled estiniate for vvorkers'compensation insurance and general liabilities 
based on claims filed and estimates of clainiS;iiicurred but not.reported. We rely on iiidependent consultanis'lo assist in the 
delennination of estiiiiaied accmals, Wliile the estimated cost of claims incurred depends on fiilure developments, such as increases in 
health care cosis. In our opiition. recorded reserves are adequate lo cover fuiure claims payments. 

Insurance .Accounting - We have insuniiice coverage relaled to damage from Uiree hurricanes for property damage incurred, property 
operating costs during the operational dovyntimc ofthe hurricanes, increnicntiti costs incurrcd rclaled to hurricane damjigc and 
recover.' activities and business intemipiion insurance for, lost profits during IheperioddirccUy relaled to die hurricanes. The 
iiisunince claiinis subjecl lo Uic tiscofcsliiiiales and negbliatioris with our insurance carriers, Tlie total amount of impairments, 
losses recognized and expenses incurred have been rccorded in our stalemenl of operations as ''Marketing and adntiitisuative" and 
liave been offset by Uie amount vve believe Is,probable t0:be collected;from our insurance carriers under our policy coverages. We 
have received partial proceeds from our insurance carriers related to the losses we Iiave sustained,,and through April 27, 2008 liave 
received advances of $153:8 million. Al April 27,2008 vve have an insurance reccivableirelaungto ourhurricane claim of $7.6 
million and additional claims pending in excess ofour receivable When vve reach agreement with onr insurance carriers on die final 

.ainomit ofthe iiKurance proceeds vve are entidcdlo, vve wUl aJso record any related gain in^exccss of any, remaining insurance 
receivable. Our Insurance policies also provide coverage forthe lossof profits causedby thestonns. Am* lost profit recoveries will 
be rccognized >vhen agreed to vvith pur insurance cairicrs and vvdl,be r̂efiected inthe related properties'revenues. 

Income Tax.Asseis and Liabilities- We account for income laxes in accordance vvith Statement of Financial Accounling Standards 
No. 109, "Accounting for iiicome Taxes"C'SFAST09"): SFAS 109 requires that'we recognize a current laxasset or liabiUty forthe 
estimated taxes payable or refundable based upon application of.the enacted Ia.x rates to ta.xable income inthe current year. 
Additionally, vve are required lorecognize a deferred'tax liability orassct fcir.the estimated future lax effects attributable tb lemporaiy 
differences. Temporary' differences occur when differences arise between; (a) the ainquni of laxable income and pretax financial 
income for a year and (b) the lax basis of asseis or liabilities tindiheirrreixirted amounts in financial sialements. SFAS 109 also 
requires iluu any deferred tax asset rccognized must be reduced by a valuation allowance for any tax benefiis that, in our jiidgmcht and 
based upon available evidence,.inay not be realizable. 

As ofApril 30,2007, we adopted FASB liiierpretation No. 48,"Accoimting forUncertairity in Income Taxes - an Interpretation of 
FASB Statement No. 109" '(-TIN 48")..FIN 48 requires thatta.xposhibns be assessed using a two-step process. A tax position is 
recogitized if it meets a "more likely ilian not" duesliold.andisnieasuredat the largest amounl ofbenefii dial is greater than 50 
pereeni Ukely of being realized: Uncertain lax positions must be reviewed at each balance sheet date. Liabdities recorded as a iiesult of 
litis analysis niust generally be recorded separaiely from any currcnt or deferred incoiiie tax accounts, and are classified as current 
Otiier accmed liabiliiies or long-term Gthcrlong-tenn liabilities based on the time until expected paymem. 

We recogitize accmed interest and penalties rclalcd to. uiirecognized lax benefits in income tax expense. Tltis policy did not cliange as 
a resuli of the adopiion of FIN 48. 

Slot Club .Awards - Wc reward our slot customers for their loyall>' based on the dollar amount of play on slot machines. We accme for 
these slot club awardsbased on anestiinaleof tlic value oflhe outstanding awards utilizing the ageand prior Itistoiy of redemptions. 
Funirc evcnis.such as a cliange In our marketing strateg>' or new competition; could rcsult in a cliange ui the value of die awards. 

Slock Based Compensatipn - We apply Uic FASB Stalcincnlof Fiiuincial Accounting Standards No. 123 (rcvised 2004), "Sliarc-Based 
Payment" (SFAS l23^)).Tlie estimate oflhe fairvalue'of the stock options is calculated usuig the Black-Scholes-Merton 
option-pricing model. This model requires the use of various assuiuptions, including the ltisto:rical volatility, the risk free intercsi rate, 
estimated expecied lU'e ofthe grants: the eslimaied dividend yield and estimated rate of forfeilurcs. Total stock option expense is 
included in the expense categon.' corresponding to the employees' regularcompensjitibn in the accompanying consolidated statements 
ofoperalions. 

New' Developmeni Projects and Pre-opening costs - We pursue development opportunities for new ganting facilities in our ongouig 
efforts 10 grow ahd develop the Company. Projects lliat have not yet been deemed as probable to reach completion because they have 
not yet mel certain conditipns, including receipt of sufficieni regulatoiy approvals, site control or related penults and or probable 
financing are considered by us lo be InUie development stage. In accordance with Statement of 
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Position 98-5 "Reporting on the Costs of Start-Up Activities" ("SOP 98-5"), costs related to projects in the developmeni stage, "except 
fortliosccoslsasdetalIedinSOP98-5, arc recorded as an expense of new development at Uie corporale level and recorded on ihe 
accompanying consolidated statement of operations In the operaiing expense line item "'(jorporate & development''. Items for vvltich a 
futiire value is probable, rcgaidiess of the projecl's ouicome, may be subject to capiializalion and subsequent depreciauon and 
amortization. 

Forapproved projects, certain eligible costs related to such projects are capitalized. We follow Uieguidanceof Statement of Financial 
Accbunting Standards No, 67 C'SFAS 67"),"Accountiiig for Costs and Initial RentiU Operations of Renl Estate Projecis", witich are 
classUied under the line item "Propertv' and equipment, net" on llie balance slicei. Cosis ihal are not capilal in nature but either retain 
value or represent future liabilitv', such as refundable utility deposits or a note payable, receive the appropriate balance sheet 
IreaiiiienL All costs'tluil are neither eligible for capilalization nor eligible for other,balance sheet treatment: such as payroll, 
advertising, utilities and trax'el, are recorded as operating;e.xpenses when incurred. 

Contingencies - We are involved in various legal proceedings aiid liave idenlified ccriain'loss contingencies. We rccord liabilities 
related lb these contingencies when it is detemiined tliat a loss is probable and rcasonably estimable in acconjiance with Statement of 
Financial Accounling Standards No. 5, "Accounting for Contingencies." Tliese assessments arc based on our knovvledge and 
experienceas well as Uic advice of legal counsel regarduig current and past events. Any such estimates are also subject to future 
events, court rtilings', negotiations betvvecn the parties and olher uncertainties. If an aclual loss differs from our estiniate, or the aclual 
outcome ofany oflhe legal proceedings differs from exJKCiations; operating results could be impacted.-

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments 

The following table provides infonnation as of fiscal year 2008, about our contraciuai obligalions and cpnuiiercial-
commitiiients. Tlie table presenls contraciuai obligalions by due dates and related contractual comntitinenis by expiration dates (in-
millions), 

I'aviiients Diie bv Period 

ContmrtualObligatloiis: Total 'I Vwir 1-3 Vears 4-5 Vears .After 3 Vears 

.Lo'ng-Tenn;Dcbi-r,.. ,: : - r "'7 -t $:J\rhW'.3S^jr^ • y-.9:-7/'yX^^''^r83^~$~"^!7~"l'^^^^^ 
Estimated uiierest pavments on long-lcnn 

.debl(l) ,,., 509,5 88.5 177.9 179.5 63,6 
. W e n i U J i g i c l i s S Z d l l H ^ ^ 
Long-Tenn Obligations (2) , 27o_ '8.3 " 4.2 15 35 
OtherToiiirTbrm'QbliKiOoiisXl)- " . ' : - ' •^^^^^^¥^:y?:3^£y¥JXJ^JTf^^^ Z\2:^S-_:^f^^< ^ 2:5.^/ -̂ .--.. ' ' - " ' ^ 
TotalContractiial Cash Obligations 2,734,6 . 140:6 235.8 364:5 

(1) Estimated interest paynient on long-ienm debt arc based on principal aniounts outsianding at our fiscal yeju"ehd and forecasted 
LIBOR rates for our bank credii facility. 

(2) . Long-tenn obtigalions include future puretiiise coinntitiiieiits as Well as current and futurc constmction contracts. 
(3) Odicr Long-Term (Obligations include our contractual cash paymenis associated with assets accomited for under EITF 97-10. 

Recently Issued Accounting Standards 

New Pronouncements - In September 2006, die FASB issued SFAS No. 157. "Fair Value Measurements" (-'SFAS 157") witich 
defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fainValue in CjAARand expands disclosures about fair value nieasuremenlS: 

•SFAS'157 applies mwler other accounting pronouncements dial rccjuire or permit fitir valuemcasurcmcnis, the FASB having-
previously concluded m those accounting pronouncements that fairvalue is the relevant measurement atlribute SFAST57 is effeciive 
for financial Statements Issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15,2007, for financial assets and for nonfiremcial assets and 
nonfinancial liabdities, except for items tliai are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial siatemenis ona recurring basis, 
for fisciU yciirs beginning after November-15. 2008, We are currently cvaluiiting die impact die adoption of SFAS 157, including the 
deferinent provisions of FSP 157-2, vvill liave on the consolidated financial statements. 
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In Febniaix'20p7, theFASB issued SFAS No. 159, "The Fair Value Option forFinancial Asseis and Financial Liabilities" 
C'SFAS 159"): SFAS 159 pemtiis companies io choose lonieasure many fmancial inslnnnenls and certain oUieriiems at fairvalue. 
The objective is to improve financial reporting by providing conipanies with the opportunity' to miligale volatilitv in reported eamings 
caused by measuring relaled assets and liabilities dIfferenUy vviUioul liaving to apply complex hedge accounting provisions. The fair 
value option established by SFAS 159 pennits all companies to. choose to, measiire eligible items at fairvalue at specified electjon 
dales. At each subsequenl reportuig dale, cduipaities sliall report In eamings any umeatized gains and loss^oh items for which tlie • 
fair value option have been elected; SFAS 159 iseffectiveasof Uie beginning ofa conipany.'s first fiscal year dial begtiis after 
November 15, 2007. 

In December 2007, the FASB also issued SFAS No. 160, "Noncontrolling Interests In Conailidated Financial Slalements — An 
Aiucndment of Accounting Research Bulletin,No. 51," Uie provisioiis of wliich are effecUv'e for periods begiiirting after. December 15, 
2008..This slateinent requires an entity to claissffy noricontiblling uileresis in subsidiaries as a separale component of equity. 
Additionallvvtransactions between an entity and noncontrollingiweresls arc required to be ire-aled as equiiy Ininsactions. The 
Company is cunentiy evaluating die impaci of Ihis slatement on the fmaiKiat statements. 

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK 

"Market risk Is the risk of loss arising from adverse clianges in niarkei rales and prices, inchiding interesi rates, foreign currenc>' 
excliange rates, commodity prices andcqiuty prices. Our primaiy exposure lo markef riskisimeresl raie risk associated vvilh our 
seniorsecured credii facilitv' ("July 2007 Credit Facility"). 

Senior Secured Credit Facilities 

During Uie fiscal year 2008, we entered into six interest rale svyap arrangements with an aggrcgaie notional value of $450.0 million as 
of April 27,-2008. Tlie swap agrcemenis effectively converti portions of the July 2007 Credit Facility variable debt to a fi.xed-raie basis 
until Uic respective swap a^cments tenninate, which occurs during fiscal yeirs 2010,2011, and 2012. These svvap agreements meel 
die criteria for hedge accoiuiting for cash fiow hedges and have been evaluated, as of fiscal year 2008, as being fully effective 

Tlie following table provides infonnation at April 27,-2008 about our financial Instniments tlial are sensitive to clianges in 
interest rates. Tlie table presents principal cash flovvs and related weighted average interest rates by expected maturilv',dates. 
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Interest Rate Sensitivity 
Principal (Notional) Amount by Expected Maturity 

Average Interesi (Swap) Rate 

Fiscalyear ' Fair.Valuc 
(dollar* in milUons) 2U09 ZOIO 2011 2012 2013 Thcrrancr Tulal 4/27/2008 

innEiitii^yar^^v^^r^^r^^^ '̂ :t^?1^^^lc^3^TF:7^^^f°^^ K^^nsc '̂ZrS2SZ} 
Long-tenn debt, including anrcnt 

portion ^ " .̂  ^ ^̂  ,_„« 
.[^Fixca.rale^•4;K^"tF^ . =g: '>.. > -:;$i;^;0:3;:;$ -.>si0.2^?,$;7Po5^by.O:2^. $.V._j):2:^,$rX.503.3-:'jO504:4,. -$>- 381̂ 9:1 

Average inierest rare 7.01% 7:01%, 7.0l% 7.01% 7:01% 7.01% 

\^ablerare ^ . <':̂  S :8,9 $ .8,9 $ -8.9 $ 140,7 $ 826,^ $ 1.002.9 $ 889.9 
(/AveraRc:iiiterest,rale.OI) '•_' ^^: •̂ . ^'7?W>^.^i^5AO%>^^J5m^^j^i.G.mi!fr .6f50%...;-, 6:62%.• f> i lZ lS l2E!Z?IZ] 

Intei-est^Raic-Denvative'l'InanciaLv:?-: ^ iX. ' ^ . ; -§^ 'A.^ r^ feSl'^*J^^-':f •.>^ ' '"C^ ^ i ' " • T ^ T T ^ ' ^ ^ 'H.4' '— ^ 
ffltii;inimehtS'Rclateclt6;Del)t^ . "̂ 'l̂  />'-:^"^^ ' ^^V-T '• ^:.C^J^:^^-/^-,''•'' • - ' ' > ^ -' ^^-^T-o'' ",-., _ 5 _ ' ^ L ^ l l l l 
Interesi rate swaps ,̂  _ , , , " ^—..: ^̂  
lk-Pav:fixed7receiVc:v'ariable(2)'- " ^ $ -;: — £ $ \ I Q o ! Q r j r 3 0 0 ^ ^ S_ -n3;7 j 

Averagepay.rare ' " ' 4,65% 4.65% J 4 65% • ;4 .50% .0,00% 0.00% 4:65% • 
[g.-Averagerecciverate^."J^?;r" - '• J. •;3?16%: , •'33l%~I''}3^7%>;::^4:40%rrT00%^^ 0.00%^ -•-.-3.35% :'^'"'^T~n 

(1) Represents the annual average LIBOR from UK forward yield curve at April 27,.2008 plus the weighted average margin 
above LIBOR on itil consolidated variable rate debt! ' 

(2) Fair value represents the amount vve would p;iv io the respective'counter partv if vve liad tenninated die svvap agreeiiients 
on April 27, 2008. 

We are also exposed,to niarkei risks relating to nuclualions ui currencv' excliange rates rclaled to our ownersltip interests and 
developmem activities in Uic UK. We finance a portion ofour UK inycstinents In ihc local'currehcy of Uie UKanddue.io the limiied 
scope and nature of our UK operations, our market risks are iiiin^terial. 

For the fiscal year 2008, vve recorded a loss of $0.4 ntillion in foreign currency transjation adjustinents on the accompanvting 
consolidaled balance sheets. Foreign currency iraiislatioii adjustincnts sliovv die cumulative effect, at the balance sheet diiie, of 
liucmations in die foreign currencv' excliange rate on balances denominated in a foreign currenc>:vvltich were rccoixicd at a hisiorical 
rate at the iransiaction dale 
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ITEMS. FINANCIALSTATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA 

TIic following consolidated financial statements arc included in thisrcport: 

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountins Finn on Intcnml Control OverFinancial Reporting 

Report of independent Registered Public AccQunliiig Finn on Consolidated Fiiiaiicial Slalgmenls 

Consolidated Balance Slieeis — Aoril 27. 2008 and April 29: 2007 

Fiscal Years Ended April 27. 2008, April 29, 2007 and April 30,2006 
Consolidflled Stateinenis of Operations 
Consolidaled Siaietnenis of Cash'Flows 
Coiisotidated'Slalements of Stockholders' Equity 

Notes tO'Consolidaicd Financial Slateriienls 

Scliedule II - -Valuation and Oualifv-ing Accounts - Fiscal Years Ended Abrii. 27. 2008: ADriV29.2007 and April 30. 2006 
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Report of Indepcndenl Registered Public Accounting^Firm 

Tlie Board of Directors and Stockholders 
lsle of Capri Casinos, Inc. 

Wc liave audited lsle ofCapri Casinos, Inc's internal control over financial reporting as ofApril 27, 2008, based on criteria 
established in Iniemal Conlrol - Integrated Framework'issued by the Conimitlee of Sponsoring Organizations of die Treadway 
Commission (the COSO criteria). Isle of Capri (Tasinos, lnc,:s'iiiaimgenient-is responsible for maintaining effective intenial control 
overfiiiimcial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of intemal coriiroi overfinancial reporting included in the 
accompanying'Manjigciuent-s Report on Intenial Coiiuol OverFinaiicial Reporting. CKir responsibihty is to express an opinion on the 
Company's internal control over financial reporting based onpur audil. 

We conducled pur audit in accordance vvith the standards of Uie Public Comp;iny Accouming Oversight Board (United States). Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obiain reasonable assurance about vyhcUier effective intemal conirol over 
financial reporting was maimained in all material respecls. Our audit included obtaiiting an understanding pf intemal control over 
financial reporting, assessing die risk that a material weakness exists, lesiing ahd 'evaluating die design and operating effectiveness of 
intemal conlrol based on the assessed risk, and perfomiing such pdier procedures as vve considered necessai>' in Uie circumstances, 
Webelieve ihat our audit provides a reasonable basis forour opinion. 

A company's Intemal control overfinancial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding tlie retiability of 
finaiKial reporting and die preparation of financial stalenienls for external purposes in accordance willi gcneraUy accepted accounting 
principles. A company's intcnial control overfinancijti reporiing includes those policieis and procedures that (l)^pertain to the 
maintenance of records diaL in reasonable detail, accuialelyand'fairly'rcnect'die irm^ctipns^a 
company; (2) provide "reasonable assurance that ticUisaciions arc rccorded as necessar,' lo pcriniipreparalionof financial statements in 
accordance with gene rally, accepted accounting principles and dial receipts andCxpeiiditures of Uie company are being made only in' 
accordiuice wiih authorizations of management and dircciors of, Uie cqinpany; arid (3)provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prcventibri or timely detection pf unauthorized acquisiiion.nise, or disposition of Uie companv '̂s assets tliai could liavc'a material effect 
on the financial statements. -

Because of its iiUicrent Umiiations, internal contro.) over flnancial reporting may, not prevent ordcteci misstatements. Also, projections 
ofany evaluation of effectiveness lo future periods, arc subjcci to the risk tHat controls may become inadequate because of clianges in 
conditions or dial Uie degree of compliance with the policies or.procedUresiiiay'deterioralei 

In our opinion, IsleofCapri Casinos; liic. maintained, in all niateriafrespects.cffectivcintemal conlrol overfinancial reporting as of 
April 27, 2008, based on the COSO crileria. 

We also liave audiled, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the 
consolidated balance sheets of Isle of Capri Casinos, InC: asof April 27, 2008 and April,29; 2007, and the related consolidaled 

.staiemenis of operations, stockholders' equity, and cash flows foi" tlx: fiscal years ended April 27, 2()08, April 29, 2007 and April 30, 
2006, and our report daled July 10,-2008, expressed an unqualified opinion Uiereon. 

Isl ERNST&-YOUNGLLP 
Saint Louis. Missouri 
July 10.2008 - . 
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Rcport of Independent RegLstered Public Accounting Firm 

Tlie Board of Directors and Stockholders 
Isleof Capri Casinos, Inc. 

We liave audited the accompanying consolidaled balance sheets'of Isleof Capri Casinos, Inc. asof April 27,,2008 and April 29, 2007, 
and the relaled consohdated slalements of operalions, stockliolders' equiiy, and cash flovvs for the fiscal years ended Apiil 27, 2008, 
April 29, 2007, and AprU 3O.:2006. Our audits also included llic'fiiiancial.statement scliedule listed in the Index at Ilenil5(a). These 
fi/iancial slatemenls and schedule are the responsibUitv" ofthe Company's mimagement. Our responsibititv' is to express an opinion on 
these finaiKial statements and scliedule based onpur audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with die slandards of Uie Public Company AccountingOversight Board (United States). Those 
slandards require dial vve plan and perfomi the audii lo obiain reasonable assurance aboui wheilier ihe financial siatemenis are free of 
material utissialement. Ari audil includes exantirtirig,;on a lesl basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures In the financial 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accouniing principles used and significant estimatesmade by management, as vvell as 
evaluating die overall financial statement prcseniation. AVe believe lliatouraudiisprovidca reasonable basis for our opinion. 

in ouropinioii; the financial statements"referred;lo above present fairiy, ir all material,respects, the consolidated financial position of 
Isle of Capri Casmos, Inc. at April 27, 2008 and April 29, 2007, and the consolidated resulis of its operationsand its cash flows for the 
years ended April 27,2008, April 29, 2007, aiid April 30, 2p06:m cprifonnitv'with U;S. generalK'accepted accounting principles. 
Also, in our opinion, the related firiancial sttalemenl schedule, when considered in relation to Uie basic financial stiitemems laken as a 
whole; presents fairly in ail m;ilerial*respectSitiie infomiation set forth;thcrein. 

As discussed in Note Lto Uie consolidaied financiai staiemenis, on April 30, 2007, theCoinpanv' changed its method of accounting for 
uncertain tax positions. Additionally, as discussed in Note:! lo the consolidated financial slalemcms, onMay 1,2006, Uic Company' 
clianged its method of accounting for share-based payments. 

We also luive audiied, in accordance vvith the standards of ihe Public Compiiny Accounting.Oversight Board (Unlled States), Isle of 
Capri Casinps, Inc.'s intenial conlrolover fimuicial reporting as ofApril 27:,2008; based on Uie criteria established in Internal 
Conlrol - Iniegraled Framework issued by the Comntittee of Sponsoriiig Orgaitizations oflhe Treadway Commission, and our report 
dated July lOj 2008, e.xpressed an unqualified opiition thereon. 

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP 
Saint Louis. Missouri 
Julv 10,2008 
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

(In thousands, except share and irer share amounts) 

Apri l 27. Apri l 29, 
2008 • 2007 

Current assets: • . 
t^ECiish^itiidcashequiyaleiitsV^;^^?!^^^ ' j ^ . . ^ : r ^ ^ : ^ ^ 4 " - ; l ; F % f • ^ \ y T ? ^ T ^ : ^ ^C" 9^ $/ ^̂ ^̂ 188,̂ 114̂  

MaAelable securities '•• , ^ ._ .J ̂ -^33 j?^'^^ 
'"^-Acaiunts'receivable.:ricToi^l^^ accdiilits'bf$4;258^Td S4;335..-̂  ' "''~^ ' ,'": "" '^ • "^*~r^" "-i ' ''fl, '-^l 

'.'-, ":respectivciv"'̂ "^-'-.^-'Jn.'̂ --.r --''S' ^^<'. i'' ^ l | l ^>^ '^g"^X^ '^ ;" '•: ̂ l ' -- . 12.i95%--> :'.-" 22;527:1 
Insuraiioe recciyabje , . , , . . , , - - - 7,689 56,040 . 

F^|Iricmnc:taxes^redeivable:"";r:•^^^¥^^:^:^v•^-• ^ i--^':''^-' ^^.'K ^8!663' . ' . r^^T^^^ITl 
DefemKl incometaxes - - - ,12,606 12,421 -

p^rpSB^dS^HJeTlgidTuieF^sgll^^ ,r-;-^-". 1-' -̂ •--27;9Q5- ;. '^^^oeTI 
Toial cunent assets 199.381 320,338 

Propenv;and;e(iuipinenLnet:.;- " "-i? : t r t ^ : .;. :r' --^.^->^-l-C :;^j>'^^ :' - • ̂ .•.-L328!986:- .. . J J S p T O l 
Otter assets: , " • - •• . - _._:_ „ „ _ . 

Goodwill-^4 •-: V- - \ ' . . . r . '^VT^;^-..---: :•• '̂ .... % , - " : . . f € / & y ' ' ' ' . / ' ' - . •"- •,. - ^ ^ T m t s ^ g '. ^ 297,268! 
Other intangible assets, net 89,252 74,154 

f ,,pf)eferrcd financing costs!'iiei^'^'vv^'" .^^'\^:^'"'l'.i'W:/^^'E^r;,.,^^?,;j'J»,i •'.,.̂ ::,"fc':f- ' -'-V ,''<'._'13:38L;.--,.^- .,-,.̂ 13,644j 
Resuicted cash " . . 4,802 4,637 

l-:i'̂ :Prepaid:dcp6sits'aiid:6tlier'̂ ^---' •.C^:^'::^'^^^'-X, "'' ::..f:̂ "̂'̂ '''̂ -'̂ '̂ .'';-̂ •''̂  - " ' ' ' '.. -^'ffllSA^ " '̂  '27'080-t 
Defened income ia.xes 7.767 — 

r :# ' Toiai^a^ir \!^rr^--" ' / '^•r i? '^^"^"^ ' ' '^^ 
LlABILITI£SANDSTOCKJiULDERS'EOUITV__^^ . 

Current liabitities:^. :;v: ^ .• . . . :L::;ii.. j - -•> :^- ' "" ,..v";:-l.: •^.,/v-; , . :. _' % - '-.- .. .^ / ' . - . . -^ i? i 
Curreni inznurities of long-tenn debt __̂  $ 9,698 Ŝ  7,594 

..p^:;Accoiints.payable: " ^ '" ^ T ^ ^ T ^ . : - ^ ^ -^^!?TT;_:^':^,2?I^F^^rX^C?:^ :^, :̂.> .V / ."- 29:283. ^ ••..-: • • 6 0 > i ^ 
Accrued liabilities: _ _ _ . " ,.-„ 
F:TPavSlmdSTcd-'r"^l- :_•' ̂  - ' ^ " ^ H ^--"^'T^^'3S^> -̂ ,,Z"fi!?''̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂  ^-:' • ̂ "'• -: •"" -I<> .̂. :•_4.7,618.. '.•:'̂ '̂"̂ '"̂ np!̂ 02l 

:Propertx-aiidotherta.xes ' ~ __ .. . : , 30,13? 23.380 
P?^"TrtiieVSi'^^J^-'^^;.''^:i^"-^-^'-.':^^^ ..^^^.^^V'--:::!,^:^^^; ^^^•vf'y'^^^'"?^': " ••.̂ ._. r-,8^580" • ' - ^ ^ ^ ^ ~ ^ ; 4 ^ 

liicqmeia.xes^ • ,...,,, j T 16,611 
f ^s-p^Qg^^sivc iacktJoiTand^s^^Gb^avvmdr^"^^ - r ^ . i fW: ! ' ' ^^ j r<i^ l ' . J -2 '^'- ^.^^'^'T^T3I768 - ^ . i^\U2:785l 

Other " ' " 44,35.3 56,943 
L /^/^Totafcuhent'liabiliues . ,- . '^T ::--g;,̂ _..:^L .̂̂ M ; t : , . j ;C^^r7": , ; . ' ' ''':• -- -' ^ 183-437 ': ' >.235y74l:1 
Long-term debt, less current iiialurities _ : 1,497,591 l;410,385 
Defcricd1iic6nie4axes/TTT : ^ v^.v^ :^t-*^'^ .."•. ,.,^,;"^|^'3>^^>I^i.-=^"^.^ -̂  ; '^' <^-'i- ' . i : ^ . l : t 5 j l 
Otiief.accmed liabiliiies _ . . ' . ' ...^ ^̂  52,821 30.817 
OJEiong-lenTriiabiliues^-, -.$"-„. ^ '̂'l̂ ~'-rr-:f-''&t:t̂ -f/\%,ŷ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂  \ ' ^ ^ ' - W h ' .52:305.;- '\_^'''> :47.639l 
Minoritv interest _____ ._ , _ — 27.836 

Class B coinmon stock. $.01 par value; 3,000,000_ î;ircs authorized; none issued - ^ ^ ^ 
^-.-:,,Additiori;U;tiaid-in caUiiaTT- -"'r- .̂ r^'^' ."•'' '.'{vi.-:-^''^~TII¥^.^^i:^-'".,..' ;'-̂ " ''V^-; -1' -i'..•::.M88;036: 

Retained earnings • „ „ _ _ „ „ 58.253 155,127 
f^-^^M'caSi iug^lhg^^mplI^^ i '^' '^: ^ " ^ ^ ^ " ^ f ^ m \ \ S T ^ - ^ ' ' f 3 ^ 

. _ _ ™ , 241,041 -333.9(S4 
|,.fTreasu1y%:adck:^;372,073:sliarcsai-April27r2008'ajki:4^^^ 

Tolal stockhoTdeis'cljuily - - • 188,012 28r,822 

SMC'lMPSiSgckJiM':!̂ ^^^ 

See accompimying notes to consolidated financial staiemenis. 
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

(in thousands, except share and pershare amounts) 

Fbcal Vciir Knded 
April 27. .-Vpril 29. April 30, 

^ ^ ^ 2008' 2tH17 2006 

-Revenues;, V.,i'̂ ^̂ f - - ^ . ̂ , .?•-^ r s '^ :^ -g . ^^. ,.,;̂  ..^-:•^^v . ^ -•.-^-^:? ^->.. , . .- . '^ -•'- ^ .:_ .•..•.~'- .:.',-L . .^-\ ^s\ 
CasiiKt • $ 1.121:860 J _ LOl'5,629 $ . 1-004,143 

rR^;sTT^~'''F-"^r~^^. "\ ^'-^t^^^'^"^-^:^' w ' ' ' ^^ : '&: ' ^ - -^ \^ - ' ^MA9^^^ .-^^^.-m^ 
Food, beverage and oUier , , ' . 136.481 . .|30.635 _ ^±25.857 

r^^^ramudanitinissioiis'afiafeesl-:^^';-%"!^^- ' •^ ' ' - ' '^P^Y^^.f: . ' ' '^y.--\"^19!096,r^:^-- v^2O,0Q4;̂  ^^li^20;534n 
Grossrevenues .. ^ . - 1,326:935 1-2J5.852 IfJ17.5_33 

f. r-' ;L:ess'proiSokal'allow^incbsF^.^'.'V'v^ • - ^ ^ . . ' ^ ; . - - < T 3 ^ ^ - ?^-.'.f201083)1,-^^'• !^{214,458)3. ^i-(20Q, 17̂ )1 
Netrevcnues .-r 1.125,052 1,001.394 ,987,359 

e)p_enit_ing:e.xi>enses:* - •̂ '- f- >--. .-r.-?- '% £:".̂ ,>--̂ - ,.; ..v .i -^.-^..-^ ,̂  •.,-^.. -4« -r.-'-, y,,"- : " .. _jLl^:i_-.i:^_.t;i_i_^:-____;5i__LJ 
CasjiiQ. ^ ; ^ 1 . 163:250 159,534 151,860 

^Gamiiig4S^es.:^ ,-,-%",.::.-. ;.:':, ?:-.:>^.'^ '^,^-- "̂ ^ ..1 £7^-,i: f, -^:.- x, 288.40I - - j .^^o:'4on'^'^TrT2"i9.365n 
:Roonis ; \ _ _ ™ ' ' "" 12:031 9.811 8,463' 

C^P^h'^igielcommissioiis'arrdfe^^^^^ :'̂  i ; '^P^F^P^^'^^^' '~T^ I6,Q5lTl 
Food:beverage andodier • ' 45.538 32:262 ^'-^^0,. 

r^ariiieaKdlaciliiieS;/ " ^ ^ :^-.^^'V-uv, •:"-. -''; •-^.- '^^"-jg-^^'iT^r:^ - •^F^:044 ' - V ^ - 6 d : 1 7 4 , ' ^ ' 56:9930 
Marketing and admimslraUve ," • 29d:5"9l 269:279 246,334 

nCorporate aiid development^ '̂  ̂ . . f V^'-. <'.'i ''--•'.. -. '̂ /̂  i'>.'' \ : : ^ ' ^ . V ^̂  :'/^:;',' *;̂ 8^974 - : / : , . . .57^17} >)=.--• 57;803 J 
Write-bifs and otiier valuation charges " _ . " , , 85,184 8,466 13,388 

V: Pngbpening-̂ :̂ "̂ ^ -̂ '- * ' 'V U"-- 'V..> X. ̂ l 1. •• .'^&:^"^><^'^> ^^l.^., ^ ; 1 6:457. 7 '., [3:375~^ ...':^'y ?28Tn 
peprcciationandamortizaiion - . ,."-.^ î v. \....: „ _ - ^^-'27 99;506 88.819 " 

rTTToial^^cmtiHgexiKiiscs- - ; V v , t r^-^ • ^ i . ^ " ^ l ^ ^ i ¥ \ . . g ' ''•: ;: "l;[61 , i3XlIIIZL935756^^ 
Operating iiicome (loss): ^ j '̂36.i^)__ _ ^^5:826 _ _ 96,472 
r:jhiercst,expenie,< i :v-. -' ^ ' '^7^TF:^^ .. • -.-; v:^^!::^sTTT"''^!^7~'- -: (109:286): T ^ - (89^50) _^lu-(ZlS53 

Inlereslmcoirie - ' 3.814 .7;469 _ 2.694 
r.I^oss^'carivxxtinguisliiiientbfdcbi'^?;. "::''^ "^ ^": ^ Z - W ^ ^ - . K ^ - •~M'15,274)> _ -^ l5 l - " J ! ! L ^ ( 2 / T l ^ 

lncoiiic^tioss)Tronrcmiijnu^^ J i^'^r'^t'"./'. 
.-.Mnterest>^'^'..;r^--> ^ _ r ' - - . " ' ^ . . . • r ' .^ '"- ''-v^ f^'--^''4^., % ->-̂  - i '^-flJ6:826U^-- ,1(15:855^,: ••^- 20:721^ 
Jijcome lax benefil (provision) , , ^ . _ 64,8M (1-906) J5.628) 

F^Minoritviinterest-: -̂  y. ,» >.---y \ r - . - ^^^ ..•:..".-' =̂ ->-i..'.^^,V ;^. .,••;. - ̂  . .(4^868)i_ ,̂.1," ;C(3:568V^- !̂/̂ ;V f̂6!462i] 
Inconic (loss)_fromcontinmng operations' ... .. „. , j96,874) (21,329) 8,631 

Netincome (loss) $ (96,874) $ (4,637) $ 18,875 

Eantings ([pss) per commoii share basic; _ _ 
LTiricoiiie:ao'̂ )'fro]ncon'tiiSg^o r̂atrof̂ ^^ >_ :C3 J(>)r$i;iLi3ogp j|[̂  S.iPlS3E29ll 

Income from discontiiiued operalions including gain on sale, iiet of iiicome 
taxes ' — 0.55 0:34 

t g ^ e T i S g a ^ j T ^ r ^ ^ 

E^iiig^aosgfpercwShoi^^ -r-yr^^r;^ 
Income (loss) from continuing operalions $ '^(3.l'6) $ " (0,70) $ 0 28 

_lncomefromdiscontiiiucdoperator;"nei:of:incomc;ta.xes^-^?.V,W^y^ -W .̂.̂ h'̂ -'V_fr̂ '̂ - -̂  "rf̂ - ":^-0-55r^ ^J.l^i..JSl^^ 
Net income (loss) $ (3.16) $ (0.15) - $ 0.60 

T,•̂ ';•:=— r̂rî ;̂ ''''̂ ';"'."̂ "̂"̂ '̂'̂  . * ! M-w-?:-*^ ' :J ' . * ' - "^ ' " " " " f : ^ r~=^rTr^7^T '~^ 

Weighjedayerage basic sharcs 30,699.457 30,384.255 30,028.051 
t\Vcjglited.av^ge_diliiledj!iares'k^^'^^^^I'^S^^^f^M^^r-^^^'^^ff:/''^'.¥_^^^^- ^ :vA-30:69^1^57%^C^^^^30•J84-255Vĵ , '3i.-27tj:'48§[ 

See accompanying nolcs to consolidated financial statements. 
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS'EQUITY 

(In thousands, except .share aniounts) 

Accum. 
Other 

Comprr- Tolal 
Slinrfs or ,A (III i lio Dill Unearned lieniive' :Slock-
Common Conimon I'nld-in Compen- KctainMl' Income Treasury' holders' 

. Stock Slock ' Capital sallon Earnings (t-ossl Stock Equit}' 
BSlMK?A^J4?2QQ5'-.,rf-.--- ' -• '̂ t ~7^'^,^.-p:i,2S.i597^'^''Ty3:,6f^^^ 
Net'i'n'cbme'- _ - - — — — Ts 875_ — . — 1E.E7S 
R?jisSifiMt;^r5rsrsiiSd'i3;?s^in«FSt7ii??^rr ' " ' ^ ' - ' " T - ' ^ " ' ^ / ^ ^ ? ^ | ^ T ^ ' ' " t ^ ^ j r ' ' ^ T ^ ^ • ^''"'•' " ' "W"'^^ "*'•' J"^''•"^•:,•:^--• -j- ' . '^", ' ' . .*:^'! 

Foreign currencv iiansliHiori adjustments — — — — — (2,546)' ^ — (2,546) ' 

cSSiwassi^ci^c'-''-_'v^,' -/..y..- _. _',-̂ __:..° ?•'yr^.^--'''~^T7'3r^^'fT'f-^-^'^^^ • '• :—r - r - - K" -." •:.:-' ^~7i6:224^ 
•Exercise of siock options; including income tax - • " • 

benefit of 52.119 ,765.104 7 •^}'-9P.. - ,.,_rr. .._.., •• . ,~^ - - . , . ~ ^^T^ "̂.583 

'.pta nt "ol" non vc3ted slock — "--; . .̂ "̂̂  -", (367) '. . ' — , — •.;—, ' •— 
' ?^"i^ratiMQfunea^ietlccIrin~e^satio'nV"'j^' ' - ' •'• '̂ ;. - . - ' ' j -J l ' -^-^JI . . • ._<-T7:^;\,S' '- '^fi^^~cf' " ^ ' ' -.<~ ̂ ^ \ ' '•••'•T- ~^_:ij i,'-''"' - '-~>^"" ' —-v -'- -472j 
BaTance,Amii IQ,2Q06- "~ 34,293.263 343 163.548 [US3) -.159.764 ,131 (42,156) , 280.247 
N^issr.-: „:V . '7 fe . >L,j^.- • -, ^r^•-:-';^ v-'- '^"^ .:^j/'--'-^T;?^^^?nT^":^'y:.-^';yH:637i- ^ ,•; • • • • - L - — - ^ - - T : - , .'_,;(4:637ii 
Foreign currency translation adjusimcna ' — — . , —, ' ' '— — 3,227 . ,. •, — 3.227 
Cmi^hSr:iiC?ii;M'>'"':-^ "'"'..• / • ''~'~^~'^-217^VZ^T7~r'PTT^^^^0!^7r^ •^\^ . ' I^ j , -''••>'•''• '̂''•-'' ";'^ ^ . -,''•%• '•'''•'.•:..r,}_". .•,'" 77"Ci;41b)] 
Exercise of slock optiorts. including income ia\ 

benelil of SS4P" , _ , . '389.271 ,4 ,5.617. — ~ — ,- —-, •.._ ^,621 
issuance of defarreii bonusshajcs fiointrcasury.-;' ",, ' • ".'̂ '̂ ••i'f'p --i- ' ""." ,"".'•' %.'̂ \ _ 7'"'' ' ^ W I T : ^ ' ^ ' " - '•̂ :'* ' '. ' • 'i \ \ '^ ' i , ' , "_-' ' , " ;. 

429 • 
Purchase of tr&ittui>-stock • ^ ^ ^ .— • _ ,̂  _ .. - ^ ^— ' — . - - (1,0.4J_5].' . __ ,(10.415) 
Dcfgredboruscxpeme.'. -̂  ' . . . I : ; .^ , , . . ' ' ' - , .' j - ' " - ^ '~- •-^"~.^-—'"'''-'''v"""--->'-5 4 sT-,', -'••.; --: '—--, '' ''- '—'^'.. j y ' • • ' — ' ? ' "Tr, , ̂ -:" '"• . ' -^^ i l 
Slock compensalion e.Kpcnse — — 7,231 — . ' —r —' — , 7,231 

•Reclassification of uncaiijcd compensalion due to% ^ 
j ' . the adoption ofVF•^S 12301) . J . _ " " . --y >.-.. — • ^ . ^ - ^ . - ' - ^ ^ ' ^ -. (U3"K3)'; , - , y : . :1.3S3-
Balant:e.Ap[ii;9,2007 34.6S2_:534 S 347 Ŝ  • ' ' ' V ^ - , ^ — $ 155.127' $ 3;3SS £ (52.142), S -281.822 
NMibss-; r : . , -> _ . / : . '_... .• ~^^'^~^^~—'_;.,• ••• - ' ^ ^ ^ •^•v^-' '-.^r- : ' ' ^ - - , - - ._- k'A~"(9c:s7i): ' • . .-~^^^^ ' . .f - ^ ^ - ^ ^(96^4)} 
Unrealized loss on interest raie sivap contracts net ' . . . 

Drincomeiax_benerLtor£5.159 ~ ^ ~ —_ ^ ^ _̂ _ (S.555) _ _ .. , ~ „ (8.555) 
Forei^n currency,tiansla»onadiustmchls'^ '.'"'^.^,^' i ,-̂ '- Tr:.v,:.i:,..:W-i..:;.:^^^^u,r. ..'.• '̂ • '̂••'•^-'̂ ''•^•^ '̂ ' .^-..-r-•..„'(:'" :"•:•'• T^. , ,• • ' - - " f W ) ^ • -^. .; . . - (404)} 
Coiniyehetisrveloss^ ' ~ ^ . -h „~.. ,.. .. ,~. , . ' .. , ' \ , —; ~:,.. ~ (105.S33) 
ExScise of Slock oplions, inchidi^incorne li-^, - - , " ^ ,̂ -,- . j . .J ̂ , , - ;,V"' ' ^•-•: ,1., • ^ . ' , ' • ' . . . ' . ' • • • - .-•' .~™;^ '*j 
l'-,;:̂ :-nEfiiofS9_77r'',.' ? .",.^ ' / _ ^ ' ' , '?-",-'''546.472i.- ' " ^J^ '''•S'ff^b)^ '--^^•"'.4I'>:!.\>:;',...". j-r.,;-. 't,''fj " V^'• ; ' ^. 1?.-^' ^ •, ' , -A .̂ .̂..-••-£747 } 
Issuance of deferred bonus shares frc«n if easury 

stock " " — — ^^C'*'-') — — _ _ _ — 414 — 

Pmh^^fg;;sjtygSk'^;;'^;.''^T--~^r---^ "~~fDQi)'—^ '̂:"fi:3on] 
Deferred bonus cxpeuse — — ., '265 . — — — —• ",_ 265 
SarcÎ ŜHIpĝ Uonexpense: . J / - " : r " T ^ ^ : ? ^ ^ : ^ y " ^ ~ ^ ^ ' ^ 7 ^ ? ? T ^ . 7 : 3 1 2 ^ ^ ^ '?: "H-._ ^•^•^'^^T-^:=:-^rZ .•••: ^ 'Vr?^-7,3l2^ 
BaUnCc. Aprii 27; 2008 . 35.229.006 S 353 S 188,036 J _ S 58.253 $ (5.601) S (53.029) S 188.012 

See accompanying notes,lo consolidaled financial statements. 
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS; 

(In Ihousands) 

Fiscal Y«jr Knded 
April 27, April 29, April 30, 

. 2008 2007 2006 

p^diiglLCiiyi t ies>^Si2SIiS2SiSSSSI^ 
Net jncome (loss) ^ .̂ . , $ '(96,874) $ ^ (̂ ^^ '̂{j Ĵ . J^? ' ^ . , 
!ASustnicms4o reconCiie"i^^ \ , . •K . • ' . ; . • v't'""" 

pepreciaiioii and amortizalion „ _ _ „ 136.127 _ 99.506 ^^•^'^' 
r^iiom^m^i'ot^pncpha^n^^ r ^ ' :il2J00^:/i,^:^~l2f^^- J."-̂ ":̂ -.:.' '2!979.̂  

Stockcbinpcnsatione,\pense . . . . 1;̂ ^2 "̂  .,^..y,.].'?.}},„. .., • — 
^°AjuortTiaLlori.onunearneg'compeiisation:^ •̂ ;.,.° ''y(r i : y : ^ j :W&. , t ^ - l ^^ ' ' ' ' > 'W '^5& ••^T^y^5fi1i:2 . .̂.Ji- :"l;^'^72l1 

(Gain) loss pndem'adve iiistruments _ ...ô ' •, •. .^^P. '^. .̂ Qj,? ,r ,(i..-"̂ 65) 
E(SilD)Jos,l£IL4isposai^asscl^[T^ 

Asset impainnent cliarge f ,.̂ .,yy. „•,,".• ,.̂ n-.̂ .,„,,,..i•, 1.1.„,.,.,.;i. -̂  ' .•..•. ,•., ~ ..., ,,.̂ „,.,,.,. ., r r . ,••,„.•-•,., '^j :^^^. . . 
C^^luaUonliHd^tiia^^TL^- -^^' ";^ r X I . ^ L - . l i ^S^^. ; r l.-:̂ ;,,:S5;184., '̂ '̂ ^ ; °̂  ^ 18.466^^7^:7^^3881 
•̂ _Early'c.\1i n.t̂ uishmenl of debt . , .15.274. — 2.110 
fPefcrrcd iiicome; thxes'..^^ .. / . / - ^ \ ' - ^^^/.J '• ± ' \:,% i " >^ ^=v&.̂ "̂ J& :̂' :(35J94);- <'1^-' (12.374)' ,;. C 7 T ' 4 2 0 l 

Minority interest " '_ . . _ . . ' - _ . . • - ~ • -Z. ..'-•-.- :. .. ^ ^ '••-. .3 ,568 , .^.^^2,. 
,Gliangeŝ iii operating assets and;! iabjl Hies:. ;'̂ ,r \^ fc^j,'.' • ''.^-,.'-~^'^0>-'^^^^.'-"i •-'-.•.•,.••- -'•''̂ r'_ ',5. . ' "' .. ^ ; ". ^J 

(Pure liases) sales prirading securities ' ' ' (r:364) . ' ^^^ ('•-222> 
rTAa:ounirreSivabier^^- '̂ ^̂ ^̂  " '̂- "^ - ''I^ '̂  ' •~'^^W'^W'^'~^'''^^\Oai.(>:r' ••:: • .'(4;797) ;.•. .- . (5:794)1 

Insunmce recei\;abje .._^ 48,393; 1:359.. ('-̂ -̂ j268) 
S-^fiic6ine4aNC^: ^^''•"•^- /^^^ = .: Y'--^ '̂•..'• ^ : - ' ^ - .AAW' .:^ ..•::-. (32.562)-.'>;',.y6!94a... 7 ^ ' ^ - 2 9 2 l 

•Prepajjexpensesandotherassets - _ . . . . , .„ • . ^ -(1,098) (15,985) ~(9"468) 
[~Arcp.unllpiwabie^nnd accrued liabiliUes;v-^'i'-^ ^,.v ;^-^^^ .•^rr-r^?-,v;^^ .y- (IQJIQ-); ^^^^:;i3.075= ---' >3:857.̂  
Nel cash provided by operaiing acdvities . _ ^ . 1.33,357_ 70.895 86 675 
Investingjictiviiics: _^^ ^̂  ..,,I.«,H_.I.U-.H.,II..,;- - — 
Purc i^e jDf ipro^>^. jqu ip^^ 
Puirliasc of other intangiblcasscts . . (4.000) (^-P'^) (5.775) 
NeTcashipaiaroracqui '^"^^k-i'-. •^'^'J^r^^S^WJi!^^'^J'€O?T?0l'r9'5)r^~T^V . -.-'̂ -. Z Z 3 , . ! L 2 3 
,Prpce{xIs froin sales of assets held for aile ...........r,,- -,.^..^ .'̂ :i.>.-r,..̂  n. . ?,̂ -̂ -̂ 5̂ . , — 
Insajancc'F»o^5s4oi^urripin^^ 
Restricted cash ' ' ' 6 5 (2.524) '(175) 

Net cash used in inyesung aciiyiUes - .._ „ ^ -̂̂ M"!̂ .̂ . (197,271) (176,436) 

Financing activities: • ^̂  ^ , - " , „ 
P^oceedVfi^n4ol1g:te^ndebl,bom)wlh)^:p^^^>-^^^^ - .V.^- —^̂ ^ '^r'^-^0-000? 
Principal payments on4oiig-tenu debt ' ' „.. . (697.108)^ (7.089)' „,J169.24JJ 
Nel.borrowings.(re"pavj']enis)':on lirie of credil̂ -;̂ !̂  ., ''.^.^.^>^'^''^.'^'.^'..'?: '<i/v?^>,vP"(99.355fc. -̂'. 205;421,--. - ._ -y "^!916)1 
PavmentbfdefericdfiiHiicing costs ^ (8;S8i) „ ~ . , (1.797) 
Pn'iciias?of.treasun- siocir^-^r"''^"'^^^TT!:V?r^^^^ :'̂  (̂̂ 11301 )^'^^VTr"7l0:415) - ^ 7 " ^ ^ 7(8:49 )̂1 
Distribution to mjnoriiy interests ^_ _̂  ^ (̂I'iSSS) _^ —^ — 
Proceeds frpni^.\creise!of;sloc^,i^^ ,!^"iri'-"^''^l!j.^''^ —Ll'̂ :747i.,j.;̂ V:'̂ 'fv„r5:62 ij^. -.:.-̂ \̂̂ : ^:9:864^ 
Net cash provided by fireuicing activities " 72.514 193.538. 64.908 
rrrri^ir^'r-^. ^TZ." .'"i?E^vi\r^-'^^^^r~l?'^ ^'' -''"i''!^-!"'^^^^'.."'''''i^' •'̂ Ĵ.'l-;'̂ :̂ !g74^ r̂!̂ '̂"'̂ '̂ ^^^ 1'!"'.' '-•%' ^.^' • "'•'.'-'' v'̂  •-•. • •'-i 
Eficci of foreign currency exchange mtes on cash 251, (97) (575) 

Net increase (dccrcase)Jncash and cash equivalents ^ _ ..:,,...,„...•. ., (96.324) ^^ 67.065 _̂̂  (̂25.428) 
^ash aiidx^liTguivaientsat begi^uWofiv^carl^^ .,:-̂ !̂ ". ••121.049;^-^-J^e.'^^Xl 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 91,790 $ 188,114 $, 121,049 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIALSTATEMENTS 
(amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts) 

I. Orguni/ation 

Organization - lsle of Capri Casinos, Inc.. a Delaware corporadon. was incorporated in Februaiy 1990, E.xcept where othenvise noted, 
die words "wc,"' "us," "our" and similar tenns, as:we!l as"Coinpany," refer to Isle of Gapri Casinos, Inc. and all of its subsidiaries. 
We are a leading developer, owner ;md operator of branded gaming facilides and related lodging and eniertaiimient facdities in 
markets throughout ilie-United States and internationally. Otir wholly owned.subsidiaries own and operale thirteen casino gaming, 
facilities in the United Sliites located in Black Hawk, Colorado; Lake Charles, Louisiana; Lula, Biloxi and Natchez, Mississippi; 
Kansas Cily, CamthereviUe and Boonville, Ivlissouri;' Beltendorf,'Davenport; Waterloo and Marquette, lowa; and Pompano Beach, • 
Florida. Effective Januar>' 27, 2008,-we own 100%'ofburoperalions in Black Hawk, Colorado following theacquisiUonof our 
ininorit)' partner's 43%intcrcst in diose operations. Our iniematiomil gaining.itilerbsts include wholly owned casinos in Freeport, 
Grand Balumas and Covenir\\ England and a two-Uiirds ownersliip interestin casinosin Dudley and VVolverhampion, England. 

2. Summary of Significani Accounling Policies 

Basis of Presentation - The consohdated financial statements include;the accounts oflhe Company arid its subsidiaries. All significant 
intercoinpany balances and transactions have been eliminated. We view cach'prbperiy'as an operating segment and allsuch operating 
segments have been aggregated in lo one reporting segmehl. 

.Discontinued operalions relate lo those oflhe Rivertioat Corporadon of Mississippi-Vicksburg in Vicksburg,Mlssissippi and 
Louisiana Riverboai Ganung Partneisliip in Bossier City, Louisiana, priorto Julv 31, 20()6 when they Averc sold and are'sliownnet of 
income lax cQcxts in accordance with Statement of Financial Accomiling St<mdards No: 144; "Accountingforlhe impairment or 
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets" ("SFAS 144"). 

Fiscal Year-End - Our fiscal year ends on the last Sunday in April, PeriodicaIly.,l!iis syslem necessitates a 53-week year. Fiscal years 
2008 and 2007 are bodi 52-week years, wliich commenced pii April 30, 2007 and Mciyl, 2006, respeclK'ely. Fiscal 2006 was a 
53-week year, which commenced on April 25, 2005. 

Reclassificotions - Certain reclassifications of prior year presentations liave been made io confonn to die fiscal year 2008 
presentaUon. 

Use of Estimates - Tlie preparation of financial statements in confonnily Widi accoundng principles generally accepted m the Uniled 
Slates requires inanagement to make estimates and assumptionsitliiit alTect the amounts reported in the financial siatemenis and 
accompanying notes. Actual results could dilTer from ihose estiiaates. 

Cash and Cosh Equivalents -Wc consider ali liiglily liquid liweslmcnls purchased wiUi an original maiurity of tiiree nionUis or less as 
cash equivalents. Cash also, includes tlie mimnium operating cash balances rcqulied by state regulatory bodies, which loialed $23;982 
and $25,246 at April 27, 2008 and April 29, 2007, respecliveiy. 

Marketable Securities - Mariceuible sccurides consisi of trading securities primarily held by Capri Insurance (Corporation, our captive 
insurance subsidiar)'. The trading securities are primarily debt and cqtiily securities that arc purchased with die intentionto resell in 
the near tenn. The trading securides arc carried at fair value widi clianges in fair value recognized in currcni period incomc in the 
accompanying statements of operadons. 

Iriveniories - Inventories are stated at the lower ofcosl ormarket. Cost is detennined by die lowerof cost (weighted average) or 
markel value. 

Property and Equipment - Propeny and equipineni are stated al cost or If acquired dirough acquisition, its value as detenmned under 
purchase accouming. Assets subject loiinpaimient wrilcdownsare recorded at the lower of net book value or fair value. Wecapilalize 
the cost of purchases ofproperty and equipment and capitalize tlie cost of improvements to propert>' and equipment tliat increases the 
value or extends the usefiil lives ofdie assets. Costs of nonnal,repairs.and inalnlenance are charged lo expense as incurred. 
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Depreciation is compuled using the siraight-line mediod over the following estimated useful lives of the assels: 

Vr.irs 

Slot inacliinesfsoftwarT^ ^̂ î ;̂ :gy3r5î  •̂•:-''̂  ' '•-:... '̂ '>'J] 
Fumiture, fi.xtures and eqiiipment __—__„___, 5-\0 ^ ^̂  -.-y,,,-
LeaSehdld ImproyemenTŝ _ •''• .v •"• ' >>;ji,"^3 '̂J2^^Lesser.of4ifCt6f-lcase,oKestiinate^ 
Buildings and improvements 7-39!5 

Ceriain leased "propert ies. in Coventn,-, England and Bettendorf Iowa;arc accounted for in accordance with Emerging Issues Task 
Force 97-10, "The Effect of Lessee Irn'olvement in Assel (Tonsmiction'-C'ErTF 97-10 '̂). 

Capilalized Inieresi -The interest cost associated widi major development and construction projects is capitalized and included inthe 
cost of the project. When no debt is'iiicumsd specifically fora project; interest is capitalized on amounts expended on die project using 
the weighted-average cosl of our outstanding borrowings.,Capiializalion of inierest ceases when die projeci is substandaily complete 
or development acdvitv is suspended for morc;diah a brief period, Capitidized intercsi was $3,335, $9,528 and $4;589 for.fiscal years 
2008,2007 and 2006, respecdvely: .̂  • • -

Operating Leases - We recognize rent e.xpense for each lease on die straight line basis, aggregating all future ininimum renl payments 
includirig any predetennincd fi.xeii escaJaUons of die miiiimiinire'iilals;,Our liabilides include4lie aggregate dilTercrice belVveen rent: 
e.x-pcnsc rccorded on the straight-line basis and ainounis paid under the leases. 

Restricted Cash - VVe classify' cash lliat is eillier statutorily ,orcoiitracnially.restricted as to its withdrawal oi" usage '<6 a long terrii asset 
due to'the durallon of die underlying resincdoh. ResUictcil,casli'prim'arily'includ^ amounts related to state tax bonds and odier 
gaming bonds, amounts held in escrow related lo leases and other deposits relaled to new development acdvities or acquisitions, 

Goochvill and Other Inlangible .Assets - Goodwill represents the excess of the cost over the net identifiable tangible and intangible 
asseis of acquircd businesses and is stated at cosi, net orinipainncnts; Ifany. Other intangible assets include values attributable, to 
acqinred ganiing licenses, aistomer lists, and trademarks. Statement ofFinancial Accounling Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Other 
Inlangible A.ssetŝ  CSPAS, 142") requires these assets 1)0 revieweij for iinpainnent at least annually: For intangible assets wiih 
indefinite lives nol subject to amoni7Jition,,we review, at least annually, the conlinued use ofan indefinite useful life. If these 
intangible assels are detennined to, have a finite iiseful life, they arcainorlizcd overthelrestimated remaining useful lives. 

Long-Lived .Assets r Wc periodically evaluate the cariyingvalueof long-lived assets to be held and used in accordance widi SFAS 144 
wluch requires impainneni losses lo be recorded on long-lived assets used in operalions when indicators of Impairment are present and 
the undiscounled cash fiows csdiiialed to begeneraled by those assels arc less.lhan die assets'carrying amounts. In that event, a loss is 
recognized based on the amount by wliich the can} ing amount e.xceeds die fair, market value ofthe long-lived assets. 

Deferred Financing Costs - The costs of issuing long-term debtarc capitalized and amortized using the effecuve iniercst method over 
the term of the relaled debt. ' - ' • 

Self-Insurance - We are self-funded up ioa maximum amount perclaim for employee-related health care benefits, workers' 
compensation insurance and general liability insurance. Cilaims in excess of diis maximum are fully insurcdihrough a stop-loss 
insurance polic>'. We accnie for workers' compensadon and gcneral,iiabilit>' Insurance on a discounled basis based on claims filed ahd 
esuiiuites of claiins incurred but not reported. Tlie estimates have been discounled at 5.3% aiid 6.0% at April 27, 2008 and April 29, 
2007. respecliyely. We utilize independent consultanlsdo assist in tliedetermlnation of estimated accmals. As ofApril 27, 2008 and. 
April 29, 2007, our.employee-relaied health care.bcriefits program and discounted workers' compensation and general liabilides for 
iiiipjiid and incurred but tiot reported claims are 527,031 aiid>$28;937, respecliveiy and are included in Accmed liabilities-payroll and 
related for health care benefits and workers' compensation insurance and in Accmed I labilities-other for general liability insurance in 
the accompanying consolidated,balance sheets,,While the total cost ofclalnis incurrcddepeiids on fuiure developments, in 
management's opinion, recorded reserves arc adequate to cover fuiure claims payments. 

Derivaiive Instrumenls and Hedging.Acliviiies - SFAS ]>io.'l33.Accounting for Derivative Instrumenls and Hedging Activities 
C'SFAS 133") requires we recognize all of our derivative instruments as either assels or liabilities in the 
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consolidaled balance sheet at fair value. We utilize derivative financial Inslrumeiiis to manage interest rate risk associated witli some 
ofour variable,rale borrowings. Derivative financial insimments arcintehded to reduce oiu"e.xposure to interesi rate risk. We account 
for changes in the fair value of a derivative instmmenl dependliigon the intended useof the derivaiive and the resultingdesighatioii, 
wliich is established at the inception of a derivative. SFAS 133 requires that a company fonnally document, at the inception ofa 
hedge, the hedging relationship and the entiiS'.'s risk managemeni objective and slrategj' for undertaking the hedge, including 
idenuficalionof die liedging Instniment, the liedged iteiii of transaction, die nature of die risk being hedged, tlie method used lo assess 
effectiveness and the method that will be used to measure hedge ineffectiveness of derivative insiruments lliat receive hedge 
accounting treatment. For derivaiive insimments designjucd as cash fiow hedges, cliiinges In fair value, to the exteni die hedge is 
effective, are recognized in olher comprehensive income until the hedged item is recognized in earnings. Hedge effecii\'eness is 
assessed quarterly based on the lotal cliange in the derivative's fairvalue. 

Revenue Recognition - In accordance widi gaming industry practice, we,recognize casino revenues as die net win from ganiing 
activities. Casino revenues are net of accmals for anticipated payouts of progressive'sloi jacltpots aiid certain table games wherein 
incremental jackpot amounts owed are accmed for games in wliich cyenp'̂ coin played or wagercd adds to die jackpol lotal. Revenues 
from rooms, food beverage, enieriainmerit and tlie gift shop are recognized al Ihe lime the related ser\'ice or sale is performed or 
made. 

Net Revenues - The retad value of rooms, food and beyeragc'and olher services furnished to guests mihout cliarge is included in gross 
revenues and Uieri'dediicted as promotional allowances.to arrive at.net revenues included in the accompanying consolidaled statement 
ofoperalions. We also rccord the redempdon of coupons aiid points forcasli as a promofional allowance. Tlie esiiniated cost of 
providing such coniplimentaiy- ser\'ices arc included in casino expense in die accompimying consolidated slatemenls ofoperalions are 
asfollows: 

Fiscal Vtar Ended 
.April 27, April 29,- April JO. 

2008 2007 2006 

Robms^ - r , ' ' y - ; ^ .;s / :̂  ,. . . ;\:;..-• : ; a ^$L-^^,; i^l0:080''7$7v - 12!9S0 '̂ S:; . J9,64^i 
Food and beverage _ _ _ _ _ _ „ _ 64.145 66098 58.793 
îfig. V:, .̂ .̂ ^C :^ :.• .:•-': V::- •f.'^.r j""-^- ' ' .Z^:W^A5T^-..''. "•-. \ ^227i;"77^"^^"~"250] 

Tolal cost of compluneniarT,' scn.'ices $ 74,377 $ 79,301 $ 68,690 

5/0/ Club Awards - We provide slot patrons with rewards based on die dollar amount of play on slotmachines. A liability' has been 
established based on an estimale of die value oflhese outstandtng rewards, uUlizing the age and prior hislor}' of redemptions. 

/)(A'err/j;;)^'- Advertising costs arc e.xpensed the first time die related advertisement appears. Total advertising costs werc 525,217., 
$22,640 aiid $21,392 in fiscal years 2008, 2007 and 2006, rcspeciively. 

De\'elopment Costs - We pursue deyelopmeni opportunities for new gaming facilides lii an ongoing effort to e.xpand our business. In 
accordance with Statement of Position 98-5 'Reporting on ihc Costs of Start-Up Activilies" ("SOP 98-5"), costs relaled to projects in 
the development stage, except for those costs as delailed in,SOP, 98-5, arc rccorded asa development expense:, Additionally, following 
the guidance of SFAS No..67, .Accountingfor Costs and Iniiial Renlal Operations of Real Estate Projects, developmeni costs arc 
e.xpensed when dK developmenfis deemed less dian probable. Total deveiopment costs expensed were $5;539, $16,262 and $20,370. 
In fiscal years 2008, 2007 and 2fX)6,,respectK'el\\ and were rccorded in die consolidated slalements of operalioiis in corporate and 
developnient expenses. 

Pre-Opening Costs - We accouni for costs incurred during the prc-opening pliase of operations in accordance with Statement of 
Posilion 98-5, Ref>orting on lite Costs of Starl-Up Activities, and expense prc-opcningcosts as incurred. Prc-opciung costs include 
payroll, oulside services, advertising, insurance, utilities,4ravel and various other expenses related to new operatloiis. All such costs 
are rccorded in the consolidated staiemenis of operations in pre-opchiiig. Pre-opening expenses in our consolidited llnancial 

.Slatemenls werc incurred in conneciion with die opening of die Pompano Park racino In April 2007, Isle-Waterloo in June 2007 and 
lslc-Covenlr\- in July 2007. 

Income Taxes - Wc accouni for income ta.xes in accordance with SFAS No. 109, 'Accomiling for Income Taxes" C'SFAS 109"). 
SFAS109 requires the recognition of deferred income tax asseis, net of iipplicable reserves related to net operating loss carr}' forwards 
and certain temporaiy" differences. Recognizable future tax benefits are subjecl to a valuation reserve, unless such lax benefits are 
determined io be more likely llian not. On April 30, 2007, we adopted the additional 
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provisions of FASB-lnierpretaiion No. 48 ("FIN.48"). We recognize accmed interest and penalties related to umecogiuzed tax benefits 
in income tax expense. 

Earnirigs (Loss) Per Co/nmon Share - li\ accordance withthe provisions oT SFAS i<q: 128, "Earnings Per Share" ("SFAS 128''), basic 
earnings (loss) pershare ("EPS") Iscbmpiiicd by dividing net incoiiiC:(loss) applicable to common stock by ihe weighted average 
cominoh shares outstanding during ihc period.. DilutedEPS rcfiecistlie additioniil dilution forall potentially dilutive securities such as 
slocit options. Any options wilh an exercise price iu excess oflhe average niarkei price of Uie our common stock during the periods 
presentedare not coiisidered when calculatiiig,the diluliyc'effect of slock options for diluied earnings per sliare calculations. 

Stock-Based Compensalion - Our slockrbased compensatiqh is accounted for in accordance wiih SFAS^No, 123 (revised 2004), 
"Siiaied-Based Payment'" ("SFAS ;I23(R)"). On May i, 2(X)6,;wc elecled the modified prospectix'C method, in wiiich compensation 
cost isrecognized beginning with tlx; effective diilc (a) based on Uie requirements of SFAS 123(R) for all sliare-based paymenis 
granted or modified after die effeciive date and (b) based bii the rcquirements of SFAS 123 forall awards granled to employees prior 
to the effective dale of SFAS !23(R) that remain unvested on die effective date. 

Foreign Currency Tran.slaiion - We account for currenc>' translation In accordance with SFAS No. 52, "Foreign Currcnc\' 
Translation" ("SFAS 52"). Assels and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated inio U.S. dollars at the exctuingc rale 
in effect at each balance sheel date. Statement of operations accounts are translated ihonUily at the average rate of e.xcliange prevailing 
during ihe period. Translalion adjtistmentsresulting from ihis proccss'arc included in slock Iiolders- equiiy as accumulaied oUicr. 
comprehensive income. The.cumulatiye gain from foreign currcnc)' iranslaUon included in other coinprehensive loss is $2,977 and 
$3,381 as ofApril 27, 2008 and April 29, 2007, respectively. Gains and losses froinforeigh currenq.' transactions are includedin 
marketing and admiiiistratix'e expense. A loss of $356:was recorded in fiscal year 2008 and gains of $1,846 and $1,051 were.recorded 
in fiscal years 2007 and 2()o4;respeciively. 

.Allowance for Doubtful .Accoimis -\<Ie reserve Tor leceivahXesxhaX may not be collected. Methodologies forestunatingtlK allowance 
for doubtful accounis range from specific rcser\'es to various percentages applied to aged receivables. Historical collection rates arc 
considered, as are customer relaUohsliips, in dcicriniiiing specific.rcser\'es. 

Recently Is.sued Accounting Slandards - New Pronouncements -\r\ September 2006, llic FASB issued SFAS No. 157, "Fair Value 
Measuremenls" C'SFAS 157") wluch deilnes fair value:'eslablishes" a'frameworii_for measuring fair ^̂^̂  ande.x-pands 
disclosures abqul fajr value measuieinenls. $FAS,-157 appliesunder other accounting pronouncements that require or pennii fairvalue 
measurements, the FASB liaviiig previously concluded in tiiose accounting pronouncemenls" dial fair value is Uie relevant 
measurement attribute. SFASjl57.is effective forfinahcialstalemenis issiie'd for fiscaf years beginning after November 15' 2007, and 
interim periods within those fiscalyears. On February, 12,2008, tlie FASB issued FASB Staff Position No. FAS 157-2, Effective Date 
of FASB Statement No. 157 ("FSP 157-2"), delaying,die effective date:of-FASB; 157 to fiscal years.beginning ;d"ter Noveniber 15, 
2008, for nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities, excepi for items that are recognized ordisclosed at fairvalue in the financial 
slatemenls on a recurring b;isis. ,We are currenlly evaluating tlie impact ihe adoption of SFAS 157. including the defcnneni pixivisions 
of FSP 157-2. will have on the consolidated financial statements.. 

In Febman- 2007, tlie FASB issued SFAS No. 159, "The Fair.Vidue Option for:Finaricial Assels and Financial Liabilities" 
CSFAS 159"), SFAS 159 pennits conipanies to choose to measure iiiaiiy fiiiancial instmmenls and certain other items at fairvalue. 
The objective is to improve fin;inc_ial reporting byproviding companies wiUi die opportunity lo mitigate volatility in reported eamings 
caused by measuring relaled assets and liabdities differendy wiihoutliaving lo apply complex hedge accounting provisions. The fair 
value opiion established by SFAS 159 pehiiils all companies to cliposelo iiieasiire eligible items at fair value al specified election 
dates. At each subsequent rcporting date, companies shall report in earnings an\- unrealized gaiiis and losses on items for which the 
fair value opiion have been elected. SFAS 159 iseffcctivcasof die begiliningof a compaiiy's first fiscal year that begins after 
November 15, 2007. Wĉ are currenih cyalualing the fair value option under SFAS 159 and evaluating wlial impaci such adoption 
woujd liave on the consolidated financiai statements. 

In December 2007, the FASB also issued SFAS No, 160. "Noncontrolling Interests In Consolidated Financial'Statements—An 
Amendment of Accounting Research Bulletin No.:51,'" the provisions of which are.effectivc for periods beginning after, December 15, 
2O08.'Tlii3 Slatement requires an enlily lo classify''noncontrplting inleresls in subsidiaries as a separate component of equiiy. 
Additionally, transactions belween an entity,and noncontrolling interests arerequlred'to be Irejited as equiiy transactions. The 
Company is currently evaluating the impact of this statement on the consolidated financial statements. 

.49 

Source: ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS INC, 10-K, Juty 11. 2008 hsv. '̂fei: by .ViGrrJ^siar^Doctimsnl Stsearch* 



3. Propertv- and Equipment, Net 

Property' and equipmenl, net consisis ofthe following: 

April 27. April 29. 
200S 2007 

S™^SSi^ii^^li]E3SZS^\i:SISIZl^ .-•̂ •̂ 4v,'ĵ ^̂ ^̂ ?̂̂ l̂ %̂̂ "̂ ̂  ^̂ ^̂ -''̂ ''̂ Kĵ ^̂ ^ 
Land and land improyements ^ S 151,-747 $ 144,222 

C^eiiil5I5jm^vejnenjs. /"-'^X'-TT^^: ^.. •••^V:^:V^^.^7ffg:34A.-^>:^-^g-^S^32 r-ri.-'^ 320:250l • 
Buildings and Improvements 719.175 530,358 

g R i y ^ a l i i l o a t i n g ^ p a v i T r o n ^ 
Fimiiture. fixtures and cquipniciit 517:591 452.859 

OCoi i smic t ibn inprogr^s -^TX'TT^ 3^:438:^^ L^,V.- 223!35rl 
Total property arid equipmenl " ; ^ l,889i55Q 1,795.852 

Pl^css^accumii lated deprcciatio n a ndlundil izaii on'. Z ~ ' ^ ' \ '̂ ĵ -̂ĵ  ' ^ . ^ • ^ '-M. ̂  I '~?C56Q!564) h.- '')}' 7(4 5 7; 282 )J 
Properly; and equipineni, nel S 1,328,986 $ 1,338,570 

4/Acquisilions 

.Acquisilion of Minority Inieresi in Black Hcnvk, (^oloraclojjperqitons - Effective'January 27, 2008, we purchased,the 43% minority' 
membersliip.inleresi in our Black Hawk, Colorado subsidiaries for a purcliase price ot̂ ;$64,800, includiiig traiisactibn costs: Following 
die acquisition,,we own l00% of our Black Hawk, Colorado operations. The purcliase.price for these membership interests,was 
dctcnriined based upon estimates of fuiure cash fiows and evaluations of the net assels acqiurcd.''We funded the purcliase dirough cash 
and borrowings under our^Seiiior Credit Facility. We accounted for the purcliase usinglhe purchase method of accoiinling iii 
accordance with SFAS No. 141'"Business Combinations" C'SFAS 141"). Titird parl>'A âlimt[ons for the properlj'and equipment and 
inlangible assels are still in process, Afler consideration ofUieminoriiy interest liability of $29,819, llie preliminary' purcliase price 
allocation included $14,000 in propeil>' and equipment, $10,600 In oUier iiilarigible assets and $10.̂ 381,in goodwill. 

Accjuisilion ofCaruihers\'ille - On June 40, 2007, we acquircd 100% of die membersliip intercsts of Alzar Missouri Riverboai Gaming 
Cpmpimy, L.L.C, a Missouri limited liabdity company located in Cariithersville, Missouri. The purchase price, iiiciuding transaction 
costs, .was appro.ximalely $46/241, including $2,940 of cash acquired. Tliepurchase price for tiiese membersiup inleresls \vias 
detennined based upon estimates of fuiurc cash fiows and evaluations ofdie net assets acquircd. During Januan.' 2008, we finalized 
certain post closing dateadjusiments with Uie'seller. Tlie purcliase was accounted for using Uie purchase method of accounting In­
accordance with SFAS 141,Thirdparty valuations were oblained for die property and equipment, and otlier inlangible assets. Tlie 
purchjise price included $959 in net working capilal, $39,861 iii property and equipmenl, aiid $5;42l in other inlangible assels: 
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5. IntangibleAssets and Goodwill 

Intangible assets consist ofthe following: 

Gross 
Carr j ing. 
Amount 

April 27, 2008 

Ac cum ulated 
Aniortizatiun 

Net 
Cari7;ing 
.\jnouiil' 

Gross 
Ciirrjijig 
Ani ou rit 

April 29, 2007 

Accumulated 
jVmorlization 

Net 
Carrj ing 
Amount 

fi^iiefinitenivi^i^ssctsj-^;^^ W- '̂̂ ^-j'̂ '̂̂ ^i^ '̂̂ ^M^M^ '̂t:-<%' •^:r''^^'^.^-u-'^^^ :::MT'^^W] 
Gaming licenses $ 73,891 $ — $ 73.891 $ 61.953 $ — $ 61.953 
nrademgiK^^^:.^ '̂̂ >-- '̂̂ ~^T^ /•.Tl2a01 .,^-'--;r-,';^^_-^4. :a2goFi 
Intangiiilc assets - subjecl to 

amortization •" __^ __^ ____ 
If^^Sh^r^s^r^t -"f,̂ .̂- •̂--:-..:.-'r̂ ",Hio2-,M •^^^'^^'msi!1^^^i9;^^^rri7rz^ 
Customer lists 3,307 . (455) 2;852 — _ ^ 
^^T6\aly%y,/'^f^^' _̂ .< -— ;̂;$- •̂ -•̂ -•74;15'43 

Ourindefiiuterlived intangible assels consist primarily'ofgaiiiing'liceiisesaiidlrad^^^^ 
will continue to renew Indefinitely. Our finite-lived assets consisi primarily ofcustomer lists amortizxd over 3 ycars:and iradcmariis 
which Iiave a conlractual lerm or it hasbecn decided nol lo renew,, amortized over.Uieir reniainingilegal or contractual life, tlie 
weighted average remaining life ofour ddier intangible'asset.s subject to amprtlz t̂ioh is appro.xiniateiy 2.5 yeare. 

Fumre amortiziition expense of our amortizable inlangible assels is as follows: 

2009 ̂ '--r ''•^•:5- •''^^S ' • - * •• "'- S • 
.2010 
'Ot)\ 1" • -'*• ^• ' '•~' ' •' -.̂ ^ ^ , ' 

• ^ . ^ . ' . . : ' • • ^ ; ' ' ' 

'•• '̂ •*•;".. ^ ^ *^<V i f ' " • 

.fv^v.^'^r 

jy^^-^^^'f^^-'!'^ 

••-•'iiWH î .,'-• ' s . - ,., v̂ .,_̂ . - i . i i i : j 
,1,102 

.• 6481 
Total 2.861 

A rollfo^^va^d of goodwill is as follows: 

April 27, 2008 

Balance,' beginning of ̂ riod"^, 

10J81 

April 29, 2007 

...vV)?.- -:":.-.-- •';$M7^^g|Pi^97r268l3$7^;r'^ 
Acquisilion of minority interest In Black Hawk, 

Col.orado operations ^̂  ^ ,„^ ^ ., .,. 
Tm^irincnt-ls]?l!^uia^''Tr^\"-X'^ "-.gi.l̂ "-. V'i'-A '• V-JT'^^^T!''1^^'^v^^l^^i.:il^^ •TT7' ,'..v;̂  •"1^801? 
Otlier,net ' ' —, . (296)' 
:B^ml^7Sof^od ;>^ -̂ ^ -•"#;e '••• k'i ---̂B ••:-;-l^;r^^ft:^^3wr6'49Tg~^^^^^ ' 

6. Valuation and Other Charges 

As ;i resuli of continuing losses, a-rcvicw of c.'̂ pectcd futurc operating trends and,the curreni fairvalues ofour long:lived assets in 
Coventry', England, we liave recorded an impairment cliarge of $77,978 rclatcdlo long-lived assets ofour Coventn' operations as of 
April 27, 2008. The current fair values used In our deiemiination ofthe impainnent charge were based upon a third party appraisal, a 
rc\'iew of historical costs and other rclevanl infonn;itidn, Tlie balance of long-lived assets as ofApril 27, 200.8, following the 
recording oflhe impairment charge is 355,830. This includes $5,012 of owned assets used in the operation of our Coventn' casino 
and $50,818 ofassels representing the Co\'entiy Convention Center which,we are deemed to own under EITF 97-10. Fuiure operaiing 
results of and decisions regardingbur Coventry casino could result iii additional impainnent charges associated widi these assets. 
During the fiscal year 2008, we also recorded valuation and other cliarges of $7,206 relaled io ihe temunation of ihe.Company's plans 
to develop a new casino inwest Harrison Count}'. Mlssissippi;and the caiiccllatioii of coristruction projecis in pavenpbrt, lowa aiid 
Kansas City, Missouri and a valuation chaige to write-down ilie canying value ofthe Blue Chip casino in Walsall, England. 

During fiscal year 2007, we recorded valuation and other chaises of $8,466 in the accbmpam'ing consolidaled statements of 
operations. The ainount primarily relates to the $7,801 goodwill impainnentchargeaiLuia dial resulled from our annual valuation 
review required by FAS 142, Also included in this amounl was appro.iiimalely $665 rclaled lo llie wrile-down of die loiig-livcd assels 
due 10 Ihc closurc ofone of the Blue Cliip casinos in .Walsall, Engiand. 
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Duringfiscalyear2006, we recorded valuation and olher cliarges of $13,388 in the accompanying consohdated suiiemenls of 
operations. These cliaiges related to a $9,192 impainneni charge againsl goodwill and other,intangible assels and a $5.54 cliarge on 
fi.xed asset at our Blue Chip properties due lo the economic performance of Blue Ciiip. We also recorded a $3,642 charge related lo 
our then planiied e.xii of Our Lucaya including $2,415 in fixed asset Impairments and $ 1,227 in cxTJected severance paymenis. During 
fiscai year 2007,-fbllowing a new agreement with die Government of the Bahamian, we decided lo continue lhe"opeixitions in Our 
Lucaya and reversed $1,170 of Uie severaiice accmal, 

7. Long-Term Debt 

Long-tenn debt consisis of Uie following; 

April 27, April 29. 
. 200a - ^.^ 2007 

Senior,|Se'aired Gredit'Facilltics;" '̂ .:- ,:•'Xj'"''S-I-.'/'̂ ,̂>•;,-?>,'"'̂ '̂ '̂ -̂̂ ^̂ ^ ',,>. ;/.''"' -,,••"' %%''f" ':-: ^ • I^ "i..i j 
" ' July 2007 Credii Facility: ^ , .̂̂ ^ -. . , .^^,. . . , . -, 
p^Revolving-Hncl3£'credili^expiresJuJy^26.2012,iiiteresfpaya^ ' •' • '••*]:-,^- . . *" '-̂ ' 
i u - '.^Jit^hcrLiBOFTand/oiypriiiie'tjIus:!).maV^iti ^ V/"^^ " k f ^ ^ M ^ J ^ A : ^ X $ >'- -V '3d;5QQL ¥'^ V X . ' • ' % 

Variable rale lerm loans,'niaturc November 25, 2013, principal and'interest 
. payihents due qiiarteriv al eiUierLIBORand/or.prinie'phis a margin 869.313 . ,— 

.[lFgbni^2bQ5^Gfedit1Sii~'^^ 'rV'^.^^m^'^^'^'^'^'r?^^ - '->-, . / J 
-Revoivingline ofcredit • — • 210.000 

[•'-:'̂ Vtfiable:iateltenniloaii§'"-•":;..>:',.. j ^ : ' '^.•^^^^''Tf^i^-r-m'''^^^:W^'''^^'-'^.f'^'>'Sy^ 1 •^-^"- ":._293:lool 
Seriior Subordinated Notes; . . . . . . . . . , .„. ^-. ". ' ..........- ^ . 
- \v^7Seiuol'Siit)ordiriatedNbte's.;iiilercsl,i)ayablcsciiti-anii^^^ ^ \ y>' '".f& '>? ,̂.'~rjj'7""''--."'- .̂ ^ ^ 
'XSepterntJcrn ; .^^„ . " ' '' -j .̂  -"X:^---—- '. - '^•"" ^v',~^:" ""̂  ^ --'". ^ ; ' > 500.000: _ y- . "50t̂ !obo.i 

9% Seitior SubordinatedNotes,'extinguisticd August 2007 ,, ' ' . ~ . '.. . ̂ • ' 2 )̂0.000 
Senior Secunxl'CrcditJfacilities of Subsidiaries |'npn~i^oiiree4o Islc'ofCapri ' " -.'.f. ^•"^"^|^^'' :^'''"'^'' " ~' • T^ • T l 
L^gijMiqcr^'-"-^i.. -r; ,̂  n ' -'̂ ".̂ î .̂ r.::-:, ---j.ri:,,,:^^!^!^!;^.-:.^.1, - '•••••' <"- -^"- '̂ ^-' - -•-. '-^'-'-I . 

Isle-Black; Hawk Credii Faciliiy: ,_____, ^ 
f.":^Rcvolvinglihebf ciedil ^ ' ^ '° 'g^/^:-^^;:^ ::J^^; v l j ^ u s , ^ • , ' •" "^^i".:.V^;". > ^ ^. - 16.400) 

Variable rate icrm4oan . ^ ̂  ' 187 150 
i -BiueCliipGreditFacilit>^:.: _v : - • . - > - - -•^.CJ'^:;,;:g^V;"^r^/\,-v:^ .^^: V > l;262,. ;.% : 6!T57] 
Oilier - - . . ^ 2 j ^ .̂̂ .̂ 2 
i' ^n;'-.̂ .̂ ..?'̂ . y-,-->:j:. ••:--'r^K^n^7^7:^^^:rr:-^~^ .i.4i7:979j 
Less current maturities '̂̂ *̂*__ L. " ^'^^'* 
Long-tenndetit>'-'"-;-|^/^f >--l..* £ " ^ •i;^^'''"^'!v'S:.:>% •''^'-,'l^v;:^^°:"-'^^.^- 'lT497759ir$T"^"^4lT38T) 

July 2007 Credii Facility - On inW 26, 2007, we entered into a $1,350,000. seiuor secured credit facllit>' C'JiUy 2007 Credii Facitih-"), 
replacing tlie Fcbruai)- 2005 Credii Facilit\'. TlieJuly 2007 Credit Facility is secured on a first prioritybasis by substantially all ofour 
assels and by all of oursignificani domestic subsidiaries. 

The July 2007 Credit Faciliiy consists ofa $475,000, five-year revolving line of credit and an $875,000 tenn loan facility. The 
$875,000 tenn loan facility consists of a $500,000 senior secured loan faciliiy .wliich was drawn at closuig In Januar>'2008,.we used 
'pn)ceeds from our tenn loan facility lo fully rcpay and retire tlie Isle-Black Hawk Senior Secured Crcdit Facility. Siiiiullaneously, we 
designated our Black HaAvk subsidiaries as "restricted subsidiaries"' underthe July 2007 Crcdii Facility', Our net line ofcredit 
availability at April'27,2008 is approximately $170,000, after considcralion'ofapproxiniale.iy'$18,606 in outstanding letters of credit. 
We have an annual commitment fee related to the unused credit facilitj' of up to 0.5% which is included in interest expense in tlie 
accompanying consolidated siatemenis of operations. 

Tlie weighted average effeciive inieresi rate ofthe Febnum' 2005 and July 2007 Credit Facilities for fiscal years 2008 and 2007 were 
6.55%'and 7.73%, respectively: 

The Jiily 2007 Crcdii Faciliiy includes a nmnber of affinualive and negative coveremts. Additionally, we niust comply wiUi ceriain 
financial covenants including mainlenance ofa leverage ratio and inlnimuin inieresi coverage ratio. The July 2(X)7 Credit Facility' also 
rcslricts ourability lo make certain investments or disiributions. We are in coinpli;uice with die covenahls as ofApril 27, 2008, 

February 2003 Credit Facility- Priorto entering into Uic July 2007 Crcdit Facility,.we ^vere party to Ihe Febmaiy 2005 Credit 
Facilil)' C'Febmary 2005 Crcdit FacUiiy"), wliich consisted of a $400,000 revolving Iineof crcdit facility- maturing lnFcbmar>' 2010 
and a $300,000 term loan facilitj' maturing in Febmary 2011. 
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7% Senior SubprdinaledNotes - During 2004. we issued $500,000 of 7% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2014 C'7% Senior 
Subordinated Notes"), fhe 7%.Scnior Subordinated Notes arc guaranieed, on a joint a_iid several basis, by all ofour sigiuficant 
domestic subsidiaries and other subsidiaries as described more fiilly in Note IS. Ail oî  the gmirantorsubsidiaries arc wholly owned by 
us. Tlic 7% Senior Subordinated Notes aie general unsecured obligations and rank junior to all existing and fuiurc senior indebtedness, 
and equally with all existing and future senior subordinated debi, and senior to any ftiiure subordinated Indebtedness. The 7% Senior 
Subordinaied Noles are redeemable, in wliole or in p;irt: at ouroption at any time on or jiflerMarch I, 2009, al die redemption prices 
(expressed as percentages of princiixil amount) set forth below plus accmed and unpaid inleiest lo the applicable redemption dale, if 
redeemed during the 12-monfh period beginning on Marcit 1 st of llie years Indicated below: 

Year 

2009,_.v:. ;.:5-,•• 
20IO 
•2pir :a:f.....^^{ , 

T S ' ^ " 

^ i ^ \ 

'i"t'-=.rr- •'-

" " ' . • -

- ' ^ ^ ' % i V V " -

, , . • * , - , • , . , • 

Percenlage 

,^.^^*^I03':50J)%3 
102:333% 

Z]IF~f91>'67Ja 
2012 and thereafter 100.000%' 

Tlie indeniure, governing the,7% Senior Subordinated Notes limits, aniong other things, ourabUity and our resiricted subsidiaries 
ability to borrow money,make restricied payments, use assets as security in olher iransactions, enter into transactions wiUiaffihates or 
pay dividends on or repurchase stock. Tlie indenture also limits our jibility lo issue and sell capital slock of subsidiaries, sell assets in 
excess ofspecified aiiiqiinis orjncrge yylUi or into oilier compaiueS: 

9% Senior SubprdinafeclNotes - During 2002, we issued $2pp,000,of 9% Senior Subordinaied Noles due 2012 (•:9% Senior 
Subordinaied Noles"). Tliese 9% Senior Subordinated Nolcs>wcrc called for-redcmpiion at464,5% and redeemed during August 2007. 

Isle-Black Hawk'Senior Secured Credit Facility - During,2005, Isle of Capri Black Hawk, L.L,C. entered into a $240,000 S_econd 
Amended and Restated Credit Agreement and aniendedsuch agreemeni diuing Jaiuian';20b7^ihe "Isle-Black Hawk CrcditTacility"). 
Tlie credit agreerneni, as amended, provided for a $50,000 revolving credit fa'cUit)' arid a $190,000 temi loaii facilitj'. The credit 
agreement \yas secured_by liens on substantially all of isleof Capri Black Hawk, j^.L;C,'s assets. Asof Januarj' 28, 2008, we repaid 
and cancelled the Isle-Black Hawk Credii Facility witli borrowings.urider our July 2007 Credii Facility. 

Tlic w'eighted-jn'erage effective interesi rate oftotal debt outstanding underthe Isle-Black Hawk Credit Facilitj' for the fiscal years 
2008 and 2007 was 6.99% and 6.79%,.nsspeclively. 

Blue Chip Credii Facility - Blue Chip Casinos Ltd. C'Blue Chip") eniered imo an agreemeni effeciive November 28, 2003, as 
amended on May 24, 2004, witli ihe Baiik of ScoUaiid to borrow uplo £3,500_(Uie "Blue Cliiip Credii Facihly") to fund its casino 
development program. The Blue Chip Credii Facility- is secured on a first priontj' basis by subslaniiaily ali of Blue Chip's asseis. As of 
April 27, 2008, we had repaid all ouisianding balances under.the lenn loan facihly and liad £636 ($1,262) oulstanding l)alance under 
die £800 revoiyliig loan facUily, Tlie interesi rate at Blue Cliip's opiion is (!) Uie Baiik of ScoUand's base rale plus a cumcnl margin of 

•2,0% or (2) LIBOR plus a margin of 1,75%. For fiscal years 2008 and 2007, the weighted-average effective interesi rate was 8:75% 
and 7,25%, rcspeclively..TheBlue Cliip CrcdilFacilily is noiiTrccourse lo die Compariy. 

Blue Cltip wasjndefauUof ceriain debl covenanls as qfand subsequent to April 27, 2008, wliich liave been curcd by Blue Chip or 
compliance waived by die bank. As ofApril 27r2008;'Blue Chip Jiadrto letters ofcredit outstanding under the Blue Chip Credii 
Facility, arid net availability' under tlie Blue Chip Credit Facltitj' was £164 ($325). 

Losses on Early Exlinguishment of Debl - In conjunction witii die replacement of die Februaiy 2005 Credit Facility witli llie July 2007 
Credit Facilitj'-,$2,192 of unamortized debl issuancecosis were recorded as a loss on early extinguishment of debt for fiscal year 
2008, while the remaining deferred debt Issuance costs will beamortized overlhe respective lives'of the new revolverand tenn credii 
facilities of Uie July 2667 Credii Facility. Losses on Early Exlinguislunent of Debt for the fiscal year 2008 totaled $15,274 and 
included the $2,192 from the credit facilitj- refinancing, the $9,000 call premium and write-off of $2,468 in unamortized deferred 
financing costs associated with the call ofour 9% Sciiibr SubcnJinaled'Notes and $1,614 ofunamortizcd deferred financing costs 
associated wilh die early repayment ofour Black Hawk Crcdii Facility. We followed EITF 96-19 "Debtor's Accounting fora 
Modification of Exchange of Debt Insiruments" and EITF 98-14 "Debtor's Accounting for changes in Line-of-Credit or Revolving 
Debt Arrangements" in accounling for Uiis rcfmancing trimsiiciion and its associated deferred debt issuance costs. 
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Interesi Rate Swap Agreements - We liave entered into various interest rate swap agrcemenis pertaining to the July 2007 Credit' 
Facllilj" for an aggregate notional value of $450,000 with maturit)' dales ranging from fiscal year,2010 to 2012 inorderto manage 
market risk on variable rate lerm loans outstanding, as well as comply wilh, in part, requirements under tlic July 2007 Credit Facility. 

These swap agreements meet ihe criteria for liedgc accouniing for cash flow hedges and have been evaluated, as of fiscal year,200S, as 
•being fully effeciive. As a result, therc is no impact on our consolidated stateinenl of operalions from chingcs in fair value. As of 
April 27; 2008, we recorded a liability of $13,714 in Oliicr long-tenn liabiliticsrcprcsenting the fair maricet value of Uie swap 
agreements and an uiireahzed lossof $8,555, net of a $5,159 deferred income tax benefit, inAccuniulaied other coinprehensive loss 
on the, consolidated balance slieel: Asof fiscal.year 2008, the weighled average fi.Ked LIBOR inierest rate of our interest rate swap 
agreements was 4.65%, 

The fairvalue ofdie estimated Interesi differentia! between die applicable fuhirc variable rates and die interesi rate swap conlracls not 
designated as hedging iiistruments, e.xprcssed in present value tenns, totaled $0 and $528;as of fiscal year 2008 and fiscal year 2007, 
respectively. Based oh the rnalurily dates oflhe conlracls, tiiese amounls arc included In prepaid c-x-pciiscs and otherassets Inthe 
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. 

The. aggregate, principal payments due on longrtenn debl as of April 27, 2008 over die next five years and thereafter, are as follows; 

Fiscal Vears Ending: 

2009: - '^^ v'-^'-u'- ;T^. ^----^^-:7dS:'-.-• 1^'S"S^-1 
2010 " • "" 9.159 

,2012 
-20135 
Tliereafte'r ' $ ' 1.329:300 

•frSt^ '̂ '̂  -"• '• r . .>•^•..^^•-:" - -^^$--.-^TiBo7r2fe! 

8, Other Long-Term Obligations 

Covenlry Conveniion Cenler -We entered into an agreement during fiscal j'car 2004 to lease space for a new casino, wliich opened in 
July 2007, in Coventry, England in die sub-level ofthe Arena Covenlry Convention Center. The conveniion cenler vvas developed, 
and is owiied and operated by a non-affUialed entity and began operations in Augusi 2005. Because certain stmclural elements werc 
installed by us diiring tlie conslmction of dK space being leased aiwj certain prepaid lease payments we made, we arc rcquircd to be 
trcaled. for accbunting purposes only, as the "owner' of the Arena Govenirj' Convention'Genter, in accordance widvEnieiginglssues, 
Task Force IssueNo. 97-10 ("EITF 97-10"), "Tlie Effecl of Lessee Invblvemeni in Asset Constmction", Accordingly, we have 
recoided a long-tennobligaiion for £24,230 ($48,058) and £23,837 ($47,639).as of April 27. 2008 and Aprii 29, 2007, respectively, 
even dioughwe do not; (1) own this asset, (2) wcarc not the obligor on the corresponding long-term obligation and (3)'d6 not 
panicipaie in or control the operations oflhe convention center. Upon completion of the convention center we werc precluded from 
accounting forthe irarisaclibn as a sale and leaseback under SFAS No. 98 ''Accounting for Leases" due to our continuing involvement 
asa tenant, as a result of ourlejise prcpayments during the constinction period of the coiiyention center Thereforc, we arc accounling 
for Uie transaction usirigThedireci financing method iri accordance wiih SFAS No. 66 "'Accouming for the Sales of Real Estate". 

The oUier long-tenn obligation will be refiecled In our consolidated balance sheets until completion of the lease tenn, when the related 
fixed assets will be removed from our financial slalemeiits, Al such time, the net ofthe remaining obligation over the carrj'ing value of 
tlie'fixed asset wdl be recognized as a gain on sale ofthe facility, 

Tlie following table represents fuhire ininiinumpayments, whichwll! be recogitized as interest expciise,,due under the long-lemi 
obligalion as ofApril 27. 2008 in values of bolh British Pounds and U.S. Dollars using die April 27, 2008 excliange rate of 1.9833 US 
Dollars to British Pounds. 
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Kisi-iil W-iiH linding: 

2010 • 623 1.236 

2012 _ __ 623 1.236 

m^x^^ciTl^k^it^ i__^-HOS112iSgl^gSE3ii2i63 
TTicrcafler_^^ ^ _ ;Mi27 "9.573 
[To'tiilmiriiniurajease• payments^•'".̂ •'" '̂̂ ^I^ -''̂  £^.1__ I^r7^42:,"..$iii^i^^r5'753n 

Beltendorf Evenls Cenier -We have eniered Inio.agreemenis with tlie City of Bettendorf, lowa undef.whichthe City has agr^d to 
conslmct an events center.adjaceni to our new hotel. We will lease, manage,-and provide financial and operating support for the evenls 
cenler.'TheCompany lias detenniiied thee\'ents qeiiter is a ti"ansacUou uiiderEITF 97-10.'As such, the Company.is deemed to be,die 
owner of tJie events center during the constmction period and at April 27,2008, lias recorded consliuction ui process of $5,428 and an 
oUier long-tenn obligalion of $4,247. Total constmction costs ofthe event cenler are estimated al approximately $20,000. 

9. Common Slock 

Earnitigsper Share of Cominon Stock - The following table,sets forth Ihe computation of basic'and,diluted eantings (loss^pcr share (in 
diousands, e.xcepl sliare and per sliarc amounls): 

April 27. April 29. April 30, 
,- "2008 2007 2006 

Numeim^^^; X \._:. 'ki .1 •- t^^^-^^.^^""'^^^-- t - >:f- u^ ' -y r^ ' ^ i^^ ' ' ' ^ .^ '^ • :̂ ''- ' •' ^'r ^ :% . -"J''/- : 1 
Income (loss).applicable lo cominon sliares: ' 

l ' '^ Jncome (loss):froincQntiiiuing:operali6ns:\ ,r v.V='.r ;t-^^.S:^^'- ;(96?874)i $'̂ :: - .,;(2f:329):.$i ' .,/8,631;| 

[i?.^lncome;froIn^iscbn .: "TT^ ^-\ "̂ ^ . ̂ ""fV̂ I . "r, ,• V---TJ_ '' , . 16.692:- "' " ..--_l0.2^4? 

Nirinco1rie:''(loss)^" "^'.f: - 'w-: '?i%'-"^'V.: '^rr^;^ ^^4^?^$"^ '^ ' /'(%?874?TT~ ^̂ •̂f4X)37):$'• -' '• .̂ 18 " 

Dcnojm!Uitonu;i.^_i:;,lU:_, i,:^^.^...:^^- -'^-• ..-^Ll^-:^/-^'l^^: -I,: '.̂ ^^ r̂r:'̂ '---.'..'••'̂ . "• .-^ . ^ ^ 
Denominiitor for basic eamings (loss) per sliare - weighted 

average shares ^ 30,699,457 36,384,255 30,028,051 
C7^ Effecl of dilutive securities Efrmlovee'siock'opuoiis'and^ -rl^-t /.^^ ^ ' i^ -^- - '•''•'• v̂ •- •- •^-''""•'%. . ' - ' / ' ^ 
^^K^-^drivested^iriat^.stock;^^V-gy..:r^/' X f '• : l¥4;^a^^^&i:^<v. -"^^-^ -•|.242U35J 

Denominalor for diluied earrungs (loss) pershare - adjusted 
weighted average shares and assmned convcrsiims 30,699^57 ^ 30,384,255 - 31,270,486 

Basic eamings (loss) per sliare; 
r2^.Incbme:aoss)'^ffom^unuin^^tKraUons'' f»-70)';^$i';',- v^ JQ.2^ 

Income from discontihncd operations —____ ^-^^ •̂•̂ '̂  
Net:income:(loss)^;:F^^3%..;;^;- : \ . a ^ r : . :'-Cr-£:^-d44<^$P^^:-> .-(̂ Aty) $ -^ -.•>^fQ:15V:$-. ~ ^ ;.0:63p 

fjiliitcd eaniiiiRSiloss),persliareTfy"̂ ^ '̂"''r"*^^^^^^^^ ''^fV.'i^^^l^^i^fyV,-'''-.,.^ ' ; , " : ' \ -L. ~̂~,"̂ >̂  .' ,.,j 
^Income(loss)fromcojitinuingoperation .^. .. , . i'.^„....- ,_ _ P-^^j A .{^"^^X^ 0,28 

ffj JnoDJ^fromjfSntxiiued'o^ra ^ ,:0:321 
Net income (loss) $ (3.16)$ (0.15)$ 0.60 

Poienliidly dilutive common slock options excluded from the compulation of diluted earnings (loss) per share which were anti-dUutive 
due to our.loss from continuing operations were 3,872,513, and 3,057,054 forfiscal years 2008 and 2007, respectively. Potentially 
dilutive coinmon stock options excluded from tlic compulation of diiuled earnings per sluire diie to anti-dilution were'335.106 for 
fiscal ye;ir. 2006. 

Stock Based Compensation—Stock Options - We liave Iwo slock-based compensation plans,;ihe 1993 Slock Option Plan and die 2000 
Slock Option Plan as amended, whicli Iiave a ma.ximmu of 4,650,000 and 3,500,000 options, respecliyely, which we reserved for 
issuance and may be granted to directors, officers and employees. Tlie plans provide for theiissuance'of incentive stock options and 
nonqiialified options which Iwve a maximum tenn of It) years and arc.-gcnerallj',exercisable,inyearly installments of 2()% 
commencing one year after die date of granL We have 350,043 shares avaUable for future issuance under Its equiij* compensation 
plans as ofApril 27, 2008. 
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Effeciive May 1,2006, we have adopted SFAS 123(R)using the modi,ficd prospective:meUidd. thus, results fordie periods priorto 
May I,:2006 have iipl been rcstated in relation to tiic appiication of Si^^ 
expense for fiscai years 2fM)8 and 2007, itspectively. The ihcdme:t;LX benefil-recognized fonnonqualified slock opiion'ex"perise was 
approximately $1,861 and $1,584 for fiscal years 2008 and;2007; respectiy'̂ cly,'Wealjo recpgfiized an excesstax benefit on ihe 
exercise'of stock oplions of $977,:and $849 in fiscal years 2008'ancl 2007, respectively wJiiclf'decreased bur federal taxes payable. 

Asof April 27, 2008, tliere was SI O.T 51 in unrecognized stqck:compensation costs, relatedto unvestcH options, wliich we expecLwe 
will recognize overlhe rcmaining vesting'iKriodSiW îtha w^ of3:9,years. Stockoptibiis 
grained generalIj', are exercisablein yearly insl4htients;̂ ^^ We recognize 
cbnipe/tsation experise forlhesegranls on a straiglit-tine basis overlhe requisite service period for each separaiely vesting portion of 
die award; as if the ajvard was! inrsiibstance, multiple awards, 

Tlie fairvalue of each option grant-is esliniated'on the date of tiie'grant using tlie Black-Scholcs-Mertori,option-pricing model wiUi'Uie 
range of assumptions disclosed in the following table for the pcrio*ds presented. Weighted average; vplatihty is calcujated'using, the 
historical volatiliiy.of our slock prices over a range of dales equal;lo,lhe expected.! average' 
expected terTnjs calculated usiiig historical data lliat is representative of the opiion foyyhicli'thc fairA'alueis l̂o be determined. The 
expected tenntrcpresenls the period oftiiric Ihaloptipiis graiUe'd iire:ex-pected to be outstanding. The weigliled average risk-free rate is 
basedon the-U,'S. Treasurj'. yield cun^ein effecl at tiie tinie of the^grant for the app.roxiiiiate to tlie,grant's 
expected, tenii; 

April 27,2008; April 29; 2007 April 30,2006 

^^^43:62%t)ki^^258%t2!Ef55:ol5 ^^Wggiue5!^yerageA^oiar^^ %^»^<-::^^^^^?^ 
Expecied dividends'' ' . ,, ,! " Ndiie None None 
iVVeightediaj'eragc^xpa:led4emvlui:vc'arsKig f̂e -̂->-r̂ ;.--̂ :;'yi};,-,̂ .̂ ^a ' /"•:. 5:89E.^Jlj^li6!36^ 
Weighted average risk-fr«; rate :3;94%' 4:69% 4.32%' 

•Asuimnaij' of option activity for the Tiscal year;2008 is presented below: 

Options, 

.Weight wl 
Avcmgc 
Exercise 

Price 

^Wel£hted 
.-ivenigc 

Kfowi/iing-
Liife 

Aggregale 
intrinsic: 

Value, 

Oi;istandin:gIopiions!5t-ApHlh30.U007̂ "̂-"̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^ 
Options-granted l-Z ĝ.SOO 16.40 

options forfeiied:aiid expired. ' (341:055) -21.86 

WWmM&WMMMSS!i^j5l^ISEjS dilts^ndin.g ̂ pti bns^al^^riij3 7;'2( 

DiitslaiKlitig'cx^isable'Qpiibnsjai/Ap^ 

The"tbtJd intrinsic value ofoptionsc.xercised during fiscal years^20p8, 2̂ ^̂  respectiveh". 
IJpon die exercise of options'; we:issued new shares to the optionee which'iiicreasesiUie lotal iiuiiiber:of cominon shares qutsnmding. 
,Tlie weighted average fairvalue of oplions granled during the fiscalyears 2008,2007 and'2066 was $7.72, $13.67 and $13,09, per 
sfiare/respectively. 

Prioi'jto;May I, 2006, we applied the recogiution and measureriient principles of APB:25,and related Interpretations in accounting for 
die Cohipariy's Uirec stock'-based employee compensation plans. No stockTbascd einployee coinppnsatibne.xiKnse,isrcn^ In net 
income; as all options granted under those plans Iiad an exercise price equal to the niarkei value of tlie underlying comiiibn stock on the 
date of grant: The following table.iihistrates ihe effcci on net income andearitings per sl^re^aslf the Coinpaiiyhad appIied:Uî  
value recognition provisiorisof SFAS 123 as amended by SFAS 148;, to,stock-based emploj'ee coinpens;itiqa 
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April 30,2006 

Deduct: Total stock-based employee cbinpeusaiion expensedctcnnincd under fair 
value based method for all awards, net of rclalcd lax cffecfs (3,804) 

Pro,fQniia4iKqnie,befqrc.dî ^ :-,,-%^„- '̂̂ 4,J~t;::;--m%--^-'"'̂ S^A'̂ ,^.^. S-'S-^ • \ > ̂  "• .̂  I p,Q71:;^J 

As Reported , , _ 
FNeOtiKbrne .•^^^'7<^:-- ^-^:. -.^-: ./--/y- ^'•-/"'-:,>.• ->1^V S^'#::":-X-:,_$S : - ^ ^ ^ " ^ • 0 : 6 3 ^ 
Eiimirigs per sliarc: Basic . . ^ 
ProFomia-: .> J.-,,>-^^>.. V • --. - ,-.>- ^,.-^:,„ ^1.-. >^^.-;^..^>^^..i--;- -.^:._ - - ,. •.^- ^1 

Net income $ 0.50 

••Earnings per share: Diluted 
.!AiiRfpo'rtedF .̂-̂ r -l?: -- ' • ^ ' ' ^ ^ ' ^ T r 7 ' ^ 7 r ~ - ^ ^ 

Net inconie . ' _, ,.$ 0.60 
Earmngsper.sii;irc;-DduledT -̂T T ^ . . 7 - "- :• m ' ;>:̂  >"^,-^-'c-;- - \ -.j " S t ' ^ { 
Pro Fqniia ] * . , . y .-

Stock-Based Compensation—Deferred Bonus'Plan - In fisc;ii:200l, our stockliolders approved die Deferred Bonus Plan. The 
Deferred Bonus Plan provides for the issuance of hbn-vested stocklo eligible officers and employees who agree to receive a defemed 
bomis'in the: fonn of non-vested stock. The vesting of.the sjock'is dependent upon continued service to Uie.Company fora period of 
five years and die fairvalue of tlic non-vested stock is amortized raiabl>'::over the vesting period. At April 27, 2008, the non-vested 
slock outstanding in connection wilh the Deferred Bonus Plan totaled 40; 167 sharcs, none ofwliich were granted during fiscai year 
ended .Aprir27, 2008, Compensation e.xpense relaled'to stock-based compensation under tlie Defened Bonus Plan for fiscal years 
2008, 2007, and 2006 totaled $265, $548, and $367, respeclivcly: We do nol plan to aw"ard any furUicr compensation under the 
Deferred Bonus Plan, however, any grants that liave been a\yarded prior to the Defened Bonus Plan's discontinuation will be paid 
provided the vesting requirements are met. 

The following table presents Uie humber and weighted average grant-date fair value of sliares granted, vested and forfeited duririg die 
fiscid year 2008; 

Weighted 
Number Avei-age 

of - Fiiir 
Shares Value 

NoiT '̂ested-stock:3l'Aprir29: 2007. • ':;. U^ \ ',7^99;98U-
Sluircs granted — . 
Siuiresy^led.,,:^3Lr--s^> A- .^ . f rT.^-(50:311%^:^hf' 'Ml 
Sliares forfeiicd _ _ _ - _(9.437) 20^7 
Noii->'esledloci^^nr27.^2008~~T^ 

Tlie weighted average fairvalue of sliares vesied relaled lothe Deferred Bonus Plan forfiscal years 2008,2007 and 2006 is $873, 
S266 and $731, respectively. 

Stock Repurcha.se - Since November 15, 2000, our Board of Directors has approved a stock repurchase program, as amended, 
allowing up to 6,000.000 shares of ourconiriion stock lo.be,repurcliased.. As ofApril 27, 2008, we;iiave rcpurcliased 4,895,792 shares 
bf coininon'stock, and rctired 553,800 sliares of common slock under tliis stock rcpurcliase program. 
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10. Deferred Compensation Plans 

2005 Deferred Compensation Plan - On Januaiy 11, 2005, we adopied the 2005 Deferrcd Compensation Plan (tlie "Plan"), which 
amended and restated the prior deferred comperisation arrangemcril. The Plan is an unfunded deferred compensation arrangement for 
die benefil of key nianageinent officers and emplojees oflhe Companyand Its subsidiaries. The termsof die Plan include the ability' 
oftlie piirticipants lo defer, on a pre-ta'>c basis, salaij', bonus payments aiid any.volunlaiy defenrdsio tlte Company's Retiremenl Tmsl 
Euid Savings Plan in e.xcess oftlie amount pemuttedunder IRS Code Section 40 l(k). Tlic tenns also allow for a discretionary aimual 
matchirig contribution by theCompany. Tlie'Plim allows foriiic aggregation aiid inveslnie notional 
inveslmenl allernalives. including uiuls representing shares bf our cominon slock. The liability relaled lo the Phm as of fiscal 2008 
and 2007was $3,242 and $3.108, respectively. E.\pense forourcontribiitions related to die Plan was $85,,$31 and $36 in fiscal vears 
•'2008, 2007 aiid-2006, rcspeciively 

IL SupplemenlalDlscIosureof Cash Flow Information 

For the fiscal years ended April 27, 2008, April 29,200.7 and April 30,:2006 we.made cash payments of Interest, net of capitalized 
interesljor $108,090, $90,620 aiid $88,360; respectively. Additionally,.we paid income taxes, net of refunds, of $7,949 and $I8;528 
in fiscal years-2CK)8 and 2007, respectively and oilfecied a refund, nel ofjiaymenisof $392 in fiscal j'ear 2006, 

For llie fiscal yearended April 27,2008 we purchased land fiiiiincedwIUi a noie payable for $3i096. Also, as discussed In Nole.8, we 
acquired $4,247 ofassels aiidobligations'related ib the Beltendorf Converition Center. 
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12. Income Taxes 

Income tax (bcnefil) provision from continuing operations consists of the following (in thousands): 

April 27, 
2008 

I'isfalVeiir Ended 
April 29. 

2007 
April 30, 

-2006 

Gnrrerii: [0''i^'.ijf.;'\7-^.'- ..'- i - ' - ^ ' - . - ^ - l i ' V > • ' i . € " • " ^ . \ ^ " ^ ' - - \ . ..' .. • .̂ '>:i 
Federal ^ $ (20.110) $ 6,873 $ 1.459 iiis::gis:.-ss,_iii:;;.;: ^j., '•'T̂ TM)iiS2mszn''̂ nMSi 
_^ (̂20,576) 8M17 3,499 
"Delcircd: . : :-^rT^.-^ :. ,^- ;.;_'-v:' --^-.-;, 4 •,,, ." -. ' . > ' >.-^. ^ O t ^ v ' ,s ^ ^ 
Fede hil ^ ;; (40,472) (8.362)-; "2,298 
•Stalc.i£-2>V:-.;;i^:j.:=l^'--L..^^ 

Income tax (benefit) provision $ (64,820) $ 1,906 $ 5;628 

There is no tiitemaiional tax e.xpense or benefit Inourconsolidated tax provision for any fiscal year because eilher our international 
operations are based in a jurisdiction tliat does noi impose a corporate; inco me lax or.die jurisdiction only ia.xcŝ our local operations 
;md those local operations generate losses for which wejiiivc cstabilshed fiill valuation allowances. These international losses will be 
lax benefited al such time tliai ilie related Intemational operationsgeneratc operating eariiiri'gs.'̂ sijbjeci'to stalutoiy iinuiations. 
Effective April 27, 2008, all of oiu iniemational'operations are subjcci to ta.xalion in llie United Slates. 

A reconciliation of income ta.xes from conlinuing operations at the statutorj-corporate federal lax rate of 35% to the income tax 
(benefit) provision rcponed in the'accompany irig cbiisotidaled'statemeiits of operations isias follows (In thousands): 

April 27, 
2008 

FLseal Vear Ended 
April29. 

2007 
April 30, 

2006 

St_aliitohMax(bcijefil) provision/ '' ^^•h,'^*ii ]$^ ;(5'4T889)-$r> ,-f5B^"8rir?''^7:"2'59l 
Effecis of: __ ^ __„____ 

OUjer _ ^-.^—^^ ' . _ 
F^Varioiis pcfiSerit:differeiicrs-"^"SF^;:^"'•:>l-.620-."^-'^.^l!528!:- T.;. '̂1^264] 

Goodwill impairment •—̂  2,730 .̂  — 
r>i-̂ ' ::EuiplQvincnl-mx'credilsi-TT"^'^MT^; ^ . •^T(i'l351) •^M^ '̂('ill798) ' "'> -' (31353) 

Change in state allowances _ 1.656 944 ,-296 
• ' ' Imenilitioial^peration^::-:ff:..T^TE •--̂ '̂̂  .4.286] 

Capital loss (3.136) 
rv!B^degiexpen^r'^~"^^n:?^;:^::-'^' '^•(Vm!iytmm~w^ ̂ ---^^^ 

Minoriij'imcrcst (1.943) (l-^Z^) (2.605) 
Q ^ i i a j n a f i n i p m n ^ l J . , " -'--V -.-'.ir-jT^ -T.":. . ̂ - . ^ 5 ^ " 7 H ^ ' ; 8 4 5 r ^ ? ^ J ( 8 7 0 y 

Hurricane Kalmta ihyphmlar\: comersion^^ ^__ —_ — _(L843) 
!SlQtialifje5'stockopuoii^expeii^efJ^J^.^^^^ % : ^ A S ^ ^ ^ ^ 1-.I0.T:, f̂̂ -̂ -- fSP^I 
_^_OUicr^_^ ^ " . " _ . ' '. 1.258 113 (381) 
Incorii^tax^(benefil);provTsS-j't ' ' j £^^S3SZMrf^ iW^^I ! ! iKL '^S^33lZM<?2^ 
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Significani components of our domestic net deferted incoirie lax assel (liability') are as follows (in thousands): 

Yisca] Year p::nded 
April 27, April 29. 

2008 2007" 

pcfciTedlaxjiabilities:;-^-^ .̂ 
Propem' and equipmem 
Qrber:^lT, •: T^<"^t,-- -7" 
Total deferred tax liabilities 
Defc rrccl "lax^'assets':.'^!^ >-

$ (24.560) $ • (62.449) 
ZEI2ZS3SI:(8;Q34)^:22-(4,fi6i)' 

(32.594) (67.110) 

Accmed expenses 
teni;dive, inminium • tax- crcdii" 

Employment tax credits 
b' CaijiiiiIjlosstariybvcr. ..-•':- :'% ' .'fJ.' ^-C-.M;. '̂ "̂ Ĉ--

Nct operating losses 

21.895 20.050 

1,848 . 8 2 

; i . ^^^ :M 
22.011. 16.472 

Tolal deferred tax assels 
jValuati6ii:allow"ance_,on defe'ritdjla.\" assets' -;; • 
Net deferrcd ta.x asset 

. 1 ^ -•':•: • 

62.311 
^ ; 5 8 6 j 
45.641 

52,9158 • 38.080 
:l ' : ' .f î ''-̂  "''^•'.•p'^W^r]::^'^'. "̂ ¥" w 3 " f t . ' 

Net deferrcd tax asset fliabUitj') 20,374 $ (29,03,0) 

At April 27, 2008, we liave federal net operatingloss carryforwards ofS30,452foriiiconie lax purposes, with expiration dales from 
fiscai year 2011 to 2028, Appro,\iniately $26,406 of tiiese net operating losses are altribiilabic to IG Holdings Colorado, Inc.and its 
wholly-owned subsidiarj' GCSG/Blackliawk; Inc. C'lC Holdings, Inc. &.Sub") aiid can only be used to offsei income earned by Uiese 
entities. The rcmaining federal nel operaiing losses are:subject to limitations under die internal rcvenue code and underiying treasury 
regulations, whichmay limit the amotint uitunalely utilizcd;4iowcvcr,:we'belicvc Uiat all federal net operating losses will,be utilized 
prior lo'e.xpiralion. Itj Holdings,d_nc. & Sub also lias a federal capital losscarrj'fonvardof $4,146 tliat e.xpires in 2011,for which it has 
established a full valuationallowance because it does hoi ex-pcclto benefil from the cupilal loss. We also liave state uicome tax net 
operaiing loss canyforwards of $216,549 wiili e-xpiration dales from fiscal year2009 to 2028. We have detennined that it is more 
hkely I Itin iiol that we will not be able to utilize $134^723 of thestaie income ta.x-net operating los.ses:ahd have established a valuation 
rescr\'c accordingly. Ifor when rccognized, the tax benefits rclaling to any reversal oftlie valuation aliowance on deferred tax assets 
at April 27, 2008 will be accoimted for as follows: approximately $4,651 wiU be recognized as a reduction of iiicome taxexpense, 
$4,692 will be recognized as a reduction of goodjvili. We also have a federal general business credit carrj'fonvard of $1,848 for-
income lax purposes, witich e.xpires ui die fiscal year 2027. We believe dial diese credits \vill be utilized prior to expiration. Deferred 
income ta.xes rclaled to NOL canyforwards tiave been"classified as iioncurrent to rcfieci llic expecied utilization of the can^-fonvaids. 
Tlicpropert\'andequipmenideferiediax iiabihij'at April 27.2008 is net of ihe deferred lax asset rclaled to the Jl̂ ovenirj' impaimient 
of $29,295. ' " . 

We adopied tlic provisions of FIN No. 48 on April 30,2007. The adoption of FIN 48 did not liave any iinpxl on our consohdated 
statement of operations or stockholders'equiiy widiin the consolidated balance sliect. Weliad a total of $24,152 and $2! ,819 of 
uiirecognized [ax benefiis as ofApril 30,,2pp7,ahd April 27;2008, respectively, A recbnciliation ofthe beginning andending 
amounts of unrecognized tax benefits are as foliows: 

April 27. 
2008 

Balaiice at ApriL3Q: 2007,̂  y j T^T" 

Gmssincreases-tax pQsilibrisin_currem period. 949 
(JFOSS increase"s - l.Yx^tSionrin priofpen'ods^ '̂ ' "^ .^^^^^^"Tf^^^^^?^ ' ' - - ' ^ 8 3 3 ^ 
Gross decreases - lax positions ni prior periods (486) 
Sehlemeî s - '^"!?^---r; ••: ~ ^ 1 - . U^^ .^^' ' tWl^'^ 'JT^^F^^^^'mTmsf, 
Lapse of statute of limitations 
Balance al_-Aprii:27„2()Q8;'- ZSMESSEISZ^S^SSSSilog 
Included in die balance ofunrccpgnizedta.x benefiis at April 27, 2008 are $8,128 bf tax benefits Uiat, if recognized, would affect the 
effective tax rate. AlsouicludeduiUiebalanceof unrecognized tax benefiis at April 27,2008 are $9,318 of tax benefits Uiat, if 
recognized, would result in adjustments lo deferred taxes. 
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We recogitize accmed interest antl penalties relaied to unrecognized laxbenefits in income'lax e.xpense. This policj'djd iiorcliange as 
a result ofthe adoption of FIN 48. Related lo the uiuiscognized tax benefits noted above, we accrued inierest qf $3,250 and no 
pcnaUiesdunng ihefiscal yearended 2008. lhtotal,as,ofApril'27,'2()t)8,we have recognized a liability of $5,513 forinteresl and no 
amoiinl for peruillies. 

We believe dial an increase in umecognized lax'benefits rclaled lo federal and stale exposimis in Uie conung yearUiough possible, 
caiuMl be reasonably estimated and will not be significant. In addition, we believe tliat it is reasonably possible that aii aniounl 
belween $7:900 and $12,000 of its currently re'iiiainiiig*uhrccbgitized;tax positions may be rccognized by Uie end ofthe fiscal year-
ending April 26, 2009. These amounts relate lo positioiis taken or to be taken on federal, Louisiana, and Mississippi income tax 
retunis for die fiscal years ending April 2002 tlirough April 2007, These amounts are expected to be resolved duringUie next twelve 
monllis as a resuli of the arUiciiMted completion of federal; Louisiaiia, and Mississippi incoine tax e.xaiitinations aswell as the filing of 
amended incoine tax returns. 

We file income tax returns m the U.S.federal jurisdiction, various state jurisdictions.and foreign jurisdictions. Asof April 27, 2008. 
we were no longer siibject to exaininatipn of ourU.S.federal'income lax returns filed for tax years prior to 2004, due" to statute 
expirations and setUements. Tlie IRS is currenlly examining our federal income tax returns for die 2004 and 2005 tax years which 
relate to our fiscal years ended April 24, 2005 and April 30, 2006, respecliyely. Inaddition, various slale jurisHictions are currenlly 
exaiiiinirig our slate income lax retums for v;irious subsidiaries. The tax retunis for subsequcnt.yearsare also subject to exariiiiiiition. 

We file in nnmerousstale jurisdictions with varying statutes of limitations. Our unrecognized stale tax benefits are related to siatctax 
returns open from tax years 2001 Uirougli 2007 depending on each state's statute of liiiutatibns. 

13. Hiirricanesand Related Charges 

In tiie fall of 2005, bur properties in Biloxi,Mississippi, Lake Charics,;Louisiaiia and PompanoBeach, Florida were struck by 
Hunicanes Katriiia, Rita and Wil ma, respectively. 

Wc liavc'insurance cb\'erage related to the Ihreehurricanes for properlj' damage and dcstmctioii and business intemipiion insurance 
for uicremenlal costs incurred and for losl profits. We liave received partial proceeds frorn our insunmce"carriers related to:lbsses we 
have sustained. OurbeUef is we willulliinately collect morethan ihe$75,868 related,lo, tlie property iinpaimient as the insurance 
coverage is for replacement value and die uisiiraiice receivable recorded for the propertyimpaimieni represents the nel book value of 
die assels at the date of loss. In addition, we have not yet received proof of losses on open claims underihe business interruption loss 
of profits coj'erage related to the claim In Bilo.xi. We continue to negotiate wiili ouriiisurcrsio:setde our claims. Tlie timeline for final 
settlernent of the claiins is e.xpectal to occur within one year. Aclual,Insurance receipls in excess ofour insurance receivable for loss 
of income claims are reconJed as food, beverage, and otlierrevcnucs: Oilier irisurance.proceeds.received above anj'ririsurance 
receivable are shown as a reductiori of expensejn a componenl of incomefroni operations. 

Tlie following table shows the aclivity flowing Uu"0ugli the hurricaiie insurance accounts: 

Toliil Ineiirrtrd as nt 
. April 27. April 29, 

2008, 2007 

Projgm^ni^ainrierii (l)-^ '^? :^; .^ i -^^^^!V^^: : '^ : i •^f '^ I^^^^ ,175:8681 
1 ncreraenlal costs incurred'(2) •*5-^9 _84:793 
l-^ssoJ!il>gopie7^)?-;J^^ ^'J^.^-.ii:-'j^^'^~^5iXx^^M^^l^ iJTl-:^?^: :>^-^'Zl 
Hurricaiie related cliarges net (4) • ^(3,019) ,..j^P.l^}, 
InsiriancereceivagierKrors;->/̂ %= '̂" T " -'r^';.??^IW^r •j'H!!30r."^^^f ,̂?r58??02^ 
Insurance receipts ; (153,755) (102,662) 
Iiisurance re.cci\^0i^mb 

(1) Represents die book value of propertj' impainncnts recognized at the dateof loss as a receivable under our irisurance policies. 
(2) Insured incremental cosis incurred by us totaling $85,639 were recorded as an insurance receivable for $847, $22;617.' and $62,174 
in fiscal years 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectix'cly. 

Source: ISLE OF CAP.=f I CASINOS INC. 10-K. July 11, 2008 Fov.T̂ red by ̂ terrungsie-̂ 'Dociirrri-ni Rf:search'« 



(3) During fiscal 2007. we rccorded a gain and insurance receivable of $2,817 as the rcsult of a proof of ioss under the business 
intermption-lbst profits coverage. 
(4) Priiiiariiy represents deductibles underinsurance policies reconled as a hurricane related cliarge during fiscal 2006 which has been 
partially offset by S 1,757 gain on setdeincni of the Hurricane Rita claim in fourth quarter of fiscal year 2008. 

In connection wiUi Hooding in die Midwest during April 2008, our Natchez, Mississippi and Daj'enport, lowa. locations closed: Asa 
result, theCompany has incurred additional expenseof $139:above Uie insurance deductiljle witich is included in die insurance 
receivable in the consolidated balance sheet. 

Subsequent to our fiscal yearend,.wc rcccived$4,836:of cash wliich reduced the receivable and related to the setdemeni ofthe 
Hurricane Rita claim. 

14. Discontinued Operations 

OnJuly 31, 2006, we completed the saleof our Bossier Cityarid Vicksburg properties for cash proceeds of $238,725,nel of 
iransaction costs and a working capilal adjiistment. 

On April 25, 2005, die Company and Colorado:Grande executed a Slock Purcliase Agrcemcnt wiih a subsidiarj'of Nevada Gold & 
Casinos, Inc. C'Nevada Gold") to sell all oulstanding shares of die conunon slock of Colorado Grande to a subsidiarj' of Nevada Gold. 
A subsidiaiy of Nevada Gold was tlie (43%) minoritj'owner of lsle of .Qipri Black Hawk, L:L.C. prior to our purchase of their 
minoriij' interest, fhe aggregate estimated sales price agreed:to was $6,500 payable: (a) $600 in cash upon closing aiid,;(b) a $5,900 
promissoij' note sectired by ihe stock of Colorado Grande and Nevada Gold's future inemberslup disiributions from the IslCrBlack 
Hawkunlil the note was fully repaid. This note was fully repaid liuring fiscal ye*ir 2008: The balance outsianding under this note was 
$1,273 as OfApril 29, 2007. 

Tlie estimated sales price was adjusied by Uie dilTerence betwceri actual working capilal ajid a target jvorking capilal (as defined by 
the Sales Agreement) ori thc'closing date. The post closing adjusimeni to adjusl the aciual working capital to Ihc largci working capilal 
was niade during die fiscal year ended April 30, 2006 for Uie Colorado (}rande-Cripple Creek propertj' sale and approxiinately $800 in 
cash was paid to us by NevadaGold. 

The rcsiilts of our discontinued operations are summarized as follows: 

Disconlinued Operutinns 
Fiscal VearEndcd 

April 2*>, April 30, 
^ 2007 " 2006 

Net rej^es^^'^'^^T^^C'"'^ <^$^^^TF4i:29l[ -^^'^$S^^^6S;3^]"1 
Gain on sale of discontinued opcraiî ^ ^̂^ ^23,244_ _ _ J _ _ „ „ , T" 
P&v'iiicbn1FfroinMiic^ ^ ^^'^'^'^a?^ ^"'̂ ifX^%^^-^%'-'̂ ']^k''Z^>.599'—. ~~7P^=:I6;874T] 
Income lax provision from discontinued operations _ ^^ (12.J51) _ (6.630) 
lg^roiifdiscQmiiiued"^opei^iio^^ ' . f "l6-.692y^". "7^.~.y^-^l0:24l:1 

Net interest expense of $3,312 and $12,973 forfiscal yejus 2007 and 2006, respectively, lias been allocated to discontinued operations 
based on Uie ratio of net assets lobe sold to the smn of tolal net assels of the Company plus our debl dial was not attributable to a 
particular operation in accoidancc wiUvEITF 87-24, "Allocalion of Interest to,Discontinued Operations." 

15. Employee Benefit Plan 

•fOI(k) Plan-\We have a 401 (k)plan covering substantially, all ofour employees who have completedoncyear of sen'ice. Expense 
for our contributions related lo the 401 (k) plan was $759, $ 1,921 arid $ 1,669" in fiscal years 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Our 
contribution is based on a percentage of eriiployec contributions and maj'. include an additiomil discrciiouaij' amOuni. The 40l(k) plan 
allows employees to invest no morc ilian 5% of" llieir conlribution in bur.commori slock, 

16. Related Party Transactions 

We lease approximalcly eight acrcs of land on a monlh-to-nionlh basis from an eniitj' owned by our cliainnan and members of his 
family. TIic land is used for parking and warehouse space by Uie Isle-Betiendorf. The initial lenn of the lease expircs sixty days after 
wrilten notice is given to eitlier partj' and rcnl under the lease iscurrcntjy$23'per mondi. 
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We reimbursed AlterTrading Corporation (a private entitj' owned by our chairman and his family) for annual lease payments of 
appro.ximately $34, $46 and $119 in fiscal years 2008,2007 and 2006. respectively, for propcrtj- leased by Alter,Trading Corporation. 
Tlie land was lea.seii at our request in order to securesites for possible casi.no operations^ 

A member of UK: Board of Directors has provided consulting'services lo us relaled to on-going contracts and real esiaie transactions in 
die United States. Tlie total fees paid were $"78 and $56 plus expenses In fiscal years 2008 and 2007: 

In 2004, we entered into a contract with a riieniber oftlie Board of Direclors for consulting fees relaled to on-going cqniracis aiid 
transactions in the United Kingdom. The lolal fees paid under this contract were $60 In fiscal years 2008. 2007 and 2006, respectively. 

In 2005, one pf our'wholly owned subsidiaries. Isle of Capri Betlehdbrf, L.C, eiitered into a De\elopmeht Agi^nieni w-ilh ihe City of 
Beltendorf, Iowa and.Green Bridge Company relating to ihe development of a confercnce/eyents center in Bettendorf, lowa, the 
expansionof the hotel at Bettendorf and related facilities, including a skywalk betweeii the liolel and conference/evems cenier mid a 
parking facititj': Green Bridge Companj' is indirectly wholly owned by our cliiiirman and members ofhis faniilj'. As pan ofthe 
transaction. Isle ofCapri Bettendorf. L.C. purchased certain real esiaie owned by.Green BridgeCompanj' at its fair markel value of 
$393 in fiscal j'ear 2008. Isleof Capri Betiendorf, L.C. will hold Greeii Bridge Companj' h;irinless from certain fiiture increases in 
asscssmcnis on adjaceni property owned by Green Bridge Conipany, capped at $4:500. 
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17- Fair Value ot tinancial liismimonts 

Ttie following methods nnd assumpiions werc used lo estimate the fairvalueofeachclass of financial instmnienls for which it is 
practicable to estiniate dial value: 

Asseis. including cash, rcsiricted cash and notes receivable are carried at cost, wluch appro.vimates fair value due to their 
short-lemi maturities. 

Maricctable sccuriiies consisi of irading securities held by Capri Insurance Corporation, our capti\'c insurance subsidiary. 
Tlie trading securities arc primarily debt and cquitj' securities which we buy witii the inlention lo resell in the near term. 
Our trading securities are carried at fairvalue with changes in fairvalue,recognized in current period consolidated 
statements of operations. 

The fair value of our long-tenn debt is estimated based on die quoled niarket price of Uie underiying debt issue or, when a 
quoted niarket price is not available, Uiediscounled'cashfiowof future paymentsiitilizing current rates available to us for 
dcbl of similar rciaaining mamrities,' Debt obligations wiUi a sliort rcmainirig maiiiritj' arc valued al tlie carrj'irig amouiit. 
Tlie estimated carrj'ing amounls and fair values ofour fimmciai instniments are as foUows: 

April 27, 2008 April 29, 2007 
Carr)'ing Carrj-ing 
Amount .Fair Value Amount I'air Value 

-di*.!. Financiiil •iissetsiS?^:. ̂  <- <- - r̂ %-'̂ .̂- ̂ ^^::»tn;""'v."^^^^^^.rjl^^'^^^lff ?'.H %:- r :̂ ^ "̂  '̂" ;'..' - ' y ^ -
Cash arid cash equivalenls " $ 9i:790 _$:. .: 91.790.:$ 188114 $:- 188.114 
Maricahblesecurilies;. •"" ? ' - - ' ~ /S^"- '_•__-' "~^l8i533-\~ ::vr ••18.533:;-• ^ I7.169C;^. ? ^^'^[169 
Restricted cash _ . ^-^Q^, „ -̂̂ QA' • _" . 4.637. . 4.637 

Interest rate swaps _̂  __-̂ _ ^ ^ —^ 528 . •̂̂ ^ . 
I ^~^,^-. '-„ •- ;•=!, •. _. • • ' 1 .i:^-'vT. ••..-»;,' '>''- "V"'" fn • :i^.'-i-- .̂ •'•' '• •• • " '• -.'•• = ".". •-"-," " j " - -.' •'"--• I 
I — , f - - — . r — . - 1 — : — - . s i t : , i - j , — i " ' . ' - • I -• - • , . . — • „ - • - ., • . • ^ - ? • , , -|.| • r 

Financial liabilities: _^ _̂__ ^ _̂__̂  ' 
RcTOlver- • ~ : ^:^^^ . V ^ ^ , ' ^ y -•.•.,,1$?^ VJ3Q-500;^?C^;^130:5dO: :$ .',.•:; ^ ^ ^ - ^ l ^ - ' . _ ' . K ^ 
• yariable riile lemLJoans 2- _ 869313 ' 756 302 . . — • ., .— 
#o'Semorsuboidiriat«liioles:-.. • . •" ' ^C^'^^ %'^'tr /oOOlOOO / : ; . ; ^̂  3'77.'500 -. - ' -QOO^OOO ' •' ..̂ .-̂  490.5001 
Senior secured credii facUilj; ^̂  -— , —̂ , . ,, ...̂ "̂ ^̂ ^̂ Q „. ,.^.'̂ ,^;^Q^.,. 
,9%^uo:r.subbpSi^iliot"cs.;^-..; X^^^^^f^^^h^L^^i^^^^<r^4.?^-JT"."^":.,?- '-^:^-^^F~^b1X000-^ ;g5^ .̂r".l209!250l 
Isle-BlackTiawk seniorsecured credii faciUly '̂— . •.— 203,550 203.550. 
BhieChip..Crcdri-FaeUity:: f~'^r^ -̂̂ V ::^/i^;f - '-1^262- .^ifZ^^TIgS^^-^ ^r,;. : -6:ltH 
Ol^lKrjong-lcnn debt _ __ ^ 6,2H_ 6.214 4.772 j - ^ ^ ^ - . 
.Interest rat^l^;i;p?Pr^,cTr-lv:^w-^^^ , -. ."^^r\ 
Olher long-ienn obligations 52,305 52,305 47,639 47,639 
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18. Consolidafing Condensed FinanciJU Information 

Certain of pur wholly owned subsidiaries haj'e fully arid uncoiidilipnallyguarai^^ ona jpini and seV'cral basis, ihe payment ofail 
obUgatibns uiider.our7% Senior Subordinated Notes: 

Tlie following,wholly owned subsidiaries_^of die Ĉ ompaiiy arc co-borrowers, bnajoinland^ several basis, undenlheJuly 2007 Credii 
Facility aiid arc guarantors ofilie 7% Senior Subordinated Notes; Riverboat Goq^ 
CSNO, L.L.C.;:St: Charies Gariiing Coinpa'ii>",:fî ^̂ ^̂ ^̂  lnc:;LRGP Holdings! L.L.C.; 
P.P.i, Inc.: Isie of Capri,Ciisino Gploradalncf; lOĜ ^̂ ^ 
IOC-Kansas Citj', inc.:ilsleof Capri BettendorfiL.C:; Isle of Capri BettendoiflCiarina Corp-: Isie,ofCapri.Marquette. Inc:; 
IGC-Daveni5ort,"lnc.;;10(:-̂ ^^ 
IOC-Manufacturing.Jnc:; Riverboat Gorpbrationof^tylississippi —Vicksbii^Isic^of Gapri Black-Hawk, L.L.C; Isle:ofCapri Black 
HawkCapiial Cbrp,;4C Holdings Colorado, Inc.; teSCmiack 
Casino Ainerica of C(̂^̂^̂  Holdings, L,L.C: and lOC-CaniUiersVilie, L:L,G. Eachof the subsidiaries' guaramces 
is joint and several with tlie guarantees of Uie :oliier subsidiaries, 

Tlie following sub.sidiaries arc not giiarantois or co-borrowers under,tlifiJuly>2007Gredii'Fa"cilitj' or,'the'7% Senior Subordinaied 
.Notes: Blue Glup Casinos,,PLC; Isle of iî apri of Jefferson Gounty,\Inc.-;'l6G;Mississ^^ Isleof 
CaprirBahairias,'Ltd.̂ '10CfBaIiaiiii3s Holding, Ire 
Aiiierica, inc;;Jnternational Marco Polo Senices, Inc;; jsieiofCa^^ Inc,;;Lady 
LuckGammgCorp:;ii;adyLuck Gulfport, Inc.; Ladj'Luck Vicksbuig,:Inc.;-La%Luck'Bi!o.\i,'lnc:;i^d^^^ Cily: inc.;. 
Pprripano Park Holdings, L.L:G;°JPLA Pchcan, L:L.C.;'IO.CrCanierbn, L,L:C.;;^^^ 
and Capri Insurance Corporation. 
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Consolidating condensed balance sheeis as'of April 27,2008 and April 29, 2007 are as follows (In thousands): 

Is leofCapri 
Casinos, Inc. 

(Parent i 'Oiiiinintor 
Ubligor) .SuhsiiliiiHes 

•B^angg^lieeFrv^^^^.^'^;;^.:;^^'^'-^^^^^^^^ 

As "ofApril 27, 2008 
Consol id llling 

Non- and IsleofCapri 
C^iiaraiitor ICIiniinatin^ Casino.s, lnc, 

Subsidiari^ Entries Con.soIidaied 

GuiTcntasseis ' " ., . . $' 46'.683 $ 107.235 $ 45:568 Si (105) $ 199:381' 
imerco^Da^^Ti^ivables^- a . ^ ^ C f ' ^ ! ^ ^ l ^ ^ ? X f f i l i 9 y ^ f g ( g 8 2 ^ 

(162,496) Investineiits in siibsidianesi 162;496 
• I^pe^-andeqmFmeiit^rZ-'iJi^^' : ^ ^ ^ 3 ; i ^ ; ̂ WTsK̂  14! 
Gllierassets . . . „ 70.358 

:m38;222^j^a72I050.^C'^^'W^ vX- - > ^ - -^|ign^28,986g 
_ _ _._ _: . : ^ _ •368:316' , "̂ '̂Ĵ  " ~ , ~^ - -̂ . _„ •̂'̂ -̂'̂ ^̂  

frp%as^:isgf^W^^;, '̂<.^^^^-^?--^ 

Sl in^fnMl i^S3^^^^1S^^SlM8^^^M?^-^$12IS^ 
ln(creoinpariv."payablesr ' _ ___ — j|19,382! ' 190,056 (1^079.438) ', —'" 
.I^onFteHiTdebtllc^^current^riiatiiritie^ 
Olliehaccriied liabilities: 22:399 ;.24;670 -58.057 ' r^ _ / 105'l26 " 

Stockholders'equilj". 188,012: ^'?^_i'^^JiL^,,,....,^-i^'^^^^ I88;012,: 
flSialiliab'iiines^Jstbcklfolders;̂ ^^^^^^ 

'IslcofCa|»rf 
Cn.siniM, Inc. 

(Pareni 
Obligor) 

*.\s ofApril 2?: 2007 

iNon-
Giiariihtor Giia'rantor 

Siibsidiiirii^. . Subsidiaries 

Consolid a ting 
and 

Eliminaling 
Entries 

IsleofCapri 
Casinos,' Iiic. 
Consolidated 

.inyestinentsiinsiibsidiaries " 270";176 —• — _(270 176)̂  .̂..—z. 
^ropertvi^d^uipmt^i^^^e^ 9;64?^^^l!i78!899^1^^-^!40:027a'.^^^:^^:^^^^^^^-^^ ; ^f.338!5m 
Qli;^r assets''' ^ ' ' \ 19:250 -395:923 7,410_ (5;8Q0) 416,783: 
iTouO?asseisK^^7W>^^¥/':^"-is 

• 27,836 
Slocktioldegreqiulv?>4-< • ^ 1 ^ ^ : ^ : ^ : ^ . ' ^ - 'yt^,:M--2S^iuW^^^2^^1T^^J^^:'m^^^^^ ^^ :̂'-f(300l873Y:J- ^ ••;--28j^^li 
Tolal liabilities and stockholders'equilj' $ I,542,8()9 $: 1,286,600 :$ i.37,198 $' (890,916) $ 2;075;69I 
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(Consolidating condensed statements of operations for the fiscal years ended AprU 27, 2008, April 29. 2007 and April 30. 2006 ari: as 
follows: 

stalemenl of Operations 

. Revenues:,"̂  

'Isle uT Capri 
Casinos, Inc. 

(Parent 
Obligor) 

. j k ^ . ^ ^ j j ~^«^ ^•J: :. 

Forihc E'lsral ^•eilr F.nded April 27, 2008 
' Consolidating, 

Non- and Is leofCapri 
Guarantor Guarantor Eliminating Ca^tinos, I i i c 

Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidated 
7T"y:;>,' 

'^:..UtmJk£MjJ!^z^ -rr: ' i , . : - . / 3 
Gasino " / ' \ . " -$ : - •- — $• 1.092,292 $ 29.568 $ — $ 1,121,860 
Roonis^.toodrbeverage:arid6Uiet^> - P ^ ' ^ '.:.. i . ; . ;^59T^T^'199;582::2^.."^ 'n8-149_-: 'Tr ' X13-015)V '"•'2051075^ 
Gross revemies ; • -.359. , l,29l'.'874 .. 47717 (13,015) " 1,326,935 

.?>• r_ — ' 't- '- r V ,f. Ee^broirioiibriiifallovvaiices - r ; ,;: 1? •; .̂ :"-:̂ ^ ;̂ ^ V ^ :^:il^200:i4n.-^^P ^,(L442) _ _ 
Nel rcvenues 359 i;09L73'3 46.275 ' (13.015) 

operating expenses; 
Casino -.f.---

. (201 ,5^ 
j,i25,352 

.c~i^ 

Gariiing ta.xes 
' •^ - f f : ; : ''Sr -v V '%- -kld^ ^ ^ ,^ ~fiT5(^25^^.; :;^, . :J12.32r7~7>j:, . --^/'V', •".. ^ 4163,2501 

., . " ' • • — : , 285,444 2i958 .. - ' —- 288,402 
Rbp:iiiŝ  food;bcverageandoUierj .̂  -' ; ^. / .''.V555;822j' 
Maniigenieni fee expense (reyenue) 
Pcprecialibn'and:am6rti7iitioh'v, ;;.. 

•̂g409!426g ̂ Iv^:- >l2 U420 .-:•',' V^^d3;015). 
•37,635 (7,749) . . —" 

Total operating expenses 

. , _(29.886) 
.g ... -r,-f%^;089gp^..^,.i23^264.j^^-- •'-'•-,-"• .̂ 77774 

.136:728 
:.—gw*r]r'-t-i";— 

.•.•573;653^ 

i31,025 1.006.694 (13,015) 

Operatirig incoine (loss) 
fiitercsl expense.^et •->. ̂  
Loss on.e,\tingiiislurienl6f dcbl , „ _ , , , _ ^ 
Equitj'/in'incbiW:(lossXof suMiU '̂'" 1,7)̂ ;l':;:..,-;jî ".Tt?:̂ 5 .̂Jl'̂ ,''' 

(30.666)' 
.^(^^.ige)"^ 

(n;660) 

85.039 

i—136:127J 
1,161,432 
* . . • • J . •̂ -̂̂ -̂ ,J 

(90:453) ' ' — (36.080) 
(7L037r>:"-"_ i ; (9^239)?" ^ \ '^ " -^-^> t (105.472^ 
Jl,614) . . . — j ; ^ : (15.274) 

'•V.. ~ , 
^ , 1 'zi^. 98:6 i r 

IricpiiTe (loss) before iricome.jaxcs and'.', 
r inirioritv'riiilercsl" - ' .'.. -, - •• 
Incoine la.\ (provision) bcnefil, 
™-rws-:—T:—^ : ̂ g •'-——•—; ;.-T<I——-•— MinoritvTinterest i%'i.-' • 
Net income (loss) 

,'^-,.(I68,I39)'. 
. 71.265 

$ (96,874) S 

^jI2;388,' -.;,' IL (99 .6^ )XL 
( i ; 0 9 4 ) ^ _ „ (5,351) 

x^i£ ; . . J : ;SzL- .^^iLi^(4 ,868)J l_^^ 

-98.617- _21()[56;826> 
64,820 

6,426 S (105,043) $ 98.617 $ 
,^(4:86J 
(915,874) 

.Statement ofoperal ions 

Revenue's';.:̂ ^ ---^/l-! 
Casino 

IsleofCapri 
Ca.'iinos, Inc. 

(Partht 
Obligor) 

" I T " • ' ",(—1?7^ 

J 1. - ' ^ ^ --b. 

Forthe FLscal Vear Ended .\pril 29, 2007 
Consolid all II g 

'Noli- and 
Guarantor Ctiaraiilor Eliminating 

Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries 

lsle ofCapri 
.Casinos. Inc. 
Consolidated 

R.Qpms.ifobd:-.,bcj'criigc a lid odicr. 
Gross revenues 

.-vjt'l" Lcss; pi b iiio t ibiial'al lo^vaiices 
Net reyenues _ ___ 

Operati ng expenses: 

$ — .$,„ 991.399 $ ,24.230 $ _ .̂ — $ 1.015:629 
a - '-v:^-r ^''^,gr5'^nr9§:578--^.y-K. -̂  17.8O6 v..;- Fr' -Y 14.255t : '- '•'200:22311 

94 _J^li2,977 42.036 U,̂ ;255) __ 1-215.852 
EII2iUJ±^±2xC.(^ 131524)̂ ^V ".••, 7(834);:.,-r^':.-.:—^^^ ^̂ (214::458)! 

.94 974.353 41.-202, (14.255) 1.001.394 
j ju-sai . 

'j^€-^.-y-^i^±±. .^i^^^^ 
Gamuig ta.\cs 
ESPmsTJopd; beverage and 

i : i l 5 3 ^ 8 8 ^ ^ i ^ . . ^ ^ j S ; 2 4 5 S g E l E ^ 

Maiagemenl fee expense (revenue) 
Depreciatioriaiidauioriiyjiiion; \̂ :- " .̂ "' 

^. ^ l i l - '^ '5 (3,311) — 210.404 

.(-"•35'̂ ) 37,585_ __,(6.'235) 
fTt955g'̂ ^ r̂iiff,94I26'8'gt.--..-:̂ >^Y* '̂̂ ':̂  ^ '/•—J" 

Total operating expenses 20,248 885.951 42;491 

(Operating Income (loss) ' ^ ^ (20,154) 88.402 '0-2§9) 
IntFrcst^exTCmeTnetS^'t'V^g" '-"̂ "̂ •;!.--:'̂ ;̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^ 
Equitj'inincome (loss) of subsidjaries 9,114, -^ — (9,114) 

--- • 'i99.5 
(13.122) 935.568 

-(iJ33)^ 65.826 
•(2;605)L:%l£jt(8U68|)^ 

m 

Income tax (provision) benefit 17.483 , (19,093) (296) 
Minonty:intcrcsi...̂ -i-,-:-.'5 '̂.,f--/,; ;- -,-:•;.̂ ••̂ .̂.._--̂ ^KS :̂,.̂ r̂ .;̂ rA*:̂ k.̂ ....̂ -.̂  ^>^^^<- ._'• ••/•'--"̂ ;-_ 
Income (loss) from continuing operations _ ^21,329) 23,223 _ j(6,703) 
Source: ISLEOF CAPRI CASINOS INC, 10-K. July 1!, 2008 

^(3^568)> 
(]6;420) 

(L906) 
IIIIS(3,5.68)1 

( 2 1 . 3 2 9 ) 
Fov'-̂ red by Morningsiar^Doriimeni Kftsesrch' 

file:///pril


iibbme'frorirdiscbmihuedoperalibris.'net', fi^--?-,"^- .J'-' -^'^#.^#'^^^%^:@'-<'"^: 'S""'' T ^ ' - .^o., *'":-_ ..̂ "̂  „ -C '̂  ' ' ' V~! 
vbflaxesri^'?,:;-^^'^:.- Vr̂ r T- iV >-^^^-r: ^'y :^----. . - - j . ^I^!692^l^ J - J . ' ; ^u^!^ ' ^ -^ r ' ^ X ^ r . ' I ' / -16.692.1 

Equily.in earnings of disconlinued 
operations 

r 
Co£t 
Net income (loss) 

16.692 (16,692) 
ncon^romdisconmiuKl'oMratibii^ ^ '̂V .̂.V*^^£^"^J'-'!r"%"-'.• v; Q̂  v-̂ .-.'T, -''•::-':^' ^^J'.̂ .:-, - ' - X " ' ^ t ' l 
,:oftaxcs;f.--fe-0.^'v -^'- •" ^::--.i '-:-^-;i.^V,- I 6 . t o 2 - 3 ^ ^ i 6 : 6 9 2 n ^ . - \ r : -1^:A-- ^.^.•^ '^ri6.692)i-.-^.,.-046.692'j 

$ (4337) S 39,815 $ " (6,703) $ (33,112) $ (4,637) 
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Siaiement of Operations 

For Ihe Fiseal Veur Ended April 30, 2006 
Isle ofCapri Consolidating 
Caslnos,'tnc. Non- and 

(Parent Guaninlor Guarantor Eliminating 
Obligor) .Subsidiaries Subsidiaries . Enlries 

Re_venucs:: /:3v-:J!>::;i_i3*_->^'<».'-i-^ : J s l . i u i 2 a ^ ^ 
Casino $. ^ — $ 973,648. $ ' 30,495 .$. 
RTOJns.ffood:,bcvcragc.aiid!other/"',"^ •^•^T^T '̂;;, '̂-J^4^i j- . . ; . ' --'•-"-'-'•-- " • '^•"^"' ^'•"'' 
Gross revenues 

,v.?^ • f-•-

IsleofCapri 
Casintrs. Inc. 
Consolidaled 

—r— • J. I - n 

^'^_^r-^'._.y^:i\i\i)^i^:- -̂  •:I7:428:-•-^j:;^..(;iK90i).^-i= 
146 1,151,365 47,923 (11.901) 

1,004,143 

I x ^ pJTjmotioiiarallowanc&w..-:̂ -,. --g. • ^ • : T - ^ ^ : ^.C:--:^-:.-'a-';g^(l98:768Tivr7.„^.-(1:4060^ 
Netreveriiies '" r46" 952;597 46,517 (11,901) 

E ; ' " • * „ . . . " • . . • 7^r^7n^;:JF7l^?^:'^y~r^T^ 

L,J^.533. 
g. >.(200:'l^ 

987,359 

Operating e.\peiisc_s: _ 
Casino" .."jy->>î  '-ii'V 
.Gaming:la.xcs . . -.. ~'.- ,-. ^'4.642 
RoQirTs.-̂ food,,beverage and otheR-". /> :" v̂ -̂ -̂ ^ .5•Jl;582^^^;^'?^T30,'005.^:^:^-^ 
Management fee expense (reyenue), (34^172) . ^ 41,617 __ 
Depreciation and airio'riizatibn ,? ?• iw ̂ T U S Z S ^ >540jĵ £[^]^^^f83 i40?3ZIi— 
Total operating.e.\penses 8,950 __813,870 ._ 

^^:e.-^>"v=:'^144!20F5^. v:: '7^659' X'.^^^"''^'r ^ ^ - .---̂  -15l[860!l 
4.723 — 219.365, 

:63a38; •- ;:'^l-'(4.081)v| 
(7,445) 

. 43Q;844 I 

6:429^-?^;'^.r'-(2:556) ;::.. ^ : ;88:818' 
74,704^ . (̂ ^637) " 890,887 

" t f " . ' : ^ . i - fe^>. ^ ":>..;? -^^ s^ 
'Tl~ '~"-^ '^ 

• ' • - , . 

Operating uicome (loss) ,('̂ •804) 1 3 8 . ^ 
!nteresrcxpcnsc::r^r^->--'^^,'.. J>>V^""^J^^^(i4308)^^;gTI^ 
Loss on early e.Nlinguisliinem of debt _ . " T , , . , , ,. ^?\*ffl 
Eq'uiij-:in_'iriconie:(lb^).ors"ubsidiaries ""^'; "ii.;̂ ";'̂  24;633'. ,f ••"''|;̂ ; ĵ .̂'-'k ,txr''•''" •'̂  
IricbiTie:(Ioss) from continuing operations 

before income ta\es and minoriU' 
, uiteresi ' • 1.321 92,564 
IncometibT(provisiori) benefit '^•^. . ••^ ' '"^V'f ' ' "^ ' - ' j5W]rf^]^^^ •'•'•.. V 
Minority intercsi - -

.(28,1,87)̂  _(5,264)_ 
(2.405).:. Z : ; •fl2:675)T 

96,472, 
3 Z 3 . ^ 
__(2.J_!0) 

(30.592) 
l3i884'' "*"• '^'^ 

(42,572) 20J2I 

(6,462) (6;462) 
lncome:tlo5s).frbiii.cbnlmuiiig_operatiQns. [̂ .̂ AĴ - "•'^8.631 J-'2^.;,:g^5;74r ^^J^v'/ ,(26;708) "'•'l- .C -.'(49.034) ': . \ TK -8:631 
Income from discontinued operations, net 

of ta.xes 10,460 Ul u i . \ t a — i u , ' * u u 

Equitvvinearnmgs.ofdiscontinuedi- ".., ^v^.,, :^,•-;-:,, W^. .̂  .i^i-^.^'X "'i • -T 
L^opcrationsv ..•/ :r - -:^.:-^\. .. ^-,: '̂  . . ^ U\ o:244cl--;,-;C,;'^,l^iy ;W 
incomc:froni discontinued operations, nel 

of ta.xes 10;244 10,460 
NeLiiic6i,nc{lbss)'^-'.4^--H;'''Ji;^^: 

.(216)^ 

:^;-'—i^ "'A -:• no.244)^;. 

(216) 
.(26,?24)V$. 

(10,244) 
!Z(59}2^)b.$. 

10.244 

AJ£^ 
'P,24^ 
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Consolidating condensed statements of cash fiows for die fiscal years ended April 27, 2008. April 29. 2007 and April 30, 2006 are as 
follows: 

For the Fiscal Year Ended April 27. 2008 
IsleofCapri Consolidating 
Casinos, Ine. ,'Von- and Is leofCapri 

(Parent Guarantor Guarantor Eliminaling Casinos, Inc. 
' Statement of Cash Flmvs Obligor) Subsidiaries Subsidiaries' Entries Consolidaled 

•Ncicasli^provided.riv-tuscd'U^ • \:-̂ vi~ '̂'̂ '̂î ^~ '̂̂ .̂,̂ '̂ ^̂  '•••• ••,",„''t,"- "̂  / . - ^ y . ' ; -J;- ^ • "̂  'l-l 
jteiviiies.r^-•<.-" ;: -^J:^-^v^^'^ ^• : :S . '^ ikr i59^5m^^^y2M^9: . }$--;^-^l'-(il.l26VJ$' V..'/.,->V-,4SJ?-•;'l '33;357i| 
Net cash provided bv (used ui) investing 

activities _ " _ (301.245) ^ W^.-^^^) (20,507), 291,287 ^ (302,446) 
Nci casli provided bv^(iised-inrfiriaricirig'''̂ ;i ^••'•'•"•'^^^:!"'47^r^^^^'^^^,,'^^^!:;v:^ y-".- *: c •'—=,'•.:.' '':."4' > ' ' :-'f ;^-'f J 
{^xtjvities_j>:vj,?^gl>'fi'>^^^ f ^••'mi'.izn- ,. •-'.:' :72'5I4v 
ElTect of foreign currency exchange rates 

loneash and cash equivalents^ —• — 251̂  ' ^ , 251 
Net increase'(decrease)lin^iisivdndcash'' ^̂ ^ ,,^.,,^'^^^^5^^'*'s^^^^^ZT^^^S^^^ '" -; -' %""V' 
}^jecjiJivaIeiils^-V ' •'::- -^ h '"-.^^-^•--7.>^77:532V^XV(i7.926): l"^-';^->(866n . •'. ..'r'..• — '-. -'. . r \ ^ (96.324) 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 
- dieperiod J 2 895. 85,466 19,753 —^ |S8;114_ 
'6ph^ind"caslrequwSeiit?al^^ " ^ - '-. '- :'.- • ,', ••'''••̂ ' i" " '%' 
bperi^-'.- '^ ''^\..^-'^':^:y-K.A-/:,. ^^'^$^^"-'.g;;3:363^:$^^ggu67;540^:j$r-A.-lJ^ - . -^^_ •"$^.,':; '9'l^790-

.For the Fiscal Year Ended April 29, 2007 
Isle ofCapri ' Consolidating 
Casinos, Inc. '.Non- and ' I s leofCapr i 

(Parent Guamntor Guarantor Eliniinatiug Casinos, Inc. 
.Statement of Cash Mow,'? Obligor) Subsidiaries Subsidiaries I-:;iitHes Consolidated 

Net cash provided bv,(iisedin) opteratuig , ' ^ ' ^-- ^ ^ j f ^ . ,#'•, " .i -.'^.^' -" -..-••, ,, .- • ,̂; ] 
[iacli\Hliesj;^j"^'^'.:v;;;^V";^':'.^:.'^.,^'tV'$-.'H .^9>308^'^$^"-.-i(8'b31)-.'$^^-- > - \ , e—.^S ' '_. ••-^0{895,| 
Net cash provided bv (used ih) invesiing 

.aclivities " _ ' 16.10_5 (149.463) (118.495) 54,582 - (197,271) 
Netcasli^rovided'bY(usrdmTfmIuicing^^ . ^ '-• • .'..; ... r -; .̂  : . ?„^A 
iJ^activiiies'̂  "^"^ ''^'^ ' y : . f f - ^ ' ' y ^-^:\ '^^-'^^^f37•986^::•y^^i72i887^-^.^^^167?253i >. •t--?(54'582V^:'ffl - .193038.] 
Effect of foreign currency exchange rales 

on cash and cash equivalents — — . (97) — (97) 
Net increase (decrease)'in cash and cash -̂  , Z'-.^; "•^-;.^^-rv^'v^^^. ^I^Y';- " '̂̂ '̂ "^ • ' -•••...•,;?'.: •.- ,̂ ^ '"- '• '-^ ] 
Ir^StuK^^enis. - i=^: > ^^^' i^ ' '^ ' ' y ^ ^;":!-^3^b3^j^^'^^^^f>i2^32^ ^^7 > 10,630.-: vr^ V^;.^-^'"•• \ . ; ^ ^67^0651 
Cash and cash equivalents at bcglnhing of 

Uie period ' _ 29.192 82.734̂  9;i23 — 121.049 
S ? a n d ' S r ^ i ^ S i i ^ e ? i d ^ T l i ? ^ 
£:pcriod;..-•; ' ^ ^ : ; • ^ j ; - ^ ^ y V - ! ^ ^ y . . . . ' S r ^ ' ^ ' ' ' ^ 9 i P ^ ^ ^ M ^ s % 6 & ^ ^ ^ -:-/k---^,.$..-^';^i88;ii4J 
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For Ihe r i s ia i Vear Ended April 30. 2006 
lsle uf Capri ConAolidating 
Casiiios, lnc, Non- and IsleofCapri 

(Pami t Guarantor Gijaninlor Elimlnalfng (.'asinos, Inc, 
.Statement of Cash Flows 'Obligor) . Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidated 

Ne?casirprovidedbv'(iised:iii)''op^tin|^"T"!^'"^^^Tj"^^"^''J#^^ *,:::-̂ ^ v^'^- '^TT?'^"!^"^' ' .{-•' '• '̂ '̂ •"' • '- *"••/;•'" 
^^ctiv'iiies/?j^'-,->^^^ % ' ^ < ^ - - - ' i t t ^ ^ ^ i ^ j J i M ^ M M M ^ I i . M j M M ^ ' f e - "̂  - : " ' - ^ - - S ^ : ^•_86:675' 
Nel cash provided bv (used ui) investing 

acliviiies ." (^.£63} (159.967) . (9,662) 82,656 (176,4.36) 
•Net cash.pibvidMibv'(used-iii)Tiria^iiig-', • y ^ ' -' •,.?w,i'''̂ -"- ,̂:̂ '̂ '> .̂i,f; ,f.̂ %̂- '•^''•^•''C^ "•• '',V '*-.'•: ~\- . 7 ^ . ^ T'- •̂ '•̂  s :̂'̂  
tVaclivitics^- >: ; V'-: ^y ' '^¥r^- . . ' - -?y-k ' ' ' ^l49:932;:l^-^(47-543)^>a:V?r45.l75i ^c ^.;64.908^ 
Effect of foreign currency e.\cliange rates 

on cash and cash equivalents - — —- (575) —: , , (575) 
Net i ncrcak;'' (dec reaseFiivcash" a nd cash .-'.̂  "5^; y.'. '%'• ~ ^ ^ - 45^7,;̂ ';- "'j^sh^: -̂ '-f •;' '̂ .= ̂ ''••̂ ' - -.-,.; • *' ;^ "̂-k ̂  , . - ' • • - : .~ . ' •̂•- \ : , .̂  • ^'; V 
F^qui^alents\-\;- -^ ^ '-.• -jl^'t^-^^fyf^^ •i(24.3"92)ff:-:i^:^46!41#'''^V,,(ll;453),.^;^- ;-^- :,• r^V ^- .(25.428) 
Cashand cash equivalents at begiiming of 

the period , . ' _ '̂̂ ^̂ '̂ ^ 72.317_ 20,576 _^ ~ • '46,477^ 
cSai id^ash e'quivldFritFat'cnd^^ . . / , - -'"^.^.•'»'" C.-^ •-.-•. ' "=' > .̂ ;'̂ '" 
l^period-';;-; >-5•^.^^/' -̂ ^-'^:-^"': - ^ J , ^ ^ ^ . : '^-29jl92J' ;$^^.i;4.82:73^£x$.L^>'.9J23^^ > - ^ J $ v . ' - ^12L049^ 
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49. Selected Quarterly Financial Infonnation (unaudited) 

Fiscal Quarters Ended 
.liilv 29, b l tober 28, Januar>- 27. April 27. 

2007 Z m 20(« 2008 

operating income 'I8;046 '̂-"̂ ^̂  ^„ ' . ^̂ -̂̂ ^ S -̂W) 
- Net'lbssy"|^~#-:^-': ."^^^^-. • -y^'y^^^^^^^i^'^'^^^ 5y.̂ ..-̂ .î - ,^(24:635)^ -̂ -T" -J- (13T49),i.^ > • .̂(5 Iv275)l. 

Lpss^pcrcbiririidnii^ireSicanddiiu^ A> . ^•^>-':vy :^-'^$H"/g^ (0:23);$ . - :. .(0;80)^S.y.- -.,. :(Q.45)I.$7^'"..:(1.66)] 

^V ĝhied̂ •lv'eiaĝ basicarid̂ ûied '̂ '̂ ^̂  rr'-'̂ ^̂ ^̂ 0:̂ T7r036:.-̂ ^̂  3̂0.726:768:̂ -̂ V ̂ 30:836:139 . --̂ 430:845:436] 

Fbcal Quarters Ended. 
Ju ly30 . October29; January2S. April2*». 

2006 ,2006 2007 ,2007 

:Nct rcyehuer^L^ .wr̂ -' ^ 'TT^iI/ 'T :̂ -- '̂̂ 'X-r';$;• ''̂ ?^^273l968:^-/^-,: -.243:224̂  ^S~^V*'v230.839^rT~^53T3§3l 
Operatirig:inconie . .- " • . . ' . ' l '^ '^^^'^ ' . . ' . • ' ' '3.959_ 9,707 40,820 
IribWe:(lbss)fronrcoritihdinR:bTKraioiis=V '̂-% % • ̂ ^''••'^•'¥.:5^2r'W>^\'^^''-:A-^]^--i.^.S. . ^ ' \ (9M^ --.. ' -'(13.1-24)1 
Income (loss) from discontinue operations; nci of 

•incometaxes . . 3;956' , T3.8I7 ' 416 . . (1.497)" 

Earnings (joss) per conunon share basic; . . ' 
FTHi^nie (loss) froiri contiuuiiig%'eratioiî ^^^^ '̂ ^ -''(0:14)' $ €--^, :.-.,f0.3lT. $ "T j(0:43)I 

Income (loss) from discontinued operalions. net of 
inconie laxes, 1).13 ^ ^'^^.^ •̂̂ '̂  '̂̂ •̂ )̂ 

i7î iQncQrae:(lqssj; ^.. T i ^ - \ Tl.'-'''^iL^C::.^7^.'^ :\_: Q?j:-.^$-r~V^"bi32""~^X -A :/'(0y29r'^$I"^-y ̂ (̂0:48)1 
Eaniings^(loss) per conmion sliare.diluted:,. , ,̂ ,̂  
rinconie:(loss') fioVcoTitinuTriTb^^^ •"' '^fT'- ' : . l 'A^0:\yf^f' 'r '^r 'y(OA4) S: y \ - • ."(0:31), S^ '̂ l ^ ' f ( 0 ^ 

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of 
incometaxes ^ ^ t),l.3^ 0,46 , <>-02 (0.05) 

gNcriig)mci(loss)V;<-..-:^7^-''V^^^^^ ^•^••$"^,-t-?,^^^rW30;#'sV.-y^^^^aO^^^ . ••^:;--'(0;-29T'S' .•-^::. (0r4S)l 

iWiariled7i^nige^sipshrres''T^ i3Q:422^)lJf^^.^.;:.^i303A^M5y^i^ 'J .v30,37l.020L_.'; .. °.30^)T245l 
Weighted average diluted shares 31,403,879 30,346,015 30;371,020 30,400,245 

We opened new casino operations inPompano, Waterloo, and Coventrj' in April 201)7, June 2007, and July 2007, rcspectively. We 
acqinred our cjisino operations in Caruthcrs\'llle InJunc 2007. 

A summarj' of certain revenues and expenses iinpactirigbur quarterly financial rcsulis is as follows: 

Fiscal Q u a r t e r Endeil 
Julv 29, October 28. J anua r ; 27. April 27, 

2007 2007' 200» 2008 

(E.\-^^)'Rx:veniie:---•'r -•"."-->^^'^'^- ,̂ ^Cfc":yj''i '4K^^^^^^^^^^n^ ^^\ir^-?^,:-"^-• ̂ . j ^ ' ̂ '.K.^^':' v>^^ •" ' r - . -^'t^TPT^ 
Write-olts andVaiuation Cliaigcs r— (6.526) — (78.658) 
'p̂ ebric-urimg ' '^^i^-'^.-^r-'fy^?'^;;^^^:^^^7Wii^ c^.73?i)-^5T'T^T^:^v' '^:T^r^ 
Insurance recoveries 348 —̂^ -^ 1.757 
Dr^^e\ovmeni^m^'^r'''y^^ 'in99)'JA-̂ -.,-:>(I:'546ŷ '- .-XAim^ 
Loss on earij'extinguishmenl of debt '(2,192) (11,468) — (L614) 

Fi.iral Quarters Ended 
July 30, October 29, Januaiy 28, April 29, 

2()06 2006 2007 2007 

(Expense) Reveniier.^; J. A-- y.^'.".,-,.-^.^..v - —-. j ^ ; ^ ^ , - - ; : ^ - . ; ; ^ ^ '^ - •^<.-, -.-i-u: A;-^^-^•. ^ >. •• , ^ T ^ 
Write-offs and Valuation Cliarges — (665)- —; (7.801)' 
•^opemng:"^?r"v':YT^=:?"^^^ 
Ihsiiriince recovenes -— —̂  2:817 .—_ 
JQiiViLucaya, I ease itc riiil nati on :and "seJll eiiicrit :̂ ''̂ ';:f:;;,-T,̂ ^ !vkv!'̂ '̂ :§:̂ M '̂'̂ '̂  j^,^^.t2 ;250):;\-Tr_' Isr- ,y... ,^^ ; ̂ y .̂.. :̂ j:-..:-I:',ẑ :̂ : I^ ? j^ l I'-:'̂ Z 3̂ 

Source: ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS INC. 10-K, July 11, 2008 , FtfAeree hy Mcmirosiar^Document Research^ 



,Developmentcosts .•j'̂ '̂̂ '̂̂ ) (4.534) _ .(3.393) ^_.__(L608) 
CoiTOrateoffice-rclocaiion^a!.:̂ -̂ -ty,>v. •̂- ^•v^^;.-^^:^tlVg%:.S°Ir^^^fi608)^;i^r(988)?^F^(L122y^^ • "•;:̂ "(67Q)1 
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Wriie-fiffs and Valuation Charges - During fiscal year 2008, we rccorded $78,658 in inipainnent cluirges rclaled to our UK operations 
and $6,526 of charges priniarily relaled lo costs previously capiudized in connection with a proposed project in wcsi Harrison Couniy, 
Mississippi and the write-off of consiniciion projects in Payeripon.-Iowa and Kansas Citj\ Missouri, and. In fiscal year 2007 we 
recorded $665 in impaimient cliarges related to our Blue (2liip operations and $7,801-in goodwill Impainnent related to our operations 
in Lulâ  Mississippi. 

Preopening expense - V̂ ere iiKurred priorto tiieopeningof our casinos iri Pompano, Waterloo and Coventrj', 

Insurance recoveries - Reflect primjirily receipts relating to business interriiption claims, 

Losson exiitiguishmentofdebl- Duririg fisciil year 2008, we extinguished our 9% Subordinated Notes and Black Hawk Credit 
Facitity, and we refinanced our Februaiy 2005C r̂edit Facilitj', 

Our Lucayqjease termination and selllemenl - During Uic first quarter of fiscal year 2007 we tenninated our lease in Our Lucaya 
res'idtirig in an expense of $2'250. During die fourth quarter of fiscal 2007 we reached a setdemeni reinstating our lease and oUier 
ilems,,and retroactivelj' reducing our gaming ia.\es resulting In incomc of $9,526, 

Developmeni Expenses-Expenses include cosis for. die pursuil of opportunilics for new gaming facilities to expand ourbusiness. Tlie 
level ofsuch expciises is subjeci to change based upon llie level of deyelppmcnt acliviiies. 

Corporate Office Relocation - During fiscal year 2007 we relocated our corporate office from Biloxi. Mississippi to St. Louis, 
Missouri. 

20, Commitments and Contingcncie.s 

Blue cliip Casjnps, Ltd:,; In Noveniber 2003, pursuanl lo a subscription mid sliarElioiderSjagreenienL tlie Isle ofCapri CTasirips, Ltd, 
(die "Isle-Lid."), a wholly owned subsidlaij' of die Company, acquired a two-thirds iniercst iii Blue Cliip. Underthe agree liicni,.tlie 
IslCrLtd. lias ilie option lo require the nunoriij' shareliolders to sell llieir respective sharcs to thcilsle-Lidaifairvaluebr at a price lobe 
agreed upon. Tltis option is avmlable for a period of rvyo years from the later of five yeiirs after the acquisition dale or for three years 
afler the.introdnction pf new gaming iaws. If Uie Isle-Ltd, doesnot exercise its option, the minority sharclwlders liave the righl, 
duringthe one-year period after the option expiration daie.io require the.lsle-Ltd.jo purchase Uie minoriij; shares at fairvalue oral a 
price lb be agreed upon. Due ip the curreni uncertainty in Uniled Kingdom gaming iegislatibn aiid die long-term nature of litis billion, 
Uie impact ofthis obligation is not reasonablj'estimable ai this time. 

Operating Leases - Fuiure minimum payments over the lease term of non-cancelable operaiing leases with initial terms of one year or 
more consisted ofthe following at April 27, 2008: 

Fiscal Vears Ending: 

2009- •:: -̂ . ' r-r^;^^^r77- rTTy-'^XC^'Wr:: V^^ '^TTsF^'TTem 
2010 I6:9T2 
-,.,,,,,...y..,̂  r*"̂ " •:•'-"„• ~y-^ '̂'̂ ~-~—'—~~''-'̂ '—!r'_•-'• *?rr̂ :-'"̂ -̂ "_ -̂;;— '̂:̂ S^ '̂''-'r','&'''"' !~r^''7Tsl 

2012 ."HZZT^' "̂^̂  „__^ 0,486 
Tiiereafler _ _ ______ _ „ _ _ ^. „ . _ _ ' ,,^^ ^^7,742^ 
iTbtal inininiiini lai^:t^yinenis ' ' "'- "!_:__''•^"^j^'^'ri-'i^?-/'-,i'^-'^^'^^^$-^-'.'- -673ir7"5l 

Rent expense was approximately $37,794, $41,060 and $36,051 ui fiscal years 2008,2007 and 2006, respectively. Such amomiis 
include contingent rentals of $9,182,.$ 10,208 and $9,559 in fisc'al yeais 2008, 2007 and 2006. respectively. . , 

Our Lucaya - During fiscal 2007, as part ofour agreement with tlic Balianiian gpyenimenl, wc bbtalncd a retroactive reduction in our 
giiming tax 'rale tb be apphed to die casinos Itisiorical and future ginning revenues. Tltis resulled in omrcversing cxpeiise,_ui fisc;d 
year 2007, of appro.ximately $6,856 in pre\'iously accrued estiniated gaming taxes. We also agreed with the Baliamian government on 
a receivable relaled toa niaricebng subsidy for the casino. Under ihis agreement, we reversed a $1,500 reser\e allowance we had 
previouslj' recorded againsl Uus marketing subsidy receivable. 

Legal and Regulatory Proceedings - Lady Luck Gaining Corporation (now oiu wholly owned subsidiary') and several joinl vcnturc 
piirtners liave been defendanis in the Greek Civil Court and Uie Greek Administrative Court in similar lawsuits brought by the country 
of (jreece through its Minister of Tourism (now Development) and Finimce. Tlie actions allege lh;il the'defendanis tailed to make 
specified payments in connection with die gaming license bid process for Patras, Greece. Allliough ii is difficull lo detcnrtine the 
damages being souglif from die lawsuits, the aciion may seek damages up to th;il aggregate amouni plus interest from die dale of Uie 
actibn. ThrougliApril 27,2008, we have accmed an estiniated iiabilitj' inchiding interest of $8,910. Tlie Athens Civil Court of First 
Instance granted judgment in our favor and dismissed the civil lawsuil. Appeals lo boUi the Athens Civil Appeals Court and the Greek 
Civil Supreme Court have been disntissed. The Greek Civil Supreme Court denied llie appeal oii the basis that the Admiiusiî ative 
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Court is ihe compclent court to hear the matier. During October 2005, after the adnunistrative lawsuil had been disriiissed by both the 
Atliens'Adimnislrative Court of Fu"si Inslance aiid die Alliens Adnunistrative Court of Appeals on the basis liiat Uic Adminisirative 
(2ouri did not liave a jurisdiction; the Adminisirative Supreme Court rcinanded the matter back to tlie Athens Admiiuslrative Appeals 
Court for a hearing on the merits, wliich court in May 2008 rendered judgment in our favor on procedural grounds and iioi on Uie 
merits. We e.xpecl the Greek goveminent to appeiil this decision lo the Administrative Supreme Coiirt. Thereforc, the ouicoine ofthis 
matter is'stilfin doubt and camot be predicted with any degree of certainty. We intend to continue a vigorous and appropriale defense 
lo the claims asserted in this mailer. 
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We arc subjcci to certain federal, state and local environhiental prolection. healdi and safelj' laws, regulations and ordinances tliat 
apply lo businesses generally, and are subjcci lo clejinup requirements al certain of our facilities as a result thereof We liave not 
inade, and do nol anticipate making, material cxpen'diiiircs, nor do we anticipiite Incurring delays with respect to environmental 
remediation or protection. Howeyer.'̂ in pari because our present and fuiurc deyelopmeni sites liave, iri soine cases, been used iis 
manufacluring facilities or other facilities ihat generate inaterials tliat arcrequired tobe rcmediaied under enyironnienial,laws and 
regulations, tiiere can be no guarantee dial addilional pre'K;xisting conditions will not be discovered and we wiU not e.xperieiice 
material liabilities or delays. 

We are,subjcci lo various contingencies and litigation matters iind have a nuinber of unresolved claiins. AUhough the ultimate liability 
of tliese contingencies, this liiigation anddiese claims cannot be delerniined atitliis time, we believe tlicy will hot liave a material 
adverse effecl pn our consohdated financial position, results of operations oreash fiows. 

S'H6i-e(/uert/£"v'c'/j/-Subsequent to fiscal yeiir end 2008, we reached an agreement tenniiuiting our agreement for the potential 
deyclopment of a ciisino, projeci in Portliirid Oregon. As a part of tliis agreemerit, wc agreed to teniunaie our-righis undera land option 
and to pay a,temunation fee: As a result of litis tennination, we plan to rccord a $6,000 charge in our first quarter of fiscaf 2009 
consisting'ofa wriie-olTof$5,000representingour rights underthe land opiion and $1,000 tennination fee. Under the tenns ofthe 
agreeineni we rclain ceriain rights bui no continuing obhgaiions with rcgard to this developmeni projeci. 
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ISLE OF CAPRJ CASINOS, INC. 

SCHEDULE II - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS 
(In thousands) 

Accounts Receivable Rcscne 

Period 

' Ualance al 
IW^Inning of 

^'ear 

Charged to 
Cosl.s and 
Enpenses. 

Deductions from 
Reserves 

Balance at End 
of Vear 

'ivSEmi^Ai^mTIOOS: y ^. • •'-'"'''T^'^^^^T^^^mW^ .': - ':-V-3.484-:r-s: '. - "̂  .-4>2'58̂  

___ T^~XM-:%:"^^-^rt '--^l-:909)^:,::;ti^S^2?716^ ff^t^-..-. .''^-l^ v^290:.' , C ~ iYeiirErided^Aprih29..2007. 
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Other Receivables Reserve 

Period 

Halanec at 
Beginning of 

^'ear 

Cliarged to 
Costs and 
Enpenses 

Deductions from 
Kes cries 

Balance at End 
of. Year 

iYearrEndc'dApril:27.2008.^:.,, • :.. T ' ^^TFIp l t - . ' ; '^' :3.194,:f$I3^^V^^T!'g^^^^ ' —•'^•'S\ "" .3a94^ 
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ITEM 9. CHANCES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL 
DISCLOSURE 

None. 

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 

EVALUATION OF DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 

Evaluation of Disclo.sure Controls and Procedures - Biised on their evaluation as ofApril 27, 2008, our CItief Executive Officer and 
Cliicf Firiancial Olficer liave concluded:Uial our disclosure controls arid procedures (as defined in Rules 13ii-i5(e) and I5d-I5(e) 
under tlie E.xcliange Act) werc sufficientiy effective to ensure iliiil die Information required lo.̂ be disclosed by us in Utis Repon wjis 
recoided, processed, summarized and rcported within the lime periods specified in die SEC's rules and instmclions for Form 10-K. 

Manageineni s Reporl on Internal Conlfvl oyer Financial Reportiti'g-()ur managemeni is resppiisible for establishing and 
maintaining adequate internal control over fmancial reporting (as defined in Rule I3a-I5(0 under the Exchange Act). Our 
managemeni, including our Cluef Execuiive Officer and CItief Financial Officer, assessed the effectiveness of bur internal conlrol 
over financial reporting as of Aprir27, 2008: In making this assessriient; pur management iiseii the criteria set forth by the Coriiiiutlee 
of Sponsoring Organizations oftlie Treadway Cbniiiiission in Internal Coniro I-Iniegrated Framcwoi-k; Our management has concluded 
dial, as of April 27, 2008, our inteniril coritrol byer liriariciai reiwriing is effective Based on these criteria. Ernst & Young LLP, an 
independent registered pubtic accounting firm, who audited and repprledbri the consohdiiled fimiiiciiU slalernenls included in this 
Annual Report on Form lO-K, lias issued an atteslaiion report on ihe cffectiAciiess of die Company's inlemai control overfinancial 
reporting as slated in their report which is ihcluded iri llem_8. 

Changes in Internal Conirols over Financial Reporting - There have been no.clianges in our internal controls over financial rcporting 
during the quarterended April 27, 2008;Uial have materially iiffected, orare reasonably likely tojiiaieriiilly affect our interniil controls 
oyer financial reporting, otlicr than die remediation of the material weakness discussed below! 

Inherent Limitaiions on Effeciiveness of Conirols - Our maniigcmerit, incliiding'oiu' Cliief Executive OfTiccr and Chief Financial 
Officer; does not expect tliat our disclosure coritrols and procedures or our internal controls will prevent all errors and all fraud. A 
conlrol sjstem, no matter how well conceived and'opcratcd, can provide only'reasonable.-not absolute, assurance tliat the objectives of 
ihe conlrol s '̂Sleni are met. Furtlier, Uie design of a control system must reflect the fact.dial there are resource constntinls: arid,Uie 
benefits of controls must be considercd relallveto their costs. Because of die inherent hinitations in all coiitrol sj'siems, no evaluation 
of controls can'provide absolute assuraiKc dial idl controfissues and instancesof fraud, if anj',:within our company liave been 
detected. 

Remediation of Material Weakness - As disclosed In our fiscal'2007 Uurd quiuler report on Form lO-Q/A as of Januaiy 28, 2007, we 
identified a material weakness in pur internal conlrol pver financiiil reporting related lo cbritrijis over the accounling for leases. A 
material weakness is a significaiU deficiencj- or cbniblnatlou of significant deficiencies Uiat results in more lliiui a remote likelUiood 
diat a material misstatement of Uie annual or interim consolidated financial statements will iioi be prevented ordctecled. We have 
remediated the maierial weakness for lease accouritiiigduring the fourtli quarterof fiscal year 2008 by engaging a third party 
professional services finn to review allof our leases imd to veriij' wc arc recording leases in accordance wiUi generally accepted 
accounting principles, based on lease tenns. In addition, we luive implemented a rcvised Suimnarj' of Procedures for lease accouming. 

.These updated procedures state the technical guidance pn accouniingforleases'and jnstituted a niulti-level review conlrpi for new 
leases at the property level and ai.ilie corporate ofilce. 
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ITEM9B. . OTHER INFORMATION 

None. 

PARTllI 

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

Tlus item has been omitted from this rcport and is incorporated by reference to Isle of Capri's definitive pro.xy stiiteineni to be 
filed with the US. Securities and Exchange Commission witliin 120 days afterllie end of the fiscal year covered by thisrcport. 

ITEM IL EXECUTfVE COi\U» ENS ATION 

Tills item lias been omitled from tliis rcport'and is uicorporated by rcferencc to Isle of Capri's definitive pro.xy statemenl lo be 
filed with the U.S. Securities and Excliange Commission witliin 120 d<ij s aflcr.tiie end of ihe fiscal year covered by litis report. 

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED 
STOCKHOLDERMATTERS 

Tlus ilem liiis been oiititled from dus report and is incorporated.by reference lolsle of Capri's definitive proxy statemenl to be 
filed with Uie U.S. Securities and E.xcliange Commission wiiliin'l 20 days afterihe eudof the fiscal year covered by Ihis report. 

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHTPSANDRELATED:TRANSACTIONS,AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE 

Tlus ilcniliasbeenomiiiedfrom this rcport arid is incorporated by rcfcrcnce tp Isleof Capri's definitive pro.xy siaiement tobe 
filed whh the U.S. Securities and Excliange Conimission within 120.daj'S after the end of the fiscidyeiircovercd by dtis report. 

ITEM 14. PRINCWALACCOUNTANTFEES AND SERVICES 

This item lias.bcen omitted from dus report arid is uicorporated by reference to Isle of Capri's definitive pro.xy statemenl to be 
filed wiUi the U.S. Securities and Excliange Coinmission wltliiri 120 d;iys after the end of the fiscal year covered by this report. 

PART IV 

ITEM LS. EXHIBITS, FINANCL\L STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ONFORM 8-K 

The following documents are filed as part of Uus Fonn IO-K. 

(a) Consolidated financial statements filed as part of this report are listed under Pan II, Item 8. 

(b) The c.xlubits listed on the "Index lo E.\lubiis" are filed with litis report or incorporated by reference as set forth below. 

All olher schedules are oniined because they arc not applicable or nol reqiured. or because the rcquircd infonnation is Included 
in llic consohdated financial stateinenl or nolcs Ihereto. 
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SIGNATURES 

Puisuant to die rcquirements of Section 13 or 15(d) ofthe Securities ExchangeAct of 1934, the registrant lias duly caused Ihis 
rcport to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 

ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC 

Dated; July 10,2008 By; Isl James B. Penj' 
James B. Perry, 

Chief Executhe Officer, Executive Vice Chairman and 
Director 
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Pursuaniiodie rirquirementsof Uie Securities Excliange Act of 1934. thisrcport has been signed below by the following persons 
on behalf of the: regislrani and in die capiiciiies and on ihe dates indicated. 

Dated: July 10.2008 

Dated: Julv 10,2008 

Dated; July 10, 2008 

Dated:.July 10. 2008 

Dated; July 10,2008, 

Dated; July 10, 2008 

Dated; July 10,2008 

Daied: July 10. 2008 

Dated; July 10. 2008 

Dated; Julv 10,2008 

/s/ James B. Perrj' 
James B. Perrj-, 

Chief Executive Officer, Executive Vice Chairman of the Board and Director 
(Priiicipal Executive Otiiccr) 

Is/ Dale R. Black 
DaleR-Black, 

Senior Vice President and 
Chief Financial Officer 

(PrincipurFinanciid and Accounting Officer) 

* BERNARD GOLDSTEIN 
Bemard Goldstein, 

Chairman ofthe Board and Director 

* ROBERT S. GOLDSTEIN 
Roberts. Goldstein, 

Vice Ch:ui^an;uf IhcBoard and Director 

* ALAN J, GLAZER 
Alan J. Glazer, Director 

* LEE WIELANSKY 
Lee Wielimsky, Director 

* W. Randolph Baker 
W. Randolph Baker, Director 

* JEFFREY D. GOLDSTEIN 
.leflTrey D. Goldstein, Direcior 

* JOHNBRACKENBURY 
.John Brackcnburj-, Director 

* SHAUN R.HAYES 
Shaun R. Haves. Director 

* Dale R. Black, by signing his njime hereto, does sign Uiis docunienton,behalf of the above-named individuals, pursuant to the 
powers of attorney duly e.xecuied by such indlviduids, which liaye been filed as an exhibit to this Registration Statement. 

Dated: Julv 10.2008 Isl D;dcR. Black 
Dale R. Black, 

Attorney-in-Fact 

78 

Source: ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS (NC. IO-K, July 11, 2008 FoiftRrt-d by .^nGrningsisr^Dociifnsm Rtsearch**** 



INDEX TO EXHIBITS 

EXHIBIT 
NU.MBER DESCRIP.TIOiN 

3.1A Certificate of Incorporation of Casino Aniericn,4iic. (liicbrpbroted by reference to the Registration Stateinenl on 
Fonn S-I filed September 3, 1993) • ' 

3. IB Amendment to Certificate of Incorporationof Casino America, inc. (Incorporiited by rcferencc to the Pro.xy 
Statement for die fiscal yeiir ended April 26.4998) 

3,2A By-laws of Casino'America, Inc. (Incorporated bj-,rcference tothe Registration Statement on Fomi S-1 filed 
September 3, 199.3) 

3.2B Amendmeni lo By-laws of Casino America. Inc., dated Febnian' 7, 1997 (Incorporated by reference to 
E,xlti.bil:3.2A to tlic Annual Report on Fonn IO-K filed on July 28, 1997) 

4.1 Indenture, dated as of March 3, 2004, amonglsle of Capri Casinos, Inc., the subsidiary guarantors niimed therein 
and U,S. Bank National Association, as Truslee (Incorporated by refereticejo E.xlublt 4.3 to the Registration 
Siatemeni on Fonn S-4 filed on May 12, 2004) 

lO.lf Ciisino America, Iric. description of Employee Bonus Plan (Incorporatedbv refercnce lo the Annual Report on 

Fonn IO-K for die fiscal year ended April 30, 1993) 

I0.2t Director's Option Plan (Incorporaled by rcfcrcnce to the Registration Statement on Fonn S-8 filed June 30, 1994) 

I0.3t Amended Casino America, Inc. 1993 Stock Option Plan (Incorporated by rcfcrcnce to die Pro.xy Stiiicineni filed, 
on August 25, 1997) 

10.41 Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. 2000 Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan (Incorporated by refcrciKe to the Proxy 
Statemenl filed on Augusi 15.2000) 

I0:5t Amended and Restated IsleofCapriCasinos, Inc. 2000 Long-Tenn Stock Incentive Plan (Incorporated by 
reference to the Pro.xy Stalenienl filed on Augusi 27, 20.07) 

lO.bf Isle of Capri Casinos. Inc. Deferred Bonus Plan (Incorporated bv reference to tlie Pro.xy Statement filed on 
Augusi 15,2000) . ' 

I0.7t lsle ofCapri Oisinos, Inc's 1995 Deferrcd Conipensatipn Plan (Incorporated by reference to E.xlubii 10,31 to the 
(Quarterly Repon on Fomi IO-Q<filed onMarch 1, 2005) 

lO.St Isle ofCapri Casinos, Inc.s 2005 Deferrcd (Compensation Plan (Incorporated by rcfcrcnce to Exlubii 10.32 to the 
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on March 1', 2005) 

I0.9t lsle ofCapri Casinos, Inc.'s 2005 Non-employee Director Defcrrcd Compensalion Plan (Incorporated by rcferencc 
to Exltibit 10.33 to Uie Quarterly Report Form 10-Q filed on March 1,2005) 

10. lot Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. Master Retircinenl Phui (Incorporaled bv rcfcrcnce lo Exhibit 10.26 to Uie'Annual 
Report on Fonn 10-K filed on July 6, 2005) 

lO.llf Employment Agrceriienl, dated as of Jaimarj', 1, 2002, between Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. and Allan B.Solomon 
(Incorporaled bv refercnce to Exltibit 10.23 to Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statement on Fonn S-4 filed on 
June 19,2002) 

10.121 Employment Agreement, dated iis of Januaiy L 2005. between Isle ofCapri Casinos, Inc. and Robert F. Grifiln 
(Incorporated by refercnce to E.xlubit 10.34 to the Quarterly Report on FormlO-QTded on March I. 2005) 

lO.Uf Employment Agreement, dated Januarj' 13, 2006, between Isle ofCapri Casinos, Inc. and Domi R. Milchell II 
(Incorporated by refercnce to Exliibil 99.2 lo the Current Report on Fonn 8-K fried on Januaiy- 19, 2006). 

10.141 Consulling Agreement, daled as of March 23, 2006, by and between Jolm G. Brackenbuiy and lsle of Capri 
Casinos. Inc. (Incorporaled bv refercnce to Exhibil 99.1 lo tlic Current Report on From 8-K filed on March 29. 
2006) . _ _ _ ^ 
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EXHIBIT 
NtJMitER DESCRIPTION 

IO.I5t Employment Agreement, daledasof July 16, 2007, between Isle pfC:apri Casinos, Inc. arid Virginia McDowell 
(Incorporated by reference io Exhibit 10:rio'lhe Current lleport on Form 8-K filedon July 20, 21507) 

10.l6t Employment Agreement daledasof Deceniber 3, 2007, bet̂ vecn IsleofCapriCasinos, Inc. and DaleR. Black 
(incorporaled by refercnce lo Exhibil 10.1 lo die Current Report on Fonn 8-k filed on December 12, 2007) 

10.171 Employment Agreement* dated as of March ,4, 2008; between Isleof Capri Casinos, Inc. and James B. Perrj-
(Incorporated by reference to Exlubii, 10.1 to;tlie Current Report on Form 8-k filed on March 10, 2(X)8) 

I0.18t* Employment Agreement, dated as pf July 1,2008, between Isleof Ciipri Casinos, Inc. and Edinund L. 

Quaniiann, Jr 

10.l9"i"* Form Eniploj'ment Agreement forScnior Vice Prcsidenis of Tsle of Capri Casinos. Inc. 

10.201* Form Slock Option Award Agreement 

10.21 f Consulting Agrcenient, diited as of March 23, 2006, bet̂ veen John G. Brackenbuiy :and Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. 
(Incorporaled by:rcference to E.\hibil 99. Lto die Cunrent R.eport on From 8-K filed on M;irch 29, 2006) 

10.22 Credit Agreement, dated as of July„26, 2007 amoiig Isle of Capri Ciisinos, Inc., tlie Lenders listed herein, Credii 
Suisse,.Caj'man Island Branch, as adrTtiitistrati\'e iigent; issuing baiik and swing line lender, Credit Suisse 
•Securities (USA) LLC, as lead arranger arid bbokrunncr, DcutscheBank Securities'lnc. and CIBC VVorid Markets 
Corp., as co-syndication agents and U:S: Dank, N.A. aridWiichovia Bank, National Association, as 
co-documentation agents (Incoqjoraicd by rcfcrcnce to Exltibit 10.1 to the Currcnt Report on Fonn 8-K filed on 
July 31, 2007) ' 

10.23 Securiiy Agreemeni, daledasof July 26, 2007, ainong Isleof Capri Casinos,-Inc., its material subsidiaries party 
diereio, andCrcdii Suisse, Ĝ ayman IsIands'Briinch, as Administralive Agenl for and rcprcsentalive ofthe financial 
instilutions part\';io the Credit Agreemerit and.any Hedge Providers (as defined therein) (Incorporated by refercnce 
to E.xhibit,IO,l to.Uie Cunent Report on Form 8-K liledon July 31. 2007) 

10.24 Bdoxi Waterfront Project Lease daled May 12, 1986 with Point Cadet Development Corporation (Bilo.xi) 
(Incorporated bv reference lo an e,xhiblt to the Annual Report on Fonn 10-K for the fiscal vciir ended April 30. 
1992) 

10.25 . Addendmn to Lease Agreement, dated Augiisl I, 1992, between the.City of Biloxi, Mississippi, Poirii Cadel 
Development Corporation (Biloxi) (Incorporated by reference to an exhibil to Uie Annual Report on Fonn iO-K 
fof the fiscal yeai" eridaj April 30, 1992) 

10.26 Second Addendum to Lease, dated April 9, 1994, byandbet^veenihe Citj- of Biloxi, Mississippi, Point Ciidci 
Development Corpo_ration,4he Bilo.xi Port Commission and Riverboat Corporation of Mississippi (Biloxi) 
(Incorporated bv reference lo an exhibit to the Annu;d Report on Fonn lO-K forthe fiscal year ended April 30. 
1994) • -

10.27 Titird Addendum to .Casino Lease, daled April,26, 1995, by ;irid betweeii the Cityof Bilo.xi, Mississippi, Point 
Cadet Development Corporation, the Biloxi Port Comniission and Rivertioat Corporation of Mississippi (Bilo.xi) 
(Incorporated bv rcferencc to an exlubii to the Annual Report on Fonn IO-K. for the fiscal vear ended April 30. 
1995) 

10.28 Biloxi Waterfronl Project Lease dated as of April 9,4994 by and between IIK City of Bilo.xi, Mississippi and 
Riverboai Corpprationof Mississippi (Biloxi) (Incorporated bv rcfcrcnce to an exltibil lo the Aiuiuai Report on 
Fonn 10-K forthe fiscal yearended April 30. 1994) 

10.29 Fiisi Amendmeni to Biloxi Waterfront Projeci Lease (Hotel Lease), dated as ofApril 26, 1995, by and between 
Riverboat Corporalion ofMississippi (Biloxi) (Incorporated bv rcfcrcnce to an e.xliibit to the Aiuiual Report on 
Fonn 10-K for Uic fiscal year ended April 30, 1995) 

10.30 Point Cadet Compromise and Settlement Agreement, dated Augusi 15, 2002, by and between the Secretaij' of 
Staleof die Siaieof Mississippi, llie City of Biloxi, Mississippi, Uie Board of Tmslees of Slale Instilutions of 
Higlier Learning and IsleofCapri Casinos, Inc. and Riverboat Corporation of Misslssijipi (Bilo.xi) (Incorporated 
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10.31 Biloxi Walerfroni Projeci Garage-Podlmn Lease and Easement dated.as of August 15, 2002. by arid between tlie 
Secretary- of Slate ofthe State of Mississippi, the Cily of Biloxi, Mississippi, the Board ofTrustecs of Slale 
Instilutions of Higher Learning iuid lsle ofCapri Casinos,, Inc:,and Rivcrbpat Corporation of Mississippi,(Biloxi) 
(Incorporated.by rcfcrcnce to an Exlubh 10.30 lo llie Annuiil Report JDU Fonn IO-K filed on July 30. 2007) 

10.32 Amended and Restated Berth Rental Agreement dated May 12, 1992 bet̂ veen die Biloxi Port Comniission and 
Rivert3oat Corporation ofMississippi (Biloxi) (Incorporated by reference to an e.xhibil to the Annual Report on 
Fonn IO-K forthe fiscal yearended April 30, 1992) 

10.33 Second Amendment to Berth Rental Agrccrnent dated August 13, 1996, (ii) Third Amendment to Berth Renlal 
Agreement dated December 14, 1999 and (iii) Letier Agreemcin to Berth Rental Agreement dated Gciober47, 2006 
(Biloxi) (Incorporated by.rcference to an Exhibil 10.32 to'lhe Annual Report onFonn,i0-K filed on July 30, 2007) 

10.34 Agreement on Casino Berth Tract dated as:of August 15,,2002, State consented to dredging, wharfing and filling by 
Isle of arcas to ncconfiigurc Berth Tract to accommodate a larger giuiurig vessel (Bilo.xi) (Incorporated bv rcfcrcnce 
to an Exlubii 10.33 to die Annual Repori'oh Fonn,10-K filed on July 30, lOOf) 

10.35 Amended iind Rcstated Lease, daled as'bf April 19, 1999, among Port Resources, Inc. and CRU, Inc., as landlords 
and St. Cliaries Gaming Companj', Inc., as tenanl (St. Charies) (Incorporaled by, refercnce to an Exhibit I0:28 to die 
Annual Report on Fonn lO-Kfiled on July 0271999) ' . 

10.36 Leaseof property in Coalioma. Mississippi dated as of Noycmbcr 16; I993'by and aniong Roger Allen Jphnson, Jr. 
Charies Br\'ani Johnson and Magnolia Lady, Inc. (Incorporated bv refercnce lo die Registration Statement on 
Fonn S-4/Aliicd June 19, 2()02) " -

10.37 Addeixium to Lease dated as of June 22, 1994 by and ainong Roger Allen J61uisoii,,Jr, Cliaries Brj'ant Johnson and 
Magnolia Liidy, Inc. (Incorporated by refercnce,to an Exliibil.10.46 to IheAiuiual Report on Fonn 10-K filed bn 
July28,2000y 

io.38 Second addendum to Lease dated as of Oclober 17, 1995 by and among Roger Allen Johnson, Jr.. Charies Bij'ani " 
Johnson and Magnolia Ladv.Inc. (Incorporated bv rcrcrciicc to an E.xhibit 10.47 to llie Annual Report on 
Fonn 10-k filed on'july 28.2000) ' , 

10.39* Lease of prcntises at the Arciia, Phoenix Way, Foleshill, Coventiy dated Febniiuj' 7 'h, 2007 by and among Arcna 
Covcnirj'. Limited, Isle of CapriCasinos Limited and Isle of Capri (Casinos, inc. 

10.40* Master Lease belween The Cily of Boonvdie, Missouri and lOC-Boom'iUe. Inc. fonnally known as Da\'is Ganung 
Boon\illc, lnc, dated asof Julj' 18, 1997, 

10.41 * Amendment to Master Lease beiween The Citj' of Boonville. Missouri and IOC-Boo m-i lie. Inc. fonnally known as 
Davis Ganung Boonville, Inc. daiedas ofApril 19; 1999. 

10.42* Second Amendment to Master Lease between Tlie Cilj' of Boonville, Missouri and lOC-BoonvlIIe, Inc. fonneriy 
known iis Davis Gaming Boonville, Inc. dated iis of September 17, 2001. 

10,43* Tlurd Amendment to Master Lease between Tlie City of Boonville, Missouri arid 10CrBoouville,-lnc, fonneriy 
known as Gold Ri\'er's Boonville Resort, Inc,-and Davis Ganung Boonville, Inc. daledasof November 19, 2001. 

10.44* Assigiunent and Assumption Agrcenient (Lejise Agreement) between Fliuningo Hilton Rivcrixiat Casino, LP, Isle 
ofCapri Casinos, lnc, and IOC-Kansas City, Inc. dated as of June 6, 2000; 

10.45* Lease and Agreement-Spring 1995 between Andriauiikos Limited Liabilitv Coinpiuiv and Isle of Capri Black 
Hawk, LLC. dated as of August 15, 1995 

10,46* Addendum to.Uie Lease arid A^einent-Spring 1995 between Andrianakos Liimted Liability Companv and Isle of 
Capri Black Hiiw-k, LLC. dated as of April 4, 19%. 

10,47* Second Addendum to tlie Lease and Agreement-Spring 1995 bet\veen Andrianakos Limited LiabUiiv Company and 
lsle ofCapri Black Hawk, LLC. dated as of March 21,2003. 
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FAHIBIT 
NUMBER DILSCItiPTION 

10.48* Third Addendum to.lhe Lease and Agree incut-Spring 1995 belween Andrianakos Liinited LiabUitj' Company and 
Isle of Capri,Black Hawk, LLC. dared as ofApril 22, 2003, 

10,49 Operators Contract dated August 11, 1994:,as amended by: (i) Amendment to Operator's Conlracl dated 
August i5, 1998; and (ii).Second Amendment to Operaior's Contract dated June 30,2004 (Beltendorf) 
(Incoqx>rated by reference loan Exltibit I0.38:to Uie Annual Report on Forin 10-K filed on July 30, 2007) 

12:1* Computation of ratio of eantings to fixed cliarges 

21.1* Significant Subsidiaries of Isle ofCapri Casinos,-Inc. . 

23. I* Consent of Emst & Yoimg LLP 

24; I * Powers of Atloniey Directors 

31.1* Certification of CItief E.xecutive Officer pursuiint toRule 13a—14(a) under Uic Securities E.xcliangc Act of 1934 

31.2* Certificationof Chief Financiaf Officer pursuiuit to; Rule I3a^—14(a) underthe Securities ExchangeAct of 1934 

32:i* Certification of Cluef E.xecutive OmccrPiirsuiUit to 18UiS,G. Section 1350 

"32:2* CenificiitionofChiefFlnancialOfiicerPiusuanlto iSU.S.C. SectioiiT350. 

99.1 * Description of Govenimeiital Regulation, 

Filed herewith. 
Management contract or coriipensatoix' plan oriirraiigemenl. 
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Exhibit 10.18 

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

THIS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT ("Agreeni(:iit"), which expressly-includes and references npn-cpnipetitiore 
non-solicitation and confidentiaiitj' provisions, is signed this 1st day of July, 2008 (ilie "Agreement Date"), by and between Isle of 
Capri Casinos, Inc., a Delaware corporation and its subsidiarj' and^affiliatai cojnpiiiiies.^hereinafterreferrcd to individually and 
colleclively as the "Companj'") and Edmund L. QuaUnann, Jr C'Employee"). This Agrcenient superredes any and all prior 
understandings and agreements between Employee and,ilie (Company. 

WHEREAS, the Company desircs to employ Employee, and Employee desircs to perform services for, and be employed 
by, die Company. ' -

WHEREAS, iis a condition of Employee's cniployment, the Companj-deslres lo receive from Employee covcamis 
including, but nol limiled to, the following: (a) to rcfrainfrom canyingonoreiigaging in a business similar to thiit ofthe Compiiny; 
(b) to refrain from soliciting Employees oflhe Company for employment elsewhere; arid (c) to,proiect and maintain the confidentiaiitj' 
of the Companj''s trade secrets arid am- proprictarj' infonnation. 

WHEREAS, the Company and Employee desire to set fqrdi in writing the lerms and conditions of dieir agreements and 
understandings with respect to Employee's ernployment at Companj', as well as these cbvenarits, and the parties expnssslj' 
acknowledge Uiat Uiese covenants are a condition of Employee's employmenl, 

NOW, THEREFORE." in consideration ofthe mutual proiiuses, coveriants arid :cpnditions set forth in this Agrcenient, the 
Company arid Employee agree as follows: 

1, Einplovmenl Date. This Agrccment shall be effecrive upon the Employee's commencement of providing services 
for the Company on ihe dale hercof (ihc "Employmenl Dale"). 

2. Emplovmcni. 

(a) Term, Tlie Company hcrcby employs Employee; and Employee accepts such employnient and agrces 
to perforin sen'ices for the Compaiiy.for an initial period of one (1) year from arid after tiie Employment Date (the "liuiial Tenn") and 
for successive one-year periods (die "Renewal Terin(s)"), unless eidier (i)tlie;CoinpanyproyideS;90 days written notice priorto the 
e.\-piratioii ofthe Initial Term'or applicable Renewal Term, or (ii) the Agreement istcmiiriaied at an eariier dale in accordance with 
Section 3 or Section 4:of Uus Agreemeni (Uie Initial Tenn and tlie Re iiejval.Tenns together rcferrcd lb as the "Tennof EriiploymenC). 

(b) Service with Comp;mv. From arid afler the Einplbyinent Date during the tenn of this Agrccment, 
Einployee shall serve as the Company's Senior \^ce.Presidcnl, General Counsel and Secrctaiy,,reporting direclly lo the Company's 
Chief E.xecutive Officer During the Tenn pf Employment, Employee agrees to perforin reaspnable employment duties as die Board 
of Directors oflhe Conipany shall assign to Iiim'from lime lb time, witli such duties and responsibilities as are customarily the duties 
and responsibilities ofa Senior Vice President, 
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General Counsel and Secretaij'ofcompanies such as the Company. Employee also agrees to serve, for ariy period for which he is-
elected, as ari officer of the Cpmparij'; provided, however, dial Employee sliiill not be eniided to ariy additional compensalion for 
serving as ;m officer oflhe Compariy. Employee's ofilce will be located at UieCompaiiy's corporate hciidquarters, 

(c) Perfonnance of Duties. Employee agrees to sen'C UK Companj', faiihfully and to llie best of his abililj' 
and to devole subsiantially all of liis business liuie,-allenlion and efforts lo the business and aitairs of the Company during the Tenn of 
Employmenl. Tlie foregoing sliall not preclude Employee from serving on chariiable boards and engaging in oihercivic endeavors, so 
long*as die same do,nol interfere with the perfonnance ofhis duties. 

(d) Comoensation. From and aflerUie Eniployment Date and during the reinaiiung Tenn of Employment, 
the Compariy sliall pay lo Employee as compeiisation forservices to be rendered liereunder iin aggregate base salarj",of $365,000,00 
peryear payable in equal inonUdy, br more frequent, payments, subject lo increases, ifair '̂, asniay bedetennuiedby the Compam-
("Annual Base Salaij'"), Employee sliall also be eligible lo receive an aimual cash bonus begimiing wiUi respect to Uie Company's 
2009 fisciii year (prorated based on days of employment) based upon Uie iicltieveiricnt of objective perfonnance targets that liave been 
established by the Compensation Comntittee of ihe Boanl of Directors:(Uie "Comimttee"), provided Uiat the Employee's minimum 
annual bonus for each year shall be equal ioai:icasi60%of the Employee's Annual BaseSaliirj- Ifihe Employee meets UK minimum 
targets set by.the Coimnittee. With ri::spect ib fiscal years subsequent to the 2009 fiscal year, Employee sliall be involved as a seitior 
management executive in the estiibllshriieni of objeclive 'perforriiahceitargets. On UK Agreement Date, the Employee shall receive a 
nonqualified opiion to purchase il0,000sharesof Company stock,-subjcct to.lhe tennsof the Isleof Capri Casinos. Inc. 2000 
:Long-Tertri Stock Incentive Plan and die terins set foiih in this Agreeiii'eriil 20% of which options sliall vest on each of ihe first five 
(5) amuversaries of the Agreement Diile. The e.xcrcisepricc'of such options,shall be $4,62 per sliare,.rcpresenting ilie average 
between UK high and low trading prices oflhe Conipanj-'s common stock on tlie.date^ hereof which is equal to.die fair market value of 
the Company's coriuiion Stockton the dale of grant. Tlie Empl6j-ee sliall also be entitled io participate in die IsleofCapri (liasuios, Inc: 
2000 Long-Term Stock'Incentive Plan and oUier slbck option pUins, if anj-, estabhshed by die Company (the "Companj'-'s Stock 
Option Plans"): to.the extent that sunilarly situated executives oftlie Companj- participate in such plans. In addition'to the base salaij-, 
any bpntises, arid parlicipatioii;ui the Company's Slock'Optiori Plaiis as set forth above, Einplpyee sliall,be entitied to participate in 
any employee benefit plans or programs of ihc'̂ Compiiny as arc or iruiy be made geiKî Uy available tp employees of ilic Company and 
diose made available to officers ofthe Conipany (it being understood Uiat Employee sjiall first beeligible for the:grant of additional 
stock oplions at Uie 2009 annual meeting of the Board of i^lrccto^)- Eniployee sliall be entiUcd lo tlirceAyccks' vaeaiionper year 
Tlie Companj- will pay or reimbuise Einployee for all reasonable and necessarj- oiit-ofTppcket expenses incurrcd by him in the 
perfonnance of his duties under tlus Agreement, subjecl lo the prcscntmerirof appropriale voucheis inaccordance withthe Company's 
policies for e-xpense verification. 

(e) No Violation. Employee represents and warrants to the Company that the e.xecurion and delivery of 
diis Agreement by Einployee, arid the carrying out of Employee's 
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duties on belialf of the Company as cxmtemplated hereby, do not violate or confiict with die terms of any olheragreemenls to which 
the Employee is or was a partj-. 

(f) Relocation Expense Rciinbursemenl. The Conipany agrees to dirĉ cUy pay. or reimburse Employee for 
all reasonable fees, costs and expenses incurred in conneciion with his rclocation from Illinois lb iMissouri In anianner consisieni wilh 
Company,policies for senior cxeculivc-level employees of ihe Company.. 

(g) Signing Bonus. Tlie Coinpaiiy shall pay a sigiung bonus to Einployee in the aggrcgatc auibunf of 
$ 100,000.00, payable iis foUows; one:diird to be paid on the Employment.Dale,(or as soon thcrcafteras practiciible);.one-third lo be 
paid on UK first anniversaiy pf llie Employmenl Date (oj as soon Ihereafter as practicable); and onc-Utird to be paid on IIK second 
anniversaiy of die Employment Date (or as sooii thereafter as practicable). No portiori ofthe signing bonus sliall be payable if, on the 
sciieduled date of payment llKreof, Employee is not ihen einplbyed by die Cpmpany forany-reason. 

3, Termination. 

such lenn: 
(a) Tlic Term of Employment sliall icnninaic prior to its expiration In I1K event tlial at any time during 

(i) the Company delivers a notice of teniiiniitipn for "cause" to Emploj'ee. For purposes of ihis Section, 
"cause" shidl mean any dishonesty, disloyally or breiichbf cbrporale policies, in each case that is 
material to the ability of Employee lo continue lo function as an effective e.xecutive given die strict 
rcguiaiorj' slandards of tlieindustry in which Uie Compaiiy does business; gross misconduct on the 
part of Employee in tlie perfonuiince of Employee's duties hcreunden a violation of Section 5 ofdtis 
AgFecmenl'; or die failure to be lirensed as a "key person" orsimilar role under die Uiws ofany 
jurisdiction where the Compaiij' docs business, or the ioss of anj-snch license for am- reiison. If 
Employee is terininated for cause (after iIK Conipanj' lias given liiin 10 diiys' advance written notice 
in the case of insiances;giving rise to,the.Company's ability ioteniumile Employee's employmem for 
"cause'-'dial'are capable of beingcured during such time period), there shall be no severance paid to 
Employee and his bcnefils sliall icniuniite, e.xcepl :is may be,providcd by law. 

(ii) the Company for am' other rcason lenninates the Term of Employment, wiihoul "cause" as defined in 
dus Seciion (including tliroiigli non-renewal of ihc Agreemeni). For pmposes of this Section, if 
Employee signsa Mutual and General Release (a "Release"') m reasonable and-typical fonn thai Is 
acceplable lo the Company that releiises the Cpmpany from anyand all claims tiiat Employee may 
have (and vjce versa) and affirmatively agrces not to violate any of the. provisions of Section 5 hercof 
(which sliall not be expanded beyond wliat is set'forUi In Section 5), Employee sliall be entitled to 
rcceive the severance payments and continued benefits 
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described iu this paragraph 3(a)(ii); provided, ti'Employee fails to sign the Release, Employee sluill 
nol be cull tied to iiny severance payments or benefiis hereunder, and provided fiirther, if anj-
severance payments or benefits arc subject to Seciion 409A of tlie, Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
amended (the "Code"), Employee sliall only be entitled to any such severance payments or benefits if 
the Release has been executed, is efreciiye and die applicable rcvocatiori period has expired no later 
Uian Uic date as of wliich such paynient of the severance or beiiefits are oUienvise to conuiience and if 
such reqtiiremcnts are not satisfied. Employee shall not be;entitlcd to any such portion ofthe 
se •̂crance payments orbenefits diereafter Subjecl to the foregoing, if the Companj' tenitinates the 
Tenn of Emplpyment without "cause," IIKH the Employee,shall be entitled to continue to rcceive liis 
Annual Base Salaij' (and sliall receive anj- eanied but unpaid portion of his bonus) payable in 12 
nionUdy irislidlinenls begimting bri the first day foilowriig the six-month ahriiversaiiy' ofthe 
Employee'S'lermination date and, to die exteni legally permissible, Employee sliall be entitled lo 
continue to participate in the einployee benefit programs for a period of 12 monllis froni and afier die 
Emplojcc's tenninalion dale; provided, however, that die salaiy continuation payments iUid such 
continued coverage under Companj' benefit programs sliaU end upon the Employee's eartier 
employmcni by a new emploj'er. Notwitlistiihding the foregoing, die Board pf Directors may 
autliorize tlialportion ofthe Amiual BascSalarj' and ciuncd but unpaid bonus piiyable in accordance 
with the foregoing provisions,of Uus'paragraph 3(a)(ii) thiit does not exceed an ainOuni cqual.to two 
times the ma.-dinuni amount lluit may be taken into acraunt urider a quahfied pjan pursuanl to seciion, 
40l(a)(17) of the Code forthe year in whichihe Employee's tennination of employment occurs (the 
"4b9A Exempt Paynienl") to be paid'in a single lump smn to the Employee on die first payroll date 
following tlK'Employce's termination date/.and die remaining Amiiial Base Salarj'and bonus (that is,* 
the Annual Base Salaij- and bonus minus the 409AExeinpl Payment paid to the Employee in single 
lump sum) to be paid to the Employee in 6 equiil installments beginning on die six-inbiilh anniversiiry 
of die Employee's terminalion dale and ending on die one-year aiutiyeisiaij' of Uie Employee's 
tennination date, oruiitil new eniplpynienl bcguis^.whiclievcroccurs first. In llie evenl of tennination 
without "cause'' pursuiint to Uus Secrion 3(ii)(ii), any unvested stock options owned by Employee on 
the date of termination that would,liave .vested liad Employee remained employed under this 
Agreeineni forpneyearfollowing tlic,date of tennination, shiUl vest and become exercisableas oflhe 
date of lenniuiition. As used in dus Agreemeni die tenn "earned but unpaid bonus" shallrefer to the 
npn-discretionaiy portion of die bonus lo wlticli Einplpyee would tiave been cntiiled liad he rcinained 
employed in his'position forthe remainder ofthe fisciil year of tennination, prorated for Uie numberof 
days,duriiig such year thalEmployce was employed by the Companj'. 
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(iu) Employee for any reasori voluntarily lenninates tlic Term of Employmcni. In said event.-Einployee 
shall not be entitled to any compensation and his benefits sliall tenninate, e.xcepl as may be provided 
by law, from and after tennination. 

(iv) However, if Eniployee voluntarily lenninates llie Term of Employmenl due to Retircirieril all stock 
options shall become fully vested and exercisable. Tlie tenn "Relircineiit" sliall.mean die termination 
by Employeeof his employment by rcason of reaching the age of 65 or such lalerdale approved by die 
Board bf Drieclors. 

(v) Employee dies br becoines "Disabled" (as defined below). In said event, Einployee, orhis estate, sliall 
continue to rcceive Itis salaiy and shidl rcceive any earned but unp;tid bonus and, to ihc e.xtent legally 
permissible, continue toparticlpiite in die employee benefit prograins for a period of 12 monlhs from' 
iind after such termination or until new employ inciii begins, wlucli ever occurs first Employee sliall 
also be entitled to a lump sum paymeni equal to llic average of ilie last 3 years bonus payments 
inclusive of deferred airibunts (or! if Employee'has not been employed for three years, the average of 
die bonus payriienis, inclusive of deferrcd amounts, during the Tenn ofEinpIoymerit). For purposes 
of diis Agreeineni,'"Disabled" nicaiis tliiit tlie Empioyee Is unable to engage inany substantial gaiid\il 

J activity by reason of any medically deterininable physical of mental impainnent iliat can be expected 
to result in death or can be expecied to laslTor a continuous period of not less than, 12 months, as 
deiemuned In gpod faiih by die Board ofDircclors ofdie Company, 

(b) E.'ccept as provided iKreunder, the vesting of stock options shall be governed by Uie provisions of llie 
Company's Stock Option Plans. 

4, Cliange In Controlof the Company,- If (i) there is a,sale,'acquisition, merger, or buyout ofdie Company to an 
unaffiliated persoii, or any person tliat is not ;iri "affiliate" (asstich term is defined,wider the Seciirities Excliange Act of 1934) bf the 
Conipany or any of its sliarcholdcrs on tlie Agrccmcnl Date becomcsjhc legal and beneficial owner of more than 50% of UK 
Company's common sipck (a "Change inControl"), and (ii)'iminediatcly prior to or within 12 inpritlis after such Change inControl, 
die Einployee vblwilarily lenninates eiiiployirieiit urider Section 3(aXiii) in circumstiirices where diere has beeria sigiiificarit reduction 
in tiie authoriiy. responsibiUties. position or compensation of Emploĵ ee or Employee lias been required to liiove UK location of his 
principal residence a distaiKc of more Uian 35 miles,'and the Conipany lias failed to remedy such situation witlun 30 days afier receipt 
of Employee's written notice thereof, then in lieii ofthe severance payriienis, if airr', othenvise payable lothe'Employee under 
Seciion 3 of the Agreement, Employee will be entitled to die following severance:, 

(a) Two times Annual Base Salary payable in 24 monthly installmenls beginning on the first day foUowing 
the six-monlh anniversaiy ofthe Employee's termination datc;:plus a lump sum payment equal to the amount ofany eamed but unpaid 
bonus plus the average of die previous 3 years.bonus payment; inclusive of deferi-edaniounlS; ifany (or, if 
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Employee lias noi beeri einploj-ed for tiiree years; the average of the bonus payments, inclusK'C of defcrrcd amounts, during the Tenn 
of Employment), vvhich lump sum shal! be paid to Employee on Uie first day following ihe,sL\-inonUi aimiversarj- ofdie Employee's 
tennination date. Notwitlislanding the forcgoing, the,Board ofDircctors inaj' aiithprize lliat portion oflhe foregoing paymenis under 
this paragrapii 4(a) dial qualify as a 469A Exempt Payment (as defined in sectioni3(a)(u)) to be paid in a siiiglc lump sum to die 
Employee on the first payroifdatc following the'Employee's lermiriation date; and the remaining Annual Base Salary amounts to be 
paid to die Employcejin 24 equal uistaiinierils begimting on die sixTUionthiinnivcrsiuj- ofdie Eiuployee's tennination dale and eriding 
on the second anniversaij' ofthe Employee's temunation dale, or until new employ ment begins, wluchevcr occurs first; and the 
remaining bonus amount, ifany; to b^ paid in a siiigle lump sum on the six-month anniversarj- of tte Employee's temiination date. 
Salarj' continuation shall tenninate if and when I£inplbyee begins new eniployiuent duringtlie period of siilarj' continuation. 

(b) HeaJthand w'elfare benefiis sliall .bcfully paid by the Conipany and fun.coricurrently with salarj-
continuation (but if suchcontiiiued health benefits are Uixable to theEinplpyee,'then such coiitinued-lieiiiUi benefits sliall continue only 
during IIK peripd during wlticti the Emplpyee would hiive beeii eligible to continue.such coverage mider the Company's heallh plan in 
accordance with section 4980B oftlie Code C'tJOBRA"), had the Employee elected such cpverage.and paid die applicable prcmimn), 
withoul any gap in coverage. 

Upon the occurrciKc ofa Change in Control,,ailstock options owned .bj',:EmpIoyee shaU become, fully vested aiid 
exercis^le As a condition to receiving the payinents described in ciause (a) above. Employee sliall be required to execute and 
deliver to the Gonipany;a gener^ rclease in customaiy' and agreed fonn, proyidedlhiit if Employee fails to sign the release. Employee 
sliali not be entided to any severance payinents or benefits urider diis:Seciion 4; and provided furtlKr, if any severance paj'ments.'or 
benefits are subject to Section 409A of Uic Code. Employee shall.only be entitled io any such severaiKe payments or benefits if such 
release has beeri executed, is effective and the applicable revocation period lias c.x-pircd no later thari IIK diite as of which such 
paynient ofthe severance or-benefiis are bilier\visc tocomnicnceand'if such rcquirements are not satisfied, Employee sliall not be 
entiUed to any such portion'of IIK severance payments or benefits thereafter 

5. Confidentialil\'. Non-Conipetition and Non-Solicitation. 

(a) Tlie Company's Business, h is expressly agreed by die partjes.tliat the Company is engaged in the 
business of owning, managingand operating gaming iind aisiiio faciliiies in the slates of Missouri, Klississippl, lowa, Louisiana, 
Colorado, Florida, the United Kingdoni and the Baliamas, is inthe business of seeking ne\y gaming properties iri additional 
jurisdictions and is engaged in all aspects of such gaming and ciisino operations. Employee desires:to be employed by the Companj-
and acknowledges and agrees diat the"Company'would be adversely affecled if Employee competes w-ith the Companj' during, and 
subsequent to. Employee's employment wlili die Conipany. 

(b) Trade Secrets and Confidential Infonuation. The Companj- arid Employee acknowledge die existence 
of trade secrets and other confidentialinfomiation as defined below (collectively; referred to as "Confidential Inforination"), allof 
which aie owried by die Company; 
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reganlless of whether such Confidenlial Infonnation was conceived, originated, devised or supplemented by Employee, Uie Company, 
or imy other person or entity. Einployee acknowledges dial he will liave access to Confidential Infonnation during lus employment 
with:the Conipanj'. 

Excepi as required by law", during the ierm of this Agreement and ihereiifter, Employee sliall not, without the pripr wrinen 
consent of die Compaiiy, directly or indirectly disclose or dissemiiuite to any oUier person, finn or organizalion.,iuiy (Tonfidcnliai 
InfbniiaUon otlKr ilian on behalf of die Company. The foregoing obUgaiion shall nol apply to any Confidential Infomiation that shaU 
liave become kiiown to competitors of the Compiiriyorto die public other dian througli aniicl oromissjonby Employee or dial shaU 
liave been disclosed IO.IIK Employee by a person or entity unaffiliated with the Company who hiis legitimate possession thereof ui its 
entirely and possess^ the uiuestricled riglil to make such disclosure. Employee.agrees toindeiimify, defend iind liold liamdcss die 
Conipany fforii arid against any damages (including attorneys' fees, court costs, iriv-estigative costs arid ainourits p<tid in sedlemerit) 
suffered by the Companj' pr any oî  Its Affiliates arising out of the unauthorized disclosure or use of (I'onfideniial Information by 
Einployee: 

"Confidential Infonnation" sliall mean any dala or infomiation and documentation, wheUier in tangible forrii, electronic 
fonn or vertiaily disclosed, Uial is of material value to the Company and not knowriio, the public or the Compiriy's competitor, and_ 
which the Coriipam- has kept confidenlial. To UK fullesi Cxienlcohsistent w-ith the foregoing and as oUKrwise lawful, .Confidential 
Infonnation sliaU include, withoul limitation, IIK Conipanj''S trade secrets, compijter prograins, sales techniques and reports, formulas; 
data processes; methods, articles of manufacture. inachines,;apparanis; designs, compositions of matter, products^.improyements, 
Inventions, discoveries; developmental orexperiinentarwoiii,,corporaie straiegy,niarketing teclutiques, pricing lists and data and other 
pricuig infomiation, business plans, ideas and opportunities, accounting and finiiricial inforriiiitlon Iricluding financial statements and 
projections, personnel reconJs, specializedcustomer inform';! lion, praprietaiy agreements wkh vendors, special products and services 
Ihe Gpmp<7nj' may offer or provide to its customers/guests from tiine lo time, pending acquisitions, negotiations and transactions, or 
die terms of e.xistuig proposed business arrangemenls. ConfideiUial Infonnaiion sliall alsb îriclude all cuslomer lists, accounls arid 
specifications, and contacts of UK Company, and shall furUicr include wodt in progress, plans or anj-.otlKr matter belonging to or 
rclcitirig to the leclutical or business activilies of die Gompany!-

Employee. at the time ofthe effective date of die temunation of the employment rehitionship with Uie Company, sliaU Ium 
over to UK Companj- alj "Confidenlial InfpriTi;ition".iind anj' imd aH'copies Uiereof in lus possession regardless of who provided 
Employee with such infonnaiion: Should Employeebe legally'served wltli a lawfully issued subpoena exprcssly directing Employee 
to turn over die Company's Confidential Infonuation, Employee slwll iiiunediately, and certainly rip later Uiah five (5) days after 
notice, advise the Company In writing ofthe subpoena and also provide^a copy of the subpoena to the Compam-, al its lawful address 
as stated in t̂lus Agreement, ihereby providing IIK Gompanj' wiUi adequate time to lawfully object to the disclosure of its Confidential 
Infonnation. Employee's failure to iminediately advise the Company ofthe subjxiena shall subject Employee to an\' and all remedies 
afforded lo the 
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Company, including, bul not limited to, damages resiilting to die Company forbreach of contracl. 

Empjoyec agrces thai all such Confidenlial Infonnation is, and shall remain, the sole and exclusive property of the 
Conipany and Einployee furtheragrees that during and after Uie lenn of Ills employinent wiUi IIK Company,,Employee-will not 
publislL.disclose, coinmuniciile orotlier\ylsedissemliiale lb ariy cntily and/or person any Confidential Infonnation. Employee 
acknowledges and iigrces lliai such Confidential Infonnation is of critical imponancelo die Conipany and Its business, and any 
uniiuthorized dissemination ofsuch infonnaiion would cause great hium lo the Company; thereby entitling die Company lo an\- and all 
rights and remedies as provided by law, imd as spccificaUy provided In Section 6 of Uus Agreeinent, 

Emploj-ee liercby assigns and agrces to iissign lo the Company anj' invention, iinprovcmeni, or discovery niiide by Iiim. 
alone orjoiiUly wiUi others, during the, temi of liis employment: includirig ;uiy period of iiuthorized leave of iibscncc, or as a result of 
lus employ merit; and which in any way relates to. or may be*uscfui:in, the business of theCompar^', logeUier witii each patent that 
may be obliiined Uiereon in any counirj'. Employee wiU prompUy and fully disclose to the Company any such iiwention. Improvement 
or discoveij' and, without further eonsideraiibn, will upon request l)y.tlie Company execute aU proper papers for use in applying for 
obtaining and maintaining any United States or foreign patent and all properassigiuiients thereof at the Company's expense and 
tiirough its Patent Counsel. Each such im'entipn, improvement or discoyerj', whether or not paienied, siiall be the exclusive propertj-
of the Companj'. 

(c) Restrictions on Competition. Inexchange for consideration of employment, and in consideration for 
Employee receiving and being given access,io confidenlial business infonnation,ancluding,.but not liniited lo trade secrets, customer 
and supplier contacts and rclationsltips, goodwill, lojalty and bUieriiiformatibn; and asa condition of employment of Employee by IIK 
Company, duririg the term of Ernploj'.ee'semploynierifwiththe Compaî -, iind fora period ofone (I) j-ear afler ilie voluniarj- or 
Involunlan,' termiaition of Employee's employment with die Company for any rcason whatsoever (other thanthe'teniiinalion of 
Employee's employmenl by Uie Conipany otiier Uian for "cause" as set forth in Section 3(a)(ii) above). Employee wdl (a) refrain from 
canj-ing on or engaging irithe casino orgaming business (as defiiicd'in Section 5(a)), or, without die written consent ofthe Company 
(wliicii'sliall nol be unreasonably wiilUield), die hotel oi" resiaurani busiiiess, iii any case eillKr direclly or indireclly. eiUier individually 
or joindy or on behalf of or in concert wiih am- other person, as a proprietor'partner, shareholder invesior (odier than in less than 5% 
ofany class of securities ofany publicly traded company),lender, financial backer,,director officer employee.ageni, advisor 
consullanl or niaiiiiger, or in any other capacityprinamfer whatsoever (b) refrairi froni soliciting Employees of ilie Cpmpiiny, and 
(c) protect and maintain die confidentiaiitj' of trade secrclsaiid any and all confidential iuid proprietarj- infonnation. Provisions 
(a) llirough'(c) of this section apply to any ganung operation or gaming facility witliin a 75-ihiIe radius of (A) ar^'g;iming operation or 
gaming facilitj' owned (In whole or iri part) by the Company or wiUi respeci lo which the Coinpai^' renders or proposes to render 
consulting or riumiigcinent ser\'ices, in each case on the date hereof oron the daieof tennination of employment, or (B) any ofthe 
forcgoing as towhich the Company has t;ikcn any subsliiiitive step toward owning (in whole or in part) or managing such faciliiy in 
die fuiure. 
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(d) Non-Solicitation of Employees, Incxcliimge for consideration ofcmployment.and in consideration for 
Employee receiving and being given access to confidential business infonnation, including, but noi iimited to Irade secrets, customer 
and supplier conlacls and relationships, goodwill, loyalty and other infomiation, and as a condition of employment of Einployee by IIK 
Company; during tlK tenn of Employee's employment wilh the Company. Employee sliall not, withoul the prior writien consent of'tlK 
Company, either direclly or iridlrectly, eilher individually or jointly oron behiilf bf or in concert with any other-person, as a proprietor, 
partner, sliareliolder Invesior (oUiefUian uijess tliiin 5% of any classof securities ofany publicly traded company), lender finiincial 
backer director, officer, employee, agent, advisor, consullanl or manager or in any oUier capaciiy or manner wliatsoever, solicit for 
liire. erilerinlo any contract or other arriuigement willt or interfere witii, disrupt or atteinpi to interfere with or disnipt the Company's 
relalionships wiih, any person, who. as ofthe date of temunation of Employee's employinent, is employed by the Company. This 
provisionw'ill apply in Uie geograpluc arcas covcnil in Section 5(c), and wilh respect to any sales office, regional office or tlK 
cbrpo'rate'headquarlers of the Coriipany, for one (l)j-ear after the vbluntaij' of'involuhtaryiemtinatiori of Employee's eriiploynient 
with the Company for any reason. 

(e) Rcasoruiblc Tcmis, Employee agrces tlial the geographic areas, duration and scope of activities 
ouUined in Uus Agreemeni arc reasonable under ilKciremnslances. Employee further agrees that such tenns are no broader ihim 
necessarj' lo protect Ihe Company's business and maintain the confidentiaiitj' of the Confidenlial Infonnation. Employee further 
agrces Uiat the tcrmsbf Uus Agrcemem are not oppressive and will riot iinpbsc an unreasonable bunlen or restraint on Employee. 

6. Miscellarieous-

(a) Successors and Assigns. Tltis Agreement Is biiKJing on and inures to the benefil of the Company's 
successors and assigns. The Companj- may assign this Agreement in coimection widi a riiergcr, consplidation, assigiunent, sale br 
other disposition of substariiiallyall of its assets orbusiness (subject to the provisions of Section 4). This'Agreemcntmay not be 
assigned by Einployee. 

(b) Mod ificiition. Waivers. Tiiis Agrcemenfinay-be modified'oramended oidy by:a wriluig signed by an 
authorized rcprcsentalive ofthe Conipany, and Einployee. The Coiripai^-'s failurc, or delay in exercising anj" right, or partial exercise 
ofany right.-will nol waive any provision of dus Agreement or preclude the Company.frorii othenvise or further exercising any rights 
brrcmedies hereunder orany other riglits or remedies granled by any law orany related dbcunienl. 

(c) Goveming Law. Arfaiiration. The laws of Missouri will govem the yahdily, construction, and 
pe'rfoniiance of dtis Agreement without rcgard'lo the location bf execution or-pcifoniiance of this Agreement. Any controversy or 
claimarisingoulof or relating to litis Agreemeni. or die breach thereof, shall be senled by biiiding arbitration adnuitistered by the 
American Arbitration Association under its Commercial Aibitralion Rules, and judgmeni on the award rendered by the 
arbitralor(s) may be entered in any court liaving jurisdictionthcrcof BoUi the Gompahy-and Employee hcrcby cbnsent to dtis binding 
arbitration provision. 
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(d) Remedies. Employee exprcssly^acknowlcdges and the parties recognize that the restrictions contained 
hercin are rcasonable and necessaiy to protect the business and interests of ihe Conipany, and ihjii imy violation of Uicse resirictions 
will cause substantial irreparable injuiy and damage to the Compiiny, and the extent of such damage would be difficult if nol 
hnposslble to calculate. Accordingly, the parties to tlus Agreemerit expressly agree tliat (i) if Employee breaches any provisionpf tills 
Agreemeni, the damage lo the Company may be subsianiial, nlthpiigh difficiilt to ascertain', and inonetaij' daniiiges inay not afford an 
adequate, remedy, and (il) if Employee is In breach of any provision bf tlus Agreeinent, or llirealens a breach of ihis Agreement, UK 
Conipany sliaU tie entitled, inaddition to all ollsr riglits and remedies as may be provided.by law, to seek specific perfonnance and 
injunctive and oilier equitable reUef iiKluding. but hot limiled to, restraimng orders and prelinunarj' and pemianent injunctions, to 
enforce the provisions of tltis Agreement, piirticularly Uiosc provisions govenung noncompetition, nonsoliciiaiion and confidentiality, 
contained in this Agreement, aswcll as.to prevent or restrain a breach of any' provisions ofthis Agreement. The parties exprcssly 
agree tlial the Company lias Uiese specific and ex-press rights to injunctive relief without posting any bond that might be requested or 
required, and wiihoul llie neccssitj" of proving irreparable injurj-, and dial Emploj-ee expressly agrees nol lo claim in any such 
equitable proceeduigs iliai a remedy at law Is available to the Goinpany. The existence of any claim orcause of action by Einployee, 
whether predicated on this Agreement oroUKnvise,,shair_npl constilute adefensc lo Ihc enforcement by Uie Conipany orany of its 
Affiliates ofany provision hereof Tlie parties to this Agreement also expressly agree that the Company is entiUed to recover any and 
all daniages for any losses susiained, and rights ofwhich it lias been deprived,,as well as any damages allowed by jaw. 

(e) , If any proceeding is brought for die enforcement of ilUs Agreement, or because ofan alleged dispulc, 
breach or defaull in coimection wiUiany of the proyisibiisbft'ris Agreement, the successful or pnDvaihng party or parties shallbe 
entiUed Iprecover reasonable attorney's fees and other costs incurred in dial proceeding, in addition lo any oilier rehef lo which it may 
be entitled. All ofthe Companj-'s rcmedies for breach of tliis Agreement sliall be cumulative and the pursuit of one remedy sliaU nol 
be deemed to exclude aiw other remedies. 

(0 Captions. The headings in litis Agrcenient arc for convenieiice oiUy and do not affect Ihe inlerprelation 
of this Agreement. 

(g) Severabiliiv. To the extent any provision of this Agreement shall be invalid or enforceable wilh respect 
lo Employee, il shall be considered deleted herefrom wlUi respect lo Employee aiid the remainder of such provision and this 
Agreemeni sliiill be uiuiffecled and sluill continue in full force aiid effecl. Iri furflieriince to and not in luniiation bf Uie forisgoriig, 
should the duration or geographical extent of, or business aclivniescoveredby, any provision of Utis Agreemeni be in e.xcess of that 
which is viilid iind enforceable under applicable law willi respect lo Einployee, Uien such provision shall be constmed to cover only 
dial duration, exteni or acuviiies witich are validly and enforcciibly.covered with respeci tb Employee. Employee acknowledges the 
uncertainly of the law in litis respect and'expressly stipulates lliiit̂ this Agreement bcgiven tlie construction,wluch renders its 
provisions valid and enforceable to the ma-ximum exlent (not exceeding its expressed tenns) possible under applicable laws. 
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(ll) Entire Agreement, Tliis Agreement contains the entire agreement and understanding by ami beiween 
the Companyand Employee, and supersedes all previous,arid contemporaneous oral negptialions, commttinenls,,writings and 
understandings behvccn the parties conceming the matters hercin or therein, including williout limitation, any policy of personnel 
manuids of the Company to die exlenl any provisions herein are inconsistent ihercwiih. No cliange lo this Agrceiiient sKall be valid or 
binding unless ii is inwritliigand signed by the parties, 

(i) Indemnification. Tlie Company shall indemnify Employee and hold Employee hamiless to llie full 
extent permuted by Section l45^of the DelawarcGeneral^CorporationLavv from and against any and all claiins, liabilities and losses" 
he riiiiy suffer arising in connection wiih'his employment asanofficerof the Company as set forth herein, subjectto the cxceptioiis set 
forth in UK Delaware General Corporation Law. The agreement oflhe Company sel forUi in this Sectiori 6(1) sliall survive die 
tenniniilion ofthis Agrccincnt. 

(j) Notices. All notices and oUicr commuitications rcquired or pennilled under diis Agreeinent sliall be in 
writing and sent by registered first-K:lass niiiil, postage prepaid, <uid shall be deeincd delivered upon hand deliverj' or upon mitiling 
(postage prepaid and by registered or certified mail) to the following addrcss: 

ff lolhe Company, to: 

Isle ofCapri Casinos, Inc. 
600 Emerson Road 
Suire30b" 
Sl. Louis, MO 63141 

Attention: President and CEO 

With a copy to: 

Paul TIKISS 
Mayer Brown LLP 
71 S. Wacker Drive 
CIticago, a . 60606 

ff to the Employee, lo: 

•Edinund L. Quatmarui.,Jr 
c/o Isle ofCapri Gasinos, Inc. 
600 Emerson Road 
Suite 300 
Sl. Louis. MO 63141 

Widi a copj' lo: 

- ' 11 

Source: ISLEOF CAPRI CASINOS INC, lO-K, July 11,2008 Fov.̂ reiibvMi:irninfistar''DGr.!imfim Rf;searcli'̂  



Tlie mosi receiW home address in the Company's files for Edmund L. Quatmann, Jr 

These addresses may be clianged al any time by like notice. 

(k) Independent Review and Advice, Employee represents and warrants that Emplpyee has carefully read 
tlus Agreement: tliat Einployee executes tliis Agreement with full knowledge of the contents of this Agrcenient, IIK legiil 
consequences tliereof, and any and all rights \yhich ciicli party may liave with respeci to each odien tliai Employee has had the 
opportiiiuiy to receive independent legal advice whh respect lo tlie matters set fortli iri tlus Agrcenient and with respect to die rights 
and asserted righls arising out of such matters, and that Employee is entering into this Agreement ofthe Employee's own free wdl. 
Employee expressly agrees that there arc no expectations contraiy to the Agreement and no usage of trade or rcgular practice in IIK 
industiy shall be used to modify the Agreemeni. 
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IN WITNESS VWEREOF, each piinj- lias caused Ihis Agreement to be executed in a maimer appropriate forsuch party as 
of IIK date first above wrilten. 

ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 

By: /s/James B. Perij' 

EMPLOYEE 

Isl Edmund L Quatmann Jr 
EDMUND U QUATMANN, .IR. 
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Exhibit 10.19 

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

THIS EMPLO'^'MENT AGREEMENT (the "Agreenienl")*is madê and enteredintp by and belween Isle.of Capri, 
Casinos, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "(Tompiiny"). and ("Employee"), and is intended to be effective as of die date set forth 
below. 

1. Employment and Temi: 

1.1 Position. The Company and/orauiiffiliaicd employer of the Compaiiy sluilremploy and relain Employee as Its 
or in such odier capaciiy orcapaciiies as may be inuhially agreed upon from time to time, and Employee agrees lo be so employed, 
subjea to the lerms arid condiilpiis set forth herein. Eniplbj-ee's duties ;uid resporisibillties shall be those assigned tp Ium or her by 

to whom Employee shidl reporL Employee agrees to discliarge such duties in a reaspnable and cusiomarj' maimer 

1.2 rAffiliated Employer. Employee acknowledges dial he or she may perfonn services for the benefit of or be 
employed by an affiliate ofthe Company. Employee agrees tluit any reference to the Cbmpany herein shall be deemed to include anj' 
such iiffiiiaie and that, to the maximum exlent pennittcd by law, theprotectioiis described in Section Shereof shall be deemed to apply 
to tlie Company, any suchaffdiateandany other affiliate of the Cpmpany, 

1.3 Full Time and Attention. Employee agrees that he or she will devote his br her full time and attention lo the 
performance of his or her duties hercunder Employee wiU not, without die prior writien consenl oflhe (̂ bmpany be engaged, wheiher 
or nol during nonnal business hours, inany otiKr business or professional activity,,whether or not such activitj- is pursued for gain, 
profit orother pecuniaij' advaritage. 

1.4 Term. Employee's employment sliaU coinmence as of (the "Effective Date") imd sliall contuiue fora 
series of successive one-year lerrris, unless earlier lerniinated as provided in Sections 3 or 4 hereof Obe pcripdduring which Employee 
is employed'liercunder referred lo as ilic "Eniployment Tcnii"). 

2. Compensation and Benefits: 

As of the Effective Date,,the Company;shaII,pay to Einployee the amiual base compensalion set forth on Exhibil A hereto 
(Emploj'ee's "Base Compensiition") and such other bonus, equiiy^incentive, fringe and cmplojxe benefits, as may be set forth on such 
exlubn, the temis of which are incorporated heiein by this reference. Such benefits and amounts may be adjusted, frorii time tb time, 
on Exhibit A hereto orniay be evidenced by a separate plan, policy or program sponsored by ^̂ ^ Company or in the fonn,of an 
agreement by and bet̂ veen the Company and Employee, 

3. Temiination and Nonrenewal: 

3.1 Special Definition. As used herein, the tenn "Basic Severance" sliall mean UK aggregate of the following 
amounts and benefits: • . 

a. Tlie continuation of Employee's aiuiualized Base Compensation in effect as of Uie date on wluch his or her 
employment ceases (Employee's "Tenniniilion Dale"), which amount shall be divided and paid in equal 
installmenls during the 
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I2-inondi period foUowing such date, in accordance wiUi the Company's regular pay dale praclices; 

b. Tlie bonus due under the Company's Annual Incentwe Plan or a successor thereto wilh respeci to the Company's 
mosl rccently completed fiscal year, ifany, to the extent thai such bonus has not j-el been paid as of Employee's 
Tennination Date, which amount sliaU be paid on the payment date generally applicable lo such bonus; and 

c, A monthly amount equiU lo the Company's portionof Employee's prcmium or similar contribution requircd under 
the Company's group medical plan as an active employee, such amount to be (i) based upon Employee's level of 
enrollment in such pl;in as of liis or herTcnniiuitiori DatC; (ii) paid during Uic 12-inonlh period following, 

• Employee's Tennination pale or until Employee's coverage ceases in accordance wilh Seciion 4980B of die 
Iniemal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), if earlier and (iii) contingent upon Employee's timely 
election lo continue his or her coverage under, the Company's grijup medical plan in accordance wiUi Code 
Seciion 4986B; 

3.2 Termination on Account of Death or Disability.' If Employee dies or becomes Disabled during the 
Employment Term, this Agreemeni and Employee's employmenl hereunder shall lerminiite In such evenl, IIK Cpmpanj- shall pay or 
provide lo.Employee (or to his or heresiale) (a) die amouiit of any accrued but unpaid Base Compensation, (b) Basic Severancc,_and 
(c) any oUier amount or benefil tb wluch Employee may be entiUcd under a scpanile plan, policj- or prognmi'inaintained.by the 
Company. Eniployee shall be deemed;"Disabled" hercunder Ifhe or she.is (a) unable to engage in anj-substantial gainful activltj' due 
to a medicaUy-dctenninable physical or menial impairmenl Uiat can be expected to result in death or to last for a continuous period of 
al leiisf l2:months, or(b) recemngbenefitsunder the Company's separale long-term disability plan for a period of at least thrce 
monllis as a rcsult ofa medically rdetenitinable,physical or menial iinpainnent. Tlie Company sliall certify wheUicr Employee Is 
Disabled as defined herein. 

3.3 Termination on Account of Employee's Voluntary Resignation. Employee may tenninate this Agrccment and 
lus pr her emplpyment hereunder upon 30 days prior written iibticc tp l̂he Conipiiiiybrsuchsliorterperiodas may be agreed uppn by 
the panics herclo. In such e\'ent; the Compiiny shall pay to Empioyee ihe amount of his or her accmed but unpaid Base 
Coriipensation. No additional payriienis or benefits shall be due hereunder except as may be required under a separate plan, policy or 
program maintained by die Company or iis may be required by law' lo be prp\'ided: 

If Einployee voluntarily lenninates this Agreeinent and his/or her cmplov-inent hereunder on or after the date on which he or 
she attains age 65 and completes three years of service witii die Company, Uien notwidistandihgany provision ofany plan, policj', 
contract or arrangement to die coriinuy, he or she sliall receive the following amounls and benefits, in addition to any amounl or 
benefil payable under a separate plan, policy or program maintained by the Company: 

a. An>' stock bplionsthen outsianding shall be fully vested and be and remain exercisable during the one-year period 
foUowing such lemtinaUon or such longer period exprcssly provided under Uie tenns of Employee's individual 
grant or award; 

Source: ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS INC, 10-K, July 11,2008 ' .Fov.̂ rfJb^-W&m"ir,Qstar"Cocumeni Rssearr^f^ 



b. Tlieamount ofany bonus due under the Company's Aimual Incentive Plan ora successor tlierelo with respeci to 
the Company's most recently completed fiscal yenr, ffany, lo the e.xient tliat such bonus lias not yet been paid as 
ofsuch date, which amount shall be paid in the fonn ofa single-sum ori IIK payment dale gerierally applicable to 
such bonus; 

c. A nionUily amount equal lo IIK Company's portion of Eiiiployee'sprenuuin or suitilar contribution under the 
Company's group medical plan, such amount to be (i) biised upon Employee's level of enrollment in Uie 
Cpnipaiiy's group medical plan asof his or herTerriilnalion Date, (ii)paid during tlie 12-inonth period following 
Empioj'ee's Temiination Date or unlil Uiedale on which Employee.'sjcontinuatipri coverage ceases in accordimce 
wiUi Code Section 4980B, if eariier, and (iii) contingeni upon Employee's timeiy election to continue lus or her 
coverage under UK Coiripanj-'s group mediciU plan iri iiccofdaiice wiUi Code Section 4980B; and 

d. An amoiuii equal lo Employee's avcnige:bonus paid under die Company's Annual liicenlivc Plan or a successor 
thercto during the Company'S:tiircc inbsl rcceiidy cpinplctcd fiscalyears,.determined net ofany deferral under 
Uie Deferred Bonus Plan, multiplied by a fraction (i) die numerator of which is die number of days of 
Employee's seix-ice during Uie fiscal year in which Employee's Termiaition Date occurs, and (") Uie 
denominalor of which is 365. 

3.4 Temiinalion by the Coinpanj- WilhoutCausc. The Coinpaiiy niaj'.tciiuinate this Agreement and Eniployee's 
employmenl hereunder at any time, without Cause:(as defiiKd below), with not less tlian 30 days priorwritten notice to Emploj-ee, 
unless a shorter period is agreed upon by the parties hereto. In such event, the Companj' sliall pay to Emploj-ee his or heraccmed bul 
unpaid BaseCbmpensation, provide any benefilsothenvisc requircd by. law lobe provided, and pay am- aniountor benefil oUKnvise 
reqiiiri:d undera separate plan, policy or program maintained by the Ĉ ompany, -In the event.tjiat Employee timclj-. executes a gerieral 
release in forin and subsUmce rcjisoniibly salisfactbrj' to die Company. UK Company shiUI further provide to Employee Basic 
Severance: 

3.5 ' Company's Termination forCausel The Conipanj' may icrutinaie Uus Agreemeni and Employee's 
employment hereunderat any time for (Tause In such evenl, the Company sliall pay to Employee Ihe.arnouni of his or heraccriied bul 
unpiiid Base Compensation. No additioiiiil payihents or benefits shall be due iKrcunder except as may be rcquired undera separale 
plan, policy orprograni maintained by the (Tompanj' pr as niay be requircd by-law lo be,provided. For purposes of dus Agreeinent, 
Uie tenn "Cause" shaU mean that Employee lias: 

a. Commiitcdan inteniional'acf of fraud, embezzlement or,tlieft in Uie course of his or her enipIo;vment or otherwise 
engaged in any inteniion;il misconduct which is materially injurious to the Company's financial condition or 
business repulation: 

b. Coinniilted inieritional daih(ige to lhe,property of the,Companj' orcomnuiied intenlioiiiU wrongful disclosure of 
Confidenlial Infomiation (as defiiied below) which is inaterially injurious to tlK Company's fia'inclal cbridiiiori 
orbusliKss repulation; 

c. Been indicted for Uic commission of a felpnj; or a crime involving moral turpitude; 
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d. Willfully and substantially refused to perfonn the essential duties of lus or her position, which lias not been cured 
widun 30 days following written nolice by die Company; 

e. Coimiutted a material breach of tliis Agreemerit, wliich lias not been cured within 30 days following receipt of 
wrinen notice of the breach from the Company; 

f Intentionally, recklessly or negligently violated any material provision of die Saibanes-O.xleyAci of 2002 orany 
of Ihc niles adopted by the Securities and Excliange Gomiriission iinplcinenting any such proyisioii;or 

g. Committed a material breach of the Company's Code of Ethics. 

No act or failure to act on tiK part of Employee will be deenicd"inteiitioiiar';if il was due primarily lo an error in judgment or 
negligcrice, but will be deemed "inieniionid" only if done or omitted to be done by Employee not in good faith and withoul reasonable 
belief tliai ius or her action or onussion was in die besi intercsi of the Company. In connection with anj- tennination for Cause 
hereunder, the Conipany shaU provide lo Employee written notice ofthe event or actions deemed to constitute such Cause. 

4, Change of Conlrol: 

4,1 .Special Definitions. As used herein, the tenn "Cliange pf^Control" sliall.liave the meaiting ascribed to il in the 
Company's 2000 LongrTcnn Slock Incenlive Plan, as the same may:̂ be amended, rcstated or olhenvise replaced from time to time. 

of 
Tlie lerm "Good Reason" shall mean that Employee has tenninated his or her eriiploymeni wilh llie Companj' on accouni 

a, A material diiiunution in Employee's duties and rcsponsibililies; 

b, A material diiiunution in Employee's Base Coinpcnsiition; or 

c, A material relocation of the principal place at wluch Employee perfonns services hereunder but in no event less 
tlian 25 miles from the then princijjai place at wluch Employee perfonns such services. 

No evem shall constilute "Good Reason'" hereunder unles's Einployee provides^wriitcri nolice Uiereof to UK Company not more ihiui 
90days;afterihe occurrence ofsuch reason, Uie Company is iiffdrded riot lesslhan a 30-day curc period following receipt ofsuch 
nolice, and Employee lenninates his or her employment liercunder prompiiy following Ihe end ofsuch curc period. 

4.2 Terminalion of Employment in Connection with Change of Control If the Company lenninates Employee's 
employment hercunder, oUier limn on account of Cause, or Employee lemiinalesihis or her employment hereu'rider on accouni of Good 
Reason, eiiheroccurring wiihin the l2-moritliperiodfoiiowingthe6cairrcnceof a Cliarige of Conlrol, iheninheuof any benefit 
provided in Section 3 hercof the Company shall pay or provide lo or for the benefit of Employee: 
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a. An amounl equal to 200% of his or her annualized Base Compensation Uien in effecl, which amouni shall be paid 
in ihc form ofa single-sum 30 days following Employee's Teniunaiipn Diite or the fust business day therciifier 

b. The average of his or her annual bonus payable under the Company-'s Annual Incentive Plan ora successor 
thercio, beforc any deferral iinder the Company's Deferred Bonus PUin, during the Company's Uircemost 
recenlly completed fiscal years or sucli shorter period as Employee has been employed by die Coniparij-; such 
amounl shall be paid in the fonu ofa single-sum 30 days following Employee's Teniunation Dale or die first 
busiiKss day thereafter 

c. The amount ofany bonus due with respect jo Uie Company's most rccently completed fiscal yeir ifany, lo ilie 
e.xtent that siich bonus hiis not yel been paid as of such date, which amounl sluill be paid on Uie payment dale 
generally applicable tp such bonus. 

d. A monthly, amouiit equal lo die prcmiuinrcquircd to continue Employee's coverage underihe Compaiw's group 
medical plan during tried 8-montli period following Employee's Tenriinaubri Date, such ainount to be (i) based 
upon Employee;s level of enrollment in ihe Company's group niediciil plan as of Ihe date of his or her 
Terminatibn Date, and (li) contingenl upon Employee's timclj eicciion to coniinue his or her coverage under Uie 
Company's groupmedical plan in accordance with Code Section 4980B. 

e. Am- slock options granled to Employee outstanding as of IIK occurrerice ofa Change of Control sliall be deemed 
fully vested and be and remain exercisable duriiig the onerjear period fpllpwing Employee's Temunation Date 
ofsuch lorigefrperiod Uial may be provided under Employee's mdividual grants or awards, but ui no event sliall 
such options remain exercisable ten years after the date of their graiit. 

4,3 Excise Tax. If the aggregate prcseni value of ah payinents andbenefils duelo Employee imder Uus Agrccment 
and any other payriicnl or benefit due from Uie Company orany successor Uieri:lo (die "Aggregale Paynienis") would be subject to the 
excise tax unposed by Code Section 4999, such payhicnts or bciicfits sliall be,reduced by the nunimum amoum ncccssiirj- lo result in 
no portion bf Uie Aggrcgatc P^nicnts, so rcduced, being subject to the excise tax under iTode Section 4999. The delennination of 
wheiher a rcduction is required hereunder shiill be niadeby,the Cbnipahy's registered independerit public iiccpunting finn aiid sliall be 
binding upon the parties.hereto. To the exteni practicable. Employee shall be entiUed to select the paymenis orbenefits subject to 
reduction' hereunder 

5. Bu.sincss Protection: 

5.1 Consideration. Employee acknowledges that the.execution ofthis Agreement and Itis or her access lb 
Confidential Infonniition (as defined herein) shall constitute adequate consideration for each of the limitations and resirictions set 
fortli in Uiis.Section'5. die sufficiencj- ofwliich is hereby acknowledged-

5.2 Protection of Confidential Information. Tlie Conipany and Employee acknowledge the existence of 
Confidential Information, witich is owned by the Company, regardless of whether such Confidential Infomiation was conceived, 
originated, devised. 
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supplemented, discovered or developed by Emploj'ee. the Compare, or any other person dr entitj*. Employee acknowledges that he or 
she will have access to Confidential Infonnaiion during the Employment Term and agrces that all suchConlldcntial Infonnation is, 
and shall remain, die sole and exclusive propertj' ofthe Company. Except as required by law, during the Employment Term and ai all 
times,thereafter, Employee agrces that he or she sliall nol, without the prior written cpnsenl oftlie Company, direcdy or indirecdy use, 
disclose or disseminate to any person or olherwise use any (Tonfidential Infomiatibn, olhei" than on behalf of the Companj-, If 
Employee is legaUy served with a lawfully issued.subpioena dirccting Employee to disclose Confidential InfomiatioiL Employee sliall 
immediately, but no later than five days after rcceipl of such subpoena, provide, wrilten notice to the Companj-, including a copy 
thereof 

As used herein, die tenn "Confidential Information" shall mean, in iiddilion.lo the Company'strade secrets as defined under 
iipplicable liiw," any diita or information iuid documeniation, whether in tangible fonn, electrbitic fbnriorveibally disclosed, llial is 
valuable to the Conipany and not generally known lo.die pubhc. To ihe fuilesl extent consistent wiUi the, foregoing and applicable 
law, Confidential Infonnation shall furUicr include, widiout hnutiition, the Company's computer programs, sales teclutiques and 
reports, fonnulas, data processes, methods, artjclesof manufacture, inaclunes, iipparatus, designs, compositions of matier, products, 
ideas, improvements, iriventions, discoveries, developmental or experimental work, corporate straiegj', inariieting tcchruques, pricing 
lisis and data and OIIKI pricing Infomialipn, business plans, ideas and oppommities, accounting and financial infomiation Including 
fmancial siatements and projections, peisonnel records, specialized customer.infonnation. proprietary agreemeni with vendors, 
suppher infonnation, special products and services die Company may offer br provide to its customers/guests from time to time, 
pending acquisitions, negotiations and transactions, or the tenns of existing proposed business ammgemems. Confidential, 
Infonnatiori sliall also include all cusibiner/guesl lists, accounts and specifications, and contacts of tiK C ôiiipany, and shalffurtlier 
include work in progress, plans or any olher matter belonging lo or rclaling to the technical orbusiness activilies of the Company, 

5.3 Patents; Intellectual Pniperty. Empjoj-ec hereby assigns and agrces to assign to die Compiiny anj-invenlion, 
iiiiproveiiKiit, ordiscoveiy- made by Employee, alone or joindy wiUi others, during the Employment Tenn, including anj' period of 
authorized leave of absence, or as a rcsult of his or her employment, and wliich In air,- way relates to.or may beuseful in,,IIK business 
of UK Cpmpany, togellier wiUi each patent tliat inay be obtained diereon in any couritry. Employee shall 'promptly iuid fullj- disclose 
to the Company anj' such invention, improvement or diseoveiy and, without further consideration, will upon request by the Company 
execute all:proper papers for use in applying for obtaining and maihlaining any United Slates or foreign patent and all,proper 
assigmncnts Uicrcbf, at UK Company's expense and lluougliits palenl counsel. Each such im'eiilipiv improvement or dlscoverj', 
whether or not patented, shall be die exclusive propertj-of theCompany, 

5.4 Noncompetition. The parties agree dial the Company is engaged in: (a) the business of owning, nianaging and 
operating ganting and casino facilities in Uie Slates of ^tissouri, Mississippi, lowa, Louisiana, Colorado, Florida, the Umted Kingdom 
and the Baliamas, (b) seeking new gairiing properties in additional jurisdictions, and (c) all aspects ofsuch gaming and casino 
operations (coUectively, UK "Company's Busuiess"). Employee acknowledges tliat die Cpmpany would be adversely affected if he or 
she competes with the Companj', and, accordingly, Employee agrces t̂hat, during the Emplpj-ment Tenn and the one-j-ear period 
diercafter Einployee shall refnun from canying,on or engaging in a business sinularlo die (Company's Business, either individually or 
joindy or on belialf of or in concert wilh any other person, as a proprietor panner, sliareliolder̂  investor, lender, finaiKial backer 
director officer 
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employee, agent, advisor consultant or manager The provisions'of this Section 5.4 shidl apply to (a) any operation or facilitj-.located 
witlun a 75-milc radius of any gaiiurig operation or gaining fiicility owned by the Company, whctlKr in whole or in part, (b) any such 
operation or facilitj', which is not owned by ihe Companj' but with rcspecl to whichIIK Companj- renders or proposes lo render 
consulting or management services, and (c) am- oflhe foregoing as to which theCompany hiis liiken any subsiantive siep loward 
owning, in whole or in part, or nianaging. In eacirciise, sucli delennination shall be made as of the: dale hereof and Employee's 
Temunation Date. 

5.5 Nonsblicitatibn. During 11K Emploj-ment Tenn and the slx-riibnUi period thereafler, Employee sliall not, without 
the prior writien consera of the Company, eidier directly or iridirectly, wheUier individually or jointly or on belialf of or in concert with 
any oUierperson, asa proprietor, partner, shareholder, inyestpr, icnder, fmancial backer, director, officer, employee, agent, advisor, 
consultant or manager, or in any other capaciiy or manner wliatsoever, solicit, lure pr attempt lo liire, enter into any contracl or olher 
arrangement with, or interfere with, dismpt or attempt to inierferc with ordisrupt the Company's relalionsliips with any perspn who is 
employed bj'.lhe Company, Tltis Section 5:5 sliall be applied in the geographic areas described in Section 5,4 hereof and inany sales 
office, rcgionaloffice or the coiporate iKadquartcrs of llie Company, 

5.6 Reasonable Term.s. By Cxecuiion iiclow, Eniplpyee agrees tlial the,geographic arcas,,duration and scppe of 
activities outlined in this Seciion 5 are reasonable. Employee furUier agrees that (a) such teniis are no broader tlian necessaiy to 
protect die Company's business, (b) such terms are necessarj' to protect and maintain the Company's interesi in Confidential 
Irifomiation wiUi respect4o wluch Employee lias or shall liiivc iiccess.and (c) such tcmis are not.oppressiye and wUl not impose an 
unreasonable burden or rcsuaint on Employee. 

TheCompany agrees dial die provisions of diis SecUon̂ S skill.not be constriied lo proltibit the acquisition by Employee of 
less than 5% of iiny eliiss of securities issued by a piiblicly.lraded'cpnipanj-. 

5.7 Return of Company's Property. Upon temunation br e.xpiration of this Agreement and the employment of 
Einployee hereunder forany;rcasou,Einplbj-ecorlus or her estate slail promptly rclum to die Company all oflhe propertj' of Uie 
Company, Including, w;idioui hmiiatipn. acccsscaxds, keys and similar items, autoriiobiles, equipment, computers, fax machines, 
portable telcplwnes, primers, software, credit cards, niariiiiils, customer lists.-financial data, letters, notes, notebooks, reports and, 
copies ofany ofthe above and any Confidential Infonnatipn that is In ihe possession or underthe control of Employee, \yithpiil regard 
tp the fonn thereof. EmpIo>-ee, orhis or her estate; sliall provide to die Company wrilten certification tlial he or she lias complied with 
tlie provisions ofthis Section 5.7 not later tliaii fourteen days after his'or hcrTerininaiion Daic or, in the evenl of Employee's deaUior 
Disabilitj', such later ilriie as Uie parties may mutually agrce. 

5.8 Indemnification. Tlie Company sliiillindcmriify and hold liannless Employee lb iheextent provided under the 
Conipany's orgaitizational docuinenis, from lime to time, wheiher during the Employment Tenn or aficr Employee's Termination 
Dale 

5.9 Su nival. Noiwidistanding any provision ofthis Agreememto the contraij-, Employee and IIK Companj-
ackiKwledge that the rcstrictions and liiriitaiions set forih in tlus Section 5 sliall survive tlie tennination ofthis Agreementand 
Employee's cmployinerit hereunder for any reiison. 
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6, General: 

6.1 Specified Employee Delay. In the event the Companj' determines that Employee is a "specified emplojee" 
witlun the meaning of Code Section 409A asof his or her Tennination Date, then,_nolwiihstandihg any provision of this Agreeinent to 
the contrarj', the Company shall postpone until the first business day oflhe seventh calendar month following Employee's 
Tenitination Date (UK "Delayed Piiyinenl Dale") any paynient or benefit hereunder which is deemed on account of Emploj'ce's 
'separation from sen-ice and not otiKnvise penmit'ed to be paid orfunushed in accordance with the provisions of Code SecUon 409A 
or llie guidance promulgated dicrcunder Anj' paymem made as of Employee's f)eiaycd Paynienl Date shall include;the principal 
amoiml bf aU payments suspended between Employee's Temiuuition Diite and such date 

6.2 Succes.sors and Aiisigns. Tlus Agreement is binding upon ;ind sliaU inure tothebcriefit pf the Company's 
successors and assigns. The Company inay assign this Agreement iri coimeclion widi'a merger; consolidation;assigiiment, sale or 
oUicr disposition of substantiaUy all of its asseis or business, withoul Uie conseni'of Employee. Tlus Agreemeni niay nol be assigned 
by Einployee. 

6.3 Modification and Waiver. Tltis Agreement,may be amended by written agrcemerif signed by the parties hereto. 
Tlie Company.;S failure, ordelay in exercising any right, orpartial exercise of anyi right will not waive anj-, provision of litis Agreemeni 
or preclude the Company from olhenvise or further exercising any righls or rcmedies hereunder, including anj',other riglits or 
remedies granted by any- law or iinj- related document. 

6.4 Governing Law. Tills Agrceiiient sliall be gpvcmedby the internal laws ofthe Staleof Missouri, without rcgard 
to Uic confiicts of law provislpns thereof. 

6.5 Arbitration, Remedies and Attorneys' Fees. Any coiitroversj- or claim arising out of or relating to litis 
Agrccmcnl, or the breach thereof, shall,be seitled by binding iirbitralionadniinistcrcd by IIK American Arbitration Association under 
its Gpmmcrcial Arbitration Rules, iuid judgiiie;nt oti die award rendered by Uic arbilrator(s) imiy be entered In any court liaving 
jurisdiction ilKreof BoUi the Company and Employee hereby consent lo Utis binding aibiiration provision, 

The parties agree that (a) if Employee breaches iim- provisionpfthls Agrc'ement, ihedamiigc to UieiCompariyiniiy be 
substantial, allliough difficult to ascertain, and monetaij' damages niiiy not affonl an adeqiiiiie remedy, and (b) notwitlislanding the 
provislpns ofthis Section 6.5; if Eniploj'cc is in breach of arn- provision of this Agreeinent, ortiireatensa breach of this Agrcemcnt, 
the Compiiny sliall be entitled, in addhion to.all other righls ahd remedies as may be provided by law, to seek specific perfonnance 
and Jnju'nctiveand odier equitable rclicf, including, but not linuted to, restraining orders and preliminary and pemianent injunctions, to 
enforce tlic provision ofthis Agreement. Tlie parties expressly agree:tliat llie Goinpany has these specific and exprcss rights to 
injunctive rclicf widioul posting bond, and wiihoul the necessity of proving irreparable iiijuij-, and that Employee expressly agrees not 
to claim in any such equitable proceedings iliiit arcmcdy-al.law is available lo the Compiiny, Tlie existence ofany ciaiin orcause of 
action by Employee, wheiher predicated on Uiis Agreeinent or oUienvise, sliall npi conslilule a defense lo die efiforceinent by Uic 
Company or any of its AJTiliates of any provision iKreof The Company's remedies for breach of dus Agrcenient,shall be cumulative 
and the pursuil of one reinedysliall not be deemed tb'exclude any other remedies. The parties hereto 
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expressly agree that the Company shall be entiUed tp recover damages for any loss sustained or right to whicli il lias been deprived, 
•includii^ any damages provided by law. 

If any proceeding is brought for Uie enforcement of this Agrccment; or because of an alleged dispute, breach or default In 
connection with any ofthe provisions ofthis Agreement, ihe successful or prevailing party pr parties shidl be entitled to recover 
rcasonable attonKys' fees iuid other cosis uicuired in dial proceeding, in addition to any olher relief lo which it may be entitled. 

6.6 Severability and Refomialion. To iheextent any provisionof this Agreemeni sliall be invalid or uiKnforceible, 
it sliiill be considered deleted and the remainder of such provision and Uus Agreeineni sliaU continue infuU force aral effect: In 
furtherance of Uie foregoing, should the duration or geographical extent of or business activities covercd by, any provision of Uus 
Agreeineni be iri e.xcess of Ihat which is valid and enforceable under applicable law, such provision shall be construed to cbver only 
tiie duration, exlenl or iiciivilies that is valid and enforceable: Employee acknowledges die uhcertalntj-of the law in this respect, and 
exprcssly stipulates tliat this Agrcenient is to be given ilie conslniction"wluch renders:ils provisions vahd and eiti'orceable to Ihe 
maximmn exieni'pennitted under applicable law. 

6.7 Entire Agreement. This Agreeineni contains the entire agreement and undersianding by and beiween the parties 
and supersedes and replaces anj-. previous and.cpntcmporaneous oral negotiations, commilments, writings arid understandings 
coiiceriuiig the matters iKreiii. 

6.8 Notices. All notices and oUier communications requircd or pennitted underlhis Agrcenient sliall be in writing 
and sent by certified or first class inaU, postage prcpiiid, and sliali be:deeincd:delivered upon Iiand delivery orupon mailing tb the 
following address (or such oUKr address as niay be furnished by a party hereto): 

If to the Company; 
Isle ofCapri Casinos, Inc. 
600 Emerson Drive, Suile 300 
Sl. Louis,'MO 63141 
.A.tin: Senior Vice Prcsideni, Human Resources 

If to IIK Employee: 
Employee's last addrcss,in Company's persoimel files 

6.9 Employee's Representation. Employee rcprcsenls and wammts to Uie Compam- that ihe e.xecution and dcIlveiy 
of this Agrcenient and the perfonnance of his or hcrdulies and obligations hcrcundersliall not constitute a violation ofany other 
agreeinent to which Employee,is a partj', 

6.10 Taxes. Tlie Company sliall be entitled to witiilibld as a condition ofany payment or benefit described iKreiii, any 
Federal, state or ioeal ia.xes requircd by law to be wiililield. 

6.11 Review and Advice. Byc.xccutipnbelojy, Employee represents and warrants that IK or she lias read this 
Agreement and obtained independent advice conceming IIK terms and conditions Uiereof Employee voluntarily executes Uus 
Agreement wilh full knowledge of iis tenns and conditions and the rightsand obligiitipnsof the parties set forth herein. 

Source: ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS INC, 10-K, July 11, 2008 Pev.-&-f:d by Mcrnircsiar'^Documem ^search''" 



THIS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT is executed in multiple counterparts, eich ofwhich shall be deemed an original, 
as ofthe dates set forth below, to be effective as provided above. 

Employee: Isle ofCapri Casinos, Inc.: 

By: 

Date: . Dale 

NO:99842554.2 

Sour(^; ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS INC, 10-K, Jutj' 11, 2008 " FcAert-.] by Mcr-iingsisr^Dc-rumem Sftsearch^ 



EXHIBIT A 
COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS 

Tlie tenns pf this E.xhibit A, asilmay be amended from time,lo time, are iniendcdiofonnapartof Uiat certain employment 
agreemeni by and between lsle of Capri Casinos, Inc; and its affiliales and the employee named below (the "Agreement"). 

Name of Employee; 

Dateof this Exhibit: 

Base Compen.sation: 

Bonus Opportunity: 

Source: ISLEOF CAPRI CASiNOS INC, 10-K, July 11, 2008 '̂A-firf-d by Momif̂ gsiar'Cocsimem fessarch" 


